T
\\\\\\\\\\'\'ﬁiﬂﬂn’:’:’

Niigr=———

W77

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %%k

e sz:
ot | IR R EE
™| svEEaRBERL T

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China)
(AR EE AR MBI MK H R D AR A F)
Stock Code AR A X5%: 0814




Contents B &

Corporate Information 2-5
DRIEH
Group Structure 6
SERE
Chairman’s Statement 7-10
EERWE
Management Discussion and Analysis 11-28
EIBEN R EDT
Corporate Governance Report 29-56
EE RS
Report of the Board of Directors 57-72
ExgmE
Report of the Supervisory Committee 73-75
EEemE
Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management 76-83
BE  EEkaREEEMGN
Environmental, Social and Governance Report 84-95
RE Mg RERWMSE
Auditor’s Report 96-106
FatmE
Consolidated Balance Sheets 107-108
aHEERER
Balance Sheets of the Company 109-110
NCIE=V-3=N-e
Corw/solidated Income Statement 111-112
S OFRIER
Income Statement of the Company 113
NSIVDERS
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 114-115
EHBRERER
Cash Flow Statement of the Company 116-117
NAHEMER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity 118-119
AV R R K
Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity of the Company  120-121
AEREERED X
Notes to the Financial Statements 122-335
B R R M EE
Summary Financial Information 336
BRI E

2018

R EEREEERNARAT &



CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEVER
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Company since 26 October 2018)

Mr. Li Shunxiang
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Ms. Liu Wenyu (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Zhong

Mr. Yang Baoqun

Ms. Fu Yanjun

Ms. Niu Hongyan

Ms. Li Chunyi

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Bo, CPA

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Li Chunyan
Mr. Li Bo, CPA

AUDITORS

Ruihua Certified Public Accountants LLP

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong law:

Reed Smith Richards Butler

As to PRC law:

Grandall Law Firm (Beijing)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China

Beijing Guanghua Road Branch
4 Guanghua Road

Chaoyang District

Beijing, PRC

Bank of Beijing

Jiulongshan Branch

117th Building

Jinsong Dongkou Nongguang Lane

Beijing, PRC

H SHARES REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Block No. 45
XinYuan Street
Chaoyang District
Beijing, PRC

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

20th Floor
Alexandra House
18 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong
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COMPANY WEBSITE

www.jkl.com.cn
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INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Department of Investor Relations
Tel: 0086-10-64688238

Fax: 0086-10-64611370

Email: jingkelong@jkl.com.cn
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GROUP STRUCTURE
SREIZRI

As at the date of this report, the shareholders and the principal subsidiaries of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited were as

follows:

RARER @ AR ERAXEERNDARARZEREEIEMBARNT

Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Other domestic shareholders H shareholders

Food Company

KR HRARREAT R RRBRBR Tl

40.61% 15.20% 44.19%

Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited
LR EEEXREEROBRAT

100.00% 55.66% 79.85% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Beijing Jingkelong Beijing Xinyang Tongli Beijing Chaopi Beijing Jingkelong Beijing Jingkelong Beijing Chaoyang Beijing Jingkelong Live Beijing Lianchao
Shouchao Commercial Facilities Trading Company (Langfang) Supermarket Chain Jingkelong Vocational and Fresh Convenience Company Limited
Company Limited Company Limited Limited Company Limited Company Limited Skills Training School Store Company Limited

ERMEBE LR tRBHBEERS L TRERE (BRY5) 3 LR EAR ERREEAS IR ER
EBEEARAR REARATA BRLT ARAT EHARAT RERREI2R BREEREELH BRAR
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
SERWE

Dear shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Beijing Jingkelong
Company Limited (the “Company” or “Jingkelong”), | am delighted
to present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the
“Reporting Period”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2018, the Group emphasized on the essence of retailing, focused
on data mining and analysis, and promoted product category
adjustment and optimization as well as planned marketing strategies
and solutions through big data. The Group accelerated the innovation
of its business, promoted the expansion of community live and fresh
produce convenience stores, and concentrated its efforts in frequently
purchased and inelastic fresh products, and thereby bring convenience
to customers while introducing new products to them. The Group
also continued to explore online and offline integrated operations.
Based on its offline advantages, the Group has been pursuing online
and offline integration development opportunities, by enriching online
product coverage, introducing stocktaking assistants to improve
stocktaking efficiency, and promoting online business growth; Further,
the accelerated introduction of new types of items such as self-service
cashiers and electronic price tags provided a convenient and efficient
shopping experience to consumers, demonstrating a consolidation
of the Group’s endogenous growth capacity by adapting to changes
in consumer demand and consumption habits, as well as continuous

standardization, specialization, and simplified management.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERWME

During the Reporting Period, the Group achieved the following results:  $REHIR - ANEBEBEYS T a0 T 245 ¢

Revenue from principle business was RMB10,445,548,498,
representing a decrease of approximately 3.2% as compared

to 2017;

Gross profit was RMB1,514,844,302, representing a decrease

of approximately 1.3% as compared to 2017;

Gross profit margin was approximately 14.5%, representing an

increase of approximately 0.3% as compared to 14.2% in 2017;

Total profit was RMB177,589,578, representing an increase of
approximately 19.8% as compared to 2017;

Profit attributable to shareholders of parent company was

RMB63,312,317, representing an increase of approximately

33.3% as compared to 2017;

Basic earnings per share was RMB0.15 (2017: RMBO0.12); and

The proposed final dividend per share was RMBO0.08 (2017:
RMBO0.06).
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OUTLOOK

In 2019, Premier Li Kegiang’s government work report on behalf of the
State Council once again put forward the strategies of promoting the
steady growth of consumption, taking multiple initiatives to increase
the income of urban and rural residents and increasing consumption
capacity, and developing new modes of consumption and promoting
the integration of online and offline consumption. Consumption
became a strong engine of economic growth, and with retail being
an important drive to stimulate consumption, the promotion of the
integration of online and offline consumption become a business
development model well supported by the government. The Group, as
a traditional offline enterprise, has been undergoing the development
of online and offline integration through the introduction of new
technologies. In 2019, the Group will continue to focus on the essence
of business — “Commodity + services”, and strengthen the linkage and
integration between advanced technologies such as mobile Internet,
big data as well as artificial intelligence and offline business. Through
data analysis technology of consumption behavior, we could generate
the trend analysis and combine it with the the experience of offline
stores and their consumer behavior, digitized the consumer-oriented
business philosophy, and target the consumer groups accurately,
which will enable us to provide products and services that meet the
target consumer groups and meet new consumer demands through

offering new types of operation and new experiences;
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERWME

At the same time, we will continue to improve employee incentives,
enhance labor efficiency, refine internal management, drive the
absorption, retention and transformation of passenger flow, and strive
to break through the barriers of sales and profit growth in the existing
business management model. In respect of the wholesale business,
we will apply big data to improve the sensitivity of market perception,
continue the iteration of commodity structure, and adapt to the new
changes in consumer demands through the upgrading of procurement
system, marketing service system and logistics service system, with
an aim to increase the supply of goods and services through various
channels for online and offline customers. We will enhance the
strategy and cooperation for online and offline distribution channels,
and continue to expand the customer base and broaden areas of
cooperation; expand the low-temperature refrigeration business, and
gradually increase the market share of the cold chain, and in turn

consolidate the market competitiveness of our wholesale business.

The Group believes that as long as we adhere to the essence of
“commodity + service” and return to the essence of our business, we
will be awarded with obtain consumer love and loyalty, and the Group

will inturn continue to bring stable returns to shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere gratitude to
our shareholders for their trust and support; to all business partners,
suppliers and customers for their support and assistance, and our
appreciation to all staff and the management team for their hard work

and contribution to the Group during the Reporting Period.

Li Jianwen

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
22 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Reporting Period, under the complicated international
and domestic environment, the domestic macroeconomic operation
remained generally stable. Although the risks of instability and
uncertainty increased, an overall positive trend of quality improvement
and structural optimization was presented. In particular, with the
contribution rate of final consumption expenditure to economic growth
reaching 76.21%, the role of the main driving force of economic
growth was further consolidated, despite a lower growth rate of
the total retail sales of social consumer goods compared with the
previous year. Facing the rise of a new retail model comprising online
and offline integration, as well as the new industry pattern and new
changes in the consumer market, the Group managed to grasp the
diversified needs of customers and seize the opportunities for changes
in consumption patterns and consumption concept, and therefore
transformed and upgraded around the two core elements, namely
goods and services. Based on specific factors such as the location
of the store and the characteristics of the consumer groups served,
the group introduced multi-format in supermarket business, such as
small-scale communities live-fresh stores, fresh-strengthened store.
The Group explored various aspects such as commodity category
structure, quality and price management, display planning, logistics
and distribution, service support, and smart shopping experience,
to cater for the shopping needs of mass consumers and certain
differentiated consumer groups. Further, the Group actively introduced
new technologies, continuously upgraded its own shopping APP and
the third-party platform, expanded online product coverage, improved
the online consumer shopping experience, enhanced the consumer
stickiness and customer flow and in turn achieved progress in its

online and offline integrated operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

RETAIL BUSINESS

Promoting the transformation and upgrade of stores

During the Reporting Period, the Group focused on electronization,
digitization, internetization and intellectualization, and supported the
use of information technology to accelerate the introduction of new
types of equipments such as self-service cash registers and electronic
price tags to meet the younger, trendier and more convenient
consumer needs. In accordance with the new store layout planning,
display standards and management standards, three supermarkets
and eight convenience stores have been transformed and upgraded.
Among them, Jingkelong Xibahe Store and Tianzhu Store made
their debut as fresh-strengthened stores and were well accepted
by consumers. The Group continued to promote the development
of its “Jingjie” (A ##) and “Love Home” (%) community live and
fresh produce convenience stores to meet the needs of community
residents for the convenience consumption of daily necessities. The
Group also seized the policy-driven opportunity and piloted retail of
drugs in convenience stores, enriching the types of convenience store
products. During the Reporting Period, the Group opened two 24-
hour self-service stores based on current stores, better satisfying
consumption needs in terms of timeliness and convenience, and
realizing integration of traditional business model and new business

operation of self-service stores.

During the Reporting Period, the Group redecorated and upgraded
11 stores (including three supermarkets and eight convenience
stores). Throughout the year, the Group opened 15 convenience
stores (including 12 directly-operated convenienced stores and
three franchised convenience stores). Due to reasons such as the
expiration of the terms of leasing, the closure of loss-making outlets,
the modifications to the development strategy and government
demolition, during the Reporting Period, the Group closed down
two supermarkets, 10 directly-operated convenience stores, and 17

franchised convenience stores.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

The total number of the Group’s retail outlets was 206 as at 31
December 2018. The following table sets out the number and net

operating area of the Group’s retail outlets as at 31 December 2018:

BE_ZT-)/\F+-A=+—H £XEEZTEE
WAEBR206M - TRHAHIAEER TN
FH—A=t—ANZTEFEHEMFLETE

Department Convenience
Stores  Hypermarkets  Supermarkets stores Total
BE®ES RESH mERT ERIE &5t
Number of retail outlets: TEMEHE -
Directly-operated BHEIE 2 11 59 100 172
Franchise-operated FRTNER TR - - 1 33 34
Total A& 2 11 60 133 206
Net operating area (square metres): FEEME(FERK):
Directly-operated BHEE 39,742 78818 133,036 18,564 270,160
Franchise-operated R INER G - - 880 8,709 9,589
Total A&t 39,742 78,818 133,916 27,278 279,749
Continuing to strengthen commodity operation BERCERKE

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to optimize the
product structure, focused on the core competitiveness of individual
products, conduct analysis of selected products in key categories, and
accelerate product iteration and replacement. The Group increased
the introduction of customized, buyout and self-owned products
and utilized bulk buyout or customization to improve effectiveness
and efficiency of single products. The Group utilized the competitive
advantage of its live and fresh commodities, further strengthened
the construction of vegetable bases, and created a high value, high
quality, high cost-effective brand image of live and fresh produce
through united roughing processing. Through effectively controlling
damages and losses, the operating costs of live and fresh produce
could be controlled, and the quality and price competitiveness of live
and fresh produces had in turn improved. Further the development
and introduction of packaged vegetables had satisfied the online
consumers’ demand, forming a core competitive advantage for the

Group’s online and offline integrated operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

Adopting multiple initiatives to promote online business

development

During the Reporting Period, the Group has completely revised
its online shopping APP to improve its functions and enhance the
shopping experience; and improved the efficiency of store picking and
delivering operation by adopting the online platform + front warehouse
distribution model. The Group enriched the coverage of online
products, accelerated the replacement of goods, and attracted online
customers and expanded sales by utilized its competitive advantage
in live and fresh produce; The Group introduced a number of social
logistics companies to ease the pressure of distribution during peak
hours, imposed reasonable the rules for delivery of goods and reduced
the cost of distribution. Further, by utilizing Internet technology, the
picking process of third-party platforms has been optimized and inturn
improved the efficiency of picking at the outlets. The Group increased
the promotion efforts on online exclusive merchandise, launched online
exclusive-price merchandise promotions, and leveraged on third-
party platform traffic advantages to actively carry out campaigns such
as “money off”, “hot items on sale”, “hot item seckilling”, “posters
discount” and “Jingkelong Brand Day”, which effectively increased the
volume of orders, and hence the proportion of online sales continued

to increase.

Actively exploring marketing innovation

During the Reporting Period, the Group focused on holidays and
celebration events as the main theme in the planning of promotional
activities, and organised eight Jingkelong exclusive festivals, including
the Jingkelong member commodity festival, tourism commodity

festival, summer vegetable and fruit festival, autumn vegetable and
fruit festival, summer cool festival, super taste Beijing festival, hot
pot festival and warm winter commodity festival, which created an
atmosphere to attract customers and effectively drove sales growth.
The Group also enriched types of the promotion form and expanded
the membership coverages through offering of members’ gifts, a
certain rate of discount for a member’s purchase of a second item,
items redemption opportunities upon capacity full and membership

portfolio price for certain goods. The Group introduced festival-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

themed trivia game and DIY know-how and recipes to increase
consumption and sales; expanded the variety of posters, added QR
code electronic posters, regularly published WeChat stories, circle
of friends advertisements and Weibo marketing materials, etc., and
actively made attempts to introduce online and offline joint promotion.
The Group’s campaigns in enriching the shopping experience, realising
the in-store scene broadcasting, and transmitting the product and
promotional information to consumers through stores broadcasting,

and the campaigns were well received.

Paying high attention on food safety

During the Reporting Period, the Group attached great importance
to the food safety management, continuously improved the Group’s
food safety management system, and standardized its food safety
management work from various aspects such as the manufacturer’s
food safety assessment standards, food safety management system,
food hazard control, and food safety crisis resolution. The Group
imposed strict control over supplier qualifications and access of
products and strengthened inspections of suppliers and their products;
conducted food safety knowledge and management system training
through establishing a food safety knowledge database, organizing
food safety knowledge training, and conducting food safety technician
skills competitions, so as to continuously improve food safety
awareness and food safety management. The live and fresh produce
logistics centre strengthened the transportation link from transportation
loading, distribution, and vehicle temperature at the time of unloading,
ensuring quality control during the transportation of live and fresh
produce; the normal temperature logistics centre increased the
intensity of inspection, and strictly inspected the dates of arrival and
quality of products. During the Reporting Period, a total of three stores
were amongst the first batch that were awarded the title of the first
batch of “Reliable Meat and Vegetable Demonstration Supermarket”
in Beijing. The Group will continue to do the best for the food safety

management seriously and provide customers with safe food.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BT Mo

Taking full advantage of the logistics network

During the Reporting Period, the Group took full advantages of the
logistics aspect of live and fresh product logistics centre to expand the
varieties of daily distribution of bread, cooked food, and pastries and
added them into unified distribution. It concentrating the supply chain
resources and reducing the shortage rate of the stores. The Group
completed the logistics basket switching programme, which could allow
the stores to place orders according to the standard unit, effectively solve
the problem of inefficiency of basket returning and the lack of storage
space in stores; the normal temperature logistics centre introduced the
delivery barcode, such that the goods will be recognized as inventory of
the relevant stores once the barcode being scanned when outbound,
which effectively shortened the in-transit inventory time of the delivered
goods, and the efficiency of the supply chain was promoted, supporting

needs for real-time inventory of online and offline integrated operations.

OPERATION RESULTS OF RETAIL BUSINESS

An analysis of the retail principal operating income contributed by the
Group’s directly-operated hypermarkets, supermarkets, convenience stores,

department stores and the gross profit margin is set out as follows:

ROBRBEVNRERXES

BERA - ZEAOMNAEHLXPODRES - &
REE AR HHEAEHRMAALHIXF
OE-EANRE - — T EERHERER - [
RRRE T EMARE X ST YREN R T
1 ERPIERBEMRTE  ARRAERRE
MELFEMREFFERGAERE - BRAXT
DI IMECR GRS - B b ERBEPE AR
FHE AREERAEMNEREFRRE: #
EHERBERET  XREHRLAT —B(LE
LHBEHEFNHENX

BEOEEE
TREJNAEBEEAES  HABD - EF
B EEESNTE X ERARERN RS E
R

Increase/
2018 2017 (Decrease)
—ZT-N\F s #Ean, CRd)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETFT
Retail business SEXK:
Hypermarkets N 1,182,633 1,251,443 (5.5%)
Supermarkets AT 2,667,112 2,826,421 (5.6%)
Convenience stores EF & 363,132 349,287 4.0%
Department stores BEES 38,330 41,469 (7.6%)
(including commissions) He el 32,601 35,063 (7.0%)
Online retail business (Note) PEZTE(F) - 44,635 -
Total retail principal operating EEFEERRBASH
income 4,251,207 4,513,255 (5.8%)
Gross profit margin of directly-operated E& A& % ~ 425 BH &(E
hypermarkets, supermarkets and MIEEME (%)
convenience stores (%) 16.4% 16.3% 0.1p.p
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Note:

Online retail business is the exclusive shop opened by the Group wholesale
business on online platforms such as Tianmao in order to display and improve
popularity of its products. Along with the integration of online and offline
businesses, online retail business merged into wholesale business and no longer

be disclosed individually.

During the Reporting Period, the retail principal operating income
of the Group decreased by approximately 5.8%. This was mainly
attributable to (i) an overall same-store sales decrease of approximately
0.44% during the Reporting Period; and (i) the impact of continuously
adjusting the layout of stores and government demolition, including
the closure of sixteen stores in year 2017 and twelve stores in year
2018, and the redecoration and upgrade of eleven stores during the
Reporting Period, which caused the decrease in the retail principal

operating income.

During the Reporting Period, the same store sales growth (the “SSSG”)
was -0.44%, as compared to a growth of 2.96% for the year ended

31 December 2017.

The gross profit margin generated from the directly-operated retail
business (excluding department stores) increased slightly from
approximately 16.3% in 2017 to approximately 16.4% in the Reporting
Period, mainly because of: (i) the adjustment and optimization of the
composition of the commodities by gradually increasing the proportion
of high value-added and high gross profit margin products during
the Reporting Period; (ii) the re-adjustment on the layout of stores
by closing those unprofitable and low gross profit stores; and (i) the
improvement of operation and reduction of losses of live and fresh

produce.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

WHOLESALE BUSINESS

Deepening the integration of resources with channels

During the Reporting Period, the Group effectively followed up the key
downstream clients to enhance customer satisfaction by improving the
quality of marketing services, thereby consolidating the cooperation
relationship with existing sales channels; at the same time, the Group
accelerated the cooperation with the new retail format, continued
to strengthen the in-depth cooperation with the major e-commerce
mainstream platforms, and provided promotional services and logistics
services to meet new demands according to the characteristics
of e-commerce customers. The Group continued to introduce the
international brand commodities, focused on the development of
imported goods such as maternal and child, beauty, household,
small electrical appliances and dietary supplement. The Group also
continued to explore channel integration and expand market share by

leveraging on its mature brand resources and logistics systems.

Enhancing brand value

During the Reporting Period, the Group adopted refined management
methods to coordinate various resources, actively promoted brand
cooperation, introduced superior brands and expanded cooperation
with suppliers with an dominant edge. During the Reporting Period,
the Group continued to expand its own brand and currently has had
10 self-owned brands, including Shangzhen (%), Moshifu (EERT{E),
), Zhaoxixiangchu (¥8 47 #8E) and Yinya (SR7).

The Group utilised its existing sales network to promote the sales of

Miaoshaoye (7

its self-owned brands products to break through the regional limits of

self-owned brands.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

Strengthening the reform of logistics business

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to improve the
management specialization, and standardization level of logistics and
distribution of the wholesale business, and continuously optimized its
logistics operations and innovative logistics procedures to cater for
the online and offline customers’ respective needs as well as the new
concept and new technology of evolvement from the Internet to the
Internet of Things. The Group created a new model of smart logistics
through efficient collaboration in relevant aspects of the supply chain;
actively developed and expanded the scale of the third party logistics
business actively, improved the service accuracy, and in turn push

forward the rapid development of the third party logistics business.

OPERATION RESULTS OF WHOLESALE BUSINESS

The wholesale principal operating income and gross profit margin are

analyzed as follows:

BYREB RN E

BERA - AEETERETIEZB YR XN
HEL - REOKF  HEREGTEFPEET
SKEVE R - M@ MB BN ERMES - &
BRICMRER  AIFVRREGEENES - &
PBHEZSRONGUHRE - TEESZHRHR
X EERAE  RR=ZTVREBRE  RER
BREE  HB=TDREBRRER o

HBEERE
AREBH BT EEBWARENEN DTN -

Increase/
2018 2017 (Decrease)
—ZE-N\#F —E—+F #hn, Crd)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Wholesale principal operating income — EA#t EE*FIRA I3 T &%
recognized by Chaopi Group* 3 ON 6,652,101 6,691,314 (0.6%)
Less: Intersegment Sales W DEEEE (497,502) (467,011) 6.5%
Sales to franchisees SHE T IR E4 3,048 2,837 7.4%
Total wholesale principal operating
income BT EEFBAEET 6,157,647 6,227,140 (1.1%)
Gross profit margin **(%) FEFE(%) 11.7% 11.4% 0.3p.p

* Chaopi Group represents Beijing Chaopi Trading Company Limited (the
“Chaopi Trading”) and its subsidiaries.
> This represents gross profit margin recognized by Chaopi Group including

intersegment sales.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

During the Reporting Period, the wholesale principal operating income
recognized by Chaopi Group decreased by approximately 1.1% and
was mainly due to (i) the adjustment to the composition of e-commerce
commodities; and (i) the termination of the cooperation with suppliers

with a niche market share or low margin products.

During the Reporting Period, the increase in the gross profit margin of
the wholesale business recognized by Chaopi Group was approximately
0.3 percentage points mainly because of (i) the continuous adjustment
of commodity structure by eliminating low margin commodities; and (i)

the gradually rising and stabilizing of liquor prices.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Principal operating income FEEBHRA
Gross profit EF

Gross profit margin (%) FEFE(%)
Earnings before interest and tax BRI E
Net profit = lbE

Net profit margin (%) JF ) B 2 (%)

Net profit attributable to shareholders
of the parent company

Net profit margin attributable to
shareholders of the parent

company (%) =N SE/NG|

Y SN b

FAEE (%)

PRINCIPAL OPERATING INCOME

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s principal operating income
decreased by approximately 3.2%, of which retail principal operating
income decreased by approximately 5.8%, and wholesale principal

operating income decreased by approximately 1.1%.
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Increase/
2018 2017 (Decrease)
—EB-N\F —+F g, CRid)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFT
10,445,548 10,786,227 (83.2%)
1,514,844 1,634,872 (1.3%)
14.5 14.2 0.3p.p
339,546 311,341 9.1%
106,377 94,842 12.2%
1.0 0.9 0.1p.p
63,312 47,485 33.3%
0.6 0.4 0.2p.p
FEEBBA

MEHME > AEBEMELEEBRBATEL3.2% -
HPZEFTLEBWATIRE5.8% @ AL e%
TEUATFELI1.1% ©



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit of the Group decreased
by approximately 1.3% compared with the last corresponding period.
During the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin was 14.5% (2017:
14.2%), of which, the gross profit margin generated from the directly-
opened retail business increased slightly to 16.4% (2017: 16.3%),
the gross profit margin of wholesale business increased to 11.7%

(2017:11.4%).

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Other operating income mainly comprises income from promotional
activities, rental income from leasing and sub-leasing of properties and

counters.

The Group’s other operating income increased from RMB1,169,510,105
in 2017 to RMB1,204,735,274 by approximately 3.0% during the
Reporting Period, mainly due to the increase of income from promotional

activities, and the increase of rental income from stores.

SELLING EXPENSES

Selling expenses mainly comprise of salary and welfare, depreciation
and amortization, energy fee, rental expenses, repair and maintenance
expenses, transportation expenses, software service expenses,

packing expenses, and advertising and promotion expenses.

The Group’s selling expenses were RMB2,075,079,026 during
the Reporting Period, representing an increase of approximately
1.3%, which were basically flat compared to the corresponding
period in 2017. The increase was primarily due to (i) the increase in
advertisement fees and promotional fees targeted at the terminals of
the wholesale business; and (i) an increase in the repairment spending
along with the redecoration and upgrade of current stores and security

facility allocation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BT Mo

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses mainly comprise salary and welfare,
social security costs (including retirement benefit contribution), and

entertainment expense.

The Group’s administrative expenses were RMB298,378,649 during
the Reporting Period, the same expenditure level as the corresponding

period in 2017.

FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Financial expenses include interests on bank loans and debentures,

interest income, bank charges and exchange gains or losses.

The Group’s financial expenses increased from RMB163,457,153
in 2017 to RMB172,697,916 during the Reporting Period. The main
reason for the increase is due to the higher interest rate beared during

the Reporting Period compared to the corresponding period in 2017.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group’s subsidiary Chaopi Maolisheng (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (the “Maolisheng (Hong Kong)”) and Chaopi Hong Kong Asia
Company Limited (the “Chaopi Hong Kong”) was registered and
established in Hong Kong. In accordance with Hong Kong taxation

law, the relevant corporate income tax rate was 16.5%.

Except for Maolisheng (Hong Kong) and Chaopi Hong Kong, other
members of the Group were subject to corporate income tax at a rate
of 25% during the Reporting Period on their respective taxable profit

pursuant to the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations.

Income tax expense increased from RMB53,346,663 in 2017 to
RMB71,212,617 in 2018, primarily due to the increase in 2018 taxable
profits.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
OF THE PARENT COMPANY

The net profit attributable to shareholders of the parent company
increased by approximately 33.3% from RMB47,485,004 in 2017 to
RMB63,312,317 in 2018. This was mainly attributable to the increase

of net profit in retail business during the Reporting Period.

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Group recorded basic earnings per share of approximately
RMBO0.15 for 2018, which was calculated on the basis of the number
of 412,220,000 shares. The basic earnings per share for 2017 was
RMBO0.12. The increase in earning per share was mainly due to the

increase of net profit attributable to shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the Reporting Period, the Group mainly financed its operations
through internally generated cash flows, bank borrowings and

debentures.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had non-current assets of
RMB2,277,604,072 (comprising of fixed assets, investment properties
and land use rights of RMB1,427,826,806), and non-current liabilities
of RMB66,094,191.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BT Mo

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had current assets of
RMB5,410,195,756. Current assets mainly comprised of cash
and cash equivalents of RMB1,014,227,924, inventories of
RMB1,668,923,611, accounts receivable of RMB1,490,822,972
and prepayments and other receivables of RMB926,421,867. The
Group had current liabilities of RMB5,444,705,932. Current liabilities
mainly comprised of accounts payable and notes payables of
RMB1,632,697,778, short-term borrowings of RMB2,757,649,469,
contract liabilities of RMB368,155,099 and other current liabilities of
RMB359,909,339.

INDEBTEDNESS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had bank loans of
RMB2,757,649,469, which consisted of accounts receivable
factored bank loans of RMB155,5655,585, unsecured bank loans of
RMB2,602,093,884. All the Group’s bank loans bear interest rates

ranging from 4.35% to 5.99% per annum.

Certain of the Group’s margin deposits of RMB132,682,283 were
pledged for notes payable of RMB631,264,431 as at 31 December
2018.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s gearing ratio* is approximately
71.7%, which is slightly lower than that of 72.1% as at 31 December
2017.

* Represented by: Total Debt/Total Asset
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’s operating revenues and expenses are principally

denominated in RMB.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not encounter any material
effect on its operation or liquidity as a result of fluctuation in currency

exchange rates.

EMPLOYEES AND TRAINING

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed 6,010 employees in
the PRC (31 December 2017: 6,842). The total staff costs (including
directors’ and supervisors’ remunerations) of the Group for the
Reporting Period amounted to approximately RMB748,945,515
(2017: RMB730,286,237). The staff emolument (including directors
and supervisors) of the Group are based on position, duty,
experience, performance, and market rates, in order to maintain their

remunerations at a competitive level.

As required by the PRC laws and regulations, the Group participates in
the defined contribution retirement benefits scheme for its employees
operated by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC. The
Group is required to make contributions for those employees who are
registered as permanent residents in the PRC at a rate of 20% (2017:
20%) of the employees’ salaries, bonuses and certain allowances.
The Group has no further obligation associated with the said defined
contribution retirement benefits scheme beyond the above mentioned
annual contributions. The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement benefits schemes amounted to approximately

RMB70,101,635 for the Reporting Period (2017: RMB69,056,508).

During the Reporting Period, the Group hosted trainings with various
format and topics for its employees to improve their skills and
professional knowledge. The Group held 62 seminars during the year,

and 4,900 employees have benefited from them.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BT Mo

CAPITAL INCREASE IN RESPECT OF A NON-
WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY

On 27 February 2018, Chaopi Trading contributed an additional
capital injection of RMB4,800,000, which has been fully paid up, into
a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Chaopi International
Trading (Shanghai) Company (the “Chaopi International Trading”),
increasing the registered capital of Chaopi International Trading from
RMB5,000,000 to RMB9,800,000. After the increase of registered
capital, the Company has become a holder of an indirect equity

interest of approximately 79.85% in Chaopi International Trading.

CHANGES OF EQUITY INTEREST IN ONE SUBSIDIARY

Pursuant an agreement entered into between Chaopi Trading and an
independent third party dated 5 November 2018, the said independent
third party disposed 11.55% of its equity interest in Tangshan Chaopi
Baishun Trading Company Limited (the “Tangshan Baishun”) to Chaopi
Trading for a consideration of RMB3,426,538.50. After the completion of
the said transfer, the Company has become a holder of an indirect equity

interest of approximately 65.12% in Tangshan Baishun.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no material contingent

liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As the date of this announcement, no important events affecting the
operation and financial performance of the Group significantly have

occurred since 31 December 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

STRATEGIES AND PLANS

Despite the unstable and uncertain factors in macroeconomic
operation in 2019, China is still one of the most innovative countries
with the highest consumer potential in the world. With the application
of new technologies such as big data and artificial intelligence,
active innovation of the business format and changes in ways of
communication between people, the accelerated convergence of
online and offline will inevitably lead to opportunities and challenges for
the development of the Group. In this regard, the Group will continue
to improve and upgrade its products and services through introducing
advanced technologies such as big data, artificial intelligence, and
mobile Internet technology relying on the advantage of the physical
business to explore online and offline integration, and achieve

transformation, upgrading and sustainable development:

Return to the essence of retail

The Group has steadily implemented the transformation and upgrading
of the current offline stores. Based on the division of traditional
hypermarkets, supermarkets and convenience stores and according
to the geographical location of each store, consumer groups,
consumption habits, offline order development trends, the Group will
continue to refine the classification of the stores, and accordingly,
the arrangement and optimization of the product categories of the
stores are being carried out. On the basis of the live and fresh version
3.0, the group will continue to upgrade the live and fresh produce
operation according to the requirements of version 4.0, satisfy the
demand of consumers to purchase fresh, safe and green live and fresh
produce, and to consolidate the ability of retaining offline customers
and attracting new online customers. The Group will continue to
develop customized, buyout, and self-owned brands’ products,
reducing the cost of purchasing goods, strictly controlling the quality
of goods, accelerating the introduction of new products, and to retain
offline customers and online consumers by continuous introduction of

new commodities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BT Mo

Further promote the development of online business

The Group will continue to promote the development of its own APP
shopping channel and third-party platform business, make full use
of the Group’s supply chain resources and the advantages of offline
stores to create a unique advantage of the Group’s online channels,
such as the launch of Jingkelong small program, group buying, lucky
draw, interaction and other marketing means so as to enhance users’
stickiness and interaction. The Group will accelerate the application of
new technologies, integrate online and offline resources, and improve
the processing capacity of online orders of the offline stores; on the
basis of the integration of online and offline business, the Group could
provide the consumers with the freedom to convert between online
and offline modes according to their own individual consumption

needs.

Steadily development the sustainable development of

wholesale business

With the extensive application of new technologies such as big data,
cloud computing and Internet of Things, the level of distribution
channel shows a streamlined trend. The Group, as distributor, will
continuously enhance its marketing capability, information services
capability and logistics service capability for both online and offline
omni-channel and further extend to the upstream and downstream
along the industrial chain. Through its competitive supply chain
resources, modernized logistics support and multi-channel integration
development, the Group will be able to consolidate its competitiveness

as a circulation enterprise.
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The Group recognises the importance of a robust governance
framework to drive the strategy for sustainable development of the
Company and long-term sustainable value for the shareholders. The
Group has adopted the principles of the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Corporate Governance Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with
the objective of enhancing the quality of corporate governance of
the Group and the conduct of its business in a fair, transparent and
ethical way. This corporate governance report describes the corporate
governance practices of the Group and explains the applications of

the principles of the Corporate Governance Code.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has applied the principles
of and complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange during the Reporting Period, save for the directors’

retirement by rotation as explained below.

Code provision A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code requires
that every director (including those appointed for a specific term)
of a listed issuer shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. The Articles of Association of the Company
stipulate that each director shall be elected by the general meeting of
the Company for a term of not more than three years, and be eligible
for re-election upon the expiry of the term. Having taken into account
of the continuity of the Group’s operation and management policies,
the Company’s Articles of Association contain no express provision
for the director’s retirement by rotation and thus deviate from the

aforementioned provision of the Corporate Governance Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. All the directors with
whom specific enquiries have been made have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard of dealings as set out
in the Model Code and code of conduct regarding their securities

transactions throughout the Reporting Period.

THE BOARD

The board of directors (the “Board”) takes the responsibility for
leadership and control of the Group and is collectively responsible for
safeguarding the best interest of the Group and accountable to the
shareholders. Matters that are required to be determined or considered
by the Board include overall group strategies of the Group, substantial
acquisitions and disposals, capital transactions, annual, interim
and quarterly results, distribution of dividends and other substantial
operational and financial matters. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the Group’s management
include the preparation of financial accounts for the Board’s approval,
execution of business strategies and initiatives approved by the Board,
implementation of an adequate system of internal controls and risk
management procedures, and compliance with the relevant statutory

requirements, rules and regulations.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed at the 2015 annual
general meeting (the “2015 Annual General Meeting”) held on 27 May
2016, each of Mr. Li Jianwen, Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li Chunyan,
Mr. Liu Yuejin, Mr. Wang Weilin, Mr. Li Shunxiang, Mr. Wang Liping,
Mr. Chen Liping and Mr. Choi Onward has been re-elected as a
director for a three-year term, and such term will expire upon the end
of the annual general meeting (the “2018 Annual General Meeting”)

for the year ended 31 December 2018. Pursuant to the ordinary
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resolutions passed at the 2018 extraordinary general meeting (the “2018
Extraordinary General Meeting”) held on 26 October 2018, Mr. Wang
Weilin has ceased to be a non-executive director of the Company,
whereas Ms. Zhang Yan has been elected as a non-executive director
with such term expiring upon the end of the 2018 Annual General
Meeting. Accordingly, the Board currently consists of four executive
directors (Mr. Li Jianwen, Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li Chunyan and
Mr. Liu Yuejin), two non-executive directors (Ms. Zhang Yan and Mr. Li
Shunxiang) and three independent non-executive directors (Mr. Wang
Liping, Mr. Chen Liping and Mr. Choi Onward), with Mr. Li Jianwen
serving as the chairman of the Board. All of the directors have fulfilled

their responsibilities as directors throughout the Reporting Period.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationships) among members of the Board.

Each of Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin will
not receive a director’s fee, but is entitled to remuneration based
on his/her executive duties and responsibilities (other than being
a director) in the Company. Each of them is entitled to a fixed
annual basic salary, a performance based bonus (to be determined
by reference to the Company’s annual financial results) and other
allowance and benefits in kind under applicable PRC law and
regulations. Their respective fixed annual basic salaries for each of the
forthcoming three-year term shall be reviewed by the remuneration
committee of the Company and subject to the Board’s approval.
The chairman of the Board is entitled to remuneration (including an
annual basic salary and a performance-based bonus to be determined
by reference to the Company’s annual financial results, granted and
approved by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the Beijing Chaoyang District Government), and
other allowance and benefits in kind under the applicable PRC law
and regulations. The non-executive directors will not receive any
remuneration. Mr. Choi Onward, an independent non-executive
director is entitled to receive a fixed director’'s fee of RMB154,758

per annum (tax inclusive). Each of the other two independent non-
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executive directors is entitled to receive a fixed director’s fee of
RMB41,850 per annum (tax inclusive). The aforesaid remunerations of
the directors of the Company have been considered and approved by

an ordinary resolution passed at the 2015 Annual General Meeting.

During the Reporting Period, the Board fulfilled the requirement of
having at least three independent non-executive directors (Mr. Wang
Liping, Mr. Chen Liping and Mr. Choi Onward) and having appointed
independent non-executive directors representing at least one-third
of the Board as required by the Listing Rules. The Company also met
the requirement of having at least one independent non-executive
director (Mr. Choi Onward) who has the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Company has received from each of the three independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation in respect of their
independence. The Company is of the opinion that all the independent
non-executive directors are independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.

Reasonable notice periods and sufficient relevant information have
been given to all directors so as to enable them to attend the Board
meetings and make appropriate decisions in relation to matters to be
discussed. All directors are entitled to include matters of their concern
in the agenda of all Board meetings. All directors are entitled to

inspect all relevant corporate information.

The biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 76 to 79

of this annual report.
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Mr. Li Jianwen, acting as the chairman and executive director of the

Company, is responsible for operation of the Board.

Mr. Shang Yonggtian, acting as the general manager and executive
director of the Company, is responsible for daily business development

and management of the Company.

The other two executive directors, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin,
are responsible for the financial affairs and retail operation of the

Group, respectively.

Each executive director has sufficient experience to hold the position

so as to accomplish his/her duties effectively and efficiently.

Pursuant to the code provision A.1.8 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the Company should arrange appropriate insurance to cover
potential legal actions against its directors. To comply with such code
provision, the Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
for the directors to indemnify their liabilities arising from their corporate

activities.
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During the Reporting Period, four Board meetings (not including $REHA @ EF@H BT TOREE(TEEER
written Board resolutions) were held and the attendance records of the R ) > BEEHSHFEOT ¢

directors attending such meetings in person are set out below:

Attendance/Number of meetings

HEBERH
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman) TENGCE(EER) 4/4
Mr. Shang Yongtian PR A 4/4
Ms. Li Chunyan FEFLL 4/4
Mr. Liu Yuejin 28R K A& 4/4
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Zhang Yan* RERZL* 1/1
Mr. Wang Weilin** FEMTE 3/3
Mr. Li Shunxiang (v oS 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHTES
Mr. Choi Onward BRERE 4/4
Mr. Chen Liping BRI A 4/4
Mr. Wang Liping FRFEE 4/4

* Ms. Zhang Yan has been appointed as a non-executive director of the — * E_Z—N\Ft+A-_+ B RELXTEZTA
Board with effect from 26 October 2018. RNFFFHITES

** Mr. Wang Weilin has ceased to be a non-executive director of the Board =~ ** B N\F+A-+/HE  TEMEETHE
with effect from 26 October 2018. ERRBFERITESH -

@ 34 ANNUAL REPORT 2018
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEAEE

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTOR AT THE GENERAL
MEETING

During the Reporting Period, two general meetings, which were an
annual general meeting and an extraordinary general meeting, were
held and the attendance records of the directors attending such

meetings in person are set out below:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman) TEXGE(EFR)
Mr. Shang Yongtian oK H 5 A

Ms. Li Chunyan TEHERZT

Mr. Liu Yuejin DR A
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Ms. Zhang Yan* REZ T

Mr. Wang Weilin** TR HE

Mr. Li Shunxiang R IERE S A4
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKHITES
Mr. Choi Onward BLERE

Mr. Chen Liping RS A

Mr. Wang Liping FARIFEAE

* Ms. Zhang Yan has been appointed as a non-executive director of the

Board with effect from 26 October 2018.

* Mr. Wang Weilin has ceased to be a non-executive director of the Board
with effect from 26 October 2018.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the directors are
updated with the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time to ensure
compliance of the same by all directors. All directors are encouraged
to attend external forums or training courses on relevant topics which

may count towards continuous professional development training.

ESHERRAE

BEHA  AREAHBITTRMARRERE - — K
REFBFRE  Z—KRRBRRFHIARE AR
EERSHFCENT

Sl

Attendance/Number of meetings

HEEHERE

2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2

0/0
2/2
2/2

2/2
2/2
2/2

- B-Z-\F+AZ+R AR RELTEZER
RRABFHITES -

o BZEN\FETAZRER  EEMELETHE
EARRBIEAITEERI -

EERESRER

ERESFHEEI -0 EFETKES
BHELMRARECEREERECRNERE
o ARRAAERETERBRE - ARREE
PMEESEHREIIRBREEREZ EARE LT
RIE ML AHERFEZEEEREIN D -

2018 & #f
I RRREEEEERNERAF]

¥



<=

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRSE

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code, all directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This
is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. During the Reporting Period, all directors have participated
in in-house training courses and workshops in respect of corporate
governance and regulations organized by the Company or, by perusing
materials relevant to the Company’s business or to their duties and
responsibilities, the relevant directors have participated in appropriate
continuous development activities. All the directors have provided a

record of the training they received to the Company.

Pursuant to the code provision C.1.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the management of the Company also provides all members of
the Board with monthly updates which presents information in respect
of the Company’s performance and financial position, and changes
and development in laws, regulations, business and the market, to

assist each director in the discharge of their duties.

The participation by individual directors in the professional

development programss in 2018 is recorded in the table below.

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman) PENGE(EEFR)
Mr. Shang Yongtian KL

Ms. Li Chunyan EX=3

Mr. Liu Yuejin DB o
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Ms. Zhang Yan* SRE LT

Mr. Wang Weilin** FEMTTE
Mr. Li Shunxiang ZBEEL A
Independent Non-executive Directors BV FEHITES
Mr. Choi Onward BRERE

Mr. Chen Liping PR A&

Mr. Wang Liping FHRIFEAE

Ms. Zhang Yan has been appointed as a non-executive director of the
Board with effect from 26 October 2018.

Mr. Wang Weilin ceased to be a non-executive director of the Board with
effect from 26 October 2018.
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CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

Mr. Li Jianwen and Mr. Shang Yongtian are the chairman of the
Board and the general manager of the Company respectively, which
are two clearly defined positions. The chairman is responsible for the
effective operation of the Board while the general manager is in charge
of the Group’s daily business development and management. The
Company’s Articles of Association set out the respective duties and

powers of the chairman and the general manager in detail.

Board committees

There are currently 3 Board committees, namely, the audit committee,
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee, to assist

the Board in carrying out its responsibilities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on 27
May 2016, the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the fifth
session of the Board was established. The Audit Committee wholly
consists of independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Choi
Onward who was appointed as the chairman, and Mr. Wang Liping

and Mr. Chen Liping who were both appointed as members.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are set in line
with the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. The Audit
Committee provides an important link between the Board and the
external auditors in matters falling within the scope of the audit of
the Group, and is responsible for the review of financial information
of the Company, the oversight of the Company’s financial reporting
system and internal control procedures, and exercises the corporate
governance functions delegated by the Board. It reviews the

effectiveness of the external audit, internal controls and risk evaluation,

and provides comments and suggestions to the Board.
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Pursuant to the code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the Audit Committee performed the corporate governance
functions delegated by the Board during the Reporting Period,
including, to develop and review the policies and practices of the
Company on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board; to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; to review and
monitor the policies and practices of the Company on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
the directors and employees; and to review the compliance by the
Company with the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the

Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the Reporting Period
for reviewing the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, discussing internal controls, financial reporting matters and
corporate governance functions including a review of the 2017 annual
report and the 2018 quarterly and interim results, and discussing
relevant matters including matters relating to annual auditing plans
of 2018 and corporate governance. The attendance records of the
members of the Audit Committee attending such meetings in person

are set out below:

BRESE(TE)
PR 37 ST A
FRFEAE

Mr. Choi Onward (chairman)
Mr. Chen Liping
Mr. Wang Liping

As at 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee had performed the

following work:

1. reviewed annual and interim financial statements and the related
results announcements, documents and other matters or issues

raised by external auditors;
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2. reviewed the findings of external auditors; Ruihua Certified Public
Accountants LLP has been the auditor of the Company during
the Reporting Period, and the Board approved the appointment
of the auditors by the Audit Committee;

3. reviewed the independence of the external auditors and the

engagement of external auditors for annual audit;

4. reviewed and supervised financial reporting and risk management

and internal control systems of the Group;

5. reviewed annual audit plan of the Group;

6. reviewed the Corporate Governance Report of the Group;

7.  other governance functions granted by the Board.

Minutes of meetings of Audit Committee shall be kept by Secretary to

the Board.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s 2018 audited annual
results and discussed with the management and the external auditors
on the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,

internal control and financial reporting matters.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on
27 May 2016, the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) of the fourth session of the Board was established, in
which Mr. Wang Liping (an independent non-executive director) was
appointed as the chairman, and Mr. Li Jianwen (an executive director)
and Mr. Chen Liping (an independent non-executive director) were

both appointed as members.
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The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are in
line with the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. The main
duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations
to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure for
the Directors’ and senior management of the Company, and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for determining
remuneration policies; to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives. In accordance with the code provision B.1.2(c)(i) of
the Corporate Governance Code, the Remuneration Committee has
been delegated with responsibilities by the Board, and is responsible
for determining the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management and making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of non-executive directors, and to ensure
that no director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own

remuneration.

During the Reporting Period, one meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held for discussing and considering the performance-
based bonus of the Company’s directors and senior management for
2017. The attendance records of the members of the Remuneration

Committee attending such meeting in person are set out below:

FRFEE(EE)
BRSPSt
FEN LS

Mr. Wang Liping (chairman)
Mr. Chen Liping
Mr. Li Jianwen*

*

Mr. Li Jianwen was not involved in deciding his performance-based bonus

during the meeting.
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As at 31 December 2017, the Remuneration Committee had

performed the following work:

1. Reviewed remuneration policies and structures of directors and

senior executives in 2017, and proposed suggestions and advice;

2.  Reviewed whether the remuneration policies and structures are

appropriate.

3. Evaluated the performance of executive directors and make
sure that all executive directors perform their duties pursuant to

service contract of directors.

In accordance with code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code, by 31 December 2018, the remuneration list of senior

executives classified by remuneration bands is as follows:

Remuneration band (RMB/month)

0 to 1,000,000 0%1,000,000

Minutes of meetings of Remuneration Committee shall be kept by

Secretary to the Board.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on 27
May 2016, the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
of the fifth session of the Board was established, in which Mr. Chen
Liping (an independent non-executive director) was appointed as the
chairman, and Mr. Li Jianwen (an executive director) and Mr. Wang
Liping (an independent non-executive director) were both appointed as

members.
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The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
in line with the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for nominating potential
candidates for directorships, reviewing the nomination of directors
and making recommendations to the Board on such appointments,
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy, and assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive directors, and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning (in particular the chairman of the
Board and the general manager) for directors. The Diversity Policy of
the Members of the Board was adopted at the Board meeting on 23
August 2013, pursuant to which all the nominations of any member
of the Board should be made in accordance with the Diversity Policy
by taking into account certain objective criteria (including without
limitation, the gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service) and

having due regard to the benefits of a diversified Board.

During the Reporting Period, two meetings of the Nomination
Committee has held for discussing and recommending the candidate
to be proposed for election/appointment as the Board, reviewing
relevant matters including the structure and composition of the
Board of the Company and assessing the of independence of the
independent non-executive directors. The attendance records of the
members of the Nomination Committee attending such meetings in

person are set out below:

Mr. Chen Liping (chairman) BRSPS E(FE)
Mr. Wang Liping FRFEAE
Mr. Li Jianwen FEXEE
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As at 31 December 2018, the Nomination Committee had performed

the following work:

Reviewed structure, number and composition of the Board,
and proposed suggestions on changes of the Board according
to development strategy of the Group; the Nomination
Committee assessed the current structure of the Board from
diversification policies on the number and composition, skills,
knowledge, experience and other respects of its members and
compare it with listed companies in the same industry. As for
current structure of the Board, the composition conforms to
the Company’s business development and each director has
properly required skills and experience, diversified opinions
and perspectives; the combination of executive directors, non-
executive directors, and independent directors are also kept in
balance. Among the three independent non-executive directors,
one is a professional accountant with accounting management
experience. Each director has sufficient experience and ability
necessary to fulfill his duties, regularly check the Company’s
business and financial position, and participate in the training on

directors’ continuing professional development.

Reviewed and assessed the independence of independent
non-executive director; Each independent director should sign
written documents to confirm with the Company that none of the
condition in paragraph 3.13 of the Listing Rules existed. If there
are any questions, the independent directors should promptly

inform the Company.

Adopted the Diversity Policy of the Members of the Board and
took various factors into consideration, including educational
background, age, knowledge, skills and etc, when making the

nominations.

Minutes of meetings of Nomination Committee shall be kept by

Secretary to the Board of Directors
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

During the Reporting Period, the supervisory committee of the
Company (the “Supervisory Committee”) consists of two shareholder-
appointed supervisors (Ms. Liu Wenyu and Mr. Yang Baoqun), two
independent supervisors (Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Fu Yanjun) and
two staff-appointed supervisors (Ms. Niu Hongyan and Ms. Li Chunyi).

Ms. Liu Wenyu serves as the chairman of the Supervisory Committee.

The supervisors have performed their work in a dedicated and diligent
manner and carried out effectively the functions of supervising the legal
and regulatory compliance relating to financial matters and overseeing

the directors and senior management of the Group during their offices.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and monitoring
the auditors’ independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the
auditing process. It receives letter from the auditors confirming their
independence and objectivity and holds meetings with representatives
of the auditors to consider the scope of their audit, approve their fees,
and the scope and appropriateness of non-audit services, if any, to be
provided by them. The Audit Committee also makes recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and retention of the independent
auditors.

Ruihua Certified Public Accountants LLP (mEEe st =45 m
BAF)) has been appointed as the auditors of the Company for the
period from the conclusion of the 2017 annual general meeting ( the
“2017 Annual General Meeting”) to the conclusion of the 2018 Annual
General Meeting of the Company. For the year ended 31 December
2018, the Company agreed to pay Ruihua Certified Public Accountants
CRESTMEBMSHRERAR))

fees and RMB200,000 for non-audit services in respect of reviewing

RMB1,100,000 as 2018 auditing

the Group’s 2018 interim financial statements.
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RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARATION OF
ACCOUNTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements in compliance with the relevant regulations and applicable

accounting standards.

The responsibility of the auditors with respect to the financial reporting
are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 96 to 106 of

this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The clear-cut governance structure, policy and procedure, and report
mechanism of the Group’s, risk management and internal control

system enables the Grop to conduct the relevant risk management.

Responsibility

The Board’s responsible for the risk management and internal control
system, the Board should review the effectiveness of the system. The
management is responsible for designing and executing the internal
control system in order to manage the risks that the Company is faced
with to recognize and manage risks to minimize, relieve, transfer or
avoid these risks. The Board elaborates on the above risk management
and internal control system to make clear that it aims to manage risks
rather than eliminate the risks leading to failure of achieving business
objectives. Thus, the system can only make reasonable, rather than

absolute, guarantee against material misrepresentation or loss.

Risk management structure

The risk management structure composed of the Board, the Audit
Committee, and an internal control department (the “Internal Audit

Department”) has been set up.

The Board undertakes the responsibility of continuous supervision
of the risk management and internal control system of the Group. It
will annually review the effectiveness of the system through the Audit

Committee.
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The Audit Committee assists the Board in performing the supervision
of finance, operation, risk management, internal control, and finance

and internal audit of the Group.

The Internal Audit Department, established in 2009, which has been
reorganized into the Internal Control Department in 2018, assists the
Board of Directors and the Audit Committee in continuously reviewing
the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management and internal
control of the Group, recognizing shortcomings of the design and
operation of internal control and proposing suitable improvement
suggestions. Major risks or serious internal control mistakes
discovered, the Internal Audit Department should report to the Audit
Committee and the Board in a timely manner, and it should make
correction plan and clarify the persons responsible for the things, and

follow up to ensure the improvement.

All functional departments take responsibilities for executing risk
management procedure and internal control measures in daily
operation and management, and report the risks within their operation

and functions to the management.

The management assists the Board in implementing policies and
procedures related to risks and control to determine and evaluate
risks. In addition, it participates in the design, operation and
supervision of suitable internal control measures to minimize and

control those risks.

The Group has formulated and adopted a corporate risk
management system, so it can provide the policy procedure of
effectively recognizing, evaluating and managing major risks. The
risk management group should at least annually recognize the risks
affecting the business objectives, and make risk mitigation plans and
designate certain persons to address these risks through standard

evaluation and ranking mechanism.
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Risk management procedure

All functional departments should clarify their business process, and
recognize and evaluate the risks within their business. They should
propose and implement risk management solutions and annually report

recognized major risks to the management.

The Audit Committee should annually check and discuss possible risks
that affecting future development or major strategies of the Group, and
review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control

system.

All functional departments should recognize and evaluate risks in
finance and other fields in such aspects as investment examination
and approval, financial management, laws and regulations, and form
regular risk evaluation mechanism. They should recognize, evaluate
and analyze all risks in the operation and development, and follow the
risk change trend and their control improvement and effect in a timely

manner.

Conducting comprehensive risk evaluation and assessment before
major events such as stock acquisition and major asset sales can

effectively control business risks.

Conducting annual risk review can institutionalize and standardize

internal audit.

Internal control

The Internal Control Department annually evaluates and reviews
the internal control and risk management system, and evaluates
the effectiveness and adequacy of the internal control and risk
management system from perspectives of controlling environment, risk
assessment, internal control activity, monitoring measure as well as

information and communication.
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Control environment

The Group focuses on institution and standardization construction,
and regularly clarifies, revises and optimizes business procedures
and regulations. In particular, it improves relevant systems to address
new problems emerging in risk management in a timely manner,
strengthens training and education of relevant procedures, and
achieves management objectives through implementing all procedures

and systems.

Risk assessment

The Internal Control Department regularly clarifies and recognizes
systematic risks; relevant functional departments recognize and
evaluate business risks within their responsibilities, and they recognize,
evaluate and analyze risks in finance and other fields from such
perspectives as investment examination and approval, financial
management, laws and regulations, and form a regular risk evaluation
mechanism. They should recognize, evaluate and analyze all risks in

the operation and development.

Internal control

Boasting an organizational structure with clear-cut responsibilities and
specific report procedures, the Group defines clearly the rights and
liabilities of all business and operation departments, and ensures the

effective check and balance through approval and review procedures.

The Company also conducts the internal control through comprehensive
budget management, management of new and additional budget,
financial reporting and analysis, business and operation analysis meeting.
In particular, it can recognize risks, and monitor implementation of

correction measures through data mining, collection and comparison.
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Supervision measures

The Audit Commitment Conducts regular internal compliance

inspection, risk management and internal control review;

The securities and legal department and the company secretary
ensure observation of the Listing Rules and supervise compliance of

applicable laws and regulations;

The Internal Control Department independently reviews risk

management and internal control.

Information and communication

The Company continuously develops and maintains information
management systems, including Store MIS System, Logistics
Management System, Human Resources Management System,
Financial Management System, Fixed Assets Management System,
Capital Management System, to support business, operation, financial

reporting and information disclosure of the Group.

Timely communication and exchange with each other can be achieved

through intranet, OA Office System and Email System.

Shareholders can acquire information of relevant enterprises through

the Company’s official website and the investor relations department.
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Internal audit

The Internal Control Department annually makes internal audit priorities
and internal audit plans according to corporate strategy, operation and
management needs and annual work plan of the Company. Matters of

internal audit include the following:

Audit contents
AR

Audit types
EitER

Audit during corporate operation
REELBIEES

Economic responsibility audit
KOERFET

Post-evaluation audit

P EE

HEXEEBRETHER
LS

completion of projects

REEAE TR

Review effectiveness of risk management and internal control

system

According to the above risk management and internal control system,
the Internal Control Department conducts regular review (one to three
months) and reports from three aspects, namely risk management,
internal control and internal audit. After discovering shortcomings of
internal control, the Internal Control Department will communicate
with relevant functional departments in a timely manner, and propose
correction measures and improve regulations and procedures after
discussion with the management. The Internal Control Department
regularly (one to three months) reports the effectiveness of the risk

management and internal control system to the Audit Committee.

In 2018, the Audit Committee and the Internal Control Department
reviewed the risk management and internal control system, including
finance, operation and compliance control, especially upgrading
management, inventory management, cost accounting, fixed assets
management, intangible assets management, taxation management,
budget management, and large-amount capital expenditure of
information management system; all functional departments clarified
and optimized business procedures, discovered and assessed

risks within their business scope, and controlled risks through

standardization building. The annual review included resources of the

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

il 50

CHHEHBER

N BB =T

NERBSFERRBRARERKINE  RELEEE
FTEMARMFE TR - EANE TIE
B tIEFEAMBEE o ETRIESTD
FRTIEERE:

the assessment and improvement of important links in corporate operation
IRENAYETE MM E

auditing over the performance of outgoing heads of business units
TEEARRKETRES

comprehensive post-evaluation on investment and economic benefits after

R TR ENERE

BEAREERABEZRGENERN

REIREERE bl E R E IR R AR - A
EIE - NEREEIE - RARRES =@ AT EH

(1E=318 A ) et EIE R - #8 FR 0 ARG
ERBE - O ED R B S R RE EL AR RA B BE BRPI#ETTIR
B EERENRRRLDENES  TERED
REREERRE - AEFEHOEEA)AER
ZEgHAREERAMEZRRNEGRILE
R -

RZZT—)N\F ERZEGEATBRIARE
HERNIET RS  HEREVE - 2EHEH
B SUMICEEERAOFALER  ER
R KAZE BETEEERE BEEEE
BMRER  BEEE  AELeXHEr@E
BB BRI LI R HEBRRSEETR
BEEWL  FRTTHSEXEKEENNRR -
BREECEREE c FERFTBEAD
RIEgH  AHBEERLMBERBRE S ENHE
R-BIERRKEBREEARS  UKHEIHNMNE



Group in accounting, internal audit and financial reporting, employees’
qualifications and experience, and budget related to training courses.
The Audit Committee and the Board discovered no major shortcoming
that could pose serious impact on the finance and operation of the
Group. The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
methods. The Board holds that the risk management and internal
control is adequate and effective for the year ended 31 December
2018 and and upto the date of the annual report and financial report,
and it can fully safeguard the rights and interests of shareholders and

employees as well as the Group.

Procedures and internal control measures of treatment and

disclosure of inside information

The Group complies with requirements of Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses
inside information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable
unless the information falls within any of the safe harbours as provided

in the SFO.

The Board manages inside information of the Company. The chairman
of the Board is the principal of inside information management.
The chairman of the Board and other directors are responsible for
management and disclosure of inside information. The Company
requires that all departments and individuals should keep secrete of all
inside information, and no one is allowed to disclose and report any
content related to inside information without permission of the Board.
If the Board decides to disclose inside information (if necessary), the
information disclosure of inside information should be undertaken by

the securities and legal department.

GOING CONCERN

There were no uncertain events or conditions of a material nature that
would affect the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern during

the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.
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LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Group has bought liability insurance for directors and senior

executives to ensure they take no any potential legal liability.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr Li Bo, who was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company on 18 March 2011, fulfills the requirement under Rules 3.28
and 3.29 of the Listing Rules. As an employee of the Company, the
company secretary supports the Board, ensures good information flow
within the Board and that Board policies and procedures are followed;
advises the Board on corporate governance matters, facilitates
induction of the directors and, monitors the training and continuous
professional development of directors. He has attained not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the Reporting Period.
His biography is set out in the “Directors’ Supervisor’s and Senior

Management’s Profiles” section of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
where shareholder(s) holding 10% (including 10%) or more of the
Company’s issued and outstanding shares carrying the right to vote
request(s) in writing for the convening of an extraordinary general
meeting, the Board shall convene an extraordinary general meeting

within two (2) months.

Pursuant to Article 60 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
whenever the Company convenes a general meeting, shareholder(s)
individually or collectively holding 3% or more of the shares carrying
the right to vote of the Company shall have the right to propose
new motions to the general meeting by submitting the same to the
convener in writing. The Company shall include in the agenda for the
meeting the matters in the motions that fall within the scope of duties

of the shareholders’ general meeting.
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Pursuant to Article 78 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
shareholders shall comply with the following procedures when they
propose to convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class
meeting: (1) shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or more
(including 10%) of the shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting
proposed to be held for 90 consecutive days or more may sign one
or more written request(s), the form and substance of which are the
same, to propose to the Board for holding an extraordinary general
meeting or a class meeting, and shall list out clearly the agenda of the
meeting in the request. The Board shall, upon receipt of the aforesaid
written request, convene the extraordinary general meeting or the class
general meeting as soon as possible. The shareholdings mentioned
above shall be calculated on the date when the shareholders make
such written request. (2) If the Board does not serve a notice of
such meeting within 30 days upon receipt of the aforesaid written
request, shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or more
(including 10%) of the Company’s shares carrying the right to vote
at the meeting proposed for 90 consecutive days or more may sign
one or more written request(s), the form and substance of which are
the same, to propose to the Supervisory Committee for holding an
extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting, and shall list out
clearly the agenda of the meeting in the request. The Supervisory
Committee shall, upon receipt of the aforesaid written request,
convene and preside the extraordinary general meeting or the class
meeting in a timely manner. (3) If the Supervisory Committee does
not serve a notice of such meeting within 30 days upon receipt of the
aforesaid written request, the shareholders making such request may
convene the meeting by themselves within two months upon receipt
of the request by the Supervisory Committee, and the procedures for
convening such meeting shall be as similar to those for convening
a general meeting by the Board as possible. Any reasonable cost
incurred in connection with the convening and holding of the meeting
by the shareholders themselves as result of the failure on the part of
the Board and the Supervisory Committee to hold such meeting as
required above shall be borne by the Company, and shall be deducted
from the amount due to the directors and supervisors of the Company

who are in default.
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RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group is committed to maintaining a stable and constructive
communication with shareholders, adhering to the principles of
integrity, regularity and high transparency, and disclosing the required
information in compliance with the Listing Rules. Information of the

Group is disseminated to its shareholders in the following manners:

- delivery of results and reports to shareholders;

- publication of announcements and shareholders’ circulars
on the websites of The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited and the Company in accordance with the Listing Rules;
on the Group’s website, investors can query the fundamental
information, public announcements and other the information
since the Company become listed, including annual reports,
interim reports, quarterly results, price-sensitive information,
circulars, announcements and notices. All the information above
is available in the “Investor Relations” section on the Company’s

website;

— arranging general and extraordinary meetings with its shareholders
as an effective communication channel between the Board and

shareholders.

— the Department of Investor Relations of the Company is
responsible for liaison with investors and analysts by answering
their questions, organizing field trips to the stores and the
distribution centers of the Group, and gathering, in a timely
manner, opinions and comments from analysts and investors on
the operation of the Group, and selectively adopting them in the

Group’s operation; and

- communicating actively with various parties, in particular,
convening briefing sessions, press conferences and one-on-one
meetings with institutional investors upon the announcement of

results and material investments.
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The amount of the share-holdings of the senior executives of the

Group is as follows:

Name ®E Capacity S
Li Shenlin ZEMR Personal A
Zhang Hongbo SRALM Personal BA
Wang Hong Far Personal & A
Zhang Liwei SR8 Personal EA
Li Bo il Personal BA
Pan Xuemin HEEH Personal A

The details of the classified shareholder and the number of total

equities are as follow:

The Group issued a total of 412,220,000 shares of domestic shares

and H shares respectively:

Domestic shares: 230,060,000
H shares: 182,160,000

On 25 May 2018, the Company held the 2017 Annual General
Meeting to consider issued shares, repurchase shares, issue short
term debentures, issue corporate bonds and other resolutions (details
of the contents have been disclosed in the Company’s annual general
circular dated 9 April 2018). All the resolutions as described above

have been adopted.
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On 26 October 2018, the Company held an extraordinary general
meeting to consider the election of director and the issue of debt
financing instruments (details of the contents have been disclosed in
the Company’s extraordinary general circular dated 10 September

2018). All the resolutions as described above have been adopted.

The Board always welcomes shareholders’ views and input sincerely.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Investor Relations Department of
the Company by letter, telephone, fax or email. Details of the contact

information can be found at page 5 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SEEHE

The board of directors hereby presents their annual report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
Reporting Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group principally engages in the retail and wholesale distribution
of daily consumer products in the region covering the Beijing city and
certain parts of its periphery. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the Reporting Period.

The business review, major risks, performance analysis using financial
key performance indicators and future prospects of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Chairman’s Statement
on pages 7 to 10 of this report and the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 11 to 28 of this report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the Reporting Period and the state of affairs of
the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2018 are set out in
the financial statements on pages 107 to 335.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.08
(2017: RMBO0.06) per share (tax inclusive) in respect of the Reporting
Period to shareholders on the register of members on 6 June
2019. This recommendation has been incorporated in the financial
statements as an allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the balance sheet. The arrangement of the closure of the register
of shareholders of H shares of the Company regarding shareholders’
dividends will be announced in the notice convening the 2018
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be dispatched to the
shareholders. The above dividend distribution proposal is subject to
the approval by the shareholders at the 2018 Annual General Meeting
of the Company. Subject to approval, the financial dividend will be
paid on or before 28 June 2019. The dividends to be distributed
will be denominated and declared in Renminbi. Distribution of cash
dividends for domestic shareholders will be paid in Renminbi, while
cash dividends for H-shareholders will be declared in Renminbi but
paid in Hong Kong dollars (based on the average of the exchange
rates for Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars as announced by the
People’s Bank of China for the five working days prior to the date of
the 2018 Annual General Meeting at which the final dividends would
be approved by the shareholders).
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Pursuant to the “Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC” and the
“Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the Enterprise Income Tax
Law of the PRC”, commencing from 1 January 2008, any Chinese
domestic enterprise which pays dividends to a non-resident enterprise
shareholder (i.e. legal person shareholder) in respect of accounting
periods beginning from 1 January 2008 shall withhold and pay
enterprise income tax for such shareholder. Since the Company is
a H-share listed company in Hong Kong, the proposed 2018 final
dividend distribution will be subject to the aforesaid Enterprise Tax
Laws. In order to properly carry out the withholding and payment of
income tax on dividends to non-resident enterprise shareholders, the
Company will strictly abide by the law and identify those shareholders
who are subject to the withholding and payment of income tax based
on the register of H-shareholders as at the end of Thursday, 6 June
2019. In respect of all shareholders whose names appear on the
register of H shareholders kept at Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, the Company’s H-Shares Registrar and Transfer
Office in Hong Kong as at the end of Thursday, 6 June 2019 who
are not individuals (including HKSCC Nominees Limited, corporate
nominees or trustees, and other entities or organizations that are all
considered as non-resident enterprise shareholders), the Company will

distribute the 2018 final dividends after deducting income tax of 10%.

Pursuant to the State Administration of Taxation Notice on Matters
Concerning the Levy and Administration of Individual Income Tax After
the Repeal of Guo Shui Fa [1993] No. 45 (Guo Shui Han [2011] No.
348) (CEIRMLHS 48 5 RE R BB 3% 19931046 5% S % 1L 18 A BA{ELA T
BEAERENBM) (BT EK2011)3485%) ) (the “SAT Notice”) dated
28 June 2011, and the letter titled “Tax Arrangements on Dividends
Paid to Hong Kong Residents by Mainland companies” issued by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange Letter”)
dated 4 July 2011, the Company is required to withhold and pay the
individual income tax in respect of the 2018 Final Dividends paid to
the Individual H Shareholders whose names appear in the register
of H-Shares Registrar of the Company (“Individual H Shareholders”)
when distributing the 2018 final dividends in accordance with the

law, as a withholding agent on behalf of the same. However, the
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Individual H Shareholders may be entitled to certain tax preferential
treatments pursuant to the tax treaties between the PRC and the
countries in which the Individual H Shareholders are domiciled and the
tax arrangements between Mainland China and Hong Kong (Macau).
The Company will finally withhold and arrange for the payment of the
withholding tax pursuant to the above the SAT Notice and the Stock
Exchange Letter and other relevant laws and regulation, including
the “Notice of the State Administration of Taxation in relation to the
Administrative Measures on Preferential Treatment Entitled by Non-
residents under Tax Treaties (Tentative)” (Guo Shui Fa [2009] No.124)
(ERTHEBENENEIEEREZIFRUBEFEERIVEEIT)>H
BAN) (BFI2E[2009]1245% ) (the “Tax Treaties Notice”)). The Company
will determine the country of domicile of the Individual H Shareholders
based on the registered addresses as recorded on the register of
members of the Company on Thursday, 6 June 2019 (the “Registered
Address(es)”). The Company assumes no responsibility and disclaims
all liabilities whatsoever in relation to the tax status or tax treatment
of the Individual H Shareholders and for any claims arising from any
delay in or inaccurate determination of the tax status or tax treatment
of the Individual H Shareholders or any disputes over the withholding
mechanism or arrangements. Details of arrangements are as follows:
(i) For Individual H Shareholders who are Hong Kong or Macau
residents and those whose country of domicile is a country which has
entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate
of 10%, the Company will finally withhold and pay individual income
tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of the Individual H Shareholder; (i)
For Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend
tax rate of less than 10%, the Company will finally withhold and pay
individual income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of the Individual
H Shareholders. If the relevant Individual H Shareholders would like
to apply for a refund of the additional amount of tax withheld and
paid, the Company can assist the relevant shareholder to handle the
application for the underlying preferential tax benefits pursuant to the
tax treaties, provided that the relevant shareholder shall submit to the

Company the information required under the Tax Treaties Notice on or
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before 31 July 2019. Upon examination and approval by competent
tax authorities, the Company will assist in refunding the additional
amount of tax withheld and paid; (iiij For Individual H Shareholders
whose country of domicile is a country which has entered into a tax
treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of more than 10%
but less than 20%, the Company will finally withhold and pay individual
income tax at the actual tax rate stipulated in the relevant tax treaty;
and (iv) For Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile is a
country which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating
a dividend tax rate of 20%, or a country which has not entered into
any tax treaties with the PRC, or under any other circumstances, the
Company will finally withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate
of 20% on behalf of the Individual H Shareholders. If the domicile of
an Individual H Shareholder is not the same as the Registered Address
or if the Individual H Shareholder would like to apply for a refund of
the additional amount of tax finally withheld and paid, the Individual H
Shareholder shall notify and provide relevant supporting documents
to the Company on or before 31 July 2019. Upon examination of the
supporting documents by the relevant tax authorities, the Company
will follow the guidance given by the tax authorities to implement
relevant tax withholding provisions and arrangements. Individual H
Shareholders may either personally or appoint a representative to
attend to the procedures in accordance with the requirements under
the Tax Treaties Notices if they do not provide the relevant supporting

documents to the Company within the time period stated above.

Shareholders are recommended to consult their tax advisers regarding
PRC, Hong Kong and other tax implications arising from their holding

and disposal of H Shares of the Company.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and equity
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
Company’s annual reports, is set out on page 336 of this annual

report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the Reporting Period are set

out in note (VI) 9, 10 and 11 to the financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the

Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the PRC which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing

shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting

Period and up to the date of this report.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves (including surplus reserve and
undistributed profits) of the Group during the Reporting Period are
set out in note (VI) 33, 34 to the financial statements and in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

UNDISTRIBUTED PROFITS

Details of undistributed profits are set out in note (VI) 34 to the

financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS AND BONDS

Details of the Group’s bank borrowings at the reporting date are set

out in note (VI) 18, 25 and 26 to the financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s interest capitalized amounted

to RMB53,172 (2017: RMBO).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, operating income from the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for approximately 29% (2017: 28%) of
the total operating income for the year and operating income from
the largest customer accounted for approximately 13% (2017: 11%).
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 20% (2017: 19%) of the total purchases for the year
and purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately 6%

(2017: 5%) during the Reporting Period.

None of the directors or supervisors of the Company or any of their
close associates or any shareholders which, to the best knowledge of
the directors and supervisors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in any of the Group’s

five largest customers and suppliers.

6 ANNUAL REPORT 2018
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

B 7 ik

BEMALEERFE(S BB
ZEBFRRN M HHREMECS

MADEFE)
)33 - 34 A G

K5 B A8
RO B EH BN A B RER ()34 -

BITERRES
AEERBREHANBRFBEIERATBHRERMT
BsE(75)18 ~ 25826 °

BEXREFE

BEMA - AEEEMEAN BB ARKSS,172
T(ZZ—+%F : AR¥OTL) ©

FREFRMHER

BEBMN  MAEERAARTEEERAMEAREE
@R AKI20% (=T —+4F : 28%) * MAIHA
BEEEWALEIZ%( T E—+HF  11%) - BE
Hi - () TR P R SRR SR AR R BB RE 920% (=
—+F :19%) - MAHAHEERERELH6%
—+F :5%) ¢

‘N\

*H

A
|

BEARAEFAEFTARECERALRES
KEFMAER B BTRAZEMBEER - ©
AEBRAAFEFHMHEHHES TS -

[#



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEgWmE

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the Reporting

Period and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman)
Mr. Shang Yongtian

Ms. Li Chunyan

Mr. Liu Yuejin

Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Zhang Yan (appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company since 26 October 2018)

Mr. Wang Weilin (ceased to be a non-executive director of the
Company since 26 October 2018)

Mr. Li Shunxiang

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Choi Onward
Mr. Wang Liping
Mr. Chen Liping

Supervisors:

Ms. Liu Wenyu (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Zhong

Mr. Yang Baoqun

Ms. Fu Yanjun

Ms. Niu Hongyan

Ms. Li Chunyi

The Company has received the annual confirmations of independence
from each of its independent non-executive directors and is of the

view that they are independent.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES

Profile details of the directors, supervisors and senior management of

the Company are set out on pages 76 to 83 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Company has entered into service contracts with the directors,
including Mr. Li Jianwen, Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li Chunyan, Mr. Liu
Yuejin, Mr. Wang Weilin, Mr. Li Shunxiang, Mr. Wang Liping, Mr.Chen
Liping, Mr. Choi Onward, each of the directors pursuant to which
they have agreed to act as directors of the Company for a three-year
term with effect from the 2015 Annual General Meeting in which they
were is re-elected as director of the Company and expiring at the end
of 2018 Annual General Meeting. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution
passed at the 2018 Extraordinary General Meeting, Mr. Wang Weilin
ceased to be an non-executive director of the Company, whereas Ms.
Zhang Yan has been elected as a non-executive director with such
term expiring upon the end of the 2018 Annual General Meeting. Ms.
Zhang has entered into a service contract with the Company. Mr.
Li Jianwen, Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin
were appointed as the executive directors from 27 May 2016 and
have entered into service contracts with the Company. Each of the
executive directors, Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr.
Liu Yuejin (other than the chairman of the Board, Mr. Li Jianwen),
will not receive a director’s fee, but is entitled to remuneration based
on his/her executive duties and responsibilities (other than being a
director) in the Company which comprises a fixed annual basic salary,
a performance-based bonus which is determined by reference to the

Company’s annual financial results and other allowance and benefits
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

in kind under applicable PRC law and regulations. Their respective
fixed annual basic salary and performance-based bonus for each
of their term shall be approved by the Board and the remuneration
committee of the Company. The Chairman of the Board is entitled to
remuneration (including an annual basic salary and a performance-
based bonus to be determined by reference to the Company’s annual
financial results) which granted an approved by the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the Beijing
Chaoyang District Government, and other allowance and benefits in

kind under the applicable PRC law and regulations.

Each of the non-executive directors, Mr. Li Shunxiang and Ms. Zhang
Yan, has entered into a service contract with the Company pursuant
to which Mr. Li Shunxiang has agreed to act as an non-executive
director of the Company with effect from the 2015 Annual General
Meeting and expiring at the end of the 2018 Annual General Meeting
and Ms. Zhang Yan has agreed to act as an non-executive director of
the Company with effect from the 2018 Extraordinary General Meeting
and will serve until the end of the 2018 Annual General Meeting. They

will not receive any remuneration.

Each of the independent non-executive directors, Mr. Choi Onward,
Mr. Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping, has entered into a service
contract with the Company pursuant to which they have agreed to
act as independent non-executive directors for a three-year term with
effect from the 2015 Annual General Meeting, which will expire at the
end of the 2018 Annual General Meeting. The terms of their service
contracts are identical in all material respects and they are entitled to
receive fixed directors’ fees. The director’s fee for Mr. Choi Onward is
RMB154,758 per annum (tax inclusive) and is RMB41,850 per annum

(tax inclusive) for each of Mr. Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping.

Each of the supervisors, Ms. Liu Wenyu, Mr. Yang Baogun, Ms. Yao
Jie, Ms. Wang Hong, Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Cheng Xianghong,
has entered into a service contract or an appointment letter with the
Company pursuant to which each has agreed to act as a supervisor

for a three-year term with effect from the 2015 Annual General
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Meeting, and expiring at the end of the 2018 Annual General Meeting.
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the 2016 annual general
meeting held on 26 May 2017, Ms. Cheng Xianghong has ceased to
be asupervisor of the Company, whereas Ms. Fu Yanjun has been
elected as a supervisor with such term expiring upon the end of the
2018 Annual General Meeting. Ms. Fu Yanjun has entered into a
service contract with the Company. Pursuant to a resolution passed
at the meeting of representative of employees of the Company held
on 25 August 2017, Ms. Yao Jie has ceased to be a supervisor of
the Company, whereas Ms. Niu Hongyan has been elected as a
supervisor with such term expiring upon the end of the meeting of
representatives of employees of 2019. Ms. Niu Hongyan has entered
into a service contract with the Company. Pursuant to a resolution
passed at the meeting of representative of employees of the Company
held on 27 October 2017, Ms. Wang Hong has ceased to be a
supervisor of the Company, whereas Ms. Li Chunyi has been elected
as a supervisor with such term expiring upon the end of the meeting
of representatives of employees of 2019. Ms. Li Chunyi has entered
into a service contract with the Company. The terms of the service
contracts or appointment letters are identical in all material respects

save that:

i Mr. Yang Baoqun does not receive any supervisor’s fee;

i. each of Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Fu Yanjun receives a fixed

supervisor’s fee of RMB35,100 per annum (tax inclusive);

ii. each of Ms. Liu Wenyu, Ms. Niu Hongyan and Ms. Li Chunyi
is entitled to remuneration based on their executive duties and
responsibilities (other than being a supervisor) in the Company
which comprises of a fixed basic salary, a performance-based
bonus which is determined by reference to the Company’s annual
financial results and other allowance and benefits in kind under

applicable PRC law and regulations.
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None of the directors or supervisors had entered into or proposed
to enter into, any service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The directors’ and supervisors’ fees are subject to shareholders’
approval at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined
by the Board with reference to directors’ and supervisors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.
The Company has established a remuneration committee to
formulate compensation policies and to determine and manage the
compensation of the Company’s senior management. Details of the
directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration are disclosed in note (X1)3(2)

to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS

None of the directors or supervisors or any enities connected with
them had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, its
controlling shareholder, or any of their subsidiaries was a party during

or at the end of the Reporting Period.

METMESHESCBLRERRBREITAR
AR —FANATREDTRECEERERIN) A
BRTRILZRIEEH

EE  EEREREERARNME

EEREFZHSERTAGIE - b iRB &
EFSRBEESRESTORE T ABEE
REBEERTE - AQRIERINFTHEEED
BErHFMBRLERELRTHAAGRERAR
BFEM  EFREFOFMABINUBHREM
FH(+—)3@2) -

ESRESREN RS

EEREENHEHNEAMEEART - HERR
RIETAMBARSERZFEMNERXIEER
BERASEEBHEREAERZAH °

2018 & #f
I RRREEEEERNERAF]

R



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEgWmE

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance was entered into between the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries, and any of the controlling shareholders or any

of their subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2018.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were

entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS IN
ACQUIRING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or its subsidiaries granted to any directors and supervisors
or their respective associates, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors and supervisors and other body

corporate to acquire such rights.

@ 68 ANNUAL REPORT 2018

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

HEERRRHEH

BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—0  ARAfHEH
RAFMB AR ~ A2 BRI AR 3CE 1 [ S
RAFAIERNRL °

EEEN

HEZZT-N\F+ZA=+—1H XEEHEE
ARBERFEEABENAEEER AR ED
BH -

ESNESWEROREER ZEF

BEMANEAEEARER TENEETREEHE
RS ANBBEBARTREME AR 2K
R EEEN T NERF S 2 EHN - KEBTTHE
LSRN RRRIREWMB A RM2E K RERE
EENEFRAMEARRESIEBEENNE R
Z—HEEA -



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
directors, supervisors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)), which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, were as

follows:

Long positions in the domestic shares of the Company

Name Capacity
®E 54
Li Jianwen Personal
FREX fEA
Shang Yongtian Personal
oK H (EPN
Li Chunyan Personal
FEMK fELA
Liu Yuejin Personal
gilliz3i3 & A
Li Shunxiang Personal
EEys fEA
Yang Baogqun Personal
BB R (EPN
Liu Wenyu Personal
2150 EA
Niu Hongyan Personal
H4T % fEA
Li Chunyi Personal
FHE& (EPN
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
directors, supervisors or chief executives of the Company nor any of
their associates and any interest and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2018, so far as is known to the directors,
supervisors or chief executive of the Company, the persons (other than
a director, supervisor or chief executive of the Company) had, or were
deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the domestic shares of the Company
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Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Beneficial owner 167,409,808 72.77 40.61
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Positions in the H shares of the Company

Name

=L

China Galaxy International Asset Management (Hong Kong)
Co., Limited (note 1)(FfizE1)

China Galaxy International SPC (acting for and on behalf of
China Galaxy Value Fund | SP) (note 2)(Ff{5E2)

ICBC International Asset Management Limited (note 3)(F{#£3)

Citigroup Inc. (note 4)(Hf3t4)

L

— Long Position

Notes:

These 18,080,000 H shares were held by China Galaxy International Asset
Management (Hong Kong) Co., Limited in its capacity as an investment
manager.

These 16,690,000 H shares were held by China Galaxy International SPC
(acting for and on behalf of China Galaxy Value Fund | SP) in its capacity
as an investment manager.

These 14,528,000 H shares were held by ICBC International Asset
Management Limited in its capacity as an investment manager.

Out of these 14,037,000 H shares, Citigroup Inc. was interested in
8,672,200 H shares as a person having a security interest in the
shares and in 5,464,800 H shares through the interest of a controlled
corporation. Citigroup Inc. was interested in such 14,037,000 H shares
through a number of companies (all being wholly-owned companies other
than one which is indirectly controlled by Citigroup Inc, as to 90%).

Save as disclosed above, as far as is known to the directors,

supervisors or chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December

2018, no other persons (not being a director, supervisor or chief

executive of the Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have

any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or

debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the

Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions

2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register

required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on public information and within the knowledge of the directors,
the Company’s public float complied with the applicable requirements
of the Listing Rules from 1 January 2018 and up to the date of this

report.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None of the directors, supervisors, the controlling shareholder or the
substantial shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates had engaged in any business that competed or might
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group,
or had any other conflict of interests with the Group during the

Reporting Period.

AUDITORS

The financial statements in this annual report for the year ended
31 December 2018 have been audited by Ruihua Certified Public
Accountants LLP (HESFTMBBM(BEREBER)) (the “Ruihua
CPA”), whose term of appointment will expire at the conclusion of the

forthcoming 2018 annual general meeting of the Company.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
Li Jianwen

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
22 March 2019
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
EEEWE

To the shareholders,

Since the incorporation of the Company, the supervisory committee
of the Company (the “Supervisory Committee”) adheres to principles
of honesty and integrity in discharging its supervisory duties and
obligations loyally and diligently in accordance with the Listing Rules
of the Stock Exchange, the requirements under the relevant laws
and regulations of the PRC and Company’s Articles of Association to

safeguard the interests of the shareholders and the Company.

All the supervisors were re-election or appointment as supervisors at
the 2015 Annual General Meeting or the worker’s congress (as case
may be) for a three-year term, with effect from 2015 Annual General
Meeting or the worker’s congress and will expire at the end of 2018

Annual General Meeting or the worker’s congress.

During the Reporting Period, four meetings of the Supervisory
Committee were held for reviewing the 2017 annual report, the report
of the Supervisory Committee for 2017, the 2018 quarterly and interim

results. The attendance records of the Supervisors are set out below:

Ms. Liu Wenyu (Chairman) Bxxmzt(FE)

Mr. Chen Zhong PREE A

Mr. Yang Baogun HEREE
Ms. Fu Yanjun SHEIE T
Ms. Niu Hongyan HAT 92+
Ms. Li Chunyi TERZT

PR

BARRKRI AR  ARAEFEE(EHER])
BRI EWARA - REBREARERZAE
RARARER  ETHERY - LE - HHET
HEBRE  HERRNRARR 2 -

EEEOR T AFRRBEFASHBIN
RARGRBEAME) L EEEAREZERAF]
ER AHA=F BT AFRIREFKRE
FRIRRARGHAEZAR 2T \FRR
BEREABIRKIAGERZBER

BEARN EEeHBRAORGE  BEEX
KRR _B—LFFH T LtFELFIR
EORBECTN\FEEEE  —T-N\FH
HIRME - FRAEFERSHERENT

Attendance/Number of meetings

HEEERY

4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
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EZgWmE

The major work performed by the Supervisory Committee included the
attendance of Board meetings and general meetings; inspection of
resolutions made by the Board, review of internal control system, strict
and effective monitoring of whether the policies and decisions made
by the management of the Company had confirmed with the relevant
laws and regulations and the Company’s Articles of Association,
safeguarding the interest of the Company and shareholders. The
Supervisory Committee has also reviewed the performance of the
directors and senior management in their daily operation activities
by various means, and examined the Group’s financial affairs and
connected transactions. As a result of our work, the Supervisory

Committee concluded that:

1. The decision-making process of the Company is in compliance
with the Company’s Article of Association. Proper and adequate
internal control system has been established. The directors and
senior management observed their fiduciary duties and worked
diligently, loyally and legally. The Supervisory Committee is not
aware of any breach of the relevant laws and regulations and the
Company’s Articles of Association or actions against the interests
of shareholders by the directors and senior management of the

Company.

2. The Company’s 2018 financial statements reflected a fair view
of the financial position and operating results of the Group in

material aspects.

3. All continuing connected transactions and connected transaction
conducted in the Reporting Period between the Group and its
connected persons were in the ordinary course of business
and carried out pursuant to the terms of the agreement for the
transactions, and no act that prejudiced the interests of the

Company and shareholders has been found.
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4. The Group did not encounter any major litigation during the 4. REHARNEEETAERFR ©

Reporting Period.

We would like to express our appreciation to the strenuous supports FHFISREHARE  EEZERFTEETHAES
of the shareholders, directors and all staff to the Supervisory E&HANTHRRHE -

Committee during the Reporting Period.

BY ORDER OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE AEEEm

Liu Wenyu 2l3 3%

Chairman EEEeFE

Beijing, PRC FEAE R

22 March 2019 —E-hAF=A-+=H
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

.|I|n|

= BEENEREEERT

DIRECTORS

=

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jianwen, aged 58, is the Chairman of the Board and an
executive director. He worked in Beijing Jingkelong Shang Sha
(“dingkelong Shang Sha”), the predecessor of Beijing Jingkelong
Supermarket Chain Group Company Limited (“Jdingkelong
Supermarket”) (the predecessor of the Company) as the deputy
general manager from 1998 to 2002. From 2002 to 2004, he was a
director and the deputy general manager of Jingkelong Supermarket.
From November 2004 to June 2013, he was the managing director
of the Company. He has been the Chairman of the Board of the
Company since June 2013. He is also the Chairman of Beijing Chaopi
Trading Company Limited, an approximately 79.85% directly owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Shang Yongtian, aged 57, is the General Manager of the
Company and an executive director. Mr. Shang acted as the manager
of several retail outlets and the department manager of Chaoyang
Auxiliary from 1991 to 2004. From 2005 to 2009, he was the manager
of Operation Division of supermarket of the Company and the manager
of Operation Division of hypermarket of the Company. From January
2010 to April 2013, he was the assistant to the manager of the
Company. From April 2013 to May 2015, he was the assistant general
manager of the Company. He has been appointed as the general

manager of the Company since May 2015.

Ms. Li Chunyan, aged 46, is an executive director. Ms. Li obtained
a bachelor’'s degree in law and subsequently a master’s degree in
private international law from China University of Politics & Law of
China. Ms. Li is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. She was the Officer of the Bureau of Law of Jingkelong
Shang Sha from 2001 to 2002. In addition, she was the Officer of
the Bureau of Law and the Secretary to the board of directors of
Jingkelong Supermarket from 2002 to 2004. Since November 2004,
she has been one of the executive directors of the Company. She has
been appointed as the Company’s Chief Financial Officer and deputy

general manager since December 2008.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Yuejin, aged 59, is an executive director. From 2000 to 2004,
he was the general manager of Jingkelong Langfang. Between 2002
and 2004, he was one of the directors of Jingkelong Supermarket.
Since November 2004, he has been an executive director of the
Company. From 2005 to 2009, Mr. Liu had held various positions in
the Company, including the manager of the First Operation Division,
the manager of the Jiuxiangiao Community Shopping Centre and the
manager of the Operation Division of Shopping Centre. From 2009
to 2012, he had been the manager of the First Operation Division of
Supermarkets of the Company. Since March 2012, he has been the

manager of the Operation Division of Hypermarkets of the Company.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Weilin, aged 55, is a non-executive director. From August
2006 to August 2009, Mr. Wang served as the deputy general
manager of Beijing Hongchao Weiye Company Limited (“Hongchao
Weiye”). From August 2009 to October 2012, he served as the general
manager of Hongchao Weiye. He has been the general manager of
Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Company Limited since October 2012. Mr.
Wang ceased to be a non-executive director of the Company since 26

October 2018.

Ms. Zhang Yan, aged 38, is a non-executive Director. She graduated
from the 1t REEZPT (Beijing Broadcasting Institute) (now known
as FEIEHKEZ (Communication University of China)) specializing in
finance and accounting. From July 2003 to October 2008, Ms. Zhang
successively served as a sales assistant of the Marketing Department,
an officer and the head of the Comprehensive Management
Department of Beijing Lizheng Software Design and Research Institute
(4t RIB IF 84 R 5+ W 95 B ). From November 2008 to December
2016, Ms. Zhang successively served as an officer of the Finance
and Accounting Department, an officer and the head of the Party
Committee Office, and the deputy manager of the General Office of
Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Food Company. Since December 2016,
Ms. Zhang has been the manager of the General Office of Beijing
Chaoyang Auxiliary Food Company. Since October 2018, MS. Zhang

has been a non-executive director of the Company.
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B EFELSREEEGN

Mr. Li Shunxiang, aged 66, is a non-executive director. From
2000 to 2010, he was the general manager of Beijing Zhonglianjian
Construction Company Limited. From 2002 to 2004, he was a non-
executive director of Jingkelong Supermarket. Since November 2004,

he has been a non-executive director of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Liping, aged 62, is an independent non-executive director.
Mr. Wang obtained a master’s degree in Economics and a PhD in
Management from Renmin University of China in 1985 and 2004,
respectively. He is currently the professor and doctorial supervisor
at the Institute of Business Organisation and the faculty of Human
Resources Management at Renmin University of China. Since June

2010, he has been an independent non-executive director.

Mr. Chen Liping, aged 57, is an independent non-executive director.
Mr. Chen obtained a master’s degree in Business Operation from
Aichi University of Japan in 1999 and a PhD in Economics from
Circulation University of Economics of Japan in 2008. He is currently
the full professor and master supervisor of the faculty of Marketing
in the Institute of Business Management at Capital University of
Economics and Business of China. Since 10 June 2010, he has been
an independent non-executive director. Since September 2014, he has
been an independent non-executive director of 515J Holding Group

Co. Ltd.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BF  EEkOQEREGN

Mr. Onward Choi, aged 48, is an independent non-executive director
and the chairman of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Choi
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in accountancy with honors from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Choi was the acting chief
financial officer of Netkase, Inc., a Nasdag-listed company, from July
2007 to June 2017. Mr. Choi currently serves as an independent non-
executive director and the chairman of the audit committee of Wise
Talent Information Technology Company Limited, a company listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Choi also serves as the
independent director and the chairman of the audit committee of Tuniu
Corporation, a Nasdag-listed company. Mr. Choi is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, CPA Australia and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Choi has

been an independent non-executive director since June 2010.

SUPERVISORS

Ms. Liu Wenyu, aged 47, is the chairman of the Company’s
supervisory committee. Ms. Liu obtainted her bachelor’s degree from
Renmin University of China. During the period from 1999 to 2008,
Ms. Liu has been appointed as the vice-chairman of the labour union
of Chaoyang Auxiliary and the Company, the deputy manager of the
First Operation Division and the officer of the Office of the Jiuxiangiao
Community Shopping Center coordination team of the Company.
Since October 2008, she has been the chairman of the labour union
of the Company. Since June 2010, she has been the chairman of the

Company’s Supervisory Committee.

Mr. Yang Baoqun, aged 66, is a supervisor of the Company. He was
a supervisor of Jingkelong Supermarket from 2002 to 2004. Since

November 2004, he has been a supervisor of the Company.
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Mr. Chen Zhong, aged 55, is a supervisor of the Company. Mr.
Chen obtained his doctorate from Peking University in 1989. He is
currently a professor of the School of Electronics Engineering and
Computer Science, the Head of the Advanced Financial Information
Research Centre at Peking University. Since June 2002 to July 2010,
he had been a professor and the Head of the School of Software and
Microelectronics, Peking University. Since January 2005, he has been

a supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Fu Yanjun, aged 39, is a supervisor of the Company. Ms. Fu
obtained her bachelor’s degree from Renmin University of China. She
is a Chinese certified public accountant. She had previously worked
in Ernst & Young Hua Ming and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA
Ltd. Since December 2014, Ms. Fu joined China Resources Medical
Holdings Company Limited, she is currently an executive director and
a vice general manager of the Company. Since May 2017, she has

been a supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Niu Hongyan, aged 46, is a supervisor of the Company. Ms. Niu
is an intermediate economist. From September 1992 to July 2017,
Ms. Niu has served as the director, deputy manager and manager
of several retail outlets of the Company. Since July 2017, she has
been appointed as the manager of the Party Committee Office of
the Company. Since August 2017, she has been a staff-appointed

supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Li Chunyi, aged 46, is a supervisor of the Company. Ms. Li is
an intermediate economist. Between August 1995 and March 2008,
Ms. Li had worked in Beijing Hardware Machinery Company Limited,
Beijing Jinyu Da Sha and Beijing Shoulian Company Limited. From
April 2008 to June 2009, she had been the deputy manager of the
Labor Ministry. From July 2009 to April 2018, she has been the deputy
manager of the Human Resources Department of the Company. Since
April 2018, she has been appointed as the manager of the Human
Resources Department of the Company. Since October 2017, she has

been a staff-appointed supervisor of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Shenlin, aged 55, is an assistant general manager of the
Company. Mr. Li acted as the manager of several retail outlets of
the Company from 1997 to 2007. From 2007 to 2009, he was the
manager of the Operation Division of Hypermarkets and the assistant
to the manager of the Company. Since August 2009, he has been the

assistant general manager of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Hongbo, aged 49, is an assistant general manager of the
Company. From November 1992 to October 1997, Mr. Zhang was the
deputy officer of Executive Office of the Silk Import & Export Group
Company of Hubei. From October 1997 to March 2003, he served
as the general manager of the Information Department of Shenzhen
Huarun Supermarket Company. From March 2003 to March 2006, he
was the Chief Information Officer and the Officer of the Information
Center of the Company. From June 2006 to August 2015, he was the
assistant to the manager of the Company and the Chief Information

Officer. Since August 2015, he has been the assistant general

manager of the Company.

Ms. Wang Hong, aged 48, is an assistant general manager of the
Company. Ms. Wang is a senior economist. She worked in Beijing
Ruida Frozen Foods Company Limited for about nine years and
was appointed as the assistant to general manager before joining
the Company. Since September 2003 to March 2011, she had
been appointed as the deputy officer of the Office of Managers, the
purchase manager of the In-house Brand Division of Purchase Center
and the manager of the Marketing Department of the Company. From
March 2011 to July 2012, she had been appointed as the deputy
manager and the manager of the Human Resources Department.
Since August 2012, she has been the Chief Human Resources Officer
and the manager of the Human Resources Department. From June
2010 to October 2017, she was a staff-appointed supervisor of the
Company. Since August 2017, she has been the assistant general

manager of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

B EFELSREEEGN

Mr. Zhang Liwei, aged 41, is an assistant general manager of the
Company. Mr. Zhang obtained his bachelor’s degree from Tianjin
University of Commerce. From August 2000 to December 2013, Mr.
Zhang had been appointed as the office clerk, the assistant to officer,
the manager, the Committee Secretary, the assistant to the manager
and the deputy manager of Beijing Xinyang Tongli Commercial Limited
(“Xinyang Tongli”), an non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
From December 2013 to May 2015, he was the manager of the
Equipment or Materials Purchasing Department and the manager of
the Equipment Division of the Company. From June 2015 to March
2017, he was the assistant to the general manager, the team leader
for “Xi Hong Men” and the manager of the Operation Division of
supermarket of the Company. Since April 2017, he has been the
assistant to the general manager and the Chief Operating Officer of
the Company. Since August 2017, he has been the assistant general

manager of the Company.

Mr. Li Bo, aged 40, is the Company Secretary of the Company. He
graduated from Capital University of Economics and Business with
a bachelor’s degree of economics in 2001 and obtained a master
degree of accounting from Macquarie University of Australia in 2004.
Mr. Li is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Certified Practising Accountant of Australia. Mr. Li
worked for Bank of Beijing from July 2001 to June 2002 as Loan
administration officer. He served as an auditor in Deloitte Beijing office
from December 2004 to July 2007. He served as a senior auditor in
the Audit office of New South Wales in Australia from August 2007
to September 2010, then served in Sinolink securities as a project
Mr. Li joined the
From November 2013 till now, Mr. Li

manager from September 2010 to March 2011.
Company on 18 March 2011.
also served as the Company secretary for Yunnan Water Industry

Investment Company Ltd.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Pan Xuemin, aged 31, is the board secretary of the Company.
She graduated from law school of Inner Mongolia University of Finance
and Economics with a bachelor of law degree in 2011 and obtained a
master’s degree in civil and commercial law from Capital University of
Economics and Business in 2014. Since June 2014, Ms. Pan served
as an legal clerk in the Company’s securities and legal department.
Since November 2015, she served as director and deputy manager in
the Company’s securities and legal department. Since August 2016,

she was appointed as board secretary.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R e LEAWmE

INTRODUCTION

As a player in the retail and wholesale industry of fast-moving
consumer goods, the Group has always valued corporate social
responsibility as one of the core values of its sustainable development,
and has strived to maintain a high standard of food safety. The Group
also maintains a constant awareness of the needs of society and has
proactively participated in community care activities, and has placed
emphasis on environmental protection by implementing low-carbon
operation and cutting energy consumption and emissions, so as to

fulfill corporate social responsibility.

This report is prepared with reference to the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules, summarizing the key areas of operation on environment and
society, and the implemented policies and strategies of the Group’s (i)
operational practices, (i) employment policies; and (iii) environmental

protection measures.

OPERATING PRACTICES

Food Safety/Product Responsibility

The Group spares no efforts in promoting the knowledge of food
safety and hosted trainings for procurement staff, store manager and
relevant positions on the relevant laws and regulations including the
“Food Safety Law of the PRC”. To better enforce the food safety
management work and to eliminate the hidden risks of food safety, the
Group strictly monitors the quality of the products pursuant to the “Food
Safety Law of the PRC”, the “Product Quality Law of the PRC” and
the requirements of other relevant laws and regulations. New channels
and new products are reviewed and approved strictly according to the
Group’s quality standards. On-site inspections on newly introduced
channels and high-risk channels are carried out to ensure that
disqualified channels will not be introduced. The distribution centre
implements strengthened measures on the management of the date
of manufacture and shelf life when receiving products and will refuse

to accept any goods which is unable to comply with the inspection
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requirements. The operation headquarters has enhanced food safety
inspections to ensure that consumers are provided with safe and
reliable food. The Group pays close attention to the shelf life of goods
keep in the warehouse or the stores, strengthen the stores inspection
and will optimize the packaging and transportation standard of
commodity according to different seasons and requirements of storage

and transportation in order to guarantee the quality of the commodity.

The Group strictly abides by the provisions of the Food Safety Law of
the People’s Republic of China and provides accurate and complete

information such as product labels.

The Group are also in compliance with the provisions of the
Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China, and there is no

false advertising.

In January 2018, in order to improve the live and fresh produce
business management level of stores and to effectively enhance
the sales ability for fresh meat, live poultry and aquatic products in
a professional manner, the Group conducted a specialized training
for live and fresh produce operational staff on "Specialized Sales
Managers of Fresh Meat, Live Poultry and Aquatic Products", with an
aim to provide professional personnel with professional knowledge and

skills to better provide customers with quality goods and services.

In March 2018, the Group organized an International Consumer
Rights Day series with the theme of “Quality Consumption e Better
Life”. The stores invited relevant government agencies and well-
known manufacturers to promote food safety to consumers, and
distributed leaflets such as the Protection of the Rights and Interests
of Consumers of the PRC, “Electrical Maintenance Knowledge
Handbook”, “Health Food Selection and Food Essentials”, with an aim
to raise consumers’ awareness on legal and general knowledge. The
Group carried out activities such as on-site identification of genuine

from fake products, which were well received by consumers.
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In April 2018, the Group organized a specialize food safety training
for staff of the operation department and food safety controllers
of the stores, focusing on areas including the requirements of
business establishments, health, on-site production, and food safety

management systems.

In May 2018, a supplier training and mobilization meeting was held
for the Group’s suppliers, focusing on the training of 48 supplier
representatives on topics including food safety management systems,
operation specifications, food hazard analyse, etc., in order to enhance

the Group’s market capacity.

In June 2018, the store staff, operation management personnel and
joint venture partners were trained in vector control work to ensure the

hygiene and food safety of the stores.

The Group had already established a series of product management
systems including the management instructions for the expiration date
of commodities and quality manuals, to guarantee the quality and

safety of the commodities to be sold.

The Group is highly concerned about the privacy protection of its
customers. The relevant data obtained through regular consumption

will never be disclosed or used for other purposes.

Supply Chain Management

In the course of selecting suppliers, the Group would strictly abide by
the company’s series of introduction systems, such as the “Supplier
Classification Management Measures", “Certificate of Claims and
Purchase Accounts", “Channel Introduction Supervision Standards",
etc. and would consider a range of factors including the product
quality, the supply capacity, reasonableness of price, service quality
and business reputation while strictly reviewing information such as
operational qualifications, license and testing reports on product

quality in order to ensure that all products introduced by us are safe
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and reliable. We have entered into an agreement for sale and purchase
with each supplier that we introduce, specifying the rights, obligations
and related responsibilities of the supplier explicitly and requesting the
supplier to provide regular testing reports of the products that they

offer.

The Group attaches great attention to the production environment
of the supply chain. For suppliers involved in food production,
we strictly abide by the provisions of the Food Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China to ensure a safe and reliable production

environment.

Intellectual Property Protection

The Group has been determined to actively maintain and protect
the intellectual property, respecting the achievement of intellectual
property. Legal authorization have been obtained in respect of all

types of intellectual property rights.

Community Engagement

The Group has constantly paid attention to the needs of society. It
cares for people in the community through setting up convenience
stores in the community, contributing to society and thereby fulfilling
the corporation social responsibility. Any consumer ordering goods
using the Jingkelong app can choose to pick up the goods in a
nearby store, or use the service of home delivery; for consumers who
prefer store shopping, can use self-service cash registers to complete
express check-out payment, which is a great convenience to the
community. In addition, the Group distributes the “red heart service
card” (“B /0 RFEER”) to the needy in the community, providing free
services such as home delivery, blood pressure checks, hairdressing,
utility bills payment and hospital check-in services. All stores offered
home delivery services to over 200 red heart service customers, for
more than 600 times and covering 96 communities in 2018; during
the Reporting Period, 322 community residents were appointed as

the Group’s volunteer inspectors to help enterprises to do better; 25
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warm-heart depots were established and available to the public to
facilitate the outdoor workers to drink and rest; regular community
activities are held by employees of the Group aiming to promote
product knowledge among the community members. The Group
encourages employees to care for people in need in society, promote

its corporate culture and fulfill corporate social responsibility.

Consumer Right Protection

The Group strictly adheres to the requirements under the “the
Protection of the Rights and Interests of Consumers of the PRC” and
other relevant laws and regulations, paying attention to the protection
for the consumers privacy and other rights in the daily business
activities. The Group also has set up a special functional department

to handle cases with consumers.

Anti-corruption

The Group expects all staff to remember and strictly in compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations including “Anti-corruption and
Bribery Act of the PRC”, the “Anti- Money laundering Law of the PRC”
and the “Discipline Inspection and Supervision Law of the PRC”, and
requires all employees to be self-disciplined and upright and corruption
and kickback are not tolerated. No one is allowed to take advantage
of their position to misappropriate funds and property or abuse power

for personal gains.

The Group has established the Discipline Inspection and Supervision
Department to accept reports, conduct investigations, and investigate
and handle certain cases, in an attempt to prevent the staff from

corruption.

During the Reporting Period, the Group and its employees are not
involved in any lawsuits involving corruption, bribery and money

laundering.
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EMPLOYMENT POLICIES

Working Environment

The Group is strictly in compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations including the “Labour Law of the PRC” and the “Labour
Contract Law of the PRC” to create a fair and legitimate working
environment as well as a healthy and safe labour environment.
Reasonable working hours and resting time are arranged for our
employees. The Group has also established a labour union to protect

various rights of all its employees.

In according to the “Labour Law of the PRC” and the “Labour Contract
Law of the PRC” strictly, the Group established the “Staff Management
Mechanism”, the “Objective Management System” and the “Education
and Training Administration System” in respects of the employees’
recruitment, promotion and dismissal. The Group will adjust employee
compensation in strict accordance with the position, responsibilities,
experience, achievement and performance of employees, and refer to
the market level to maintain the competitiveness of the salary. Further,
the Group will make the training course and promotion plan, and
offer pre-job training and on-the-job training courses, to fully exploit
and stimulate staff potential to maintain the competitiveness of the

corporation.

The Group respects and safeguards the rights of female employees. It
arranges positions for female employees reasonably according to the
job nature, so that female employees can enjoy equal and competitive
remuneration and benefits as well as equal opportunities to develop
their career. The Group also provides a “Mothers’ Room” especially
for the convenience of female employees in need, embodying the
caring corporate culture. The Group also provides “Special Disease
Mutual Security Scheme for Working Female Employees” for female
employees and makes payment of claims to relevant female employees
in a timely manner. Specialized body check plans are also provided to
female employees, along with health seminars focusing on the body

check results to raise the safety awareness.
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The Group has built a “reading corner” for the staff to encourage
them to learn culture and knowledge and organized a variety of group

activities from time to time to enrich their sparetime life.

The Group encourages and supports its staff to participate in physical
exercise, occasionally hosting sports programs such as table tennis,
basketball, badminton competitions; holds yoga class and engages
specialized teachers to guide employees; and provides its staff with

fitness equipment for exercise.

The Group attaches great importance to the provision of assistance
to employees in need and keeps improving the assistance system.
Emergency assistance is available to employees in need and education
subsidy is provided to employees with great difficulties on their

children’s education.

The Group has set up its own staff canteen to promote the staff with
safety and convenient breakfast and lunch, all staff is entitled to the

food subsidies.

Employee Structure

The Group mainly engages in the wholesale and retail business of
fast-moving consumer goods; therefore, a robust and stable team of
employees is the key to maintain a regular and stable operation. As of

31 December 2018, the Group had 6,010 employees.

The staff troops of the Group from the different gender and
different spectrum of age. The Group attracts the graduates and
the professionals with relevant work experience through campus
recruitment, social recruitment and online recruitment, enrich the
formation of the corporation staff troops. The Group cultivates the
professional technology of the staff by work-study program and
specialized training course, to inject fresh blood into the short-handed
position and specialized position. The Group upholds the idea of
providing a fair working environment. As at 31 December 2018, the
proportion of male to female employees was 36.94% to 63.06%. The
principle of “equal pay for equal work” has been strictly implemented

as well.
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Health and Safety

In accordance with the “Food Safety Law of the PRC” and relevant
laws and regulations refer to the health management for the employees
in circulation field in food marketing, the Group has established a
“Health Management System for Employees in the Circulation Field” to
ensure the health of employees and to purchase medical insurance for

employees.

The Group organizes body checks for all employees regularly. There
were four “Physical and Emotional Health Education Session for
Employees” which involved first aid, mental health and other themes,
seminars were also held by engaging professional doctors to give
precautionary and healthcare advice related to common diseases
in workplace in order to safeguard the health of employees and to

promote knowledge on workplace safety.

Health care seminars on occupational hazards and disease prevention
are regularly held so that employees can maintain an awareness of

health.

The Group has strictly complied with relevant safety laws and
regulations including the “Safety Production Code of the PRC”, the
“Law on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases of the
PRC” and the “Rules on Supervision Labor Protection Articles”,
designed a “Administrative measures for Distributing Labour Protection
Appliances” for all the employees, builds and keeps high standard of
healthy and safe working environment that does not jeopardize the
health of employees, regularly inspects and maintains mechanical
equipment in use and provides protection appliances and protective
clothing to secure the occupational safety of employees. During the
Reporting Period, it was never prosecuted for any violation of the

relevant regulations on occupational safety.
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Training and Development of Employees

The Group upholds the corporate spirit of “Connecting Hearts while
Making Profits with Chain Stores” and the corporate value of “integrity
before interest, give before take”. The Group views its employees as
family members and focuses on their long term development to help

them realize their individual value.

With continuous innovation on the marketization of recruitment system
and improvement on remuneration and benefits, the Group adapts
to the keen competition of the labour market to achieve the goal of

recruiting and retaining talents.

The Group provides various specified trainings for frontline staff,
headquarters staff, middle-ranking management and senior
management according to the development plan of the Company,
providing a clear ladder of promotion for employees. Any employees
with ability can realize their value and achieve better development.
The promotion mechanism of the Group is linked with performance
assessment. By enhancing the management system of human
resources and offering room for employees to further develop, the
Group can inspire employees to be enthusiastic at work, thereby

enhancing their professional and career development.

In order to meet the needs of the functional departments, the
Group broadens its horizons, pushes employees to participate in
external training, enhances their professional competence, and learns
advanced concepts and methods in the industry to improve working

performance.

During the reporting period, all the store managers obtained the store
manager permit through training, becoming the backbone of the

Group.
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Labour Standards

During the reporting period, there is no child and forced labour in our
Group as it strictly complies with the requirements of the relevant laws
and regulations such as the “Labour Law of the PRC” and “the Labour

Contract Law of the PRC”.

To avoid employing minor laborers and employees, the Human
Resources Department of the Group would strictly examine valid
identity card of job applicants for verification of their actual ages,

resolutely put an end to use of child labor.

To safeguard the employees’ right, the Group has strictly complied
with relevant labour laws and regulations regarding the working hours
of the employees. The employees’ work hours, duty hours, resting
time and holidays are well respected and are strictly in accordance
with relevant labour law and regulations. Any necessary arrangements
of overtime work must be mutually agreed between the management
and employees on voluntarily basis and any extra workload shall be

fairly rewarded. There is no forced labour in Group.

To ensure the employment conduct in compliance, guarantee the
employee’s full entitlement to the right to be informed, participate,
express and supervise, prevent and eliminate the behavior of violation,
the Group has public the current labour management system and
establish variety channels to gather and integrate the feedback and
complaint of staff, handle and resolve all kinds of employee’s problem

on timely basis.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group attaches great importance to environmental protection and
strictly abides by the Environmental Protection Law of the People's

Republic of China and the principle of green operation.

Emissions

The Group is not a manufacturing enterprise and therefore no
consumption of resources including gases, oil, packaging materials
and other raw materials is involved. No hazardous or harmless
substances are produced or emitted to the water or land. Therefore,
there are no laws and regulations in these respects would have a
significant impact on the Group that require special compliance; the
Group’s business activities did not have a significant impact on the
environment and natural resources. During the Reporting Period, it
was never prosecuted for any violation of the relevant regulations on

environmental.

Use of Resources and Emissions

The Group supports environmental protection and strives to enforce
sustainable development and advocates resources conservation. It
adopts information-based operation to a great extent and promotes
low-carbon office. The Group has also prepared “Energy Management
Handbook” and “Carbon Emission Management Handbook” to
strengthen the management of energy and reduce carbon emission.
As a result, the impact of our operation on the environment can be
minimized. In terms of energy conservation and carbon reduction,
the Group performed well and received awards from the government

during the reporting period.
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Water Usage

Water consumption of the Group in 2018 was approximately 350,435

tons.

Water supply for the Group is sufficient and there is no problem
in obtaining suitable sources. The Group actively carries out water
conservation measures and encourages reutilization of water to
reduce water consumption. Furthermore, it spares no efforts in
conserving water and minimizing water usage to its best, so as to
avoid unnecessary usage of water resources. Due to the efforts of the
Group, over 20,000 tons of water has been saved compared with last

year.

Electrical Installations

Total power consumption of the Group was approximately 88.0498

million kWh in 2018.

The Group attaches great importance to energy conservation and
emission reduction, reduces energy consumption, and promotes green
management. The Group has continuously improved the management
level of energy conservation and environmental protection and
achieved remarkable energy conservation and emission reduction with
great economic benefit by enhancing the low-nitrogen gas boilers, the
refrigeration equipment, the cold chain transformation by using PSG
(the supermarket refrigeration system energy-saving compressor), the
energy-saving renovation for elevators and lighting, etc. Due to the
efforts of the Group, about 740 kWh of electricity has been saved

compared with last year.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT
TS

RHSZ [2019] No.01870126

To The Shareholders of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited:

AUDIT OPINION

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of
Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheets of the Group and the balance sheets
of the Company as at 31 December 2018, the consolidated
income statement of the Group and the income statement
of the Company, the consolidated statement of changes in
shareholders’ equity and the consolidated cash flow statement of
the Group and the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
and the cash flow statement of the Company for the year then

ended, and other certain explanatory notes.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Company and the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of financial performance and cash flows
of the Company and the Group for the 2018 year then ended
in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business

Enterprises.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the China Standards
on Auditing (“CSAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants of the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“CICPA Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the CICPA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that we based on the
professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We determine that
the following matters as key audit matters are required to be

communicated in the audit report.

3.1 Wholesale and retail income

Refer to IV (19) and VI (35) of Notes to the consolidated

financial statements.

3.1.1Description

As stated in Note VI (35) “operating income and
operating cost” in Notes to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company’s wholesale income is
RMB6,157,646,906 which is 52.85% of operating
income and retail income is RMB4,251,207,905 which
is 36.49% of operating income (wholesale income was
RMB6,227,140,323 which was 52.08% of operating
income and retail income was RMB4,513,255,270
which is 37.75% of operating income in the year
2017). Wholesale and retail revenue are the key
components of Company’s operating income and the
amount is significant. In addition, due to revenue is one
of the company’s key performance indicators, there
is an inherent risk that management will manipulate
the timing of revenue recognition in order to achieve
a specific goal or expectation. Thus, we identify and
measure wholesale and retail income as the key audit

matters.
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3.1.2How our audit addressed the key audit matter

In terms of wholesale and retail income, our procedures

included, amongst others:

(1)

We checked accounting policies related to
recognizing wholesale income and retail income of
the Company and evaluated the design of internal
controls related to the revenue cycle and test the

effectiveness of key internal controls;

In terms of wholesaling business, along with
analytic review, we also checked signed sales
contracts, delivery records, customer acceptance
records, relevant accounting vouchers and
their supporting documents (including Notice of
Delivery, Invoices, Bank receipts, etc.), and we
also select some customers to conduct letters to

confirm whether the record of sales revenue is

true and complete.

In terms of retailing business, subsequent to
solid analytical review, we selected some stores
and observed the operation situation on the
spot, according to the distribution and operation
performances of retail stores. In addition, we
checked the sales list daily report of the retail
store, the commodity sales financial accounting

vouchers and check to the bank statement;

Our internal IT experts conducted company-
level IT audit, which including: IT general control
tests and application control tests. As information
system played an important part in wholesaling
and retailing business, our internal IT experts
performed a detailed check on the revenue

related stock movement data.
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3.2 Government grants

Refer to IV (20) and VI (27, 28, 42 and 46) of Notes to the

consolidated financial statements.

3.2.1Description

As stated on VI (42) “other income” and (46) “non-
operating income” in Notes to the consolidated
financial statements and the consolidated financial
statements of the Company, the company recognized
RMB59,001,516 government grants in the year 2018,
(RMB25,806,245 in the year 2017). The amount of
government grants of the Company is relative large
and has relative large relate to assets, hence, the
proper recognition and measurement of government
grants have big impact on the accuracy and rationality
of financial statements. Thus, we identify government

grants as the key audit matters.

3.2.2How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

In terms of government grants, our procedures

included, amongst others:

(1)  We reviewed accounting policies of recognizing
and measuring government grants of the

Company.

(2) We checked all government grants received in
2018 and related documents, and assess whether
the grant met the recognition requirements of
government grant, if yes, whether the government
grants were long-term assets related or income

related.
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(8) For income related government grants, we verified
the occurrence and booking of the expenditures,
checked whether related government grants
carrying forward into profit and loss matched

corresponding expenditures.

(4) For asset related government grants, we verified
total government grants amount recognized as
deferred revenue matched the corresponding
capitalized expenditures of assets purchasing or
construction, and verified the relationship between

grants and assets items; For these government
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M ABZWBER - Bib®
ETHEARNHBGEE RS
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grants related assets was ready to use, we check WIEE  REEEREZES
whether the deferred income is included in profit EHBEENFERASD AR
or loss in a reasonable and systematic manner BEE - ;A A0 HE
within the useful life of the relevant asset. A8z o
3.3 Bad debt provision of accounts receivable (Z) EWERFURIRES

Refer to IV (8) and VI (2) of Notes to the consolidated HEAEERBEF RV REME 1.8

financial statements. AS.2

3.3.1Description 1 BHEHL

<« 10

As stated on VI (2) “notes receivable and accounts
receivable” in Notes to the consolidated financial
statements and the consolidated financial statements
of the Company, the Company’s net consolidated
accounts receivables is RMB1,490,822,972 on
31 December 2018, which is mainly wholesale
business and accounts for 19.39% of total assets,
the net wholesale business accounts receivable
on 31 December 2018 is RMB1,458,465,472, (the
Company’s net consolidated accounts receivables
is RMB1,359,421,297 on 31 December 2017, which
accounts for 17.67% of total assets, including the

net wholesale business accounts receivable on 31
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December 2017 was RMB1,326,862,278). Accounts
receivable has both the large balance and the large
proportion of the total assets, in addition, they also
may face uncertainty in the market environment.
Finally, the assessment of credit impairment losses
on accounts receivable involves management’s
comprehensive analysis of all reasonable and
evidenced information, including historical and forward-
looking information. Based on the judgment below, we
identify the accounts receivable bad debt provision as

a key audit matter.

3.83.2How our audit addressed the key audit matter

In terms of accounts receivable bad debt provision, our

procedures included, amongst others:

(1) We understood, evaluated and tested the
management’s assessment of the recoverability
of receivables and the validity of the design
and operation of the related provisions for the
provision of bad debts, including the basis for
determining the portfolio of accounts receivable,
and the accounts receivable. Regular assessment
of ageing analysis and recoverability of accounts

receivable balances;

(2) As for accounts receivable with significant single
amount, we reviewed the relevant considerations
and objective evidence of management’s
assessment of recoverable amount, including
management’s assessment of customer credit
risk based on customer’s operating conditions,

market environment and historical repayment.;
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(8) As for accounts receivable with provision for bad
debts according to the combination of credit risk
characteristics, we reviewed the management’s
setting of credit risk characteristics combination
and reviewed whether the account receivable age

division is accurate;

(4) We carried out detailed tests on the basis of
accounts receivable and the record of payment
of major receivables, and checked whether the
balance of accounts receivable at the end of the

year is accurate.

(5) Samples are drawn from the procedures for the
execution of the receivables and the payment

after the balance sheet date;

(6) We obtained the detailed list of the bad debt
provision of the Company, and checked whether
the accrual method is implemented according
to the bad debt provision policy; in addition, we
recalculated whether the accrued amount of bad

debt provision is accurate;

(7) We checked whether the adjustment of the
original bad debt provision and credit impairment
provision accounting treatment and the related
information disclosure comply with the relevant
enterprise accounting standards on 1 January

2018;

OTHER INFORMATION

Management of the Company is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in 2018 annual report of other than the financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Our audit opinion to financial statements does not cover other
information and we do not declare any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements our knowledge obtained in the audit

or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we concluded that
there is a material misstatement of this other information we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Management of the Company (“the Management”) is responsible for
the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with the CASs, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing these financial statements, management is
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing

the Company’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
these financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with CSAs will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

6.1 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

6.2 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Company'’s internal control.
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6.3 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by management.

6.4 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in these financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to

continue as a going concern.

6.5 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

6.6 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Company to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards (If applicable).

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication.

Ruihua Certified Public Accountants

Chinese Certified Public Accountants (The Project Partner): Zhou Huiyan
Chinese Certified Public Accountants: Zhang Youquan

Beijing, China

22 March 2019

(English translation for reference only. Should there be any
inconsistency between the Chinese and English version, the Chinese

version shall prevail.)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
aHEERRE

AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 2018%412H31H
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

REBEM  ERRETEHERERNERAF

[tem

Current Assets:

Cash and bank balances

HH

RBEE :

Currency: RMB

2018.12.31
—B-N\F

t+=A=+-~

1,146,910,207

DEEA AR

2018.1.1 2017.12.31
—E-N\F —E—tF
—A—B +ZA=t+—H

1,068,203,328

1,068,203,328

Notes receivable and accounts JEUWZ 1 K fE UL BR 7K
receivable 1,490,822,972 1,360,971,297 1,360,971,297
Including: Notes receivable Hep o EREE - 1,550,000 1,550,000
Accounts receivable FEWBRZX 1,490,822,972 1,359,421,297 1,359,421,297
Prepayments TEfFFIR 750,913,496 662,157,731 662,157,731
Other receivables E At UK 175,508,371 169,933,613 169,933,613
Inventories FE 1,668,923,611 1,789,719,995 1,789,719,995
Other current assets Hibhmeh & E 177,117,099 215,668,600 215,668,600
Total current assets REBEESE 5,410,195,756 | 5,266,654,564 5,266,654,564
Non-current Assets: IFREEE :
Available-for-sale financial AHEESREE
assets N/A N/A 11,398,000
Other non-current financial HihIERE S REE
assets v 14,583,646 11,398,000 N/A
Investment properties &M EHbE v 187,606,354 196,314,596 196,314,596
Fixed assets BE&E I\ 976,125,343 | 1,043,875,757  1,043,875,757
Construction in progress EETRE I\ 114,152,339 108,751,566 108,751,566
Intangible assets B EE (Y 305,636,827 318,169,810 318,169,810
Goodwill RS (Y 86,673,788 86,673,788 86,673,788
Long-term prepaid expenses ~ RHIFEE A (v 400,087,980 465,880,487 465,880,487
Deferred tax assets EIEFRS I E E v 20,226,293 22,813,175 22,813,175
Other non-current assets HiIEmEEE (v 172,511,502 179,720,029 179,720,029
Total non-current assets FRBEESE 2,277,604,072 | 2,433,597,208 2,433,597,208
TOTAL ASSETS BEMAT 7,687,799,828 7,700,251,772 7,700,251,772
Current Liabilities: =
Short-term borrowings RHIfE K 2,757,649,469 | 2,716,210,442  2,716,210,442
Notes payable and accounts  JENZ g K EBRR
payable 1,632,697,778 1,335,455,767 1,335,455,767
Advance from customers TR SR IE - - 379,071,193
Payroll payable JE A~} B T 357 M 1,741,169 1,649,123 1,649,123
Taxes payable ER T E 90,160,465 65,970,300 65,970,300
Other payables Hib R 234,392,613 179,566,241 176,093,960
Including: Interest payable Hr: EAFE 3,939,352 3,472,281 -
Dividends payable JE A= AR F) 4,576,656 4,380,377 4,380,377
Contract liabilities ARAE 368,155,099 379,071,193 N/A
Non-current liabilities due —FEREIERIERE A
within one year & - 749,068,225 749,068,225
Other current liabilities EfneaE 359,909,339 59,429,262 62,901,543
Total current liabilities REBEEE 5,444,705,932 5,486,420,553 5,486,420,553
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
afEERER

AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 2018%12H31H
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br43FIz%855) » 8B BA R T)

Currency: RMB

REIBN - R R REEEEEROBR AT SEEBM  ARET
2018.12.31 2018.1.1 2017.12.31
Notes —E-N\EF —E-N\F —E—+tF
ltem IHH = | +=A=+—H —A—H +=ZA=+—H
Non-current Liabilities: kFRBEE
Deferred income BT (V128 34,300,405 33,351,013 33,351,013
Deferred tax liabilities BELEMSHARE (V15 1,413,622 3,612,252 3,612,252
Other non-current liabilities HtgEmsakE (V)29 30,380,164 25,241,705 25,241,705
Total non-current liabilities  ERBABEE 66,094,191 62,204,970 62,204,970
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEA 5,510,800,123 | 5,548,625,523  5,548,625,523
Shareholders’ equity: RERER :
Share capital AR (V30 412,220,000 412,220,000 412,220,000
Capital reserves YN (V)31 605,043,091 605,008,846 605,008,846
Other comprehensive income B4R A& IRz (V32 82,125 9,430 6,625,801
Surplus reserves Py NG (V33 153,125,894 147,748,597 147,748,597
Undistributed profits RABEFE (V)34 537,907,146 504,701,969 498,085,598
Total equity attributable to FERBATRRERS
shareholders of the parent st
company 1,708,378,256 | 1,669,688,842  1,669,688,842
Minority interests DEREER 468,621,449 481,937,407 481,937,407
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ BEREZET
EQUITY 2,176,999,705 | 2,151,626,249  2,151,626,249
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND BEMBRREREFT
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 7,687,799,828 | 7,700,251,772  7,700,251,772

The notes as set out from page 122 to 335 form an integral part of  #HNFE 1228 &= FE335H B I HEM T+ 2 A 75

the financial statements KBS

The financial statements as set out from pages 107 to 121 have been  F107EEF 121 BN EMERAU TALEE -

signed by
FEX FHEK EBM
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
EFERA - FEBFILIEEEA - EEEBEEA
Li Jianwen Li Chunyan Wang Panzhou
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BALANCE SHEETS OF THE COMPANY
NAAEERRE

AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 2018%412H31H
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

REBEM  ERRETEHERERNERAF

Currency: RMB

DEEA AR

2018.12.31 2018.1.1 2017.12.31
Notes —E-N\F —E-N\F T —+5F
ltem B H 7 | +=A=+—H —A—H +=ZA=+—H
Current Assets: REEE
Cash and bank balances BEEBES 224,705,249 373,250,486 373,250,486
Notes receivable and accounts  JEU =1 K fiE U BR 7k
receivable XW)1 74,528,897 91,547,790 91,547,790
Including: Accounts receivable — H : FEUERFR 74,528,897 91,547,790 91,547,790
Prepayments TR RUIR 7,522,174 288,285 288,285
Other receivables H Ath FEUR (XV)2 556,335,826 559,024,156 559,024,156
Inventories L= 232,394,387 210,161,070 210,161,070
Other current assets EM R EE 599,182,485 484,272,966 484,272,966
Total current assets REEESE 1,694,669,018 | 1,718,544,753  1,718,544,753
Non-current Assets: FRBEE :
Long-term equity investments = EARRREIRE (XV)3 | 1,246,991,571 | 1,246,991,571  1,246,991,571
Investment properties BE T EHE 50,551,095 53,805,205 53,805,205
Fixed assets BE&EE 698,380,308 734,939,941 734,939,941
Construction in progress TEEIR 105,435,366 103,846,187 103,846,187
Intangible assets mREE 86,508,544 88,093,729 88,093,729
Long-term prepaid expenses RESGHER 299,680,251 349,804,988 349,804,988
Deferred tax assets BEFSTHEE 3,806,678 2,262,265 2,262,265
Other non-current assets EMIERBEE 3,527,400 4,941,972 4,941,972
Total non-current assets FRBEESE 2,494,881,213 | 2,584,685,858 2,584,685,858
TOTAL ASSETS BEEMAT 4,189,550,231 4,303,230,611 4,303,230,611
Current Liabilities: REERE
Short-term borrowings 52 EAfE X 1,200,000,000 870,000,000 870,000,000
Notes payable and accounts JET R I FE SRR SR
payable 653,250,386 672,628,057 672,628,057
Advance from customers TEW IR - - 331,750,447
Contract liabilities aR&E 317,720,555 331,750,447 N/A
Payroll payable JFE AT BS T % BM 1,378,172 1,328,389 1,328,389
Taxes payable ERTE 4,559,402 4,794,591 4,794,591
Other payables H AR 127,179,714 103,648,458 102,618,656
Including: Interests payable Hr o EAALE 1,716,377 1,029,802 -
Dividends payable JE A AR ) 1,134,156 937,877 937,877
Non-current liabilities due within - — 4 R E| A8 JER B
one year aE - 749,068,225 749,068,225
Other current liabilities Hib g atE 330,684,515 48,482,023 49,511,825
Total current liabilities REBEESE 2,634,772,744 2,781,700,190 2,781,700,190
Non-current Liabilities: IERBEE
Deferred income RIEU =5 25,215,578 21,811,638 21,811,638
Other non-current liabilities HitbFERBEE 5,000,000 4,200,000 4,200,000
Total non-current liabilities kRBEFEF 30,215,578 26,011,638 26,011,638
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BALANCE SHEETS OF THE COMPANY

NEIBEBRER

AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 2018%12H31H
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br43FIz%855) » 8B BA R T)

REEM  ERREEREERERNER QA

e I

Currency: RMB

DRIEA  ARBT

2018.12.31 2018.1.1 2017.12.31
Notes —E-N\F —E-N\F —ZE—+tF
ltem THE d8 | +t=ZBA=+—H —A—H +zZA=+—H
TOTAL LIABILITIES =Lty 2,664,988,322 | 2,807,711,828 2,807,711,828
Shareholders’ equity: REERE
Share capital N 412,220,000 412,220,000 412,220,000
Capital reserves BRNIE 615,293,521 615,293,521 615,293,521
Surplus reserves BHATE 129,348,659 123,971,362 123,971,362
Undistributed profits KA BEFE 367,699,729 344,033,900 344,033,900
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ BERERET
EQUITY 1,524,561,909 | 1,495,518,783  1,495,518,783
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND BENBRREREFT
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 4,189,550,231 | 4,303,230,611  4,303,230,611

HNE122 A EHEIBCENM B IMRM TR A
HEHAKE D

The notes as set out from page 122 to 335 form an integral part of
the financial statements
The financial statements as set out from pages 107 to 121 have been F107TEEF121EMNIAKRERANTALERE

signed by

FTEX TEHMK FHEM
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
JEERFA - FEEIIIFRERA - BB REA
Li Jianwen Li Chunyan Wang Panzhou
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
EXARAVEES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

BREMN  ARREEBEEERNERAA

Currency: RMB
SBEN : ARET

Notes 2018 2017
ttem e iE 0185 % WITEE
| Total operating income — BRI 11,650,283,772 11,955,737,287

Including: Operating income LGIRE - TON (V)35 11,650,283,772 11,055,737,287
Il. Total operating costs = EREERA 11,544,744,538 11,823,502,835
Including: Operating cost i BEHA (V)35 8,942,576,973 9,259,177,609
Tax and surcharges Be R (V)36 49,175,630 50,981,899
Seling expenses HEER (V)37 2,075,079,026 2,049,163,192
Administrative expenses ERER (V)38 298,378,649 298,938,999
Financial expenses §BER (V)39 172,697,916 163,457,153
Impairment losses on assets BEREEX (V)40 - 1,783,983
Impairment losses on credits ERAEEX (V41 6,836,344 N/A
Add: Other income s Etblig (V)42 27,812,795 25,806,245
Investment income RAYE (BRI - [5851) (V)43 13,141,947 2,525,469
Gain on the changes in fair value N BESENE (BRI - 157E3) (V44 (8,134,354)
Gain on disposal of assets EEREMGE (BRI 5HE) (V)45 (2,305,871) 161,944
lIl. Operating profi = BERE(BBU- ER) 136,053,751 160,728,110
Add: Non-operating income 1 EEMIA (V)46 50,073,120 7,813,863
Less: Non-operating expenses BB (V47 18,437,293 20,352,843
V. Total profit M FEGB(BREEN - RET) 177,589,578 148,189,130
Less: Income tax expense W FEHER (V)48 71,212,617 53,346,663
V. Net profi B RMBORERN - 3ES)) (V49 106,376,961 94,842,467
() Classified by business continuity (—)EEERENNE
1. Net profit from continuing operations 1 BEGEFAE
(B IRU- J3RE5) 106,376,961 94,842,467
2. Nt profit from discontinued operations 2 RIHEEERE
(FERIAT-5E5]) - -
(1) Classified by ownership (D)EFMEREENE
1. Net profit attributable to shareholders of the parent 1 BBREARRENEFE
company CRE BN - J52831) 63,312,317 47,485,004
2. Profit or loss attributable to minority interests 2 DERRBE(FHEIN - SHE5) 43,064,644 47,357,463
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
EXARAVEES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 2018 /&

All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

Currency: RMB

BREN I RRREREEERAERAT SREN : \RET
Notes 2018 2017
ltem B iE 201855 N17FE
VI Net value of other comprehensive income after tax o Bt asEnie i 140,061 4,958,979
Net valus of other comprehensive income attributable to FESLARRNEMGANENTRTE
shareholders of the parent company after tax 72,695 3,953,043
Other comprehensive income which can be reclassified into BENBEBRN A IE
profit or loss subsequently 72,695 3,953,043
1. Gains or losses from changes in fair value of 1 I LESREELL EERSES
available-for-sale financial assets N/A 3,940,597
2. Balancing arising from the translation of foreign 2 NEHBREANEER
currency financial statements 72,695 12,446
Net value of other comprehensive income attributable to FERDERRNEMEANENTRTE
minority interests after tax 67,366 1,006,936
VI. Total comprehensive income t GRGEE 106,517,022 99,801,446
Total comprehensive income attributable to shareholders of FENTAARRNGANRES
the parent company 63,385,012 51,438,047
Total comprehensive income attributable to minority interests ~ BBR P ERRMGA NG LR 43,132,010 48,363,399
VIII. Earnings per share N Bl -
() Basic eamings per share () AREREE(T/R) (V50 0.15 0.12
(I Diluted earnings per share (Z)mESRER(T/R) N/A N/A

The notes as set out from page 122 to 335 form an integral part of B 122 H = 53358 M B 15 R MY T = A8 75

the financial statements SRR MBS

The financial statements as set out from page 107 to 121 have been  H107EEZFLI2VEMPHHREABATALEE ¢

signed by
FTEX THEK EHM
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
JEEREA FEEIILIFERA - BEHIBEEA
Li Jianwen Li Chunyan Wang Panzhou
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INCOME STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY
NSV ES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

BREMN  ARREEBEEERNERAA

Currency: RMB

SEEN: ARET

Notes 2018 2017

ttem Ef e 1855 0175
| Operating income - EEUA (XV)4 4,303,204,527 4,448,142,921
Less: Operating costs W EENA (XV)d 3,374,437,660 3,497,342,034
Tax and surcharges eIl 24,840,994 26,536,510

Seling expenses HEER 701,926,225 699,989,860
Administrative expenses EEER 162,462,606 160,065,359

Financial expenses HBER 46,510,940 40,537,204

Add: Other income s E el 21,745,537 16,748,840
Investment income BB (B - J5E5) (XV)5 25,099,305 22,468,751

Gain on disposal of asssts EERENRE (BRI -5E5) (2,081,803) (22,669)

Il. Operating profi - EEFIBOBEM - 3ES) 37,789,141 62,659,880
Add: Non-operating income JilRR-E-41V/ON 34,374,259 413,196
Less: Non-operating expenses W EEMNTH 5,913,086 8,591,698

Il. Total profit = FESE(BREEI - [FE) 66,250,314 54,481,378
Less: Income tax expense W EHER 12,477,345 4,287 520

IV. Net profi m - FRBCFERA - 5ES) 53,772,969 50,198,858
1. Net profit from continuing operations (- BELEFHE(FHEN - 5E) 53,772,969 50,193,858

2. Net profit from discontinued operations (DB HERFRBOFEE - 555 - -

V. Net value of other comprehensive income after tax 1 Etielanieie - -
VI Total comprehensive income A BANGEE 53,772,969 50,193,858

The notes as set out from page 122 to 335 form an integral part of  FH{HNFE 1228 & $£ 3358 #I I FE R K M 5T 2 4B %

the financial statements

The financial statements as set out from page 107 to 121 have been $107EZF 121 BN BHREBUTATEES .
signed by
FEX ZTHEK EHBNM
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
SEERFHA - FEESITIIEREA - BIHEERA
Li Jianwen Li Chunyan Wang Panzhou
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

AN ANy i — i%
SR Eh=E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 &F

All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

BHEMN  LRRREAXEERNERAF

[tem

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received from selling goods and rendering
services

Taxes and surcharges refunds received

Other cash received relating to operating activities

Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities

Cash paid for purchasing goods and receiving
services

Cash payments to and on behalf of employees

Taxes and surcharges paid

Other cash paid related to operating activities

Subtotal of cash outflows from operating activities

Net cash flow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash received from short-term investment income/
interest income

Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, and
other long-term assets

Cash received from disposal of financial products

Cash received from withdrawal of margin deposits

Cash received from government grants related to
assets

Cash received from temporary borrowings from
other companies

Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,
construction in progress, intangible assets and
other long-term assets

Cash paid for increase of margin deposits

Cash paid for financial products

Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries

Temporary loans to other companies

Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities

Net cash flow from investing activities

- BEEBELNRERE

HERR  RESBUINRS

WEIMHBRE
WEEMESEEHARNT S
BREFHEERANG
BERR RXBBANRE

KRB IURARI X NHRE
IRMRERE
SNEMELEEHARNT S
BREGHEES MG
BEFHEENREREFE

ZREEBELNRLRE

H%iﬁ&ﬁWé/ﬂ%Wk%Wﬂw

Re

EE@EEE&EME%EE%%@W
Re

MRS ER B NE S

YERESFAMIENERS

Eliok Yy i e el

WEIEM AR E R

REEGRERANG
RRETAE -RRIE BVAEA
EftREEEX MRS

EMERESHEAAX RS
RERMERLNAE
BEFAANNOREFE
HEMRRNERER
REEBRERL NGt
RERDEENRLREFE

Notes
TE

(V)51

V)51
V)52

2018
20185E

13,493,952,839
957,863
312,129,777
13,807,040,479

10,929,175,444
744,624,187
294,965,736
1,077,004,786
13,045,770,153
761,270,326

4,055,147

4,329,728
751,175,339
135,120,735

13,273,120
907,954,068

83,494,620
129,108,573
716,916,539

929,519,732
(21,565,664)

Currency: RMB
SHEN : ARETL

2017
017EE

18,627,432,533
2,482,897
256,357,572
183,786,273,002

11,013,908,631
730,748,471
326,620,972
1,076,042,683
13,147,320,757
638,952,245

7,545,929

2,034,343
1,887,450,000
273,694,427

19,799,100

66,952,316
2,257,476,115

124,469,357
180,679,706
1,877,697,636
62,293,886
8,500,000
2,253,640,585
3,835,530

i
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
afEERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

Currency: RMB

RHEN A RREEREERRAERAA SHEN: ARET
Notes 2018 2017
ttem 1AH ik 20185 § 20175 E
lll. Cash flows from financing activities = EEIBELNRERE
Cash received from investments R A RS - 7,350,000
Including: Cash received from capital contribution Ed FRRRKS BREREWEIN
from minority shareholders of B
subsidiaries - 7,350,000
Cash received from borrowings BRI & 5,045,839,255 5,424,898,356
Cash received from bond financing BEHEEFNENRE 298,800,000 -
Cash received from other financing activities WHERESEEHARNES 3,200,000,000 -
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities LEEPRSTANG 8,544,639,255 5,432,248,356
Cash paid for repayments of borrowings EEBTIANRE 5,027,504,471 4,714,857,356
Cash paid for repayments of bond financing EEEFZANRS 750,000,000 800,000,000
Cash paid for distribution of dividends or AEBRHRERSAMEZANRE
repayments of interests. 222,421,394 243,950,106
Including: Dividends and profits paid by subsidiaries £ : FAFX 4L SRENRA
to minority shareholders 52,987,180 53,686,350
Cash paid for other financial activities XEMREREHEENA 3,200,000,000 -
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing activities BEERRSML NG 9,199,925,865 5,758,807 462
Net cash flow from financing activities SETYEANBERETE (655,286,610) (326,559,106)
IV. Effect on cash and cash equivalents due to CEX2HURSRRSSENNTE
change in foreign currency exchange rate 300,988 148,942
V. Net increase(decrease) in cash and cash I RERBESEMTENE/ (HD)
equivalents (V)52 84,719,040 316,377,611
Add: Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the m:FORe kRS EENSE
beginning of the year (V)52 929,508,884 613,131,273
VI. Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the end % » EXB4RB 4 ZENLE
of the year (V)52 1,014,227,924 929,508,384
The notes as set out from page 122 to 335 form an integral part of #1228 FFE 335 A M R M T =AY
the financial statements WA RE S
The financial statements as set out from page 107 to 121 have been  SB107EEZF121EMNMBMERAUTALEE :

signed by

TEX
Legal Representative
JEERFA

Li Jianwen

ZHEMK
Chief Financial Officer

M-A

FEEIIIFARA -
Li Chunyan

EBM
Chief Accountant

BEEERAA

Wang Panzhou
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY
NAIRERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

Currency: RMB

BHEMN  LRRREAXEERNERAF SEEM: ARET

Notes 2018 2017
ltem Ef B 20185E N17FE
. Cash flows from operating activities - REEBELNRERE

Cash received from seling goods and rendering HERR  RESKKINRS

services 4,716,424,603 5,079,880,970
Taxes and surcharges refunds received KINHERR 122,010 2,158,191
Other cash received relating to operating activities W EpRgRESERNRS 182,928,014 141,066,031
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities BEEBHREMANG 4,899,474,627 5,223,105,192
Cash paid for purchasing goods and receiving BERR  BRSBIANER

services 3,878,617,909 4,046,914,074
Cash payments to and on behalf of employees IREBINRARIZ RS 385,046,582 363,177,530
Taxes and surcharges paid IRMEENE 109,815,970 115,131,057
Other cash paid related to operating activities IREMELERYAANRS 338,775,393 364,267,162
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating activities EEHRETI/ NG 4,712,255,854 4,889,489,823
Net cash flow from operating activities LEEFHELNTREREFE 187,218,773 333,615,369

II. Cash flows from investing activities Z O RETBELNRLRE

Cash received from short-term investment income/  EVEREIR B /R S WA BT IREI&

interest income B 47,800,578 53,434,914
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, REETAEREMRAEERMNER

and other long-term assets Bé 884,908 265,712
Cash received from disposal of financial products WEEHERNEINAS 603,600,000 1,765,000,000
Cash received from recovering entrusted loans WEZRET GRS 175,000,000 180,000,000
Cash received from government grants related to WEIE A E R R

assets 13,273,120 7,151,200
Cash received from dividend paid AERAGENE S 24,233,829 20,241,239
Cash received from recovering temporary loans from MBI E (A AIAZ 3

other companies 300,052,700 345,000,000
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities REGBHRE WA 1,164,845,135 2,371,093,065
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, ERETAE  ERIE EVEEN

construction in progress, intangible assets and At RBABEIANES

other long-term assets 61,646,325 66,306,633
Cash paid for entrusted loans ZREFAZ N5 305,000,000 175,000,000
Cash paid for financial products RERMERTINES 603,600,000 1,715,000,000
Other cash paid relating to investment activities REFRAENNRS - 64,020,502
Temporary loans to other companies HHOARNEER 300,150,000 300,150,000
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities REZHRSRM NG 1,270,396,325 2,320,477,135
Net cash flow from investing activities REEHELMELRETFE (105,551,190 50,615,930

i
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY
NAIRERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

RHEM  HRREEEXKERDARLA)

Currency: RMB

SEEN: ARBT

Notes 2018 2017
ttem A ik 20185 § 20175 E
lll. Cash flows from financing activities = EEIBELNRERE
Cash received from borrowings ERANENRS 1,653,000,000 1,100,000,000
Cash received from bond financing BHELMIIINES 298,800,000 -
Cash received from other financing activities WHEHEREEEHERNR S 3,201,200,000 -
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities BEEHRERANG 5,153,000,000 1,100,000,000
Cash paid for repayments of liabilities BEEBMNZE 1,320,000,000 330,000,000
Cash paid for repayments of bond financing EEEAFIANRE 750,000,000 800,000,000
Cash paid for distribution of dividends or repayments BB REMFIEXMME S
of interests 113,439,661 110,499,551
Cash paid for other financing activities XEMREREHEENR ¢ 3,200,000,000 -
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing activities EFEHRLIML N 5,383,439,661 1,240,499,551
Net cash flow from financing activities SRRYEANRERETE (230,439,661) (140,499,551)
IV. Effect on cash or cash equivalents due to CEX2HURSRRSSENNTE
change in foreign currency exchange rate 226,841 (46,132)
V. Net increase(decrease) in cash and cash I RERBESEMTENE/ (HD)
equivalents (148,545,237) 243,685,616
Add: Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the m:FIRe kRS EENHE
beginning of the year 373,250,486 129,564,870
VI. Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the end % » EXB4RE 4 ZENLE
of the year 224,705,249 373,250,486
The notes as set out from page 122 to 335 form an integral part of BN 51228 5 5336 B #) 81 75 2 i & = A B1 75
the financial statements KRR D

The financial statements as set out from page 107 to 121 have been

signed by

TEX
Legal Representative
JEERFA

Li Jianwen

ZHEMK
Chief Financial Officer

FTESHIIEBEA ¢
Li Chunyan

EBEM
Chief Accountant

BEEERAA

Wang Panzhou
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
SEHRREREBE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

RN LRREERREARNARLA

tem

| Balance at the end of last year
Add: Changes in accounting policies
Correction of prior errors
Business combination under
common control

Others

[l Balance at the beginning of the year

Il Increase or decrease amount in the year

) Total comprehensive income
(1) Contrioution and reduction of
shareholders” capital
1. Ordinry sheres contribution
from shareholders
2. Capital contrioution from holders
of other equty instruments
3. Dividends payments recognized
in shareholders' equiy
4. Others
() Profit contribution

1. Appropriafion o surplus reserves

2. Appropriation to general risk
resenve

3. Distribution to shareholders

4. Others

(V) Internal transfer within shareholders'
equity

1. Capital reserves transferred to
capital (or shares)

2. Surplus resenves transferred to
capital or shares)

3. Surplus reserves made up
for losses

4, QOthers

V. Balance at the end of the year

i

0

" HEERHE

: EHREE
BE =0
R ERR%

2l
© TEETHE
*¢T%ﬁ§@@%ﬁ9uﬁﬁ%ﬁ
il
(-) FRYEAE

(2) BRRANR &R
1~ BRRAGERR

2 EMERTIARE
ERAER
3 RbHARE
ExheE
4 Ef
(=) HEAR
1 RSN

(m) BREEnEGE

(%51)

2 BRLEREER
(ahE)

3 BRLERRER

g
e
- FEERRE

Currency: RMB
SEE: ARET

For the year ended at 31 December 2018

N185E
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent company
FRRBLTRFRE
Other Total
comprefensive Undistributed shareholders’
Share capital ~ Capital reserves income ~ Surplus reserves profits  Minority interests equity
i BADE EfSRNE BRiE FAENE  JERREE  BRERAR
412,220,000 605,008,346 6,625,801 147,748,597 498,085,598 481937407 2,151,626,249
- - (6,616,371) - 6,616,371 - -
412,220,000 605,008,846 9430 147,748,597 504,701,969 481937407 2,151,626,249
- 34,245 72,695 5,377,297 B205177 (13,315,958) 25,373,456
72,69 63,312,317 43,132,010 106,517,022
- 34,245 - - - (3,460,786) (3,426,541)
- - - - - (3,469,426) (3,469,426)
- 34,245 - - - 8,640 42,885
- - - 5,377,297 (30,107,140) (52,987,182) (77,717,025)
- - - 537,97 (5,377,201) - -
- - - - (24,733,200) (62,987,182) (17,720,382)
- - - - 3,367 - 3,357
412,220,000 605,043,091 82,125 153,125,894 537,907,146 468,621,449 2,176,999,705
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
IR R E R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

Currency: RMB
RREN  HRREEEZEARNERLA SR ARET

For the year ended at 31 December 2017
17EE

Equity attrioutable to shareholders of the parent company
EENSLARRES

Other
comprenensive Undistributed Total shareholders’
Share capital  Capital reserves ncome Surplus reserves profits— Minory interests equy
ltem 1H i ERDE Efheha BHOE RARHE DERRER  RREASH
I, Balance at the end of last year - Hﬁ?ﬁ?éﬁ 400000 609,501,004 227 12T 46200980 4TAQA4NB3 2118278116
Adc: Changes in accounting poliies LeHHRE - - - - - -
Correction of prior errors JEEEET - - - - - -
Busingss combination under - REAR
common control - - - - - -
Qthers i - - - - - -
Il Balance at the beginning of the year . REENRE 412,220,000 609,501,004 20672,18 142,129,211 476,230,980 474924163 2,118,218,116
Il Increase or decrease amount inthe year = - AEMEREHAE (oL -
) - (4,492,158 3,963,043 5,019,386 21,864,618 7013244 33,348,133
() Total comprehensive income (-) FehaLE - - 3,963,043 - 47,485,004 48,363,399 99,801 446
(I} Contbuton and recuction of (=) BRRATSDER
shareholders' capial - (4,492,158 - - - 12764522 8,272,364
1. Ordinary shares conirbution 1+ RERANEER
from shareholders - - - - - 7,360,000 7,360,000
2. Capital contrbution rom holders 2 EWERIERE
of other equity nstruments ERNAR - - - - - - -
3. Dividends payments recognized 3 R%HEARR
in shreholders’ equity ERhEE - - - - - - -
4. Others 4 Ef - (4.492,158) - - - 541452 922,364
(1) Proft contrioution (=) HEAR - - - 5,019,386 (25,630,386) (64,114677) (T4,725,67)
1. Appropriation to surplus 1 ROEBRLE
6S8IVes - - - 5,019,386 (5,019,386) - -
2. Approprition to general isk 2 RO-HEREE
fesene - - - - - - -
3. Distibuton o sharehoders 3 HREmAR - - - S [OBMNN)  BAIMET) (47567
4. Others ﬁﬂ - - - - - - -
(V) Intemal transfer within shareholders’ (m) ng e
equiy - - - - - - -
1. Capital reserves transferred to  EREEEER
capial (or shares) (5%) - - - - - - -
2. Surplus reserves transferted o 2 RBNRELER
capital (or shares) (8L - - - - - - -
3. Surplus reserves made up for 3 BRLERRER
losses - - - - - - -
4, Others 4 REREHEE
BEEARY - - - - - - -
IV, Belance at the end of the yeer W FEEREE 400000 605,008846 6,625,801 WTT8507  LOB0B508  ABTONTAOT 2151626249

The notes as set out from page 122 to 335 form an integral part of B H122B EF 335 B MM 5K M it 2 A 15
the financial statements AR EERE D

The financial statements as set out from page 107 to 121 have been  H107BEER121BEMM BRI HATALTEE ¢

signed by
TEX =83 F M
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
JEERFA FEBFILIEBEA : BEHEEREEA
Li Jianwen Li Chunyan Wang Panzhou

2018 @%ﬁ 119
IERREERNERERO AR &



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY OF THE COMPANY
ARRRESEDE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

REEN KRREEBZEARNARAA

Item ER

| Balance at the end of last year e
Add: Changes in accounting policies
Gorrection of prior errors

Others
Il Balance at the beginning of the year
lIl. Increase or decrease amount in the year

() Total comprehensive income
(lly Contribution and reduction of
shareholders” capital
1. Ordinary shares contribution from
shareholders
2. Capital contrioution from holders
of other equity instruments
3. Dividends payments recognized in
shareholders” equity
4, Others
(II) Profit contribution
1. Appropriation to surplus reserves
2. Appropriation to general risk
reserve
3. Distribution to shareholders
4, Others
(IV) Internal transfer within shareholders’
equity
1. Capital reserves transferred to
capital (or shares)
2. Surplus reserves transferred to
capital (or shares)
3. Surplus reserves made up for
losses
4, Others

(V) Special reserves
1. Appropriation in the year
2. Usage in the year
(V) Others
V. Balance at the end of the year -

HEERSE

m: eHnREE
HEERTLE
&b

| REFHE
RAEREYLE

(BD AT - J3REE71)
(-) Gakaeg

(2) BERAIHAEA
1 RERAMERR

2 EfEEIARE
ERAER

3 RiARAEARR
i
4 Efg

(2) MRSk
1 RRESLE
2 RE-RERER

3 HRRHAR
4 Efo
(m) REEERILE

1 EALRBEAR
(#5A)

2 BHOREEALR
(F5A)

3 BHLBERER

4 FERHHEEY
BEERRNG
(1) 2BER
1 KRR
2 KHER
(%) &t
KEERHE

|

St W i D

Currency: RMB
SEEN: ARET

For the year at 31 December 2018

N18EE

Other Total

comprehensive Undistributed shareholders’
Capital share ~ Capital reserves income  Surplus reserves profits equity

e BANE  Hf&EUE BHOR AOBAE  RRERAT
412,220,000 615,293,521 - 123,971,362 344,033,900  1,495,518,783
412,220,000 615,293,521 - 123,971,362 344,033,900 1,495,518,783
- - - 5,377,297 23,665,829 29,043,126

- - - - 53,772,969 53,772,969
- - - 5,377,297 (30,107,140) (24,729,843)

- - - 5,377,297 (5,377,297) -
- - - - (24,733,200) (24,733,200)

- - - - 3,357 3,357
412,220,000 615,293,521 - 129,348,659 367,699,729 1,524,561,909
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY OF THE COMPANY
RAFR AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

Currency: RMB

BREM : I RREEAEEERABRAT SBEMN A\RET
For the year at 31 December 2017
N175E
Other Total
comprehensive Undistributed shareholders’
Capital share  Capital reserves income  Surplus reserves profits equity
Item ER B BRLR Ezala BHLE RORAE RRERRE
|, Balance at the end of last year - Jﬁﬁﬁﬁ 412,220,000 610,298,521 - 118,951,976 319,470,428 1,460,935,925
Add: Changes in accounting policies n: epRe - - - - - -
Correction of prior errors guﬁﬁﬁfﬂiﬁ - - - _ _ _
Others Eff - - - - - -
Il Balance at the beginning of the year ~ —» Zﬁi%ﬂﬁ?@ﬁ 412,220,000 610,293,521 - 118,951,976 319,470,428 1,460,935,925
Il Increase or decrease amount in the year =  MEBEHESLE
(B AT J552231) - 5,000,000 - 5,019,386 24,563,472 34,582,858
() Total comprehensive income (-) GAkHES - - 50,193,858 50,193,858
(I Contribution and reduction of (2) RERARRDER
shareholders” capital - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000
1. Ordinary shares contribution from 1 BRI AL B
shareholders - - - - - -
2. Capital contribution from holders 2 EMERIARE
of other equity instruments £5 A% - - - - - -
3. Dividends payments recognized in BN ARR
shareholders’ equity ERNeE - - - - _ _
4, Others 4 Eff - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000
(1) Proft contrioution (2) HEAR - - - 5,019,386 (25,630,386) (20,611,000)
1. Appropriation to surplus reserves 1 REBRAE - - - 5,019,386 (5,019,380)
2. Appropriation to general risk 2 RR-RERERE
reserve - - - - - -
3. Distribution to shareholders 3 HRRNAR - - - - (20,611,000) (20,611,000)
4. Others 4 Eff - - - - -
(V) Internal transfer within shareholders’ (m) BRERRBLE
equity - - - - - -
1. Capltal reserves transferred to 1 BRLBELER
capital (or shares) (REE) - - - - - -
2. Surplus reserves transferred to 2 BRLEEEER
capital (or shares) (REE) - - - - - -
3. Surplus reserves made up for 3 BRLEEREE
losses - - - - - -
4. Others 4 BERRTEEY
BEERTNG - - - - - -
(V) Special reserves (B) ZHGRE - - - - _ _
1. Appropriation in the year 1 KERE - - - - - -
2. Usage in the year 2 THER - - - - - -
V) Others () A - - - - - -
IV. Balance at the end of the year  REFRRE 412,220,000 615,203,521 - 123,971,362 344,083900 1495518783

The notes as set out from page 122 to 335 form an integral part of R E 1228 F F 3355 KM 5 MK M 2 AR 15
the financial statements WEBEK D

The financial statements as set out from page 107 to 121 have been HF107EZF121ENPBWMERBA TALEE

signed by
TR TEHRK EHM
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
JEEREA FEEISILIFRERA - BIHEREEA -
Li Jianwen Li Chunyan Wang Panzhou
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 RaR M A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br43FIz%855) » 8B BA R T)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited (the “Company”) is a joint
stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”). On 1 November 2004, with the approval by
Beijing Administration for Industry and Commerce, the Company
(formerly known as “Beijing Jingkelong Supermarket Chain
Company Limited”) was established and the registered capital
of the Company was RMB412,220,000. The company’s unified
social credit code is 91110000101782670P. The registered office
and the principal place of business of the Company are located
at Block No. 45, Xinyuan Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the retail and wholesale

distribution of daily consumer products.

On 25 September 2006, the H shares issued by the Company
were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. On 26 February 2008, all the H
shares were transferred to the Main Board for listed trading. The
Company issued a total of 412,220,000 ordinary shares as at 31
December 2018.

The controlling shareholder of the Company is Beijing Chaoyang

Auxiliary Food Company (“Chaoyang Auxiliary”).

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and financial
statements of the Company, which are subject to consideration
at the general meeting pursuant to the Articles of Association of
the Company, were approved by the board of directors on 22

March 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 255 R P o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

BASIS FOR PREPARASTION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements are presented on a going concern
basis. The financial statements are prepared based on the actual
transactions and events and in accordance with “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic Standard” (issued by
Ministry of Finance No0.33 and revised by Ministry of Finance
No.76), 42 specific accounting standards, implementation
guidelines and explanations of enterprise accounting standards
and other relevant provisions issued on 15 February 2006 and
those updated afterwards (Hereafter collectively referred to as
“ASBE”), and the disclosure requirements of Company Ordinance
of Hong Kong and the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited.

In accordance with ASBE, the Group has adopted the accrual
basis of accounting. Except for certain financial instruments,
the Company adopts the historical cost as the principle of
measurement in the financial statements. When assets are
impaired, provisions for asset impairment are made in accordance

with relevant requirements.

STATEMENTS OF COMPLIANCE WITH ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS FOR BUSINESS ENTERPRISES-BASIC
STANDARD

The financial statements have been in compliance with ASBE,
truly and completely reflecting the financial position of the Group
and the Company as at 31 December 2017 and of the financial
performance, cash flows and other relevant information of the

Group and the Company for the 2017 year then ended.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS el b

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

1:||||/

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

1. Accounting period

The Group adopts the calendar year as its accounting year

from January 1 to December 31.

2. Functional currency

RMB is the currency of the primary economic environment
where the Group and its domestic subsidiaries operate,
and the Group and its domestic subsidiaries used RMB as
the functional currency. The financial statements have been

prepared in RMB.

3. Business combinations involving enterprises not

under common control and goodwill

A business combination involving enterprises not under
common control is a business combination in which all of
the combining enterprises are not ultimately controlled by

the same party or parties before and after the combination
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 RaR I R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.

Business combinations involving enterprises not

under common control and goodwill (Continued)

The cost of combination is the aggregate of the fair values,
at the acquisition date, of the assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed and equity securities issued by the acquirer
in exchange for control of the acquiree. For the business
combination involving enterprises not under common control
and achieved in stages, the cost of combination is the price
paid at the acquisition date plus the fair value of previously-
held equity interest in the acquiree at the acquisition date.
The intermediary expenses incurred in respect of auditing,
legal services, valuation and consultancy services, etc. and
other associated administrative expenses attributable to the
business combinations are recognized in profit or loss when
they were incurred. The previously-held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value
and any resulting difference between the fair value and the
carrying amount are recognized as investment income for
the current period. Where the previously-held equity interest
in the acquiree involves other comprehensive income, the
relevant comprehensive income is transferred to investment

income in the period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 RaR M A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br43FIz%855) » 8B BA R T)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.

Business combinations involving enterprises not

under common control and goodwill (Continued)

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities or contingent
liabilities, acquired by the acquirer in a business
combination, that meet the recognition criteria are measured
as fair value at the acquisition date. Where the combination
cost exceeds the acquiree’s interest in the fair value of
identifiable net assets, the difference is treated as an asset
and recognized as goodwill which is measured at cost
on initial recognition. Where the combination cost is less
than the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of identifiable
net assets acquired in the business combination, the
measurement of the fair values of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities or contingent liabilities and combination
costs is firstly reassessed, if after the reassessment, the
combination cost is still less than the acquirer’s interest
in the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired in the
business combination, the acquirer recognizes the remaining

difference immediately in profit or loss for the current period.

The goodwill arising on the business combination is
represented separately and measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. The goodwill is tested for

impairment at least at the end of each year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.

Business combinations involving enterprises not

under common control and goodwill (Continued)

When conducting the impairment test for goodwill, the test
is conducted through combination with the related asset
group or portfolio of asset group. That is, the carrying
amount of goodwill is allocated to the relevant asset group
or portfolio of asset group benefited by synergetic effect
of merging since the acquisition date. If the recoverable
amount of asset group or portfolio of asset group which
contains the allocated goodwill is lower than its carrying
amount, relevant impairment loss is recognized. The amount
of impairment loss is first written-down carrying amount of
goodwill allocated to that asset group or portfolio of asset
group, and then written down to the carrying amount of
all other types of assets proportionally other than goodwill,
according to the weighting of the carrying amount of all

other types of assets within asset group or portfolio of asset

group.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the net value the
fair value of an asset less costs of disposal and the present
value of the future cash flow expected to be derived from

the asset.

The impairment loss of goodwill is recorded in profit and
loss for the current period and shall not be reversed in

subsequent accounting period.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br43FIz%855) » 8B BA R T)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

4.

Preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidation scope in consolidated financial statements
is determined on the basis of control. The control refers to
the power to influence the investee and participate in its
operating activities to obtain benefits, the amount at which

shall be effected by the power.

Major accounting policies and accounting periods
adopted by the subsidiaries are defined according to the
standardized accounting policies and accounting periods

stipulated by the Company.

All significant intra-group balances and transactions are

eliminated on consolidation.

The portion of a subsidiaries’ equity not attributable to the
parent company is treated as the minority interests and
represented as minority interests in the consolidated balance
sheets within shareholder’s equity. The portion of net
profits or losses of subsidiaries for the period attributable to
minority interests is represented as minority interests in the

consolidated profit and loss statement under net profit item.

When the loss amount of the subsidiary attributable to
minority shareholders of a subsidiary exceeds minority
shareholders’ portion of the opening balance of owner’s
equity of the subsidiary, the excess amount are still

allocated against minority interests.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 RaR I R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

4.

Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

For the transactions of acquiring minority interests of the
subsidiaries or disposing part of its subsidiaries’ equity
without losing control, treated as equity transaction, the
book value of shareholder’s equity attributable to the parent
company and that of minority interests should be adjusted
to reflect the change in the company’s interests in the
subsidiaries. Differences between the adjustment of the
minority interests and the fair value of consideration are
adjusted to capital reserve. If the difference exceeds capital

reserve, retained earnings shall be adjusted.

Recognition criteria of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group comprise cash,
deposits that can be readily withdrew on demand, short-
term (usually within a period of 3 months from purchase
date on) and highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to an

insignificant risk of change value.

Foreign currency transactions

The foreign currency transactions are, on initial recognition,
translated to the functional currency at the spot exchange
rate on the dates of transactions, foreign currency monetary
items are translated using the spot exchange rate at
the balance sheet date. The exchange difference arising
from the difference between the spot exchange rate at
the balance sheet date and the spot exchange rate on
initial recognition or at the previous balance sheet date is

recognized in profit or loss for the period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 RaR M A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br43FIz%855) » 8B BA R T)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

<« 13

7.

Financial instruments

7.1 Amortized cost and effective interest rate

The effective interest rate method refers to the method
of calculating the amortized cost of financial assets or
financial liabilities and apportioning interest income or

interest expenses to each accounting period.

The effective interest rate refers to the interest rate
used to discount the estimated future cash flows of
financial assets or financial liabilities over the estimated
duration of the financial assets to the carrying amount
of the financial assets, which means amortized cost
before minus loss preparation, or the amortized cost of
the financial liabilities. When determining the effective
interest rate, expected cash flows should be estimated
on the basis of all contractual terms of financial assets
or financial liabilities, such as early repayment rights,
rollovers, call options or other similar options, however,
expected credit losses should not be considered. This
includes transaction fees, premiums or discounts,
and fees paid or received that are part of the effective

interest rate.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

7.1 Amortized cost and effective interest rate (Continued)

The credit-adjusted effective interest rate refers to the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the amortized cost of a financial
asset that is a purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial asset. When determining the credit-adjusted
effective interest rate, expected cash flows should
be estimated on the basis of all contractual terms of
financial assets, such as prepayments, rollovers, call
options or other similar options, and initial expected
credit losses. This includes transaction fees, premiums
or discounts, and the fees or initial expected credit
losses that are paid or received as part of the effective

interest rate.

The amortized cost of financial assets or financial
liabilities, should be determined at the initially
recognized amount of the financial assets or financial
liabilities adjusted through following adjustments:
Deduct principal already paid; Add or subtract
the accumulated amortization amount formed by
amortization of the difference between the initial
recognized amount and the maturity amount at the
effective interest rate method.; Deduct loss provisions
accumulatively computed (only suitable for financial

assets)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 RaR M A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br43FIz%855) » 8B BA R T)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7. Financial instruments (Continued)

7.1

7.2

Amortized cost and effective interest rate (Continued)

When the Group adjusts the estimated future cash
flows, the carrying amount of the financial assets or
financial liabilities is adjusted in accordance with the
results of the new cash flow estimates and discounts
of the original effective interest rates, and the changes

are included in profit or loss.

Initial recognition and measurement of financial

assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset or financial liability is recognized, when
the Group becomes a party to a financial instrument
contract. In addition, the Group trades financial assets
in the normal way and performs accounting recognition
on the trading day. Specifically, the trading day is the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell

financial assets.

When recognize financial assets or financial liabilities

initially, the Group should measure them at fair value.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

7.2 Initial recognition and measurement of financial

assets and financial liabilities (Continued)

The fair value at initial recognition is usually the
transaction price of the relevant financial asset or
financial liabilities. If there is a difference between the
fair value and the transaction price of financial assets
or financial liabilities, thus, the difference should be
treated differently: one is that the fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical
asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that
uses only data from observable markets, the difference
is regarded as a profit or loss; another is that the fair
value is determined by the other methods, and the
difference will be deferred. For the second treatment,
after initial recognition, the deferred difference shall be
recognized as a profit or loss based on the variation
of a certain factor in the related accounting period.
Such factors, including time, only limited to factors that
market participants consider when they price financial

instruments.

For financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, relevant transaction expenses
should be directly recorded in current profit or loss;
for other kinds of financial assets or financial liabilities,
relevant transaction expenses should be included in

the initially recognized amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 RaR M A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br43FIz%855) » 8B BA R T)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

<« 13

7.

Financial instruments (Continued)

7.3 Method for determining the fair value of financial

assets and financial liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
If the financial instructions have an active market,
the fair value will be evidenced by a quoted price in
an active market. Specifically, the quoted price in an
active market refers to price that are readily available
from exchanges, brokers, industry associations, pricing
services and others, and it represents the price of a
market transaction that actually occur in a fair trade.
If the financial instructions have no active market, the
fair value will be evidenced by a valuation technique
that uses only data from observable markets. Valuation
techniques include reference to the price used in recent
market transactions by parties familiar with the situation
and voluntary transactions, with reference to the
current fair value of other financial instructions that are
substantially identical, discounted cash flow methods
and option pricing models. When it is valuation, the
Group adopts valuation techniques that are applicable
in the current circumstances and that are sufficiently
supported by data and other information, which used
to select the characteristics of the assets or liabilities
to be considered in relation to the market participants’
transactions in the relevant assets or liabilities, and
use the relevant observable input values as much as
possible. However, unallowable values will be used, if
the relevant observable input values are not available

or are not practicable.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

7.4 The classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets

The Group classifies financial assets into the following
categories at initial recognition: Financial assets
measured at amortized cost; financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income, and

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets is based on the
Group’s business model for managing the financial
assets, and the cash flow characteristics of the

financial asset.

Business model: The Group’s business model of
managing financial assets is based on particular
business goals of managing financial assets, which
are determined by key managers. This business model
depends on objective facts as well. The Group’s
business model refers to how the Group manages its
financial assets in order to generate cash flows. That
is, the Group’s business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash
flows, selling financial assets or both. If both of them
mentioned before are not suitable for the Group, for
example, financial assets holding for trading, thus, the
business model of this group of financial assets is “other,
and classify them as financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss.
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B A5 RaR M A
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

i 13

7.

Financial instruments (Continued)

7.4 The classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets (Continued)

The contractual cash flow characteristics of financial

assets:

The Group classifies a financial asset on the basis of
its contractual cash flow characteristics if the financial
asset is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or
within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets. To do so, the Group determines
whether the asset’s contractual cash flows are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

The contractual cash flow characteristics of financial
assets are cash flow attributes that are stipulated by
financial instrument contracts and reflect economic
features of related financial assets. In other words,
contractual cash flow characteristics are consistent
with basic loan arrangements, and the contractual
cash flows incurred at specific dates are the only
payments to principals and interests based on unpaid
principals. The interests include considerations to time
value of currency, which is a portion of considerations
as a result of passing of time in interest factors, credit
risks related to unpaid principal amount in a particular
period, risks of other basic loan arrangements, and

cost and profit.

6 ANNUAL REPORT 2018
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

- EESMBERNE AR ()

7~

EBMTAE)
(4) ZMEENDE - K8 (E)

ZERMEENARRERERE

MREBEARKIE RBRER
B IERURRARASREM
HESHEENEEEN » E
AEESFHEERITANESRE
RHERUASMAENZA -

EMEENAGRRSRERFHE
EEEBRTAAROEDN - kiR
HREREENQEFRNRER
ERME-N HRARRSRER
MEENEELHEMA -2 HE
HERAHEENARBRSREER
HARSHMAREBEN AR AER
MFEMX - FMERREEY
BREERMNEBZTEARK
R MR EENRSD) « B
EREAREN A BRENER
R AREMEXEERR
AT B EE -

[#



IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

7.4 The classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets (Continued)

As for instruments containing embedded derivatives,
(which belongs to financial assets within “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 22 —
Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets”),
when determining whether the asset’s contractual cash
flows are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding, It should be analyzed

as a whole. (Please refer to Note IV, 7 (10) D)

The Group reclassifies the business model of managing

financial assets only when it changes.

Financial assets held by the Group contain investments
in debt instruments, investments in equity instruments

and hybrid financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 RaR M A
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All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br43FIz%855) » 8B BA R T)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7. Financial instruments (Continued)

7.4 The classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets (Continued)

7.4.7Investments in debt instruments

<« 13

Investments in debt instruments refer to
financial assets whose contractual cash flow
characteristics that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding are consistent with a basic lending
arrangement, these include loans, government
bonds and corporate bonds, as well as
receivables purchased from other parties based

on non-recourse factoring arrangements.

Investments in debt instruments of financial
assets could be generally categorized into the
following three groups and conducts subsequent
measurement, which based on the business
model that managing by the Group and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the
investments in debt instruments of financial

assets:
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

7.4 The classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets (Continued)

7.4.1Investments in debt instruments (Continued)

Amortized cost: A financial asset of the Group
shall be measured at amortized cost if both
of the following conditions are met: (a) the
financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows and (b)
the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. Simultaneously,
the asset is not designated as investments in
debt instruments of financial asset measured
at fair value through profit or loss. The gains or
losses produced by financial assets measured
at amortized cost and not belong to any part
of hedge relationship, should be included in
current profit or loss in derecognition or included
in profit or loss of relevant period. The interest
income of the financial asset is calculated by the
effective interest method. As for a financial asset
that is a purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial asset, the interest income is calculated
by the amortized cost of financial assets and the
credit-adjusted effective interest rate from initial

confirmation.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

- EESMBERNE AR ()

7. Financial instruments (Continued) 7 EBMIAGE)

7.4 The classification and subsequent measurement of

(4) ZMEENDE - K8 (E)

financial assets (Continued)

7.4.1Investments in debt instruments (Continued) O EHETAREE)

< 14

Fair value through other comprehensive income:
A financial asset shall be measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income if both
of the following conditions are met: (a) the
financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets
and (b) the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding. Simultaneously,
the asset is not designated as investments in
debt instruments of financial asset measured at
fair value through profit or loss. Impairment loss,
interest income and exchange gains or losses
related to this financial asset are included to profit
or loss. In addition, changes in book value are
included in other comprehensive income. When
the criteria of derecognition are met, it shall
reclassify the previous cumulative gain or loss that
included in other comprehensive income to profit
or loss. The interest income of the financial asset
is calculated by the effective interest method.
As for a financial asset that is a purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial asset, the
interest income is calculated by the amortized
cost of financial assets and the credit-adjusted
effective interest rate from initial confirmation.
As for a financial asset that is a purchased or
originated no credit-impaired financial asset,
but have a credit-impaired financial asset in
the following date, thus, the interest income is
calculated by the amortized cost of financial
assets and the effective interest rate from initial
confirmation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND - EEETTBERMETH AR (2)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7. Financial instruments (Continued) 7 S@MIAGE)
7.4 The classification and subsequent measurement of (4) =HEENTE - ZETE(E)
financial assets (Continued)
7.4.1Investments in debt instruments (Continued) O EFETAREE)

Fair value through profit or loss: A financial asset
shall be measured at fair value through profit or
loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income.
As for subsequent measurement of its fair value,
related gains or loss shall be recognized in profit
or loss. As for subsequent measurement of its fair
value, related gain or loss shall be recognized in
profit or loss. Such related gain or loss exclude
a portion of gain or loss related to hedging
relationship, which is stipulated by ‘Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises NO.24 Hedge
Accounting’. If financial assets are treated as
hedge instruments, the financial assets hedge
against non-trading equity investment instrument
at fair value through other comprehensive income
or its components, and the profit or loss arising
from hedge instruments is recognized in other

comprehensive income.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND - BEESTBERME A (E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7. Financial instruments (Continued) 7 EBMIAGE)

(4) ZMEENDE - K8 (E)

7.4 The classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets (Continued)

7.4.1Investments in debt instruments (Continued) O EHETAREE)
Fair value option: In initial recognition, the Group N BEEERE : EVRHE
classify the financial assets as measured at R - AEEHEESER

Y PLESE SO
EHHE B R BB AL S

amortized cost or the financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss. Financial assets

can eliminate or significantly reduce accounting SRHEHNEREE - BEHH
mismatch. The Group could designate the BRBEERDEFERN
financial asset as the financial assets at fair value FEERKZEREEETER

A% EEHEEBED
NIBE o BHE R
TR -

through profit or loss. Once the designation is

made, it cannot be revoked.

<« 14

instrument neither include contractual obligations
to pay to other parties and enjoy the issuer’s net
assets or residual income, for example ordinary

shares.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

- EERH BB ()

7. Financial instruments (Continued) 7 S@MIAGE)
7.4 The classification and subsequent measurement of (4) =HEENSIE > #ZETEE)

financial assets (Continued)

7.4.2Investments in equity instruments (Continued) Q BZTAREE)
Investments in equity instruments holding by AEEFENREE AR
the Group is fair value through profit or loss, AR EEFEEHE
(however, in initial recognition the Group may it AEHER(ELRAEE
make an irrevocable election to non-trading equity TURERE - HIERHMH
instrument, except for fair value through other T EBEH T A HEE
comprehensive income, please refer to Note IV, EEMUAREBFEAEE
7 (38) ®). As for non-trading equity instruments BHF AH MRS WS /R
of financial assets at fair value through other Sh - BRAWETE 7 - Q)
comprehensive income, subsequent changes ZO)VHRIEERARAREE
in fair value can only be recognized in other AR AES T ALMES

comprehensive income, it cannot reclassified to
profit or loss even when disposed of. The Group
recognizes dividend revenue in profit or loss when
the right to collect dividend has been confirmed
and the economic benefits related to dividend are
very likely to flow into the Group and the amount

can be reliably measured.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7. Financial instruments (Continued)

7.4 The classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets (Continued)

7.4.30ther financial assets

<« 14

Other financial assets refer to financial assets
other than investments in debt instruments,
investment in equity instruments, such as hybrid
instruments (please refer to Note I1V,7 (10),
Derivatives and embedded derivatives) financial
guarantee contracts (please refer to Note IV,
7 (11)), special financial instruments that meet
the definition of financial liabilities but should be
classified as equity instruments in accordance
with the relevant provisions of the “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 37 —
Presentation of Financial Instruments” and financial
assets formed by contingent consideration in a
combination of entities or businesses under non-

common control.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

7.5 Measurement and impairment of expected credit

losses on financial assets

The financial asset becomes a financial asset that has
suffered a credit losses, when one or more events
in which the expected future cash flows of financial
assets have an adverse effect. The evidence of the
financial asset that has suffered a credit loss includes
the following observable information: Significant
financial difficulties for the issuer or debtor; the debtor
breached the contract; Repayment of interest or
principal default or overdue and so on; the creditor
will make concessions to a debtor in financial or
contractual considerations of related debtor’s financial
difficulties. Such concessions will not be made in any
other case. The debtor is likely to go bankrupt or carry
out other financial restructuring; The financial difficulties
of the issuer’s debtor lead to the disappearance of
the active market of the financial asset; Purchase or
derived from a financial asset at a substantial discount
that reflects the fact that credit losses have occurred;
The credit losses of financial assets may be caused
by the joint action of multiple events, and may not be

caused by separately identifiable events.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND - BEESTBERME A (E)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7. Financial instruments (Continued) 7 EBMIAGE)
7.5 Measurement and impairment of expected credit (5) =REEFAEHE,X BB
losses on financial assets (Continued) B(E)

On each balance sheet date, the Group performs
impairment accounting treatment and confirms loss

provision on the basis of expected credit losses:

@ Financial assets classified as financial assets
measured at amortized cost and financial assets

at fair value through other comprehensive income;

@ Recognized accounts receivable, trade acceptance
receivable (“trade receivable”) and contract asset
arising from sale of goods or provision of services
based on ‘Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises NO.14 Revenue’, which was amended
in 2017 and hereinafter referred as “the New

Standard of Revenue Recognition”;
@  Other receivables
@ Lease receivables

® The loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts issued by the Group other than financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value through

profit or loss.

Expected credit losses refers to the weighted average
of credit losses with the respective risks of a default

occurring as the weights.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

7.5 Measurement and impairment of expected credit

losses on financial assets (Continued)

Credit loss refers to the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive (i.e. all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective
interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate
for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial

assets).

The measurement of the Group’s expected credit
losses reflects the following elements: Unbiased
probability weighted amount determined by evaluating
a range of possible outcomes; time value of money;
and at the balance sheet date, reasonable and
evidence-based information about past events, current
conditions, and future economic forecasts without the

need for unnecessary additional costs or effort.

As for financial assets that investments in debt
instruments measured at amortized cost and measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income, the
Group conducted an expected credit loss assessment

based on forward-looking information.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

<« 14

7.

Financial instruments (Continued)

7.6 The derecognition and measurement of transfer of

financial assets

The transfer of financial assets is conformed to criteria
of derecognition, when one of following conditions
are met: O The termination of a contractual right to
collect cash flow from a financial asset shall terminate
the recognition of the financial asset. @ If the Group
has transferred almost all risks and rewards on the
ownership of financial assets to the transferee, it should
also derecognize the financial assets. @ Although the
Group has not transferred or remained almost all risks
and rewards on the ownership of financial assets to
the transferee, they gave up the control of the financial
assets, thus, it should also derecognize the financial

assets.

If the entity has neither transferred nor remained almost
all risks and rewards on the ownership of financial
assets, and they do not give up the control of the
financial assets, they confirm relevant financial assets
and financial liabilities in accordance with the extent
of continuing involvement in the transferred financial
assets. The extent of continuing involvement in the
transferred financial assets is the risk level faced by the
enterprise resulting from changes in value of financial

asset.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

7.6 The derecognition and measurement of transfer of

financial assets (Continued)

If the overall transfer of the financial assets meets the
conditions for derecognition, the difference between
the carrying amount of the transferred financial assets
and the combination of the consideration received from
the transfer and the accumulated changes in the fair
value of other comprehensive income is recognised in

profit or loss.

If a partial transfer of the financial assets meets the
conditions for derecognition, the carrying amount of
the transferred financial assets is allocated between
derecognized portion and non-derecognized portion
based on respective fair values. In addition, the
difference between the carrying amount mentioned
above and the combination of the consideration
received from the transfer and the accumulated
changes in the fair value that are allocated to
derecognized portion and were recognized previously
in other comprehensive income is recognized in the
profit or loss. The financial assets involved in transfer
are the financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income based the eighteenth article of
“ASBE NO.22 the Recognition and Measurement of

Financial Assets”, which was amended in 2017.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 RaR I R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

- EERH BB ()

EMIAE)
(6) =HMEEBBHERMXBENIES

(&)
SREEBRRBERR R LERE
e BABEeRMEENKRE
BEENEEZ MR EHE R RE
AEMERSREORAABERZHR
AHRZ MM ERE A S BEE -

EREES BB LR
e BABEERMEENKRE
BEER LB MR I LFER D
ZEREESN AR EEETS
# YHEASBBMEIINEESR
[EN =K ILER D ONRFT AR
iR B RSN AR BEESHRTE
(FPREBRNSREE/RB(ER
SRt EAIFE 22 - SR T AER
HMEtE) (201787 E +/\FED 1R
BUARREEAEREEBE AR
iR RENEREENEL)Z
NS 73 38 1) B 0L B T 2 BB 2 AT
AE MR -

2018 i%ﬁ& 149
IERREERNERERO AR

\4



<=

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 RaR M A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br43FIz%855) » 8B BA R T)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7.

Financial instruments (Continued)

7.6

7.7

The derecognition and measurement of transfer of

financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets sold with recourse or endorsement
and discount of holding financial assets, the Group
has to determine whether almost all risk and reward
of ownership of these financial assets have been
transferred. If almost all risk and reward of ownership
of a financial asset have been transferred to transferee,
this financial asset is derecognized; if almost all risk
and reward of ownership of a financial asset have been
reserved, this financial asset is not derecognized; if
almost all risk and reward of ownership of a financial
asset have been neither transferred nor reserved, then
the Group has to further confirm whether the Group
keeps control of this asset, and carries out accounting
treatments based on the principles mentioned in each

paragraph above.

Write-off of financial assets

The Group has reasonable expectations of recovering
the contractual cash flows on a financial assets in
its entirety or a portion thereof, it write-down to the
carrying amount of the financial asset directly. This
write-downs constitute a derecognition or partial

derecognition of the financial asset.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

7.8 The classification, recognition and measurement of

financial liabilities

Financial liabilities could be categorized into financial
liabilities measured at fair value through profit or
loss and other financial liabilities at initial recognition.
Financial liabilities measured at fair value at initial
recognition. As for financial liabilities measured at fair
value through profit or loss, the related transaction fees
are recognized in profit or loss; as for other financial
liabilities, the related transaction fees are recognized in
initial recognition amount of it, which means deducted

from the fair value at initial recognition.

7.8.1Financial liabilities measured at fair value through

profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, (including trading financial liabilities (including
derivative instrument belong to financial liabilities)
and financial liabilities designated as financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND - BEESTBERME A (E)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7. Financial instruments (Continued) 7 EBMIAGE)
7.8 The classification, recognition and measurement of 8 =HEENTE  BRAE

financial liabilities (Continued) (%)

7.8.1Financial liabilites measured at fair value through O HUArEEEAEZE
profit or loss (Continued) AZBiEmm oA E (&)
The Group classifies financial liabilities that FEVRERE - AEBB®m
meet one of the following conditions as financial BTGz —emasE
liabilities measured at fair value through profit or BEAULAAREBEFEEH
loss at initial recognition: (a) financial liabilities ZHFAEHERNEHE
can eliminate or significantly reduce accounting & (—)EEsER I EER D
mismatch (the same conditions with financial 25T 88 B (R )R FE R 48
assets designated at fair value through profit or ERBUNAREBEFEAEHEZ
loss) (b) According to enterprise risk management B AEHEENERNEE
or investment strategy stated in official written WiEE—20)  (Z)FAEEIE
documents, the management and performance AEAXHEHREZERE
evaluation of financial liabilities portfolio or financial ERREREREMEE R
assets and financial liabilities portfolio is based WARAREBEREME /M
on fair value, and report to key managers on this BEHEEEREENS M
basis inside the enterprise. Once the designation BEAGETEEMERT
is made, it cannot be revoked. B EAREEAN AL SE

RAMREEABRSE - Z
BE—RREH - TSRS -

Financial liabilittes measured at fair value through WAREBEFEEHZS:
profit or loss are subsequently measured at fair AEHEEN SR B ERA
value. The gain or loss arising from changes in AREEETRERSE A
fair value and the dividend and interest expense REBEREE TR FIE K
related to these financial liabilities are recognized BRUNREZESRBEMN
in profit or loss. FARRFFFEZ HEAE
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7. Financial instruments (Continued)

7.8 The classification, recognition and measurement of

financial liabilities (Continued)

7.8.20¢ther financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities of the Group adopt
the effective interest method, and measured at
amortized cost in subsequent measurement, gains
or loss arising from derecognition or amortization
are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial
liabilities mainly included payables, borrowings and
bonds payable and so on. In addition, payables
include accounts payable, other payables and so

on.

7.9 The derecognition of financial liabilities

Once the present obligation of financial liabilities (or
parts of them) has been lifted, financial liabilities (or
parts of them) of the Group has been derecognized.
The Group (the debtor) makes substantial changes
on contractual terms of original financial liabilities (or
parts of them), then they derecognize the original
financial liabilities and confirm a new financial liability in

accordance with the revised terms.

The difference between the carrying amount of financial
liabilities (or parts of them) and consideration paid
(including transferred non-cash assets or liabilities) is
recognized in profit or loss, when financial liabilities (or

parts of them) are derecognized.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7. Financial instruments (Continued)

7.10 Derivatives and embedded derivatives

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value on

the date of signing of the relevant contract and

subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in fair

value of derivatives are recognized in profit and loss.

Hybrid instruments that included embedded derivatives:

0)

The financial asset include in main contract
within the scope of “Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No. 22 — Recognition and
Measurement of Financial Instruments” (revised
in 2017). Hybrid instruments as a whole in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the
standard on the classification of financial assets

at the initial confirmation.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7. Financial instruments (Continued)

7.10 Derivatives and embedded derivatives (Continued)

@

The financial asset does not include in main
contract within the scope of “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 22
— Recognition and Measurement of Financial
Instruments” (revised in 2017), under the premise
that the following conditions are met at the same
time, separating the embedded derivative from
hybrid contract and treating it as a separate
derivative: The economic characteristics and risks
of embedded derivatives are not closely related
to the economic characteristics and risks of the
main contract; A separate instrument with the
same terms as the embedded derivative meets
the definition of the derivative; The hybrid contract
is not measured at fair value and its changes are
recognized in the profit and loss. If the embedded
derivative is not measured separately at the time
of acquisition or on the subsequent balance sheet
date, the hybrid instrument is designated as a
financial asset or financial liability at fair value

through profit or loss.

7.11 Financial guarantee contract

A contract that requires the issuer to make specified

payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs

because a specified debtor fails to make payment

when due in accordance with the original or modified

terms of a debt instrument.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7.

Financial instruments (Continued)

7.12 Offset of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group has statutory rights to offset recognized
financial assets and financial liabilities, and currently
enforces this legal right, at the same time, the Group
plans to settle the financial assets on a net basis or
simultaneously and liquidate the financial liabilities,
financial assets and financial liabilities are presented in
the balance sheet at offsetting amounts. In addition,
financial assets and financial liabilities are presented
separately in the balance sheet and are not offset in

the other situation.

7.13 Equity instrument

Equity instrument refers to a contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group issues (including
refinancing), repurchases, sells or writes off equity
instruments as changes in equity. Transaction costs
associated with equity transactions are deducted from

equity.

The Group’s various distributions of equity instrument
holders (excluding stock dividends) reduce
shareholders’ equity. The Group does not recognise

changes in fair value of equity instruments.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8.

Accounts receivable

Receivables include accounts receivable and other

receivables etc.

8.1

8.2

Recognition of provision for bad debts

The Group measures expected credit loss related
to accounts receivable in accordance with expected
credit loss on each balance sheet date, and recognizes

the provision for bad debts.

Provision for bad debts

On balance sheet date, the Group assesses individually
credit risk of account receivable that has a significantly
single amount, and then recognizes provision for bad
debts based on the expected credit loss. For account
receivables that have similar characteristics of credit
loss, the Group measures expected credit loss of
related account receivables and recognizes provision
for bad debts of related account receivables on

portfolio basis.

8.2.1Receivables that are individually significant and for

which bad debt provision individually assessed

A receivable over RMB5 million is recognized by

the Group as an individually significant receivable.

The Group assesses individually credit risk
for account receivables that are individually
significant. In the basis of an entire duration,
the Group measures expected credit loss and

recognizes provision for bad debts.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND - BEESTBERME A (E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8 ~ FEWFIH (&)

8. Accounts receivable (Continued)
8.2 Provision for bad debts (Continued) (2) BEREMFEAIEFE(E)

8.2.1Receivables that are individually significant and O FIHHEEAIL FIEHIEE

for which bad debt provision individually assessed

(Continued)

For the receivable that is individually significant,
the Group assesses the receivable individually
for impairment. The financial asset which is
not impaired individually shall be included in
the financial asset group with similar credit risk

characteristics and assessed for impairment.

R (5 Y JE YK TR R AR E
HIHERRIRE ~ AT1ET )% (4R)

AEEHERSEEANE
WHRIBEBETRER
BEEARRELRENSH
BE BREABRUER
REESROeREEEET
ETRERD - ERARD

The receivable for which the impairment loss is T SRR (B 18 2K /Y FE U IE
recognized shall not be included in the group with BEEEEHELEAR

similar credit risk characteristics for impairment

assessment.

RO EKFIAES PE
TTRERIR °

8.2.2Receivables which bad debt provision is Q KHIEHAREBGAHESTIEZERE
collectively assessed on portfolio basis 178 A1) JE W 3K T A TR E 1K
BRI T%
(@) Basis for determining a portfolio according A EARRSHSES TR
to credit risk characteristics ERIE
The Group classifies the receivables that AEBHBEHESBEIE
are not individually significant and those that RKAR S REEREEIR

are individually significant but not impaired
into groups of financial assets according
to the similarity and relevance of credit
risk characteristics. The credit risks usually
reflect the debtor’s ability to pay amounts
due at maturity under contractual items of
related assets and relevant to the estimation
of future cash flows of the assets subject to

assessment.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND - EEETTBERMETH AR (2)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8. Accounts receivable (Continued) 8~ EWFIE(E)
8.2 Provision for bad debts (Continued) (2) BEREMFHIFHER (&)
8.2.2Receivables which bad debt provision is Q KEIEHEEGMEATIEZRE
collectively assessed on portfolio basis (Continued) 175 B JE I 50 T8 B FE B I
AR EFETIE % (4E)
(o) Bad debt provision for a portfolio according B REEARBEEES
to credit risk characteristics WEMEREBRIRA
=
The method of aging analysis is the bad REEHEEE AR
debt provision for a portfolio according to HEEAmEMNERE
credit risk characteristics in the Group. BETIRAER RS
WroE o
Aging analysis method is used to a portfolio HARBR A IRE
of bad debt provision BREEMAAFTIRAE
Receivables accrual
proportion (%)
Aging R PEWCR IR R L (%)
Within 1 year (including 1 year, 1FAR(E1F - TR
the same below) 0
1-2 years 1-24F 3
2-3 years 2-3%F 10
3-4 years 3-44F 25
4-5 years 4-5%F 50
Over 5 years 5F A E 100
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8. Accounts receivable (Continued)

8.2

Provision for bad debts (Continued)

8.2.3Receivables which are not individually significant
but for which credit risk and bad debt provision is

individually assessed

For certain account receivables that are not
individually significant, the Group assesses credit
risk individually, measures expected credit loss
based on expected duration, and recognizes
provision for bad debts individually. Characteristics
of such account receivables including: account
receivables from related parties; account
receivables that are controversial or involve
litigation or arbitration with the other party; it is
probable that the borrower will not fulfill payment

obligation according to obvious indications.

9. Inventories

9.1

9.2

Classification of inventories

Inventories include raw materials, turnover materials,

goods in process and goods in stocks, etc.

The measurement of inventories received and

issued

The inventory is initially measured at the actual cost;
Inventory costs comprise costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs. Cost of sales is

determined using First in first out.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9.

Inventories (Continued)

9.3 Recognition of the net realizable value and

measurement of provision for decline in value of

inventories

At the balance sheet date, inventories are measured
at the lower of cost and net realizable value. If the
net realizable value of the inventory is lower than the
cost, a provision for decline in value of inventories
is recognized. Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale and relevant taxes. The
Group determines the net realizable value of inventories
based on solid evidence obtained and after taking
into consideration the purpose for which the inventory

is held, and the effect of events occurring after the

balance sheet date.

For the inventory with tremendous number and
relatively low unit price, the decline in value of
inventories is provided according to the type of
inventory; for other inventories, the decline in value of
inventories is provided at the difference of the cost of a
single inventory item exceeding its net realizable value.
After the provision of decline in value of inventories
is made, if the circumstances that caused the value
of the inventory to be written down below cost no
longer exist so that the net realizable value is higher
than the carrying amount, the original provision for

decline in value is reversed and the reversed amount is

recognized in profit or loss for the period.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

i 16

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9. Inventories (Continued)

9.4 The perpetual inventory system is adopted for

stock count

9.5 Amortization methods of low-value consumables

and packaging materials

Low-value consumables are written off in full when
issued for use. Packing materials are written off in full

when issued for use.

10. Long-term equity investments

A long-term equity investment is the long-term equity
investment of the Group that is able to control, jointly
control or significantly influence on the investee. The long-
term equity investment of the Group that is not able to
control, jointly control or significantly influence on the
investee is recognized as the held-for-sale financial asset or
the financial asset measured at fair value through profit or

loss.

10.1 Determination of investment cost

For a long-term equity investment acquired by a
business combination involving enterprises under
common control, the initial investment cost of long-
term equity investment is the share of the carrying
amount of the owner’s equity of the merged party
in the consolidated financial statements of ultimate
controlling party at the acquisition date. For a long-term
equity investment acquired by a business combination
involving enterprises not under common control, the
initial investment cost is the cost of acquisition. The
long-term equity investment through means other than

a business combination is initially measured at its cost.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

10. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

10.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit

or loss

The long-term equity investment that is able to jointly
control or significantly influence in the investee adopts
the equity method. In addition, the financial statement
of the Company adopts the cost method for the long-
term equity investment that is able to control over the

investee.

10.2.1A long-term equity investment accounted for

using the cost method

Under the cost method, a long-term equity
investment, on its initial recognition, is measured
as cost and adjusted according to the amount of
additional investment or disinvestment. Except for
cash dividends or profits which include in actual
payment or consideration as the Group obtains
the investment but have not been paid, the
investment income for the period is recognized
according to cash dividends or profits declared to

distribute by the investee
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND - BEESTBERME A (E)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

10. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 10 - RERERE(E)

10.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit (2) HEGTERE=RERLEE)

or loss (Continued)

10.22A long-term equity investment accounted for Q BmiRENRARERE
using the equity method

Under the equity method, where the initial HFRERZEZZER K
investment cost of a long-term equity investment AR E VIR I E K AN K
exceeds the Group’s share of the fair value of the RIEEREZAHREEM
investee’s identifiable net assets at the time of AR FEEARBENR
acquisition, no adjustment is made to the initial o THRERAREREEN
investment cost. Where the initial investment cost NI B - IR E K
is less than the Group’s share of the fair value of TNRIEEREZHRIERE
the investee’s identifiable net assets at the time of BUAHKRFEELAAEE
acquisition, the difference is recognized in profit mEER - HEFEALSBE
or loss for the period, and the cost of the long- W ANARRHARERSE
term equity investment is adjusted accordingly. BIPKAR ©
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

10. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

10.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit

or loss (Continued)

10.2.2A long-term equity investment accounted for

using the equity method (Continued)

Under the equity method, the Group recognizes
its share of the net profit or loss and other
comprehensive income made by the investee
as investment income and other comprehensive
income respectively, and adjusts the carrying
amount of the long-term equity investment
accordingly; The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced by the portion of any
profit distributions or cash dividends declared
by the investee that is distributed to the Group;
the share of changes in owners’ equity of the
investee other than those arising from net profit
or loss, other comprehensive income and profit
distribution are recognized in the capital reserves
the carrying amount of the long-term equity
investment is adjusted accordingly. The Group
recognizes its share of the investee’s net profit
or loss after making appropriate adjustments
based on the fair value of the investee’s individual
separately identifiable assets, etc. at the
acquisition date. Where the accounting policies
and accounting period adopted by the investee
are not consistent with those of the Group, the
Group shall adjust the financial statements of the
investee to conform to its own accounting policies
and accounting period, and recognize investment
income and other comprehensive income based
on the adjusted financial statements. For the
Group’s transactions with its associates and
joint ventures where assets contributed or sold
does not constitute a business, unrealized
intra-group profits or losses are recognized as
investment income or loss to the extent that those
attributable to the Group’s proportionate share of
interest are eliminated. However, unrealized losses
resulting from the Group’s transactions with its
investees which represent impairment losses on
the transferred assets are not eliminated.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

i 16

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

10. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

10.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit

or loss (Continued)

10.2.3 Acquisitions of minority interest

When the Group prepares the consolidated
financial statements, the difference between the
long-term equity investment arising from the
acquisition of minority interest and shares of
the subsidiary’s net assets attributable to the
Company which are continuously calculated from
the purchase date (or the acquisition date) based
on new additional proportions of shares is used
to adjust capital reserves, if capital reserves are
not sufficient to be written down, the retained

earnings shall be adjusted.

10.2.4 Disposals of long-term equity investment

In consolidated financial statements, when the
parent company disposes a part of a long-term
equity investment without losing power of control,
the difference between its disposal price and its
subsidiary’ net assets attributable to the Company
corresponding to the disposal of long-term
equity investment is recorded in owner’s equity.
For other circumstances of disposing of a long-
term equity investment, the difference between
its carrying amount and actual purchase price is

recorded in profit or loss for the period.

6 ANNUAL REPORT 2018
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

- EESMBERNE AR ()

10 - RIBRERE(HE)

(2) BETEBRBERERLEGE)

€)

Wlg LR IE
ERHEAHBBEREE - B
BEOBBERE R K
P B BRI BRET IR FR AR L )
HEEEAETFAREBER
(REHB)RBFEFED
FEEMBCHEANEZRE B
BEARE EARERR
RREY - BB -

BERPRERE
EAHHBHRERT 27
R R BB T B
DREY T AAMEHRE
KE REEFXHARERH
BREREREEZAE T AT
FEEMEET AR
HibBR THRAKERE
RE  BREEMRE X
FRE(EERERDSERA
ZR O FTAEHNEE o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 255 R P o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

11.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation, or both, including rented land use
right, land use right which is held and prepared for transfer

after appreciation, and rented building.

The initial measurement of the investment properties shall
be measured at its actual cost. The follow-up expenses
pertinent to the investment properties shall be included
in the cost of the investment properties, if the economic
benefits pertinent to this real estate are likely to flow into the
enterprise, and, the cost of the investment properties can
be reliably measured. Otherwise, they should be included in

the current profits and losses upon occurrence.

The Group adopts the cost model for subsequent
measurement of investment properties, and the depreciation
or amortization policies are consistent with that of building

and land use right.

When an investment properties is sold, transferred, retired
or damaged, the Group recognizes the amount of any
proceeds on disposal of the asset net of the carrying
amount and related taxes in profit or loss for the current

period.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND - BEESTBERME A (E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

12 -EEEE

12. Fixed assets

EE & ERZIKA

12.1 Recognition of fixed assets (1)

i 16

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for use
in the production of goods or supply of services, for
rental to others, or for administrative purposes and
have a useful life of more than one accounting year.
Fixed assets are only recognized when the related
economic benefits probably flow to the Group and the
cost can be reliably measured. Fixed assets are initially
measured at cost as well as taking into account the

effect of estimated disposal costs.

12.2 Method for depreciation of different fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated on straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives from the month after
they are brought to working condition for the intended
use. The useful lives, estimated net residual values and
annual depreciation rates of each category of fixed

assets are as follows:

(&

BEEERRERLTERD BH
B HEIXKEEEMFTE
oo ERSEE —EEFFE
MBEVEE - BIEEEEREERH
BREMNEENBERAIERARE
B BERAESHE S EF
A TR - BEEERKAL
EREMAEREEARERNTEET
aETE -

HEEEEEAITES %

Bl & EEREE AIERMREN
KA - REAFRFEEEER
BN E c SEETEE
MEAES - EIDFREMEN
EXT

Annual

Useful life Residual depreciation

(year) value (%) (%)

Category EAl WEFR(F) SREZE(%) FIHEE(%)
Buildings BENEEY 20-35 3-4 2.74-4.85
Machinery and equipment =BG 5-10 3-5 9.60-19.40
Office equipment MNRE 5 3-5 19.20-19.40
Vehicles B 5-8 3-4 12.00-19.40

Estimated net residual value is the amount which
would be obtained from the disposal of the assets after
deducting of estimated costs of disposal, if the asset
were already of the age and in the condition expected

at the end of its useful life.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

12. Fixed assets (Continued)

12.3 Recognition, measurement method of fixed assets

leased under finance leases

A finance lease is a lease that transfers in substance
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset. Title may or may not eventually be transferred.
Consistent depreciation policies are adopted to
finance leased fixed assets. Leased fixed assets are
depreciated over the estimated useful lives when it is
reasonably determined that the ownership of the asset
will be obtained after the lease term is over. Otherwise,
the leased assets are depreciated over the shorter
period between the lease term and the estimated

useful lives of the assets.

12.4 Other explanations

Subsequent expenditures incurred for a fixed asset
are recognized in the cost of fixed assets when the
associated economic benefits will probably flow
to the Group and the related cost can be reliably
measured, and the carrying amount of replaced part is
derecognized. All the other subsequent expenditures
are recognized in profit or loss for the period in which

they are incurred.

A fixed asset is derecognized on disposal or when
no economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. When a fixed asset is sold, transferred,
retired or damaged, the Group recognizes the amount
of any proceeds on disposal of the asset net of the
carrying amount and related taxes in profit or loss for

the current period.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

12.

13.

14.

Fixed assets (Continued)

12.4 Other explanations (Continued)

The Group reviews the useful life, estimated net
residual value of a fixed asset and the depreciation
method at least at each financial year-end. A change
in the useful life, estimated net residual value of a fixed
asset or the depreciation method shall be accounted

for as a change in accounting estimate.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress is measured at its actual costs.
The actual costs include various construction expenditures
during the construction period, borrowing costs capitalized
before it is ready for intended use and other relevant costs.
Construction in progress is transferred to a fixed asset when

it is ready for intended use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest expenses, amortization
of discount or premium, auxiliary expenses, exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings etc.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying asset are capitalized
when expenditures for such asset and borrowing costs
are incurred and activities relating to the acquisition,
construction or production of the asset that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale have
commenced. Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases
when the qualifying asset being acquired, constructed or
produced becomes ready for its intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period

in which they are incurred.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

14. Borrowing costs (Continued)

Where funds are borrowed under a specific-purpose
borrowing, the amount of interest to be capitalized is the
actual interest expense incurred on that borrowing for
the period less any bank interest earned from depositing
the borrowed funds before being used on the asset or
any investment income on the temporary investment of
those funds. Where funds are borrowed under general-
purpose borrowings, the Group determines the amount of
interest to be capitalized on such borrowings by applying
a capitalization rate to the weighted average of the excess
of cumulative expenditures on the asset over the amounts
of specific-purpose borrowings. The capitalization rate is
the weighted average of the interest rates applicable to the

general-purpose borrowings.

The qualifying assets to be capitalized are fixed assets,
investment properties and inventories which need to be
acquired, constructed or produced through a long period of

time, in order to become ready for its intended use or sale.

Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during
periods in which the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset is suspended abnormally and when
the suspension is for a continuous period of more than 3
months. Capitalization is suspended until the acquisition,

construction or production of the asset is resumed.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

15.

16.

17.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include land use right, software

development costs and distribution network software.

Intangible assets are initially measured as cost. When an
intangible asset with a finite useful life is available for use, its
original cost is amortized using straight line method over its

estimated useful life.

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, the useful life
and amortization method shall be reviewed at the period

end, and the adjustments shall be made if necessary.

Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses are expenses which have
occurred but shall be amortized over the reporting period
and subsequent periods of more than one year long-term
prepaid expenses shall be amortized evenly over expected

benefit periods.

Long-term assets impairment

For non-current and non-financial assets such as fixed
assets, work in progress, intangible assets with a finite
useful life, investment properties measured at cost, long-
term equity investment of joint ventures and associated
enterprises etc., the Group assesses if any of them is
impaired at the balance sheet date. If there is any evidence
indicating that an asset is impaired, recoverable amounts
shall be estimated for impairment test. Goodwill and
intangible assets with a uncertainty useful life and intangible
assets which have not reach work condition shall be tested
for impairment annually regardless of whether there is any

evidence indicating that the assets have been impaired.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND - EEETTBERMETH AR (2)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

17 - RMEEREHE)

17. Long-term assets impairment (Continued)

If the result of the impairment test indicates that the
recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying
amount, a provision for impairment and an impairment
loss are recognized for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’'s fair value
less costs to sell and the present value of the future cash
flows expected to be derived from the asset. An asset’s
fair value is determined based on the sales price agreed
in an arm’s length transaction. When no sales agreement
but the active market of an asset is available, its fair value
is determined according to a buyer’s bid. When no sales
agreement and the active market of an asset are available,
its fair value is estimated on the basis of best information
which is can be obtained. The disposal expenses include
asset- related legal expenses, relevant taxes, handling
fees and direct costs incurred for the asset intended sale.
The present value of expected future cash flows of an
asset is the amount that an asset’s expected future cash
flows arising from its continuous use and final disposal
are discounted at an appropriate rate. Provision for asset
impairment is determined and recognized on the individual
asset basis. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the recoverable amount of a
group of assets to which the asset belongs is determined. A
group of assets is the smallest group of assets that is able

to generate independent cash inflows.

EARERRABENATRESHEE
REBREEER  WEERETRAESE
B ARERK - JREeEREE
MARBEREREEMRNFHEEE
EFFARRESRENHREME ZHH
BeE - BENAABERBEATRS
THEHRERETE  TFHEHEENS
BEEEELERTSH » AR EERR
ZEEMNBETHEEE T FEHER
HIMEEREMIGH - RIAR RN &
EEEARERMEFEENAAEBE -
REERAEREEERERMNERE
A HERE  BEEBUARKEEE
ERFHEMEMBEENERER - B
EBFARRRERENRE - RBEE
ERFEERARETNRREERMESL
WIEFFARKRRSRE - EERENITR
EHHETHIRBNOSRRINAREE - &
EREEREZEREEREMAELE
R MRENHEREENAIKEE R
EITREER - UZEEMBHEEMARE
EEEANTTKOSHE - BEHEIER
BYELRERANRNEEHES -

2018 & #f 173
I RRREEEEERNERAF]

\4



<=

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 RaR M A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br43FIz%855) » 8B BA R T)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

17.

18.

Long-term assets impairment (Continued)

Goodwill that is separately presented in the financial
statements is tested at least annually for impairment,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that it may
be impaired. In conducting the test, the carrying value of
goodwill is allocated to the related asset groups or groups
of asset groups which are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the business combination. If the result of the
test indicates that the recoverable amount of an asset group
or group of asset groups, including the goodwill allocated,
is lower than its carrying amount, the corresponding
impairment loss is recognized. The impairment loss is
first deducted from the carrying amount of goodwill that
is allocated to the asset group or group of asset groups,
and then deducted from the carrying amounts of other
assets within the asset groups or groups of asset groups in

proportion to the carrying amounts of other assets.

An impairment loss recognized on the assets mentioned

above shall not be reversed in the subsequent period.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits mainly include short-term employee

benefits, post-employment benefits and resignation benefits.

Short-term benefits include salaries, bonuses, allowance
and benefits, employee benefits, medical insurance,
maternity insurance, work injury insurance, housing fund,
labor union running costs and employee education cost and
non-monetary benefits etc. Actual short-term benefits are
recognized as liabilities during the accounting period when
employees render services and are charged into profit or
loss for the period or capitalized in costs of related assets.

Non-monetary benefits are measured at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

18. Employee benefits (Continued)

All post-employment benefits of the Group are defined
contribution plan. The amounts to be contributed under
defined contribution plan are recognized as liabilities
during the accounting period of when employees render
service and are charged into profit or loss for the period or

capitalized in costs of related assets.

Revenue

The revenue is recognized when the customer obtains
control of the relevant commodity, and the contract between
the Group and the customer meets the following conditions:
All parties have approved the contract and have committed
to perform their obligations; The contract identifies the
rights and obligations of the parties relating to the goods
transferred or the provision of services; The contract has a
clear payment terms associated with the transferred goods;
The contract has commercial substance, which means the
contract will change risk, time distribution or amount of
the future cash flows; The consideration that the Group is
entitled to for the transfer of goods to customers is likely to

be recovered.

From the effective date of the contract, the Group identifies
each individual performance obligations and allocates
the transaction price proportionally to each individual
performance obligation based on the relative proportion of
the individual selling price of the commodities promised by
each individual performance obligation. When determining
the transaction price, the impact of variable consideration,
major financing components in the contract, non-cash

consideration, and customer consideration are considered.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

19. Revenue (Continued)

For each individual performance obligation in the contract,
the Group will recognize the transaction price allocated
to the individual performance obligation as revenue in
accordance with the performance progress period during
the relevant performance period, if one of the following
conditions is met: the customer obtains and consumes the
economic benefits of the Group’s performance as the Group
perform it; the customer can control the products under
construction in the course of the Group’s performance;
The goods produced during the performance of the Group
have irreplaceable uses and the Group has the right to
receive payments for the portion of the performance that
has been completed to date. In addition, the performance
of the contract is determined by the input method or the
output method according to the nature of the transferred
goods. When the performance of the contract cannot be
reasonably determined, if the expenses incurred by the
Group are expected to be compensated, the revenue will
be recognized according to the amount of costs incurred
until the performance of the contract can be achieved

reasonably.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

19. Revenue (Continued)

If one of the above conditions is not met, the Group will
distribute the transaction price confirmation revenue of the
individual performance obligation when the customer obtains
control of the relevant commodity. When determining
whether the customer has obtained control of the
commodity, the Group will consider the following situations:
the Group has the current right to collect the goods, which
means that the customer has a current payment obligation
for the goods; the Company has transferred the legal title of
the item to the customer, which means that the customer
has already own the legal title of the item; the Group has
transferred the goods in kind to the customer, that is, the
customer has possessed the goods in kind; the Group has
transferred the main risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods to the customer, that is, the customer has obtained
the main risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; the
customer has accepted the goods. The other indications

that the customer has obtained control of the goods.

19.1 Revenue from sales of goods

The Group’s merchandise sales are mainly divided
into retail sales and wholesale sales. Revenues of
retail sales are recognized, when goods are sold to
customers, the customers receive the goods, and
the Group collects payments of goods or has a right
to collect payments of goods; in addition, revenue
of wholesale sales are recognized, when the goods
are sent to clients and the clients check, receive and
confirm the goods, and the Group collects payments

of goods or has a right to collect payments of goods.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

19. Revenue (Continued)

19.1 Revenue from sales of goods (Continued)

As for the business that selling goods with award
credits for customers, when selling the goods,
the Group will apportion the purchase price or the
receivables of the goods between the income from
the sale of the goods and the individual sales price
determined by the award credits, and The amount of
the purchase price or the receivables minus the bonus
points shall be recognized as revenue. The award

credits shall be recognized as deferred income.

When a customer redeems the award credits, the
Group reclassifies the amount associated with the
credits redeemed from deferred income to revenue.
The amount of revenue recognized is based on the
number of award credits that have been redeemed in
exchange for awards, relative to the total number of

award credits expected to be redeemed.

178 ANNUAL REPORT 2018
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R P o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br43FIz%855) » 8B BA R T)

- EESMBERNE AR ()

19 ~ WA (&)

(1)

BREERA ()
HREERmORRE T 2P EE
BAMER  EHEERE K
EEBHENSHERLERE K
TEAR T iH & B A B 22 7S 9
BENEBESE HETHE -
HEER1S B9 & R S FE U SR AN B 52D
AR #NERIL D ER RN
A REESESENERER
RIEFE W S o

EPRHMBBEOR - AEEHK
JRET AR a1 ) B AT S 3R 0 4R
MO D R ARRA - ERAK
AH) 2 B8 AR L R A R SR BR A2 R Y
B BERIG TR R AR REUEE
BYENTE D BB L Ol A AR AT B R

==}

iE °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 RaR I R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND - EEETTBERMETH AR (2)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

19. Revenue (Continued) 19 ~ LA (&)
19.2 Revenue from rendering of services (2) EEREBERA
When the amount of revenue from rendering of services RSB EWAR ST IA] iy
can be reliably measured, the associated economic FTE - HENSEN SRR

benefits probably flow into the Group, the stage of
completion of the transaction can be measured reliably
and the costs incurred and to be incurred for the
transaction can be measured reliably, the revenue from

rendering of services is recognized.

Where the outcome cannot be estimated reliably,
revenues are recognized to the extent of the costs
incurred that are expected to be compensated, and
the service costs incurred are regarded as the current
cost; if the service costs incurred are not compensated

as anticipated, no revenue is recognized.

Revenue from service of the Group mainly includes the
promotional activities. When the various services have
been provided and related economic benefit probably
flow into the enterprise, revenue from provision of

service is recognized.

19.3 Rental Income

Primary rental income of the Group includes property
lease and sublease and counter rental income.
According to relative lease contracts and agreements
we make decision based on term that people have

leased property or counter and prices they agreed.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

M- EESHBERNS AR ()

20 ~ BT B

20. Government grants

i 18

Government grants are transfers of monetary assets and
non-monetary assets from the government to the Group,
which do not include any capital contribution from the
government as an investor. Government grants include
government grants related to assets and government
grants related to income. The Group defines government
grants that are acquired for the acquisition or otherwise
formation of long-term assets as government grants related
to assets, and the rest of them are defined as government
grants related to income. If the government documents do
not have a specific classification, the grants will be divided
into government grants related to assets and government
grants related to income by the following methods: (1) the
government documents confirm the specific programme
of the grants, according to the proportion, which based
on the grants expend on assets and expenses separately
in the specific programme’s budget, it is used to divide
the government grants. Meanwhile, the division ratio will
be reviewed at each balance sheet date and changed it if
necessary. (2) The government documents do not confirm
the specific programme and only have a general explanation
for the programme, which will be regard as government
grants related to income. If a government grant is a transfer
of a monetary asset, it is measured at amounts received
or receivable, otherwise, a non-monetary asset will be
measured at fair value. If the fair value is not accurate, the
grant is measured at nominal amount and credited to the

current profit or loss.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

20. Government grants (Continued)

The government grants of the Group are normally
recognized and measured at the moment they are actually
received. However, if they have conclusive evidence to
prove that they can correspond the relevant provisions
of the financial support policies and they will receive the
financial support funds in the future, it is measured by the
amount of money receivable. The government grants that
measured by the amount of money receivable will meet
the following conditions simultaneously: (1) the amount of
receivables have been confirmed by the documents, which
issued by the related authorities of the government, or the
Group calculate reasonable receivables depending on the
relevant provisions of officially released Measures for the
Administration of Financial Funds, as well as, there is no
significant uncertainty about the amount; (2) According
to the regulations based on ‘Government Information
Disclosure Ordinance’ issued by local finance department
officially, the financial support project and Measures for
the Administration of Financial Funds should be initiative
publicly. The formulation of this management approach is
general and benefit for all enterprise, instead of a specific
enterprise, which means the company who meets the
specified conditions can apply it; (3) the approval of the
related grants has promised the disbursement period, and
the payment is guaranteed by the corresponding budget.
Thus, they have a reasonable guarantee about the grants

and will receive them within the prescribed time.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

- EESMBERNE AR ()

20 ~ BURRBI(E)

20. Government grants (Continued)

i 18

A government grant related to assets is recognized as
deferred income, it is allocated to the profit or loss for the
period over the useful life of related assets reasonably and
systematically, or offset the book value of related assets.
For a government grant related to income, if the grant is
a compensation for related expenses and losses to be
incurred in subsequent periods, the grant is recognized
as deferred income and charged in the profit or loss over
the period in which the related costs are recognized, or
offset the related cost; if the grant is a compensation for
related expenses and losses already incurred, the grant
is recognized immediately in profit or loss for the current

period, or offset the related cost.

At the same time, if the government grants contain both
assets related and income related, the accounting treatment
will depend on the different parts of government grants; if it
is difficult to distinguish, the whole government grants are

classified as the income-related government grants.

The government grants related to daily activities of the
Group relying on the essence of economic business,
the grant is recognized in other income or offset related
expenses of cost, otherwise, recognized in non-operating

income or non-operating expenses.

When the government grants that confirmed by the Group
required to be returned, if they have the balance of related
deferred income, they can offset the book value of them,
the other government grants are classified as current profits
and losses or adjust the book value of the assets. If not, the
government grants are included in the current profits and

losses directly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

21.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

21.1 Current income taxes

At the balance sheet date, current income tax
liabilities (or assets) for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be paid
(or recovered) according to the requirements of tax
laws. The taxable income used for calculation of
current income tax is calculated based on the current
period adjusted taxable profit in compliance with the

regulation of taxation law.

21.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

For temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of certain assets or liabilities and their tax
base, or between the carrying amount of those items
that are not recognized as assets or liabilities and their
tax base that can be determined according to tax laws,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized using

the balance sheet liability method.

For taxable temporary difference which is related
to the initial recognition of goodwill and the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither accounting profits or
taxable income (or deductible losses), a deferred tax
liability is not recognized. In addition, for deductible
temporary difference arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, the Group
shall recognize a deferred tax liability for all taxable
temporary difference except to the extent that the
Group is able to control the timing of reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

- EESMBERNE AR ()

21. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

21 VEEFTSHEE EEMEHARE
(Continued) (&)

i 18

21.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(Continued)

For deductible temporary difference which is related
to the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
accounting profit or taxable income (or deductible
losses), a deferred tax asset is not recognized.In
addition, for deductible temporary difference arising
from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, the Group shall recognize a deferred tax
asset for other deductible temporary difference to

the extent that it is probable that taxable income will

(&)
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be available against which the deductible temporary JEMFLFTISE - T THREHBN
difference can be deducted except to the extent that BIEFTSTREE © B L BloME

it is not probable that the temporary difference will
reverse in the foreseeable future or taxable profit will
not be available against which the temporary difference

can be utilized.
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For deductible losses and tax credits that can be HRENEE R FERNAENE
carried forward, deferred tax assets are recognized to BRBRER - LRI EERHA

the extent that it is probable that future taxable income
will be available against which the deductible losses

and tax credits can be deducted.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured at the tax rates, according to
tax laws, that are expected to apply in the period in

which the asset is realized or the liability is settled.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND - EEETTBERMETH AR (2)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

21 EEFEHREE BEEFREHAR

(%)

21. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(Continued)

(2) EEZFEHEERELZEHARE

21.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(Continued)

At the balance sheet date, the carrying amount of
deferred tax assets is reviewed and reduced if it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be
available in the future to allow the benefit of deferred
tax assets to be deducted. Such reduction in amount

is reversed when it is probable that sufficient taxable

When the Group has a legal right to settle on a net
basis and intends either to settle on a net basis
or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, current tax assets and current tax

liabilities are offset and presented on a net basis.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
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ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

21. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(Continued)

21.4 Offsetting of income taxes (Continued)

When the Group has a legal right to settle current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis, and deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis or to realize the assets and
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities
are expected to be reversed, deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are offset and presented on a net

basis.

22. Lease

Finance leases are the leases in which substantially all the
risks and rewards of asset ownership are transferred, the
ownership will be transferred or may not be transferred

eventually. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

22.1 The Group as lessee under operating leases

Operating lease payments are recognized on a straight-
line basis over the terms of the lease, and are either
included in the cost of related asset or charged to
profit or loss for the period. Initial direct costs incurred
are charged to profit or loss for the period. Contingent
rents are charged to profit or loss in the period in

which they are actually incurred.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

22. Lease (Continued)

22.2 The Group as lessor under operating leases

Rental income from operating leases is recognized in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the terms of
the relevant lease. Initial direct costs with more than an
insignificant amount are capitalized when incurred, and
are recognized in profit or loss on the same basis as
rental income over the lease term. Other initial direct
costs with an insignificant amount are charged to
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
Contingent rents are charged to profit or loss in the

period in which they actually arise.

23. Changes in significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates
(1) Changes in accounting policies

The reason of this change is the implementation of
new ASBE.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND - BEESTBERME A (E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23 - EEEFHEK - SRHETTNEEE)

23. Changes in significant accounting policies and

accounting estimates (Continued)

(1) BitBEREE(E)

(1) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

i 18

On 31 May 2017, Ministry of finance promulgated ‘NO.
22 of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-
Recognition and Valuation of Financial Instrument
(Revised at 2017)" (CAIKUAI NO. [2017] 7), ‘NO. 23
of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-
Transfer of Financial Instruments (Revised at 2017)’
(CAIKUAI NO. [2017] 8), NO. 24 of Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises- Hedge Accounting
(Revised at 2017)" (CAIKUAI NO. [2017] 9), on 5 July
2018, NO. 37 of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises- Presentation of Financial Instruments
(Revised at 2017)" (CAIKUAI NO. [2017] 14) was
promulgated. All accounting standards mentioned
before hereinafter are referred briefly as “New
Standards of Financial Instruments”. On 5 July 2017,
Ministry of finance promulgated ‘NO. 14 of Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises- Revenue (Revised
at 2017)" (CAIKUAI NO. [2017] 22), which is referred
briefly as “New Standards of Revenue Recognition”.
The company that are listed both in domestic and
overseas and those are listed overseas and adopted
IFRS or ASBE to prepare financial reports, is implement
the New Standards of Financial Instruments and New
Standards of Revenue Recognition from 1 January

2018.

The Group begins to implement the five accounting
standards mentioned before, when the ministry of

finance required.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23. Changes in significant accounting policies and

accounting estimates (Continued)

(1) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

All recognized financial assets that under the new
financial instrument criteria are subsequently measured

at amortized cost or fair value.

On the implementation date of the New Standards of
Financial Instruments, business model of managing
financial assets is evaluated based on the facts and
circumstances of the Group on that date on that day,
and the financial assets are classified to three groups
in accordance with evaluating the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets based on the
facts and circumstances at the time of initial recognition
of the financial assets, which is measured at amortized
cost, Fair value through other comprehensive income,
Fair value through profit or loss. The classification is
based on the business model that managing by the
Group and the contractual cash flow characteristics of

the investments in debt instruments of financial assets.

In order to recognize impairment, the New Standard
of Financial Instruments introduces an expected credit
loss model. This model includes a method called
“three-stages”, which is on the basis of change of
financial assets credit quality after initial recognition.
Financial assets change with these changes in
credit quality during these three phases, and the
measurement method of impairment loss and the
application method of the effective interest rate that
adopted by the Group is decided by the different

stage.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND - BEESTBERME A (E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23 - EEEFHEK - SRHETTNEEE)

23. Changes in significant accounting policies and

accounting estimates (Continued)

BB EREE(E)

(1) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (1)

i 19

The New Standards of Financial Instruments begin
to use the expected credit losses model, and the
Group recognizes the expected credit losses at least
in the next 12 months, according to the result of
evaluation about the financial assets credit quality on
the balance sheet date, which is based on financial
assets measured at amortized cost previously.
However, the management of the Group recognizes
the credit impairment of such financial assets has not
substantially incurred from the date of promulgation of
the New Standard of Financial Instruments and there

was no significant impact on financial statements.

The Group has adopted the New Standard of Financial
Instruments on 1 January 2018 in accordance with
the requirements of the Ministry of Finance. The
Group retroactively applies the New Standard of
Financial Instruments. However, the Group does
not restate categorization and estimation (including
impairments) that is related to the data on the prior
comparative financial statements and different from
the New Standard of Financial Instruments. On
the Group’s consolidated financial reports, such
retroactive adjustments make the beginning balance
of other comprehensive on 1 January 2018 decrease
by RMB6,616,371; these adjustments make the
beginning balance of undistributed profit increase by

RMB6,616,371.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

1:||||/

- EERH BB ()

23. Changes in significant accounting policies and 23 -EEGTEX - SHEFTNEEE)
accounting estimates (Continued)
(1) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (1) BFHEREEE)
At the date of promulgation of the New Standard of REEZRN € T EERRRAR

Financial Instruments, based on the related provision of
the New Standard of Financial Instruments, the Group
makes the following adjustments on categorizations
and measurements of financial assets and financial

liabilities:

The Group re-classifies equity investments of available-

for-sale financial assets, which was recognized in

assets financial assets

FRFemIALEAMEITH
HEREENSARAEND BN
BERATHREE

BARFEESBERAHEESRE
ENEaERENERAAEER

previous years, as financial assets at fair value through ERHZFHFTASHEZNERE
profit or loss. E e
A.  Financial assets recognition and measurement A HITHIE@MIAEAR#2
comparison table before and after the BB EERGTELH R
implementation of the new financial instrument
standards
2017.12.31 (Before) 2018.1.1. (After)
2017F12A31H (B EH) 2018F1A1H(2E %)
Classification of Measurement Measurement
financial assets category Carrying amount category Carrying amount
ERMEERS sHEEA REEE 255 REER
Available-for-sale financial Available-for-sale 11,398,000 Financial assets 11,398,000

measured at fair

AfHESREE

value through
profit or loss
WAnBEtEER
Z:Z u-‘-A =] HﬁTgﬁn
E‘J@mﬂéﬁ

AfHESRERE

2018 @%ﬁ 191
IERREERNERERO AR &
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

i 19

23. Changes in significant accounting policies and

accounting estimates (Continued)

(1) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

B.

- EESMBERNE AR ()

23 - EEEFHEK - SRHETTNEEE)

(1) BitBEREE(E)

B -

First implementation date, the adjustment table of
financial instrument classification and book value
2017.12.31
(Before) Reclassification
S S
+=A
=+—H
ltem BHE (ZEa) ENH
Assets: BE
Financial assets measured A2 7t BEE 2B
at fair value through HEHFHAEH
profit or loss BRreREE - 11,398,000
Available-for-sale financial At HHESREE
assets 11,398,000 (11,398,000)
Owners’ equity: FEEER
Other comprehensive HibR A
income 6,616,371 -

Undistributed profit KA EFIE

BEA#ITH HITASE

FIARETE (B J R 7
Re- 2018.1.1
measurement (After)
—T-N\F
—A—H
Bt E (BER)
- 11,398,000
- 6,616,371

When New Standards of Revenue Recognition
was implement, The Group reassessed the
recognition and measurement, accounting and
presentation of the company’s main contract
revenue in accordance with the norms of the
standard, and cumulative impact amount based
on the first implementation of the New Standards
of Revenue Recognition will be adjusted the
amount of retained earnings at the beginning of
the period (1 January 2018), and the amount
of relevant item amount of financial statement.
No adjustments will be made to the financial

statements in 2017.

2 ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23. Changes in significant accounting policies and

accounting estimates (Continued)

(1) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

B.

(Continued)

Change information

According to the new

income standard,
the classification of
advance receipts
that meet the
conditions for
recognition of
contract liabilities
is recognized as
contract liabilities.

standards on the company is as follows:

BEAR

ﬁ%%%kﬁ%ﬁ
i
E f,@ EE N {bkﬁ: E’\]
Fa W FRIR 2 SR HE
RBE H%L

1:||||/

- EERH BB ()

23 - EE®

First implementation date, the adjustment table of

financial instrument classification and book value

The impact of implementing new revenue

Item

HREE

Contract liability
aRARE
Advances from
customers
TEUARSR

ATRE 8

AN EEE)

(1) BifBHREE(E)

B BX#HTH =T ASE

AR ET B EFA K (&)

BATHMA KRG DA 0%
Z2mT

Amount after
2018.1.1
—E-N\F
—HA—H
(BE#)EHE

379,071,193

Amount before
2017.12.31
—E

+=ZA=+—H

(#Ea) &%

379,071,193

(2) Changes in accounting estimates

None.

(2) BiffEst#E

4 o

ERRE

2018 i%&
ERERERNERA 193
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V. TAXATION

<« 19

Major taxes and tax rates

Tax types
HE

Value-added tax
AR

Consumption tax
HEB

City construction and
maintenance tax
YA T A R AR

Education surcharge

A BHM

Local education surcharge
5B BN

Corporate income tax
EMEH

HBiE
FERBRBR
Tax basis
BB
Note 1
G

Taxable sales subject to consumption tax

THEDETIA
Value-added tax, business tax and consumption tax
JEZREE T

Value-added tax, business tax and consumption tax
R RET

Value-added tax, business tax and consumption tax
JEZRET

Taxable income
FERMTRFTIS 5

Tax rate

Bl
16%(17%)/13%/10%
(11%)/6%/5%/3%

5%

5%/7%

3%

2%

See table below

HRTE

Taxable entities Tax basis Tax rate of income tax
MEERER BRI FIBHH=E
Chaopi Maolisheng Hong Kong Co., Ltd. Note 2 16.5%
HIXFA BB BR AT 2

Hong Kong Chaopi Asia Company Limited Note 2 16.5%
BEAMREMER AT T2

Others 25%
EMEnn

Note 1: The value-added tax payable is the residual value of the FE1 0 AN ER BB R AR ER

Note 2:

output value-added tax after deduction of input value-
added tax. The output value-added tax is computed on a
basis of sales resolved by relevant tax laws. From 1 May
2018, the original application rate (17% and 11%) was
adjusted to 16% and 10%, in accordance with the “Notice
of the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of
Taxation on Adjusting the Value-Added Tax Rate” (Cai Shui
[2018] No. 32).

The Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Maolisheng Hong Kong
Company Limited and Hong Kong Chaopi Asia Company
Limited were registered and established in Hong Kong and
in accordance with Hong Kong taxation law its corporate
income tax rate was 16.5%.

4 ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 E

All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

All AMOUNTS IN RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

The beginning of the year is 1 January 2018, the closing of the
year is 31 December 2018, the end of prior year is 31 December

2017, the current year is 2018 and the prior year is 2017.

B BRRERERE

BREBERIN RRASBEELHR/ARE

Jo °

LTHBEE(ERATMBRMREZERG
BRRIERRIEL - [F9)14E2018F 1 A1
B [TEXR]E2018F 1283108 [ EFF
KI4E2017F 12 A31 8 : [ A4 |#820184F
E [ EFHR20175E -

1. Cash and bank balances 1 -EBES

2018.12.31 2017.12.31

—E-N\F —E—+tF
ltem 15§ +=—BA=+—8 | t=ZA=+—H
Cash on hand EFRE 13,627,854 17,831,167
Cash in bank RITHER 1,000,600,070 911,677,717
Other cash and bank balances (Note 1) Etb & &S (51) 132,682,283 138,694,444
Total A&t 1,146,910,207 | 1,068,203,328
Including: Overseas deposits (Note 2)  E @ FRIERINIFRIBLAZE (F12) 4,383,236 7,067,378

Note 1: As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s margin deposits
with use restrictions was RMB132,682,283 (31 December
2017: RMB122,714,742), and details were referred to
Note (VI) 19 Notes payable and accounts payable. The
credit margin deposits was none (31 December 2017:
RMB15,979,702).

Note 2: The overseas deposits were the deposits of the subsidiary
Chaopi Maolisheng Hong Kong Company Limited in The
Hong Kong and Shanghai Bank Corporation Limited and
China Everbright Bank Hong Kong Branch.

10 72018512 A31H + AEEMFIA#E
RERFNEBERESERRARE
132,682,2837L(2017F 12 A31A + A
R#122,714,74270) + 2 RM N -
19FE I R R FERBR IR - 2018F 2
BRFSTFHE(2017F128318 + A
R#15,979,7027T) °

2 - FRERIMOIRITER R F AR
FMAEBBRARAFHRNEBELIRTT
AP BYERRITEEDTT

2018 & #f 195
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AN et BEHRREEEEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Notes receivable and accounts receivable 2 - ENEEREWERMR
2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—E-N\F —E—+tF
ltem HE +=ZA=+—-8 | t—A=+—8
Notes receivable S - 1,550,000
Accounts receivable YR X 1,490,822,972 | 1,359,421,297
Total A&t 1,490,822,972 1,360,971,297
(1) Details of notes receivable (1) EBEUREEER
Presentation of notes receivable by category eSS
2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—E-N\F —T—tF
ltem HE +=—A=+—-8 | t=ZA=+—8
Bank acceptance RITHEGESR - 1,560,000
Total A&t - 1,560,000
(2) Details of accounts receivable (2) FEWRERELR
@ 31 December 2018 @ 2018%F12H31H
Presentation of accounts receivable by category FEUBR 5k > $A 2 BR
2018.12.31
ZE-\EtZR=t-A
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
BESE BREE
Net book
Amount  Proportion (%) Amount Rate (%) value
Category Lfi] 2 E4(%) ¢8  HRIAI) REEE
Account receivable for single provision ~ EIEHERREGH IR
for bad debts - - - - -
Accounts receivable for bad debt provision R4 SHEEEEENENER
by combination 1,503,836,117 100 13,013,145 1 1,490,822,972
Total At 1,503,836,117 100 13,013,145 1 1,490,822,972

@ 196 ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EHUBRREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

2 - BURBREWVRR(E)

2. Notes receivable and accounts receivable (Continued)

(2) FEWRER(E)

(2) Details of accounts receivable (Continued)

@D 2018%F12H31H (%)
JEURBR R ER U ARER A H

@ 31 December 2018 (Continued)

Presentation of accounts receivable according

to aging analysis on the basis of the date when wERRERNT
revenue is recognized
2018.12.31
—E-NF+=ZA=+—8H

Carrying Bad debt Net book

amount  Proportion% provision value
Aging IR -} e f5il(%) RARER IREEE
Within 1 year 1F AR 1,426,024,294 95 - 1,426,024,294
1-2 years 1225 21,586,267 1 647,587 20,938,680
2-3 years 2E3F 30,184,046 2 3,018,405 27,165,641
3-4 years 3E4F 14,694,411 1 3,673,603 11,020,808
4-5 years 4Z5F 11,347,099 1 5,673,550 5,673,549
Over 5 years 5%+ - - - -
Total = 1,503,836,117 100 13,013,145 1,490,822,972

The detail of bad debt provision

EAREEIER

The amount change in this year
AERBLE
Recovery or Resale or
2018.1.1 Accrual reversal write-off 2018.12.31
Category £ F8E R WEdEE  EHNAH ERGE
Payment EE 6,333,695 6,766,793 87,343 - 13,013,145
Total A 6,333,695 6,766,793 87,343 - 13,013,145

2018 & #f 197
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Notes receivable and accounts receivable (Continued)
(2) Details of accounts receivable (Continued)

@ 371 December 2018 (Continued)

In the portfolio, accounts receivable for bad debt

N BHMBERREBTEE)

2  EREBREWRRE)
(2) FEWRERZIER(E)

@ 2018%12H31H (%)

MET - mRERD AR

provision by aging analysis AR RIS AR R
2018.12.31
—E-NF+=A=+—H
Carrying Bad debt
amount provision  Proportion%
Aging BRiR FEWLRR X BARERH  FTRHEBI(%)
Within 1 year 1F AR 1,426,024,294 - 0
1-2 years 1224 21,586,267 647,587 3
2-3 years 25 3F 30,184,046 3,018,405 10
3-4 years 3E4F 14,694,411 3,673,603 25
4-5 years 4555 11,347,099 5,673,550 50
Over 5 years 5F A E - - 100
Total A5t 1,503,836,117 13,013,145

@ 31 December 2017

@ 2017%F12H31H

Presentation of accounts receivable by category JEU AR R D 2RI FR
2017.12.31
“E+F+ZR=1-H
Garrying amount Bad debt provision
BHSE SEER
Amount  Proportion (%) Amount Rate (%)  Net book value
Category 57 fi S A)%) 28 HRIAIC FHEE
Account receivable for single provision for ~ EEHREREEHENE
bad debts - - - - -
Accounts recelvable for bad debt provision  RAA HEZEEENENE
by combination A 1,365,754,992 100 6,333,695 1,359,421,297
Total At 1,365,754,992 100 6,333,695 1,359,421,297

@ 198 ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EHUBRREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Notes receivable and accounts receivable (Continued) 2 - EREBREWIRR(Z)
(2) Details of accounts receivable (Continued) (2) FEWERFIER (&)
@ 31 December 2017 (Continued) @ 2017%#12H31H(#&)
Presentation of accounts receivable according FEUWBR R ER W AER A H
to aging analysis on the basis of the date when wERRERNT

revenue is recognized

2017.12.31
—E—+H+=RA=+—8

Carrying Bad debt

amount Proportion% provision Net book value
Aging BRER ] LE51(9%) ZERRER SREEE
Within 1 year 1FE LA 1,289,547,706 94 - 1,289,547,706
1-2 years 18224 42,964,556 3 1,288,937 41,675,619
2-3 years 2E3F 21,772,826 2 2,177,282 19,595,544
3-4 years 3E4F 11,469,904 1 2,867,476 8,602,428
4-5 years 4Z5F - - - -
Over 5 years 5F A+ - - - -
Total A&t 1,365,754,992 100 6,333,695 1,359,421,297
The detail of bad debt provision EAREERIE R

The amount change in this year

FEREEH
Recovery or Resale or
2018.1.1 Accrual reversal write-off 2018.12.31
Category Y] FI8E AR WEdBEE  EHHHE ERBE
Payment &3 6,303,618 6,333,695 4,549,712 1,753,906 6,333,695
Total At 6,303,618 6,333,695 4,549,712 1,753,906 6,333,695
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Notes receivable and accounts receivable (Continued)

(2) Details of accounts receivable (Continued)

@ 31 December 2017 (Continued)

Including: The important bad debts for this year

are ready to be recovered or transferred back

Basis of recognizing

N BHMBERREBTEE)

2  EREBREWRRE)
(2) FEWRERZIER(E)

@ 2017%#12831H (%)

Hep: REEEWIRRER
Yo O] 2 88 (3] 5 58

Accumulated bad

Content of other the previously bad debt debt provision Amount of
receivables Reversal reasons provision prior to reversals reversals
BEFRFE R
EYERRAR BENWEREE BERBREBORE MEREREE BEEHE
Beijing Lotus Supermarket Wholly recovered  Part of fund exceed normal 4,042,602 4,042,602
Chain Co., Ltd. settlement period that is
uncertainly to recover.
RS PMEEEHET R (el HATERBIE B AR -
AR AT BEFE TS
Beijing Resources Vanguard Wholly recovered ~ Part of fund exceed normal 507,110 507,110
Life Supermarket Co., Ltd settlement period that is
uncertainly to recover.
ITREBEREEET [Rie= (el HAFERBIERELRE -
BRRF BEYEE T
Total A&t 4,549,712 4,549,712
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Bt BEHRIEE ERE)

A

il

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 7
STATEMENTS (Continued)

2 - BURBREWVRR(E)

2. Notes receivable and accounts receivable (Continued)

(2) FEWRER(E)

(2) Details of accounts receivable (Continued)
® BRI BB FEREREEAT
BB ERIRA ISR

2018 12H31H

® Top five entities with the largest balances of

accounts receivable

31 December 2018

Proportion of

the amount
to the total Closing
accounts  balance of
Relationship with the receivable bad debt
Name of entity Group Amount  Aging (%) provision
YRRz BRER
Efi R HASERR 28 ER B BI%) EXEE
Beijing Wu-mart Store Co., Ltd.("Wu-mart’) Independent third party 425,044,386 Within 4 years 28 1,009,193
krhEGaETERAFATERME]) BYE=H AELR
Beiing Jingdong Century Trade Co., Ltd. (*Jingdong’) Independent third party 353,928,049 Within 4 Years 24 132,246
IRRRELESERAFAATERRE]) Bug=h 4EHR
Beiing Carrefour Commercial Co. Ltd., (‘Carrefour’) Independent third party 51,910,852 Within 4 Year 3 6,410
IRREREEARDA N THE FEE]) BUE=H LESN
Beijing hualian Hypermarket Co.,Ltd. (‘Hualian”) Independent third party 50,460,765  Within 4 Years 3 321,218
IrEBEaBn R ARAR(A TR 5]) BYE=H AELR
Beijing Yonghui Superstores Co. Ltd. (*Yonghui") Independent third party 49,300,313 Within 3 Years 3 145,180
KEREBRAF AT HRE KA BuE=H REDYN
Total 930,644,365 61 1,614,247
At

2018 & #f 201
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Notes receivable and accounts receivable (Continued)
(2) Details of accounts receivable (Continued)

@ Top five entities with the largest balances of

accounts receivable (Continued)

31 December 2017

N BHMBERREBTEE)

2 - BRRBREWVERR(E)

(2) BEWERIER(E)

Q@ 'R FEAF K EF R AT
LE BRI SR ()

2017 12A31H

Proportion of
the amount
to the total

Closing

accounts  balance of bad

Name of entity Relationship with the Group Amount  Aging receivable (%)  debt provision
FENETE SREEEX

BAR HREEBE &8 £R St flce) g

Bejjing Wu-mart Store Co., Ltd.("Wu-mart’) Independent third party 369,355,418 Within 3 years 27 672,338

tREGAETARAA (I TER %)) BuE=h SEUR

Beiiing Jingdong Century Trade Co., Ltd. (“Jingdong’) Independent third party 204,964,499 Within 3 years 15 61,808

IRRRELRESERAA I THERIRR]) Bu%E=h SENA

Vipshop(China) Holdings Limited(*Vipshop”) Independent third party 161,955,848  Within 1 year 12 -

e (PE)BRARUATRRE Eng]) BUE=H 1A

Beijing Carrefour Commercial Co. Ltd., (Carrefour’) Independent third party 53,418,245  Within 3 years 4 75,949

IRFERAEERAAUTHRIZER)) BuE=H SER

Beiiing Yonghui Superstores Co. Ltd. (*Yonghui") Independent third party 43,794,985 Within 2 years 3 45,545

ERKEEEARAT (A TERE KE]) BUE=H 2EHR

Total 833,488,995 61 855,640

At

On 31 December 2018, the total accounts MR2018F 12 A31H + ¥

receivable due from Wu-mart, Carrefour, Beijing

X KRB HUER -

i 20

Lotus Supermarket Chain Co., Ltd., Beijing

Yonghui Superstores Co. Ltd.,Jingdong, Tianjin

jumei.com Technology Co., Ltd, Vipshop, and

Lefeng (Shanghai) Information Technology

Company Limited amounted to RMB407,663,837
(81 December 2017: RMB428,485,3860) were

limited by being factored to secure certain bank

loans of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Notes receivable and accounts receivable (Continued)

(2) Details of accounts receivable (Continued)

€)

Top five entities with the largest balances of

accounts receivable (Continued)

Pursuant to the factoring agreement between the
Group and HSBC, HSBC provides a bank loan
for amount of not exceeding 70% of accounts
receivable factoring to the Group. HSBC collected
the entire amount of accounts receivable and
is only required to pay the Group any amount
it collects in excess of the loan amount. As the
Group has not transferred specifically identifiable
cash flows, fully proportionate share of all or
part of the cash flows or part of specifically
identifiable cash flows, the Group cannot apply
the derecognition model to part of the factored

accounts receivable.

Since factored accounts receivable is on full
recourses basis, the Group has not transferred
the significant risks and rewards relating of
these receivables, it continues to recognize the
receivables and has recognized the cash received
from the bank as accounts receivable secured

loan (Refer to Note (VI) 18).

A

b e e

il

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

N At BEHREEERE)

2 - BREBREWIRNKE)

(2) EREFHERE)

€)

R G T5 B 5 49 4F K 65 BB AT
B ERRSIET ()
RBAEERESRTESE
MIRIZ W E - EERITAA
5 B 12 {1 T 5B B U BR SRR
BEB70%HRITER &
SIRTWBERER2HE
B OERAREXNEBE
REBEOHIA - ARNEERR
AEBRERETEE 7
BRED  BAREBE2ER
EREN—ELLAIHE LR
EPRE - AHRE DM —
FELA - Bt - AEEAEE
HETRENEEERRE D
FEFR 42 IR AR A o

PR ER 1T 8 5% AR IR 1O JE YR 50
FHERE  AKETKRE
B %S RBRR A E LN
BARE AR - A
R - WASHERTT
W B B9 3R 5 e R 7 B LA BR 3K
RIZFER(HIFEN - 18) ©

Factoring accounts receivable
on full recourses basis

BERENERRIRE
2018.12.31 2017.12.31
S-S —E—tF
+=A=+—H +=-—A=+—H
Carrying amount of transferred assets %4 E R R EE 407,663,837 428,485,860
Carrying amount of related liabilities HEAENEREER 155,555,585 117,179,353
Net book value R 252,108,252 311,306,507
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

RGO BRRERTEE)
3. Prepayments 3 FEMNE

(1) Presentation of prepayments according to aging (1) FEAKEEZEREZ TR

i 20

analysis
2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—E-N\F+=HA=t-H “E—+F+-A=t—H
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount  Proportion(%)
Aging BREe £8 Ee (%) ok EE51(%)
Within 1 year 1ELR 750,913,496 100 | 662,157,731 100
Total ARt 750,913,496 100 | 662,157,731 100
(2) Top five entities with the largest balances of (2) EBANHREEFARGHEIEEN

prepayments FTFIER
31 December 2018 2018%12A31H

Relationship Unsettled
Name of entity with the Group Amount Aging reason
B &R BAREEHE 8 R KEERR
Yibin Wuliangye Liquor Sales Co., Ltd. Independent third party 140,578,534 Within 1 year ~ Haven't received goods
HELERERHEERELAA BUE=H ] HAMEIED
Beijing Red Bull Vitamin Drink Co., Ltd. Independent third party 38,639,815 Within 1 year  Haven't received goods
SRTAG AR EREALT BUE=H (£ HAMEIED
Shanghai Nestle Products Services Co., Ltd. Independent third party 29,241,492 Within 1 year ~ Haven't received goods
FEREERREBERAR BUE=7 1EA WARMEIED
JDB (China) Drinks Co.,Ltd. Independent third party 28,670,951 Within 1 year ~ Haven't received goods
MR (PE)FHERAT BUE=H [EN HAKEIED
Ferrero Trading (Shanghai) Co.,Ltd. Independent third party 26,800,430 Within 1 year ~ Haven't received goods
BIRES(LG)ERAR BUE=] 1ELR HARYEIEN
Total 263,826,222
At
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Prepayments (Continued)

(2) Top five entities with the largest balances of

prepayments (Continued)

31 December 2017

3 BEf[E

R ()

1:||||/

N At BEHREEERE)

(2) BENHREEFRGENLEN

R HIER ()
2017412A31H

Relationship with Unsettled
Name of entity the Group Amount Aging reason
EfER BRSERE kX R KEERE
Yibin Wuliangye Liquor Sales Co., Ltd. Independent third party 91,498,674 Within 1 year  Haven't received goods
HERRRERHEERELAR Bug=h 1ELR EARYEE
Shanghai Nestle Products Services Co., Ltd. Independent third party 45,599,484 Within 1 year  Haven't received goods
RS ERRBER AT BIE=h 1ELA HARME SN
Beijing Red Bull Vitamin Drink Co., Ltd. Independent third party 40,694,396 Within 1 year ~ Haven't received goods
MR ERE AT BUE=H 1ELAR EARYEIE
Wall's (China) Co., Ltd. Tianjin Branch Independent third party 30,164,401 Within 1 year ~ Haven't received goods
MEE(E)ERADRES R BUE=H TR HAREIEY
Kweichow Maotai wine Marketing Co., Ltd. Independent third party 25,913,538 Within 1 year  Haven't received goods
EMFRERBEHERDT BUE=H 1ER EARAEIE
Total 233,870,493
ait
Other receivable 4 HibpEW
2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—E-N\F —E—tF
ltem HH +ZA=Z+—-H | +tZH=+—H
Other receivables H b e Y3k 175,508,371 169,933,613
Interest receivables FEYLAI B, - -
Dividend receivables JE LS AR ) - -
Total a5t 175,508,371 169,933,613
2018 i%&
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. Other receivable (Continued)
Details of other receivables

(1) Presentation of other receivables by category

N BHMBERREBTEE)

4~ HARWR(E)
AR 1ER

(1) EMERA S ERE

2018.12.31
“E-N\EtZA=1-H
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
BEAE BREh
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%) Net book value
Category 5 kx EL Bl (%) S8 ERA%) REEE
Other receivables that are individually EEHRRREBNENES
significant and for which bad debt
provision is assessed individually 5,087,250 3 4,224,750 83 862,500
Other receivables for which bad debt REARERERNENE
provision is assessed by groups according 5
to credit risk characteristics 174,802,765 97 156,894 - 174,645,871
Total At 179,890,015 100 4,381,644 2 175,508,371
Presentation of other receivables according to aging Hio s R a0 ™
analysis
2018.12.31
ZB-\F+ZfAZt-H
Carrying amount Proportion% Bad debt provision  Net book value
Aging i Ex F (%) BRER REEE
Within 1 year 1EA 169,572,947 9% - 169,572,947
1-2 years 1825 5,229,818 3 156,894 5,072,924
2-3 years 223F - - - -
3-4 years 3Z4F - - - -
4-5 years 4E5F - - - -
Over 5 years 5% E 5,087,250 3 4,224,750 862,500
Total At 179,890,015 100 4,381,644 175,508,371
The detail of bad debt provision EAREBIEN
The amount change in this year
RESHEE
Recovery or Resale or
2018.1.1 Accrual reversal write-off 2018.12.31
Category £ EO6E R UESEE SR ERGE
Rent and promotion BeREHE 4,204,750 156,894 - - 4,381,644
Total Ait 4,204,750 156,894 - - 4,381,644
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. Other receivable (Continued)

Details of other receivables (Continued)

(1)

Presentation of other receivables by category

(Continued)

Other receivables that are individually significant and

for which bad debt provision has been assessed

individually

Carrying
Content of other receivables amount
EfEURRAE REHE
Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Market Co., Ltd. 5,087,250

EREERRRETEER A

Bad debt
provision

BhRER
4,224,750

N At BEHREEERE)

4 HAbFEWK(E)

AR ER ()

1:||||/

(1) EERH IR ()

FREBSEERNT BBHBER

YEAE Y B Ath FE LR
Rate%  Reason
HEWA) B

83 Full bad debt provision for the part unrecovered,

according to the agreement

BEENHE - HRUEH HRRRER

Aging analysis method is used to a portfolio of bad Mar Rk TR IRER
debt provision ZEAE Y ELAth FE IR
2018.12.31
—ZE-N\E+=A=+—H
Other Bad debt Provision

receivables provision ratio (%)
Aging BR R H{th FE WX AR ST L4 (%)
Within 1 year 1F AR 169,572,947 - 0
1-2 years 18224 5,229,818 156,894 3
2-3 years 2&E3F - - 10
3-4 years 3E4F - - 25
4-5 years 4ZBF - - 50
Over 5 years 5F A E - - 100
Total &5 174,802,765 156,894

2018 i%&
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. Other receivable (Continued)
Details of other receivables (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2017

Presentation of other receivables by category

N BHMBERREBTEE)

4~ HARWR(E)
AR ER ()

(2) 2017%F12H31H

BB R E

2017.12.31
ZEtETA=T-H
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
FERE Bk
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%) Net book value
Category 5 °F S fl%) *8  HRLA%) RHER
Other receivables that are individually BEHRRRERNENER
significant and for which bad debt
provision is assessed individually 5,312,250 3 4,224,750 80 1,087,500
Other receivables for which bad debt REAHRERERNRIE
provision is assessed by groups according 3
to credit risk characteristics 168,346,113 97 - - 168,846,113
Total At 174,158,363 100 4,224,750 2 169,933,613

Presentation of other receivables according to aging

Hith YRR BRI T

analysis
2017.12.31
ZEtEZA=T-H

Carrying amount Proportion%  Bad debt provision Net book value
Aging 5 Ex L %) FHRER FEEE
Within 1 year 1ELR 168,846,113 97 - 168,846,113
1-2 years 1508 - - - -
2-3 years 2E3F - - - -
3-4 years 3B4F - - - -
4-5 years 4E5% - - - -
Over 5 years 5L F 5,312,250 3 4,224,750 1,087,500
Total At 174,158,363 100 4,224,750 169,933,613
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. Other receivable (Continued)

Details of other receivables (Continued)

@

S

31 December 2017 (Continued)

S

N At BEHREEERE)

Other receivables that are individually significant and

for which bad debt provision has been assessed

individually

Carrying Bad debt
Content of other receivables amount provision
BN AE RESE BESHE
Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Market Co., Ltd. 5,312,250 4,224,750

EREERRRETEERA

1:||||/

4 HtEWRR(E)
B bR ()
(2) 2017412H31H(4#&)

FREFSBEEAL FHADER
RGO B A FE AR

Rate%  Reason

SREAI%)  Ee

80  Full bad debt provision for the part unrecovered,
according to the agreement

BEETHE - HRRDHOHRRRER

Reversals in the current year:

Content of other

receivables Reversal reasons
HttER R AR EHRHRR

Beijing Bailitongda Wholly recovered

E-commerce Co., Ltd.
TtRAEFBEEEERAR 22HKE

AEFOEERIAT

Accumulated bad

Basis of recognizing the debt provision Amount of
previously bad debt provision prior to reversals reversals
) « BEHRHEHR
BERFERERNKE WERERESE HELH
Controversial debts which are 1,171,772 1,171,772

unlikely to recover

BB AHRFFEF RN KT

(LN

Other receivables presented by nature (3) B EFIRE L EK S

2018.12.31 2017.12.31

—E-N\fF —FtF
Nature of other receivable Hinpe g s +=-—A=+—H +=—RA=+—H
Promotion fee FEU (R SH & AR 175,068,081 169,503,939
Security deposit and deposit EURF S KR e 429,180 388,193
Other Hity 11,110 41,481
Total &5 175,508,371 169,933,613
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

N BHMBERREBTEE)

4. Other receivable (Continued) 4~ HEWRE)
Details of other receivables (Continued) b=y} AE S P ACED)
(4) Top five entities with the largest balances of other (4) IERAFEGFENFRGBEIAER
receivables b JEHC K

31 December 2018 2018%12A31H

Proportion of
the amount to Closing balance

i 21

Closing the total other of bad debt
Company name Nature of other receivables balance  Aging receivable (%) provision
fEH AR BEREE
BUEH HEnE EREE KR B (%) ERGBE
Mondelez Shanghai Food Corporate Promotion fee 9,413,153 Within 1 year 5 -
Management Co.,Ltd.
BARROEER(LE)ERAR RHE 1EHRA
Ferrero Trading(Shanghai)Co.,Ltd. Promotion fee 7,787,133 Within 2 year 4 1,069
B5BE5( L9 BRAR RHE 2FHR
Shanghai Jahwa E-commerce Co., Ltd. Promotion fee 7,547,451 Within 1 year 4 -
PR EFEBERAR REHE 1ELAR
Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Market Co., Ltd.  Receivables of prepaid rent 5,087,250  Over 5 years 3 4,224,750
FREERmBETEERAA EREE 5% E
Su wine trade group Limited by Share Ltd Promotion fee 3,511,822 Within 1 year 2 -
HREEESROERAA REHE 1EHR
Total 33,346,809 18 4,225,819
Aif
31 December 2017 2017%12A31H
Proportion of
the amount to ~ Closing balance
Nature of other the total other of bad debt
Company name receivables Closing balance  Aging receivable (%) provision
B E th M BHRER
B %R FERE Exe®  BR BERLI%) EREAE
Shanghai Jahwa E-commerce Co., Ltd. Promotion fee 28,990,401 Within 1 year 17 -
FEFETARERAR iy 1ELR
Beijing Wu-mart Store Co., Ltd. Promotion fee 19,357,389 Within 1 year -
tRIEEE ETERAT 22 1EUR
Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Market Co., Ltd. Receivables of prepaid 5,312,250  Over 5 years 4,224,750
TREEBMETRERAT rent 5L E
jibEEA
Unicharm daily necessities (China) Co., Ltd. Receivables of promotional 2,664,669  Within 1 year -
LREEERR(PE)ARAR activities TR
Henkel (China) Investment Co., Ltd. Promotion fee 2,627,870 Within 1 year -
Em(hE)REERAR feHE 1ELAR
Total 58,842,579 4,224,750
At
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EHUBBRREEERE)

STATEMENTS (Continued)
5. Inventories 5 %8

(1) #ZE7E

(1) Presentation of inventories by category

2018.12.31
—E-N\Ft+=ZA=t-H
Carrying amount Impairment  Net book value
Item JEH HREEAE BREERE REERE
Merchandise inventory B 1,650,270,986 - 1,650,270,986
Raw material R R 18,159,997 - 18,159,997
Goods in process TEM 490,791 - 490,791
Low-value consumables KESESR 1,837 - 1,837
Total =5 1,668,923,611 - 1,668,923,611
2017.12.31
~F—tE+-A=1-H
Carrying amount Impairment Net book value
Item L] HRERE BEEE REEE
Merchandise inventory BEEM 1,769,016,192 - 1,769,016,192
Raw material JRAT 20,609,749 - 20,609,749
Goods in process EER 90,328 - 90,328
Low-value consumables KESFEm 3,726 - 3,726
Total &t 1,789,719,995 - 1,789,719,995

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, no

inventories were pledged or guaranteed.

R2018F 12 431 H k2017412
318 - MANEAKEROTE -

R EEREEERNARAT

2018 if& 211 &



(8 i Lt S

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 R I

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

AN

il

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N B BRREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Inventories (Continued) 5 -FE(#&)
(2) Impairment allowance of inventories (2) HFEKBERE
For the year ended at 31 December 2018 20185 E
2018.1.1 Provision  Decrease in the current year 2018.12.31
—2-)\F —R-tf
Item FEEE —A-H KEHRE KERD +=A=+-H
Reversal Written-off
Bo EEF |
Merchandise inventory BT - - - - -
For the year ended at 31 December 2017 20176 E
201714 Provision Decrease in the current year 2017.12.31
—T—t# —Z—+F
Item FERE —H—H AEERE KERD +ZR=+—-H
Reversal Written-off
E1E| k=t
Merchandise inventory EFEm 1,377,122 - - 1,377,122 -

6 - HfttRBEE

6. Other current assets

2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—E-N\F —E—+tF
ltem 1HA +ZA=+—-HB | +tZA=+—H
Short-term investments (Note 1) EEIEE (5E1) - 25,800,000
Deductible input value-added tax FIIEIET 122,864,461 148,176,268
Prepaid lease expenses HHESER 32,241,612 32,534,912
Prepaid heating expenses FEERER 3,566,527 2,906,124
Other prepaid expenses (Note 2) HEm B R (2) 1,251,741 6,251,296
Receivable return cost (Note 3) FEWGR E AN (FE3) 17,192,758 -
Total A&t 177,117,099 215,668,600
Note 1: Short-term investments are mainly the purchase of wealth H: HIN ST EEEENENESD ©
management products.
Note 2: Prepaid property fees, cleaning fees and security fees, etc. Ho HFEEBERIEaEREMNEALAE - Y
are the primary expenses of other prepaid expenses. B (2B . RLBZ
Note 3: Related information in accordance with implementation of 3 BT AR B B A AR 5 AR 5 BB
the New Standard of Revenue Recognition refers to Note H8 ChoHMRBARE(EMNERER) -

VI, 26 Other current liabilities (refund payable).
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Available-for-sale financial assets

S

/

(1) Details of available-for-sale financial assets

7 IHHESREE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR I

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

A

il

Bt BEHRIEE ERE)

(1) THHEESHEERXY

2017.12.31
ZE-\FtZh=t-8 ZE-tETZA=1-8
Carrying Net book Carrying Net book
amount value amount  Impairment value
ttem B BERE BHEE | BERE  BERE  BAEA
Available-for-sale equity instrument A EEETA
Including: Measured by fair value £ R4 EETEY - - | 11,398,000 - 11,398,000
Measured by cost B ER - - | 1,188000 1,188,000 -
Total At - - | 12,586,000 1,188,000 11,398,000

Available-for-sale financial assets measured at fair

value at the end of period

Category

Cost of equity instrument (Note 1)
Fair value

Accumulative amount of other comprehensive

income by fair value
Accrued amount of asset impairment

AHHESREENR

Hm TAMMRA(E)
AL

Rifst ARt WEN AR EE

x|
EfRAESE

FRBERAAEBESBHTRLEES

WBEE

Available-for-sale equity instrument

AtmEREETA
2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—E-N\F —TtF
+ZA=+-H +ZR=+—H
- 350,000
- 11,398,000
- 11,048,000
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AN et BEHRREEEEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

7. Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued) 7 AHHEESREEE)
(3) Available-for-sale financial assets measured at cost 3) FAREHRAGEHNTHREESHE
at the end of period E
31 December 2018 2018%12H31H
Carrying amount
IREEE
Increase in  Decrease in
Opening  the current  the current Closing
balance period period balance
Investee RREEN 9 RELM XERD FX
Luoyang Chundu Group B EHEERDER AR Note
Limited(Luoyang Chundu) (Note 2) (LA N ESTB[&E5E4 ) (5F2) Fid - - -
Total At - - -
Provision for impairment of assets
AEEE
Increase in Decrease in Cash
Opening the current the current Closing Share dividend in
balance period period balance proportion (%) the period
ERREEN rE
Investee BREEN 9 REEM FEEHD EX BRUA()  RELF
Luoyang Chundu Group B EHEERNERA
Limited (Luoyang (AT 5EE]) (F2) Note
Chundu) (Note 2) i - - - - -
Total At - - - - _
Note:  From 1 January 2018, available-for-sale financial 7 H2018F1A1R » LAl HE
assets mentioned above re-measured to financial CRHEEENBRUARAREER
assets at fair value through profit or loss, for details EREZHFAZHERHEH
of the changes in the implementation of the new BE  AOFERITAERES
financial instruments, please refer to Note (VI) 8 Other SEAFF RIS - SHAIERED
non-current financial assets. DREE o
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EHUBRREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

7. Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued) 7 THHHESREEE)
(3) Available-for-sale financial assets measured at cost (3) EARERAFNENTRHEESHE
at the end of period (Continued) E(E)
31 December 2017 2017%12H31H
Carrying amount
EE
Increase in  Decrease in
Opening  the current  the current Closing
balance period period balance
Investee WRBEN F1 AEHEM KERD FR
Luoyang Chundu Group Limited HBEEDRERNERAE
(Luoyang Chundu) (Note 2) (ATEBIRBER]) (2) 1,188,000 - - 1,188,000
Total At 1,188,000 - - 1,188,000
Provision for impairment of assets
FEEE
Increase in - Decrease in Cash
Opening  the current  the current Closing Share  dividend in
balance period period balance  proportion (%)  the period
\ ) ERRAEL  AF
Investee HREBM £ KFEN AERD X RREAG%)  BeLH
Luoyang Chundu Group R EHBEBRHERAA
Limited (Luoyang Chundu) ~ (JAT BRI 85EH ) (52)
(Note 2) 1,188,000 - - 1,188,000 0.12 -
Total Bt 1,188,000 - - 1,188,000 -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

7. Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

(3) Available-for-sale financial assets measured at cost

at the end of period (Continued)

Note 1: Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company,

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

subscribed for 100,000 legal person shares (RMB1
per share) of Shanxi Xinghuacun Fen Wine Factory
Co., Ltd. (Shanxi Xinghuacun) for RMB350,000
in November 1993. In the same year, Shanxi
Xinghuacun was listed in Shanghai Stock Exchange.
On 18 May 2012, Shanxi Xinghuacun issued a stock
dividend of 10 for 10 stocks based on the total
shares at 31 December 2011 to all shareholders
through the notice of 2011 annual general meeting.
The number of Shanxi Xinghuacun legal person
shares held by Chaopi trading was 200,000 shares.
Chaopi Trading possessed 0.023% of its equity
in total. In 2018, such shares were sold in full by

Chaopi Trading.

Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company,
subscribed for 60,000 legal person shares (RMB1
per share) of Luoyang Chundu for RMB1,188,000
in June 1998. On 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2017, Chaopi Trading possessed 0.12%
of its equity. As the deterioration of operating
condition of Luoyang Chundu, the Group took full
provision for the long term equity investment whose
recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount
and such decrease expected not to be recovered in

the foreseeable future.
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7 AHHESREEE)

FRER AT EHTREESHE
E(E)
CARRBEZFABSHIEE R 1993

FUHANEEES ARBIE
TURREE L PR A LA B B AR 15
PR A (LA T R8I L P A TER 1)
EARIOER(EREBEARE
1.007T) o LA B TER R 1993 F
ELBBEAZSH LT o ILAR
TERT 201295 A18 H#4#52011
FEBRREAGRELS - A2011
F12ABMARKNRES - [
2RERFEF10RX10RAAR - @
B B A L AR HEAR
R R20BAL - BEEEEAH
0.023% BV X #E - 1A 20184F 4
HEERZREDHLE -

CARRRZFAREAREERN1993

FOALERES ARK118.88
TLRE R E#HEANRGOE IR
(BRmEEARE1.007T) ° 2018
F12A318 Kk2017F 12 A 31
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EHUBRREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
Other non-current financial assets 8 HttFREBSRMEE
2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—E-NE | —TrF
ltem HHE +t=A=+—-B | TZA=+—H
Classified Financial Assets at Fair Value 5 8LA2 7 BETEBEEZEHTA
Through Profit or Loss EHERNeRMEE 14,583,646 -
Including: Debt Instrument Investments E 1 : EETAKRE - -
Equity Instrument Investments EanTAREGE)
(Note 1) 14,583,646 -
Subtotal NE 14,583,646 -
Less: Current Portion That Matures
Within One Year B —FREIEE S - -
Total CEl 14,583,646 -
Note 1: Chaopi Trading, the subsidiary of the Company, subscribed 1 AABZ FARBMUEENR2018F4A
for the enjoyment of Wuliangye No. 1 fund products by NEKESARKIIGTETREES
monetary funds of RMB11.67 million, and held a fund IRRIRESER  HENESNHE
share of 11,638,983.05 in April 2018. £11,638,983.0517) °
Note 2: The Group has adopted the New Standard of Financial 2 REEBE2018F1 A1HRBRITH S

Instruments from 1 January 2018. Based on provisions
of the New Standard of Financial Instruments, the
Group’s business model of managerial financial assets
and characteristics of contractual cash flow, the Group
classifies equity investments of available-for-sale financial
assets, which was recognized in previous years, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. In addition, the
Group doesn’t restate categorization and estimation that
are related to the data on the prior comparative financial
statements and different from the New Standard of

Financial Instruments.

AT AR - RHTE R T AERERE
RE - RAEEEESHEENERFE
ARARBEREFE  BUNFES
BRAUHLESHEENERERED
BRNAAARBEMEEAZHITAEN
BROEMEE  HRoBEMEK
ATEALL B A R A R B e e T A
AT —5m - AREEETETER o
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. Investment properties

Investment properties under the cost method

31 December 2018

ltem HAR
|. Original carrying amount - FERE
1.2017.12.31 1. ENeH
2. Increase in the period 2. REZNGE
(1) Transferred from the fixed assets () RETEEEA
(2) Business mergers increased (2) REAGEN
3. Decrease in the period 3. AERIEE
(1) Transferred to the fixed assets (1) BAEEEE
(2) Transferred to the intangible assets @ BABFEE
4. 2018.12.31 4 FRHE
Il. Accumulated depreciation and amortization = - ZEHTER 25
1.2017.12.31 1. EN&R
2. Increase in the period 2. RELMSE
(1) Accrual or amortization (1) sk
(2) Transferred from the fixed assets 2 NHETEESA
(3)Business mergers increased (3) REAFEM
3. Decrease in the period 3. AER R
(1) Transferred to the fixed assets (1) BARTEE
(2) Transferred to the intangible assets Q BABFAE
4, 2018.12.31 4 ERBE
Ill. Net book valug = KEEE

1. Net book value as at 31 December 2018 1, EXREEEE
2. Net book value as at 31 December 2017 2. EYREER

N AHPBHRRAEERE)

9 - REMFEHE

BREAGTBEARE N FHE
2018128311

Buildings  Land use rights Total
EEREEY T fERE &3t
139,248,884 122,900,708 262,149,592
139,248,884 122,900,708 262,149,692
51,295,182 14,539,814 65,834,996
3,475,762 5,232,480 8,708,242
3,475,762 5,232,480 8,708,242
54,770,944 19,772,294 74,643,238
84,477,940 103,128,414 187,606,354
87,953,702 108,360,894 196,314,596
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

9.

Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties under the cost method (Continued)

31 December 2017

ltem EH
I. Original carrying amount — RERE
1. 2016.12.31 1. Ee%
2. Increase in the period 2. AEEMERE
(1) Transferred from the fixed assets OWRETEEEA
(2) Business mergers increased QxAHEMm
3. Decrease in the period 3 AERIER
(1) Transferred to the fixed assets MENETEE
(2) Transferred to the intangible assets RQENETEAE
4, 2017.12.31 4. ERERF
IIl. Accumulated depreciation and amortization = + 23T ERM 25t
1. 2016.12.31 1. Fe%
2. Increase in the period 2. REENEH
(1) Accrual or amortization (1)FT iRk &
(2) Transferred from the fixed assets QRETEEEA
(3)Business mergers increased Q) EEAHLM
3. Decrease in the period 3. AERHVEE
(1) Transferred to the fixed assets NEAETEE
(2) Transferred to the intangible assets QEANEVEE
4, 2017.12.31 4, ERHE

lll. Net book value - EEERE
1. Net book value as at 31 December 2017 1. FREAEE
2. Net book value as at 31 December 2016 2. FIREEE

N At BEHREEERE)

9 - REMFEHBEGE)

BT BRI RE S E (E)
20175F12A31H

Buildings Land use rights Total
REREEN B CH
128,972,784 61,834,184 190,806,968
10,276,100 61,066,524 71,342,624
10,276,100 61,066,524 71,342,624
139,248,884 122,900,708 262,149,592
45,658,998 10,584,156 56,243,154
5,636,184 3,955,658 9,591,842
5,359,910 2,522,384 7,882,294
276,274 1,433,274 1,709,548
51,295,182 14,539,814 65,834,996
87,953,702 108,360,894 196,314,596
83,313,786 51,250,028 134,563,814

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, there
was no investment properties that were pledged to secure

certain of the Group’s long-term bank loans.

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, all land
use rights in the investment properties of the Group are

medium-term lease.

2018512 A31 B 20174124318 -
EAERTRBEFTREYNIEE LR
HIEE o

2018412 A31H 2017412 A31H -
AR SR B 5 A N S Hh E AR A b {5 R A 8T
BRAPME -
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VI.

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N BHMBERREBTEE)

(Continued)
10. Fixed assets 10 BEEEE
2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—E-N\F e
ltem HE +=ZA=+—-H| +=—A=+—8
Fixed assets EEBEE 976,125,343 1,043,875,757
Disposal of fixed assets BEEEEBRE - -
Total A5t 976,125,343 1,043,875,757
Detail of fixed assets EZEBERX
31 December 2018 20185128318
Electronic
Machinery and  devices and Transportation
Buildings equipment others vehicles Total
Item EH EEREEN BERE E7TREREM EaRE &t
I. Original carrying amount - EERE
1. 2017.12.31 1. EN%8 1,065,915,625 909,986,266 166,290,498 80,995,490 2,223,187,879
2. Increase in the period 2. KEEME 561,112 20,088,544 24,634,488 6,377,759 51,661,903
(1) Purchase (1) EE 561,112 17,647,556 24,634,488 6,377,759 49,220,915
(2 Transferred from the (Q ERIEEA
construction in process - 2,440,988 - - 2,440,988
(3) Transferred from the investment (3 REEEHEEA
properties - - - - -
(4) Business mergers increased (4) BEABHEN - - - - -
3. Decrease in the period 3. KERD - 55,121,992 11,685,399 28,521,978 95,329,369
(1) Disposal () AFRE - 55,121,992 11,685,399 28,521,978 95,329,369
(2) Transferred to the investment (2 BAREUREHE
properties - - - - -
4. 2018.12.31 4, FRHHE 1,066,476,737 874,952,818 179,239,587 58,851,271 2,179,520,413
Il. Accumulative depreciation ~ Rt
1. 2017.12.31 1. FRE 360,307,497 635,560,032 130,721,094 52,723,499 1,179,312,122
2. Increase in the period 2, KEEME 36,301,032 40,298,306 13,260,553 16,321,554 106,181,445
(1) Acorual (1) RFafR 36,301,032 40,208,306 13,260,553 16,321,554 106,181,445
(2) Transferred from the investment () REEEHEEA
properties - - - - -
(3) Business mergers increased (3) DEAGEN - - - - -
3. Decrease in the period 3. AERDE - 40,216,846 10,991,838 30,889,813 82,098,497
(1) Disposal () AFRE - 40,216,846 10,991,838 30,889,813 82,098,497
(2) Transferred to investment (2 BAREUREHE
properties - - - - -
4. 2018.12.31 4, FRHH 396,608,529 635,641,492 132,989,809 38,155,240  1,203,395,070
lIl. Net book value = KEEE
1. Net book value as at 31 December 1. FREEERE
2018 669,868,208 239,311,326 46,249,778 20,696,031 976,125,343
2. Net book value as at 31 December 2. EAEHEM
2017 705,608,128 274,426,234 35,569,404 28,271,991  1,043,875,757
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VL.

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

10. Fixed assets (Continued)

Detail of fixed assets (Continued)

31 December 2017

[tem

QOriginal carrying amount
1. 2016.12.31
2. Increase in the period
(1) Purchase
(2) Transferred from the

construction in process
(3) Transferred from the investment

properties

(4) Business mergers increased

3. Decrease in the period
(1) Disposal

(2) Transferred to the investment

properties
4. 2017.12.31

. Accumulative depreciation

1. 2016.12.31
2. Increase in the period
(1) Accrual

(2) Transferred from the investment

properties

(3) Business mergers increased

3. Decrease in the period
(1) Disposal

(2) Transferred to investment

properties
4. 2017.12.31

III. Net book value =
1. Net book value as at 31 December

2017

2. Net book value as at 31 December

2016

HH

RERE

1. FBE
2. NEEME
(1) BE
() ERIREA

(O REMFHEBA
(4) DEAGHEN
3. NERD
(1) AFRE
(2 EAREEENE

4 FRHE

F BitEE

1. ENGE
2. NEEME
(1) A5
Q) BELFHEEA
(3) EAHEM
3 RERLE
(1) ~EBE
(2 EARBURHE

4 FRHE

RRER

1. EXGEER
2. FYEAEEE

Buildings
BEREEN

1,020,771,577
45,144,048

45,144,048

1,065,915,625
322,502,049

37,805,448
35,066,194

2,739,254

360,307,497

706,608,128

698,269,528

N At BEHREEERE)

10 -BEIEEEH)

Machinery and
equipment
HER

905,280,954
37,061,403
24,089,087

12,972,316

32,356,091
32,356,001
909,986,266
598,756,611

52,485,177
52,485,177

15,681,756
15,681,756

635,560,032

274,426,234

306,524,343

BlEEERBR (&)
20175F12A31H

Electronic
devices and
others
BFHERAM

165,463,288
12,359,170
11,728,773
623,247
7,150
11,531,960
11,531,960
166,290,498

124,137,365

13,881,108
13,878,564

2,544
7,297,379
7,297,379

130,721,094

35,569,404

41,325,923

Transportation
vehicles
ERkE

76,170,718
12,318,740
10,790,283

1,528,457

7,493,968
7,493,968
80,995,490
46,228,216

18,181,957
18,181,957

11,686,674
11,686,674

52,723,499

28,271,991

29,942,502

Total
At

2,167,686,537
106,883,361
46,608,143

16,124,020
45,151,198
51,382,019
51,382,019
2,223,187,879
1,091,624,241

122,353,690
119,611,892

2,741,798
34,665,809
34,665,809

1,179,312,122

1,043,875,757

1,076,062,296

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, no fixed

assets were restricted as they were been pledged to secure

certain of the long-term Group’s bank loans.

2018412 A31H 2017412 A31H -
EATAREBERITRAERNERY
M ZIRBIMETEE °

R
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

10. Fixed assets (Continued)

Detail of fixed assets (Continued)

Fixed assets of which issued certificates of title have not

been obtained as at 31 December 2018:

N AHPBHRRAEERE)

10 BEEEEHE)

EE

BEBR(E)

M20184E12A31H » KT EREZEZ
METEEERBN

Reasons for

Expected time

not obtaining of obtaining

Net book certificates of certificates of

value title title

APWEERE FETHREER

Iltem HA REFE BERE BERH

Room1-201, 1-202, 2-201, KNEREIERE13-1-201 - 2,820,147 In progress 2019

2-202, 3-201, 3-202, Unit 13, 13-1-202 » 13-2-201 - TFAE IR 2019%F

Chenxin Garden, Datong 18-2-202 - 13-3-201 -
13-3-202 &

Xinyishangzhen-the office building ¥ Z ¥ — it N & M F & 17,867,185 In progress 2019

and the factory IEfE#i3E 20194
Fixed assets of which issued certificates of title have not M2017F12A31H - RZEEESE

been obtained as at 31 December 2016:

ltem 1HH
Room1-201, 1-202, 2-201, KEESZEIEE13-1-201 -
2-202, 3-201, 3-202, Unit 13, 13-1-202 - 13-2-201 -
Chenxin Garden, Datong 13-2-202 + 13-3-201 -
13-3-202F &

Xinyishangzhen-the office building 12 513 — ## A 1E M &
and the factory

WEEEERBNR

Net book
value

fRmEFE

2,862,430

18,651,664

Reasons for
not obtaining
certificates of

title
R ErE
BERE

In progress

EfERIEH

In progress

EfEHIE

Expected time
of obtaining
certificates of
title

TEET A EE R
BEER

2018
20184

2018
20184
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Bt BEHRIEE ERE)

(Continued)
11. Construction in progress 11 EEIRE

2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—E-N\F —T—+tF
ltem ERE| +=B=+—-H| +ZA=+—H
Construction in progress TEIR 114,152,339 108,751,566
Engineer material TEWE - -
Total A5t 114,152,339 108,751,566

(1) Details of construction in progress (1) HEEIZBHMT

2018.12.31 2017.12.31
ZE-\E+ZA=1+-H “EE+-A=1—H
Carrying Net book Carrying Net book
amount  Impairment value amount  Impairment value
Item ER RESE HEEE REFE RRSE AEEE REFE
Shuanggiao Project ®ETR 50,232,653 - 50,232,653 | 50,232,653 - 50,232,658
Pingfang Project TRIR 43,758,178 - 43,758,178 | 43,547,031 - 43,547,031
Pingfang Refrigeratory Project ~ FRAEILRE 9,617,821 - 9,617,821 | 9,617,821 - 9,617,821
System Software Project ZEEHERTR 8,688,671 - 8,688,671 4,905,379 - 4,905,379
Xibahe Store F& s - - - 52,000 - 52,000
Airport Store change BEEEY 1,193,428 - 1,193,428 - - -
Zhenzhi Road change SRR RN 603,156 - 603,156 - - -
Fresh distribution equipment FEREER
change - - - 329,189 - 329,189
Jiuxiangiao Project BlETE - - - 67,493 - 67,493
Other HitEE 58,432 - 58,432 - - -
Total At 114,152,339 - 114,152,339 | 108,751,566 - 108,751,566
2018 %4 g

R EEREEERNARAT
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < : §0fBiBHRRxBEA T (&)

(Continued)
11. Construction in progress (Continued) 11 EEIRE)
(2) Changes in significant construction in progress in (2) EEGBEIBEAXFEHER

the current year

For the year ended at 31 December 2018 20185 E
Transferred to
fixed assets,
intangible assets
Increase in the or long-term
[tem Budget amount 2018.1.1 period prepaid expenses  Other deduction 2018.12.31
E\BEEE
ZE-)\F BFEER ZE-\F
HREH AL -A-H RERM REGHER EftHY  +t=A=1-H
Shuanggiao Project (Note 1)* 108,988,036 50,232,653 - - - 50,232,653
SRIRGEH)
Pingfang Project (Note 2)° 73,655,986 43,547,031 211,147 - - 43,758,178
FEIR(H?)
Pingfang Refrigeratory Project 35,047,286 9,617,821 - - - 9,617,821
TRRETR
Airport Store change 9,672,935 - 5,165,345 2,901,822 1,070,095 1,193,428
BAEEY
System Software Project 11,781,154 4,905,379 5,562,206 1,354,386 424528 8,688,671
FRELIR
Others 97,583,645 448,682 8,975,861 6,816,779 1,946,176 661,588
HpERIRE
Total 336,729,042 108,751,566 19,914,559 11,072,987 3,440,799 114,152,339
At
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NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <
(Continued)

(2) Changes in significant construction in progress in

b e e

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

11 - EEBIRE)

Bt BEHRIEE ERE)

(2) EEHEIBEBEHAFELEESR

the current year (Continued) (%)
For the year ended at 31 December 2018 (Continued) 2018FE (&)
Amount i
injected as a Amount of Including: Interest
proportion of accumulated Capitalized  capitalization
budget amount  Construction capitalized  interest in the rate for the

Project name (%)  progress (%) interest period period (%) Source of funds

IBRAER HMEER Hb: RENE RERE
BEAR A%  IREE%) RiteE EXLeE  BALEY%) HE%R
Shuanggjiao Project (Note 1)* 46.09 46.09 3,000,000 - - Own funds and bank loans
SRIEGE) " REEERET-RER
Pingfang Project (Note 2)* 59.41 59.41 425,988 - - Own funds and bank loans
TRIR(H) AEESREN-RER
Pingfang Refrigeratory Project 27.44 27.44 - - - Own funds and bank loans
TRRELR BEEEREN-RER
Airport Store change 53.40 53.40 - - - Own funds and bank loans
BEEEY REESRET-RER
System Software Project 88.85 88.85 - - - Own funds and bank loans
FoEnIR REEERET-RIET
Others 210100 210100 135,008 - - Own funds and bank loans
EtiERTR 22100 22100 BEESRET-RER
Total 3,560,996 -
a3t
For the year ended at 31 December 2017 2017 E

Transferred to

fixed assets,
intangible assets

Increase in the or long-term
ltem Budget amount 2017.1.1 period prepaid expenses  Other deduction 2017.12.31
BAEEEE
I BEAER “ELE
BRAHE BEH -A-H RSN REGHER EftEdy +tZA=t-H
Shuanggiao Project (Note 1)* 108,988,036 50,232,653 - - - 50,232,653
gREIRGEN)
Pingfang Project (Note 2) 73,655,986 36,694,408 6,852,623 - - 43,547,031
TRIR(E2)
Pingfang Refrigeratory Project 35,047,286 9,130,429 487,392 - - 9,617,821
THERELR
Xihongmen Project 25,531,163 4,384,012 5,327,696 8,495,432 1,216,276 -
EAMTRE
Others 80,902,396 8,474,433 21,912,327 25,024,450 8,249 5,354,061
EMERTRE
Total 108,915,935 34,580,038 33,519,882 1,224,525 108,751,566
ait
2018 %5 pop
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VI.

i 22

(Continued)

11.

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Construction in progress (Continued)

(2) Changes in significant construction in progress in

S

7N

AP BHRRAEERE)

11~ HEEIRE)

(2) EEFBIREBAFZEER

the current year (Continued) (%)
For the year ended at 31 December 2017 (Continued) 2017 FE (&)
Amount injected Amount of Including: Interest
as a proportion accumulated Capitalized capitalization
of budget Construction capitalized interest in the rate for the
Project name amount (%) progress (%) interest period period (%) Source of funds
) IREAERE FEERL  Heb: AFFIE _ AEFIE
ERAH £ %) THER(%) Z2iteE BRes EREE%) E2RE
Shuanggiao Project (Note 1)* 46 46 3,000,000 - - Own funds and bank loans
ERTR(G BEES RBIT—RER
Pingfang Project (Note 2) 59 59 425,988 - - Own funds and bank loans
TEIE(H) EREERFT-RER
Pingfang Refrigeratory Project 27 21 - - - Own funds and bank loans
TRAEIR BEREERBT-RER
Xihongmen Project - - - - - Own funds and bank loans
BEAM TR BRASRET—RER
Others 210100 210100 106,919 - - Own funds and bank loans
AAEEIR 2100 2Z100 BEESRBT—RER
Total 3,532,907 -
At
* According to the revised budget amount for * ZEIE B REBER AR EE AR
subsequent years/periods, the project budget and BERNEESCHEEMERES
the proportions of project investments of the total FAHEMNIERBERIEEAL
budget in respective periods were restated. EERLG -
Note 1: The costs of Shuanggiao Project mainly consisted of 1 ERIRNBRAZZ A LA

6 ANNUAL REPORT 2018

land compensation cost. Due the change in planning
policies on the requisitioned land, the Company
has not obtained the land use right certificate yet.
Pursuant to the Land Requisition and Compensation
Agreement between the Company and the People’s
Government of Guanzhuang Township, Chaoyang
District, Beijing and its supplemental agreement, the
amount prepaid to the latter shall be refunded in full
to the Company in case of any change in policies or
any other situation that may affect land requisition of
the Company. Therefore, the management believes

that there is no risk of impairment for the project.

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

11.

12.

Construction in progress (Continued)

(2) Changes in significant construction in progress in

the current year (Continued)

For the year ended at 31 December 2017 (Continued)
Note 2: As at 31 December 2018, the costs of Pingfang
Project mainly consisted of civil engineering. The
Company was in process of obtaining the builder’s
license, the Company is negotiating and predicted to
start the project in 2020. Therefore, the management

believes that there is no risk of impairment for the

b e e

A

il

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

N At BEHREEERE)

11 FEEIRE)

(2) EEHEIBEBEHAFELEESR
(%)
2017FE (%)

2 : HE2018F12 A31HFE TR
BWAXTEATRETRE - AQAIE

R

HAMBRP AR

A IEE B TEET2020F BT - &
BERAZBIRBIFERER

B -

project.

Intangible assets

31 December 2018

Item EH
I Original carrying amount - RERE
1, 2017.12.31 1 5088
2. Increase in the period 2 REANEE
(1) Purchase (1) EE
(2) Transferred from the construction in process (Q ERIREEA
(3) Transferred from the investment properties (8) REMEHEEA
(4) Business mergers increase (4 REAHEN
3. Decrease in the period L AERVEE
4, 2018.12.31 4 ERBE
Il. Accumulated amortization BB
1, 2017.12.31 1 5088
2. Increase In the period 2 RERNEE
(1) Accrual (1) &€
(2) Transferred from the investment properties (2 RESEHEEA
(3) Business mergers increase (3) BEATEN
3. Decrease in the period 3 AEHDER
4, 2018,12.31 4 FRHE
ll. Net book value = - RABHE
1. Net book value as at 31 December 2018 1. EREEER

2. Net book value as at 31 December 2017

2 EAEEEE

12 - BYEE
2018F12A31H

Operation rights

of distribution

Land use rights Software network
THERE B SRBGSHR
322,868,516 52,632,969 34,254,633
- 4,074,251 -

- 4,074,251 -

- 2,210,757 -
322,868,516 54,436,463 34,254,633
49,728,236 21,414,772 20,443,300
9,045,171 4,681,063 2,881,000
9,045,171 4,681,063 2,881,000

- 2,210,757 -
58,773,407 23,825,078 23,324,300
264,095,109 30,611,385 10,930,333
273,140,280 31,218,197 13,811,333

Total
At

409,756,118
4,074,251
4,074,251

2,210,757
411,559,612

91,586,308
16,607,234
16,607,234

2,210,757
105,922,785

305,636,827
318,169,810
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VI.

12. Intangible assets (Continued)

31 December 2017

[tem

I, Original carrying amount
1. 2016.12.31
2. Increase in the period
1) Purchase

3. Decrease in the period
4, 2017.12.31

II. - Accumulated amortization
1. 2016.12.31

2. Increase in the period
(1) Accrual

() Transferred from the investment properties
(3) Business mergers increase

3. Decrease in the period
4, 2017.12.31
Il Net book value

1. Net book value as at 31 December 2017
2. Net book value as at 31 December 2016

2) Transferred from the construction in process
3) Transferred from the investment properties
4) Business mergers increase

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

- RERE

I
2. REENI24E
(1) B2
Q) ERIREA
(3 ZEUEHEEA
(4 CEABEN
SAERLEE
4 FRBE

= Eith#

1. FN4E

2 REENEE
(1) 318
Q) FEURHEBA
(3) EAGHEN

3 AERVEE

4 ERHE

= RAEE

1 EREREE
2 FOEEEE

N BHMBERREBTEE)

12 »

Land use rights

1iEmE

193,141,817
129,726,699

129,726,699

322,868,516
39,573,184
10,156,052

5,726,704
4,428,348
49,728,236

273,140,280
153,068,633

BAEE)
20174128318

Operation rights
of distribution
Software network

aft  SERGLHEE

43,804,937 34,254,633
8,828,032 -
1,881,294 -
6,946,738 -

52,632,969 34,254,633

17,406,606 17,664,800
4,008,166 2,878,500
4,008,166 2,878,500

21,414,772 20,443,300

31,218,197 13,811,333
26,398,331 16,689,833

Total
4t

271,201,387
138,054,731
1,881,294
6,946,738

129,726,699
409,756,118
74,544,590
17,041,718
12,613,370
4,428,348
91,586,308

318,169,810
196,656,797

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, all land

use rights in the intangible assets of the Group are medium-

term lease.
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13. Goodwill
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NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <
(Continued)

Bt BEHRIEE ERE)

13 - 8

(1) BEREFRE

Increased in this period Decreased in this period
KM RERD
Formed by
business
2018.1.1 combination Other Disposal Other  2018.12.31
Name of the investee or BREBNER PEAH
item resulting in goodwill FHABENEE EYHE it Hih RE Hih ERGBE
Acquisition of Shouchao Group e RER 86,673,788 - - - - 86,673,788
At 86,673,788 - - - - 86,673,788

On 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the balance
was the goodwill arising from the acquisition of Shoulian
Supermarket and its subsidiaries (“Shouchao Group”) as well
as Beijing Jingchao Commercial Company Limited (Hereinafter

referred to as “Jingchao”).

The impairment tests of goodwill acquired through the
purchase of Shouchao Group and Jingchao were conducted
on the group of assets in relation to the retailing business
segment of the Shouchao Group after consolidation of

Jingchao.

The recoverable amount of the group of assets had been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-
year period approved by senior management. The discount
rate applied to calculate the present value of a future stream
of cash flows was 11% (2017: 11%). The growth rate used
to extrapolate the cash flows of the subsidiary beyond the

five-year period was 3% (2017: 3%).

2018412 A 31 H &20174 12 A 31
B ZH#sEslEaEnEmREFRA
(ATEEa EBEE ] RILRURER
EERARATEERI RBDEES
e .

AEERBEEBEE R NBRGHEHE
et RBRNEBEETRBTEXRE
HENEEER—EEEANETRE
AR ZEEABRTEDH

ZAEMMAE S REIRBETERT R K
ReRENRAERE  BEEERENLE
MsFEIMTBEEER FNReRE
TERIRIEE - T HEHRKRENE
WEMBOITHREZ11% (20174 :
11%) ' 5FUAEMNR S TEMNLRER
3%(20174F : 3%) °
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < : §0fBiBHRRxBEA T (&)

(Continued)

13. Gooduwill (Continued) 13 - HE#E)
As at 31 December 2018, and 31 December 2017, HEEBEEN2018F12A31H K
certain key assumptions are taken into consideration of 201712 A1 AMTEG A KB 2R E
the calculation of the present value of the cash flow of WMERATARRE - LTt TER
Shouchao Group. Below are the key assumptions made BAETEEMRENH - EHEERT
by the management in forecasting the present value of a RIRIB e M BIRERIELAOBRRMERR

future stream of cash flows to conduct impairment tests of

goodwill.

Expected gross profit- The estimation of gross profit is EEEMN-HBEEMEEBEFERN —
based on the average gross profit realized in previous year, FERNFEHEMERERE L - RIETET
and then appropriately increased according to the increase MEMRS LB TSRABEREEE
of expected efficiency and market expansion 2 FHERE -

Discount rate- Using the discount rate before tax which WRE-HANTAERERREBER
reflects Shouchao Group’s specific risks FEREAFAITRE -
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A

il

VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <  §ffBiHRxBEE TR (&)

(Continued)
14. Long-term prepaid expenses 14 - REBZFRER
For the year ended at 31 December 2018 20185 E
Increase in  Amortization in Other
Item 2018.1.1 the period the period deduction 20181231 Reason for other deduction
“E-N\f “E-0\F
1R -A-f REEM REERY Y tZR=t-8 HftEORE
Transferred from construction in progress to 418,202,598 28,268,155 83,864,157 557,291 362,049,305
leasehold improvements
BER BT RN R A
Rent 47,677,889 - 443,571 9,195,643 38,038,675 Transferred to current assets
Ei HBERBEE
Total 465,880,487 28,268,155 84,307,728 9,752,934 400,087,980
as
For the year ended at 31 December 2017 20175 E
Increase in -~ Amortization in Other
ltem 2017.1.1 the period the period deduction 2017.12.31 Reason for other deduction
IEtE ZEE
1B -A-H TEEN REERY s  tZR=t-8 EfEIRE
Transferred from construction in progress to 473,162,482 31,840,931 86,800,815 - 418,202,598
leasehold improvements
Bef \ErAESR
Rent 57,860,486 59,940 962,459 9,280,078 47,677,889 Transferred to current assets
7 BEigEE
Total 531,022,968 31,900,871 87,763,274 9,280,078 465,880,487
8%
15. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities 15 - BEFBHEE ELEFMEHERE
(1) Deferred tax assets without offset (1) FEEBERIELFTIEHEERH
2018.12.31 2017.12.31
ZE-N\FtZA=t-H “E—+E+ZA=T-H
Deductible
temporary Deferred Deductible Deferred
differences tax assets |temporary differences tax asset
ltem EH TENEHEER BEFREHERE | AENEREER BLmENEE
Deductivle losses AENEE 53,139,085 13,284,771 67,203,019 16,800,755
Taxable government grants JERT B8 43,781,259 10,945,315 42,681,315 10,670,329
Total = 96,920,344 24,230,086 109,884,334 27,471,084
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VI.
(Continued)

15. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

(2) Deferred tax liabilities without offset

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(#&)

N BHMBERREBTEE)

15 - BEFIEHEE BELEFMEHAR

(2) RABEHBELFTEHEEHA

2018.12.31 2017.12.31
ZE-N\E+ZA=t+-8 ZEtETZA=TR
Taxable Taxable
temporary Deferred tax temporary Deferred tax
differences liabilities differences liabilities
Item L ERMHER FEHaR TRitER FERaE
Fair value adjustment of assets arising ~ JFEEHEERBEANEE
from non-monetary asset exchange AnEERE 12,539,390 3,134,848 13,605,829 3,401,457
Changes on the fair value of HEECHEEAABER
available-for-sale financial assets 2,913,646 728,411 11,048,000 2,762,000
Capitalized interest adjustment of ERERHSEAL R
borrowing costs 3,475,782 868,946 5,025,804 1,256,451
Difference between the fair value and the G872 FIREEBEM
carrying amount of subsidiary merger A% EEZEE
and acquisition 2,740,842 685,210 3,401,008 850,252
Total = 21,669,660 5,417,415 33,080,641 8,270,160

(3) Net deferred tax assets or liabilities with offset

ltem

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

(3) UBHRFHEITHBELFEHE

EXEE

Amount after

Amount after  Offset amount offset of

Offset amount offset of of deferred deferred tax

of deferred deferred tax tax assets and assets and

tax assets and assets and deferred tax deferred tax

deferred tax deferred tax liabilities in the liabilities in the

liabilities at the liabilities at the beginning of beginning of

end of year end of year year year

BERSEH HKHBREL BEREH HEHRBEL

EENEE FEHEED EENEE FEHEER

HH FREHSE SEBERHE SFUEEEE ARFUHE
FELFEREE 4,003,793 20,226,293 4,657,908 22,813,176
BEFRERAR 4,003,793 1,413,622 4,657,908 3,612,252
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15. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

Details of unrecognized deferred tax assets

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 255 R P o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)
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S BOtMBEHKRIEEERE)

15 - EEFEHEE EEFfEHAR

(4) AREZELFEHEERH

2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—E-N\F —T—tF
ltem T3 [ +=ZB=+—-H8 | +t=ZRA=+—H
Deductible temporary differences  AJINERFIEE R 18,582,790 11,746,445
Deductible losses AEAE A 283,650,363 220,973,071
Total &t 302,233,153 232,719,516

In the view of the management of the Group, deferred

tax assets are not recognized since it is not probable

that taxable profit will be available against which the

deductible temporary differences or deductible losses

can be utilized.

Deductible losses of unrecognized deferred tax

SEEEER/RKTRRARE

A R PR Bl AT B R AN AT 4R
HERUEZENEATAGE
Rtk AR R LA _E TR B BT AR X

KT 5B A AL P 15 7 B 2 Y AT 18 15

assets will expire in the following years BERUTEEZE

2018.12.31 2017.12.31

—E-N\F —E—+tF
Year Fiy +=ZA=+—-H8 | +=—A=+—H
2018.12.31 2018.12.31 - 18,081,827
2019.12.31 2019.12.31 23,531,996 23,531,996
2020.12.31 2020.12.31 39,299,786 39,299,786
2021.12.31 2021.12.31 70,528,769 70,528,769
2022.12.31 2022.12.31 69,530,693 69,530,693
2023.12.31 2023.12.31 80,759,119 -
Total A&t 283,650,363 220,973,071
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

16. Details of provision for asset impairment

N BHMBERREBTEE)

16 - EEREXEREHA

For the year ended at 31 December 2018 2018F &
Decrease in the year
KERD
Increase in
2018.1.1 the year  Reversal Written-off 2018.12.31
—E-N\F —E-N\E
Item HE -A-8 AEELM ER ¥ +-A=t+-8
Bad debts provision BERER 10,558,445 6,923,687 87,343 - 17,394,789
Provision for inventory impairment 72 Bk (B4 - - - - -
Impairment of available-for-sale AR L EEFEEEEHHFAE
financial assets BERCHEERBER 1,188,000 - - - 1,188,000
Total At 11,746,445 6,923,687 87,343 - 18,582,789
For the year ended at 31 December 2017 20175 E
Decrease in the year
W
Increase in
2017.1.1 the year ~ Reversal Written-off 2017.12.31
—E—tF —E—tF
ltemn BE —A—H ARELTN E[ Bl TZA=t-H
Bad debts provision ZIREE 10,528,368 6,333,695 4,549,712 1,753,906 10,558,445
Provision for inventory impairment 125 % (B4 1,377,122 - - 1,877,122 -
Impairment of available-for-sale A/ HESREERELEE
financial assets 1,188,000 - - - 1,188,000
Total CH 13,093,490 6,333,695 4,549,712 3,131,028 11,746,445
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VL.

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

(Continued)

17. Other non-current assets

18.

17 - HttERBEE

1:||||/

Bt BEHRIEE ERE)

2018.12.31 2017.12.31

—E-N\F T —+F
ltem ERE| +=B=+—-H| +ZA=+—H
Long-term receivables due from HEMEENRPBURGE)

Shoulian Group (Note 1) 135,600,000 135,600,000
Security deposit HeRES 36,861,502 30,997,640
Prepaid construction fees A TR 50,000 1,452,389
Save investment fund FHEER - 11,670,000
Total &5t 172,511,502 179,720,029
Note 1: As at 31 December 2018, such long-term receivables 1 R20185F 124818 - HE R MK

consist of borrowings lent by Shoulian Supermarket to
Shoulian Group due on 31 December 2020 as agreed
upon. The long-term receivables bear interest at 4.64% per
annum. Meanwhile certain buildings and land use rights
of Shoulian Group with a total fair value not less than the
balance of the long-term receivables have been pledged
for these long-term receivables in favor of Shoulian

Supermarket.

Short-term borrowings

[tem EH

Accounts receivable secured loan (Note 1) FEUBEFRIBET(3E1)
Guaranteed loan (Note 2) REEME K (GE2)
Unsecured loan (Note 3) ERENRGES)
Mortgage loan EIRER

AEBBTREEEERENE SR
F'ﬁﬁmiﬁﬁaﬁmmimﬂm

R B PR IR F M 4.64% 5+
mo@h~§%EWmuﬂﬁFﬁ$
BERZERBAAENEHEERER
s FRAEAE R AR o

18 ~ FHIE

Total At

2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—E-N\F —E—+F
+t=ZA=+—-R | +t=-A=t+—AH
155,555,585 117,179,353
1,719,593,884 2,149,031,089
882,500,000 450,000,000
2,757,649,469 2,716,210,442

As at 31 December 2018, and 31 December 2017, the
short-term borrowings above bore annual interest rates
ranging from 4.35% t05.99% and 1.15% to 5.0025%

respectively without any due but unsettled ones.

M2018412 A31 B & 2017412 A 31

EREREROFENEDF B

4.35%%£5.99% N 1.156% £5.0025% °
BATFEC R AREENER -
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

18. Short-term borrowings (Continued)

Note 1: As at 31 December 2018, such short-term loan was
obtained by several accounts receivable factoring of the
Company totaling to RMB407,663,837 (31 December
2017: RMB428,485,860), and details were referred to Note
Vi) 2

Note 2: As at 31 December 2018, among such short-term bank
loans, RMB413,693,884 was borrowed by the Company’s
subsidiary Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by the
Company; RMB74,900,000 was borrowed by a subsidiary
of Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by the Company;
and RMB681,000,000 was borrowed by a subsidiary of
Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by Chaopi Trading;
RMB550,000,000 was borrowed by the Company upon a
surety provided by Chaopi Trading.

As at 31 December 2017, among such short-term bank
loans, RMB730,000,000 was borrowed by the Company’s
subsidiary Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by the
Company; RMB16,100,000 was borrowed by a subsidiary
of Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by the Company;
and RMB782,931,089 was borrowed by a subsidiary of
Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by Chaopi Trading;
RMB620,000,000 was borrowed by the Company upon a
surety provided by Chaopi Trading.
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R2018F 12 A31H - xS REME R
RSB A T AR 407,663,837
(2017 F12 A31 H: AR ¥
428,485,8607T ) K% T IE W R 3B 1B
RELZHES  25Ma7x 20

CR2018F12A318 - ZEEHHERF

B ARM413,603,884 T AARAZ T
DRI ENER - AARFHRER
FHER + AR74,900,0007T AR
B2 FRARMNER - BARARERE
IR AR681,000,0007 A58t i

B FARMEBR - AP ERGRR
FHER - AR®S550,000,0007T A4 A
RIEMERR - AR B IR REBIER -

R2017F12A31H - ZERBIERF
B AR#730,000,00070 B A A ZF
DRI EOER - ARRFIRER
BIER + ARK16,100, oooﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁt?ﬁ
B2 FARMBR - AARARIRES
ER: AR¥T82, 931,0897%2%@1%@]’
B2 FRRIMMGR - BB RER
FIEIR  ARKB20,000,0007 B4 A
RAIMER - AFAMEEIRMRERER -



NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. Short-term borrowings (Continued)

Note 3: As at 31 December 2018, the credit loans included

RMB50,000,000, RMB300,000,000 and RMB300,000,000
respectively granted by Mizuho Bank (China), Ltd. Beijing
Branch and Industrial, Commercial Bank of China Co., Ltd
Beijing Chaoyang Sub-branch and Bank of Communications
Co., Ltd. Sanyuan Bridge Branch on an unsecured
basis; the credit loans included RMB110,000,000, and
RMB100,000,000 respectively granted by China Everbright
Bank Co., Ltd. Fucheng Road Sub-branch and Baoshang
Bank Co., Ltd. Beijing Branch on an unsecured basis.
The credit loans included RMB22,500,000 borrowed by
the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Trading that granted
by HSBC Bank (China) Co., Ltd. Beijing Branch on an

unsecured basis.

As at 31 December 2017, the credit loans included
RMB50,000,000, RMB100,000,000 and RMB100,000,000
respectively granted by Mizuho Bank (China), Ltd. Beijing
Branch and Industrial, Commercial Bank of China Co., Ltd
Beijing Chaoyang Sub-branch and Bank of Communications
Co., Ltd. Sanyuan Bridge Branch on an unsecured basis;
The credit loans included RMB200,000,000 borrowed by
the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Trading that granted by
China Everbright Bank Beijing Branch on an unsecured

basis.
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Bt BEHRIEE ERE)

B (

&

=

FF3: 20185128318 © EREZT A

BRIT(FE)ARDALEDIT « H
Bl TR iR1TAR D AR A Al mREAS 21T
KRB BETRHER AR =T
TR A5 B M E R BHERAR
#50,000,0007C + A R #300,000,000
7t & AR #300,000,0007T - B R#Z
FERMAEBRERKRBRHER: BR
Bl K KRRITIRGD BBR D R BRI Z 1T
REBRITROERRRILRDITH
RRARZFARAMEE DRI R
2B AR 110,000,000 « AR
#100,000,0007T * B RBZSE M
REEESRIRHEER  AELRIT(R
B ARARIERASITRBEMEEZ T
NEERHE BERARK22,500,000
7T BARZSERAAEE R MH
FIR -

M2017F12A318 - EREFFT AR
MRIT(RBE)ARRARLERD T A
BEIBRTROERRAILRAG L
TRRBIRITRHDER AR =BT
MARBDRIERNEHRBRARE
50,000,0007T * AE#100,000,0007T
& AR #100,000,0007T © BABZE
AR M AR E ESRIRHER - EREX
REFEARRITROER R AR
TRAARARZ FRAIAIEE B ROE
Hifg 5 A R #200,000,0007T + B ARFE
ZE BRI E B ZSHAREIER o
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < &K HEREETE(Z)
(Continued)

19. Notes payable and accounts payable

19 » ENRBREMRK

2018.12.31 2017.12.31

—E-N\F —E—tF

ltem EEs +=—A=+—8 +=—A=+—8H

Notes payable FERN =i 631,264,431 264,839,684

Accounts payable FERTAREX 1,001,433,347 1,070,616,083

Total &t 1,632,697,778 1,335,455,767
(1) Details of notes payable (1) FEFERELR

2018.12.31 2017.12.31

=E-N\F —T—tF

Category R +=—HA=+—H +=ZA=+—8H

Bank acceptances RITENES 631,264,431 264,839,684

Total A& 631,264,431 264,839,684

As at 31 December 2018, security deposit for the ®K2018%12A31H + AR A kil
BITEAEZNRBSTERAAR
#132,682,2837C(20174 12 A 31

H: ARME122,714,7427T) °

issuance of bank acceptances above amounted to

RMB132,682,283 (31 December 2017: RMB122,714,742).

All of the bank acceptances of the Group will be due

NEBRITEHEZTHFN1FE
within one year. ZRENHE -
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < &8 EHEREETE(Z)
(Continued)

1:||||/

19. Notes payable and accounts payable (Continued)

19 - BENRBERESKRRE)

(2) Details of accounts payable

(2) EERzER

Aging of accounts payable based on date of pick-up: FERTERSRE NI E B i E A ERBR
LU

2018.12.31 2017.12.31

—g-NF —E
ltem BB +=A=+—-H| +tZA=+—H
Within 1 year SN 985,132,303 1,051,560,123
1-2 years 1224 7,094,374 9,033,806
2-3 years 2E3F 2,479,769 2,809,359
Over 3 years 3FLAE 6,726,901 7,212,795
Total &t 1,001,433,347 1,070,616,083

The majority of accounts payable aging over one year FRERHBIFHNENEREZRME
consist of the final payments for suppliers. NEEENERER °
20. Advance from customers 20 ~ MWFIE
2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—EB-N\F —E—+F
ltem HE +=A=+—H| +tZA=+—H
Procurements received in advance TR ER - 379,071,193
Total A&t - 379,071,193
Note:  For details of the changes in the implementation of the G iﬂ TRTUR AN BB B 5 FA 55 R 5

new income standard, please refer to Note VI. 21 Contract

liabilities.

216 AAEE
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VI.

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN

il

N BHMBERREBTEE)

(Continued)
21. Contract Liability 21 - EREE
Details of Contract liability AEAEERL
2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—E-N\F e
ltem 18§ +ZA=+—-H | +tZH=+—H
Procurements received in advance TERE K 368,155,099 -
Total &&t 368,155,099 -
Note:  The Group has adopted the New Standard of Revenue o ALEBF2018F1 A1HHEBARITHR
Recognition from 1 January 2018. Based on the New AR - R AERIFBRER T
Standard of Revenue Recognition, advance from customers w2 s R 8 EERIEETERHEY
that meets the recognition criteria of contract liabilities are HEERABERELTIR - 828
classified as contract liabilities through check computation 2017 FEMBHRREETTRAE -
and presentation. In addition, the Group does not adjust
related items on financial statements in 2017.
22. Payroll payable 22 BB THM
(1) Details of payroll payable (1) EABIIHHIR
For the year ended at 31 December 2018 20185 &
Increase in the ~ Decrease in
2018.1.1 period the period 2018.12.31
-2 N\F —2-N\F
Item EH -A-H REE XEHY +=R=t-H
1. Short-term remuneration 1 G 1,605,114 674,988,705 674,852,650 1,741,169
2. Post-employment benefits-defined 2 - B2 87| — % E iR 17a1 2
contribution plans (Note 1) (551) 44,009 73,000,134 73,044,143 -
3. Dismissal compensation 3 BRIEA - 956,676 956,676 -
4. Other welfare due within one year 4 + —£E R Z|EiR) E A2 - - - -
Total a3t 1,649,123 748,945,515 748,853,469 1,741,169

0 ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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N Bt BEmREEERE)

/
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(Continued)

22. Payroll payable (Continued) 22 - BB IHM(E)

(1) Details of payroll payable (Continued) (1) EABIFHEMZRE)

For the year ended at 31 December 2017 20175 E
Increase in Decrease in
2017141 the period the period 2017.12.31
—EtE —EtE
Itemn JEH —R—H REEN KERY +ZA=1+-AR
1. Short-term remuneration 1 EHE 2,111,358 658,301,856 658,808,100 1,605,114
2. Post-employment benefits-defined 2 ~ BEBHERH| — R THefrat 2l
contribution plans (Note 1) (1) - 71,984,381 71,940,372 44,009
3. Dismissal compensation 3 BHRAEA - - - -
4. Other welfare due within one year 4 « —ERZ|HE H g - - - -
Total A3t 2,111,358 730,286,237 730,748,472 1,649,123
(2) Short-term remuneration (2) ERFZ R
For the year ended at 31 December 2018 20185 &
Increase in  Decrease in
2018.1.1 the period the period 2018.12.31
—E-N\F —E-N\E§
Item EH —-A—H KER KEHD +ZA=t-H
1) Wages or salaries, bonus, allowance, —  IT%& - %% 2R FIHE
subsidies - 555502,880 555,502,880 -
2) Staff welfare - BITENE - 24448594 24,448,594 -
3) Social security = HeRk - 48,014,197 48,014,197 -
Including: Medical insurance Hep e gi%ﬁliﬁ - 42,799,585 42,799,585 -
Work injury insurance TERKE - 1,793,537 1,793,537 -
Maternity insurance Eﬁf%ﬁﬁ;%? - 3,421,075 3,421,075 -
4) Housing funds - FEAT - 33,826,319 33,826,319 -
5) Labor union expenses and employees’ T @%&%%ﬂﬁﬁl ERE
education expenses 1,605,114 13,196,715 13,060,660 1,741,169
Total EH) 1,605,114 674,988,705 674,852,650 1,741,169

ERRE
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i 24

(Continued)

22. Payroll payable (Continued)

(2) Short-term remuneration (Continued)

For the year ended at 31 December 2017

ltem BE

1) Wages or salaries, bonus, alowance, — ~ T#& - #% - 2EME
subsidies

N BHMBERREBTEE)

22 ~ BB IHME)
(2) BEIFMZT (&)
20176 E
Increase in Decrease in
2017141 the period the period 2017.12.31

“E+F “E—+F
—A—H REE AMERS +-A=t+-H

- 538,219,467 538,219,467 -

2) Staff welfare - BIERE - 27,431,605 27,431,605 -

3) Social security = ite % - 47467806 47,467,806 -

Including: Medical insurance He: Wﬁ%ﬁ - 42370,134 42,370,134 -

Work injury insurance If%f%liﬁ B - 1,728,261 1,728,261 -

Maternity insurance ERRE - 3,369,411 3,369,411 -

4) Housing funds n - FEAES - 33252912 33,252,912 -
5) Labor union expenses and employees’ i~ T@L BB THELE

education expenses 2,111,358 11,930,066 12,436,310 1,605,114

Total At 111,358 658,301,856 658,808,100 1,605,114

(3) Details of defined contribution plan

For the year ended at 31 December 2018

(3) REEFAEIT
2018 E

Increase in  Decrease in
2018.1.1 the period the period 2018.12.31

—8-N\% —8-\%
ltem BH -A—H REEM XERY +=A=t-H
1) Basic retirement insurance CHAEZRRK 44,009 70,101,635 70,145,644 -
2) Unemployment insurance 2 LER ;jg- - 2,898,499 2,898,499 -
3) Annuity 3 EFEHE - - - -
Total A3t 44,009 73,000,134 73,044,143 -

2 ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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VL.

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

22. Payroll payable (Continued)

(3) Details of defined contribution plan (Continued)

S

/

Bt BEHRIEE ERE)

22 - BB ITEHM (&)
(3) REEENEIT(E)

For the year ended at 31 December 2017 20175 E
Increase in - Decrease in
2017.1.1 the period the period 2017.12.31
—Z—tF S 3
ltem EH —A—H REL AERL +ZA=1+—H
1) Basic retirement insurance 1 BXEERR - 69,056,508 69,012,499 44,009
2) Unemployment insurance 2 RERBE - 2927873 2,927,873 -
3) Annuity 3 EFEHE - - - -
Total Bt - 71,984,381 71,940,372 44,009
Note 1: The Group participated in social security contributions 1 ANEERBEL2NBABUTEER

and the unemployment insurance plan established
by government institutions as required. According to
such plan, the Group contributes 20%, 1% monthly
to such plans based on the employee’s basic salary
each month. Besides above monthly contributions,
the Group will not take responsibility for further
liabilities. Corresponding payment occurred shall be
accrued in current period profit or loss or related

assets cost.

In the current year, the Group should contribute
RMB70,101,635 and RMB2,898,499 (2017:
RMB69,056,508 and RMB2,927,873) to social
security contributions and the unemployment
insurance plan accordingly. As at 31 December
2018, there are no unsettled retirement insurance
and the unemployment insurance in the accounting
period and as at 31 December 2017, RMB44,009
is unsettled retirement insurance in the accounting

period.

UHEERE - KERBEE
RIEZ S8 AEEHRIRE
TEATER20% 1% T A M
ZEHEBFER - KR EEA
BEERI  AEBTHAEE
—FSXAEH - HEMNR HRE
R AR BB EEN
AR o

AEBKFES B REZR
B XERBHAEABTER
AR ® 70,101,635 T & AR
* 2,898,499 7L(2017 & : A
R % 69,056,508 7T & A R #
2,927,8737T) ° F2018512 731
B 7K 5 (3 4 e 0 3R 5 HARE B A
AENOBERBREAERRE
A -2017F12 A1 BASEA
JIE 7 R 25 A R B B oK S A A
Z{R% B F44,0097T °
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VI.

(Continued)

24.

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < » 50 EHRREBFEZ)
23. Taxes payable 23 - EXHE
2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—E-N\E —E—+F
ltem =R +=ZA=+—-8B | +t=ZA=+—H
Value-added tax IEF 59,910,065 49,636,894
Corporate income tax EMBEH 27,579,073 12,279,259
City construction and maintenance tax TR MR AR 812,739 1,043,997
Education surcharge A BN 355,419 452 252
Others Hit 1,503,169 2,557,898
Total &3t 90,160,465 65,970,300
Other payables 24 ~ HAETR
(1) Presentation of other payables by the nature of (1) EREMEITR
accounts
2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—B-N\% R
ltem HAH +=A=+—H +=ZA=+—8H
Other payables HAub R 225,876,605 171,713,583
Interest payables FERTFIE 3,939,352 3,472,281
Dividend payables FETREF 4,576,656 4,380,377
Total &3t 234,392,613 179,566,241

&)

Details of other payables (2) EMEMZIELR
Presentation of other payables by nature of accounts R RIE M S DI TR EAth AT R
2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—E2-N\F —ET—+tF
ltem HH +=A=+—-8| +t=ZA=+—H
Construction fees payable B TR 64,361,389 40,898,811
Deposit He 66,557,134 59,874,140
Rent received in advance TElE & 19,502,772 11,692,884
Others Hith 75,455,310 59,247,748
Total &t 225,876,605 171,713,583

4 ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <  §ffBiHRxBEE TR (&)

(Continued)
24. Other payables (Continued) 24 - EMENR(E)
(3) Details of interest payables (3) ERFERER
2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—E-N\E T+t
ltem HE +=ZA=+—-RB| +t=—A=+—H
Short-term debts interest payables HHAERENFIE 3,939,352 3,472,281
Total &t 3,939,352 3,472,281
(4) Details of dividend payables (4) FEARFEX
2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—E-N\F —FE—+tF
ltem JBHE t=A=+t—-R| +t=A=+—H
Ordinary shares dividend
(domestic-owned shares) LRI AR T (R ERR) 1,134,156 937,877
Other minority shareholders’ dividend D S R AR A 3,442,500 3,442,500
Total = 4,576,656 4,380,377
25. Non-current liabilities due within one year 25 - —FREBHFERBARE
(1) Bonds payable (1) FEEF
2018.12.31 2017.12.31
=E-N\#F —TtF
ltem HE +=ZA=+—-H| +tZA=+—H
Corporate bonds NG - 749,068,225
Total &5t - 749,068,225

2018 & #f 245
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

N AHPBHRRAEERE)
25 - —FRIHBVFERBEEE)

25. Non-current liabilities due within one year (Continued)

(2) Changes in the bonds payable (2) ENEFHEHEE

i 24

31 December 2018

2018%12A31H

Term of Issue in

Bonds Par value Issue date the bond Issue amount 2018.1.1 the period
“E-N\E
EHEHE HE BITAE ERER k] -A-B KEET
Corporate bonds 750,000,000 2013.8.13 5 years 750,000,000 749,068,225 -
REME 5%
Total 750,000,000 750,000,000 749,068,225 -
At
Accrued interest for Bond discount/
Bonds the period  premium amortization  Paid during the period 2018.12.31
—E-N\§

EHERE REBEFERNE T B AEEE +=R=+-8
Corporate bonds 41,100,000 971,330 791,139,555 -
NI
Total 41,100,000 971,330 791,139,555 -
Aif
31 December 2017 2017%12H31H

Term of Issue in
Bonds Par value Issue date the bond Issue amount 201711 the period

—E—+E
E5HHE HfE #ITRH EHHR Eda —-A—H AEHT
Corporate bonds 750,000,000 2013.8.13 5 years 750,000,000 747,573,030 -
RAfE 5%
Total 750,000,000 750,000,000 747,573,030 -
At
Accrued interest for Bond discount/
Bonds the period  premium amortization  Paid during the period 2017.12.31
ZE-tF

EHERE REBEFERNES T B AEEE +=ZR=+-8
Corporate bonds 41,100,000 1,495,195 - 749,068,225
AR
Total 41,100,000 1,495,195 - 749,068,225
At

6 ANNUAL REPORT 2018
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 255 R P o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

1:||||/

VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < &8 EHEREETE(Z)
(Continued)

25 - —FRIBNERBEEE)

25. Non-current liabilities due within one year (Continued)

(2) Changes in the bonds payable (Continued) (2) FEEFHIEHER(E)

Pursuant to the “Approval on Issuance of Corporate
Bonds of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited”
(Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2013] No. 791) issued by the
CSRC, on 15 August 2013, the Company issued the
corporate bonds aggregated to RMB750,000,000
with a term of maturity of 5 years, embedded with the
option to increase the coupon rate by the issuer and
putable option by the investor at the end of the third
year. The corporate bonds were jointly secured by
Beijing Chaoyang District National Capital Operating
Management Center, a state-owned enterprise, bearing
coupon rate at 5.48% per annum. The issuance
expenses of RMB6,923,208 had been included in
bonds payable.

Based on “Corporate bond prospectus in 2013”,
issuers has the right to rise the coupon rate for the last
2 years in the end of third year during bond duration
and the adjustment range lies between 0 and 100
basis point (contains this number) where 1 basis point
is 0.01%.Investors have rights to sell parts of bonds
or all of bonds they hold back to the issuers on the
third interest payment date, alternatively, they may give
up putable option and continue to hold bonds. The
third annual interest payment date is the repurchase
date and issuers should follow relevant business rules
of Shanghai Stock Exchange and bond registration

organizations to complete repurchase.

mPEEEe(ERNELRRE
EEEEERNHARDADFET
fEHAPLE) (FESFTAI[2013]791
SE)i%fE - BR2013F8A15H A&
RATRERERANARETAR
BISETHWBRARFAEME=
FRETALLAZEERNERERRER
REEOBERRNQTES °
ZARBEHFAEEATHGEREE
RIEEERRL(—RERA
¥ )REETETREBER -
EFEAE5.48% - MEFEEAR
#£6,923,208 T EET AJER &S ©

RIE(2013F A RIEH H & H A
EVRHEBOTE - BITABERE
EAREHFFEMENEIFR L
ANBEFB2ENZEFIE -
FAREBEROE100EEZ(ER
2 HR{EEZA0.01% &
EREEEESIEAMNEREES
BHEHNTDAREFIEEE
BEAEHLBITA  IHERESE
BEREBEMEERE - XHE
FEIEFRFENEBEABE
X - BT ARBKRRB LR
BHEETRERFAEBRATXE
ESMIE -
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

25. Non-current liabilities due within one year (Continued)

(2) Changes in the bonds payable (Continued)

N AHPBHRRAEERE)

25 - —FRIHBVFERBEEE)
(2) [EfEFHEREZE(E)

i 24

On 8 July 2016, the Company announced they would
not adjust current bond coupon rate and they would
repurchase bonds. On 7 July 2016, the Company
announced bonds repurchase declaration situation that
according to China Securities Depository and Clearing
Company Limited(CSDCC) Shanghai branch statistic,
there was no effective repurchase declaration and the
amount of repurchase was RMB Nil during this bond
repurchase declaration term. (4 July 2016 to 6 July
2016).

On August 2018, the Company announced principal
and interest payment and delisting announcement,
which used to confirm the entire principal of the
corporate bond and related matters for the last annual
interest payment. On 8 August 2018, the Company
paid RMB750 million in bond principal and residual
interest, corresponding handling fees, etc. to Shanghai
Branch of China Securities Depository and Clearing
Co., Ltd by Bank of Communications Beijing Sanyuan

Sub-branch. Thus, the 5-year bond has been settled

8 ANNUAL REPORT 2018
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
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VL.

(Continued)

26. Other current liabilities

S

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 7

26 - HttRBEaE

A

il

Bt BEHRIEE ERE)

2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—E-N\F —T—+F
ltem HE +=—A=+—H +=-A=+—8H
Short- term financing bond (Note 1) EEIRE S (FE1) 300,000,000 -
Payable return (Note 2) ERRER(FE2) 19,594,656 -
Accrued expenses EREA 28,368,199 51,719,648
Deferred income due within one year 1F A EIHR AR E U 11,946,484 11,181,895
Total &t 359,909,339 62,901,543
(1) Accrued expenses (1) FEREEH
2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—E2-N\F —E—tF
ltem A +=A=+-8 | t=ZA=1+—8H
Accrued interest expenses TR EER 3,823,750 19,798,114
Accrued rent expenses EiREM 15,571,837 19,894,093
Accrued audit expenses TEIRBTE 1,226,415 1,226,415
Others Hith 7,746,197 10,801,026
Total A&t 28,368,199 51,719,648
(2) Deferred income due with one year (2) 1FANFEEAE Nz
Notes 2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—B-N\F —TtF
ltem HAE MisE +=ZA=+—-R8| +t=ZA=+—H
Asset-related government grants 1 REIEFMEEE Note 3
due within one year A U 48 B 13 9,014,187 9,917,952
Considerations allocated to DECAEREIESBIE  Note 4
the award credits EHE T4 2,932,297 1,263,943
Total A5t 11,946,484 11,181,895
2018 if& 249

R EEREEERNARAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7

SRR B At

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br43FIz%855) » 8B BA R T)

VI.

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

26. Other current liabilities (Continued)

On 27 September 2018, the Group completed the
issuance of corporate bonds with a value of RMB300
million and a term of one year in China, which approved by
the China Association of Banking Market Dealers (CPI No.
[2018] CP153). The issuance rate of the corporate bonds
was 4.83% and the lead underwriter was Bank of China
Limited.

The Group has adopted the New Standard of Revenue
Recognition from 1 January 2018. Based on the related
provisions, when sales are accompanied by return clauses
and customers obtain control of goods, the Group
recognizes profits according to consideration amounts
that the Group is expected to have a right to collect.
Such consideration amounts exclude return amounts
from expected sales returns. Also, the Group recognizes
liabilities, which are refund payables, according to return
amounts from expected sales returns. Meanwhile, an asset,
which is return cost receivable, is recognized based on the
difference between book value of expected return goods at
the time of transfer and expected cost of taking back the

goods.

Asset-related government grants due within one year
consisted of deferred income due within one year
generated from special funds received in 2005, 2013,
2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018 by the Group and
would be recognized as revenue in the next year, and

details were referred to Note (VI) 28.

The Group offers membership credit cards to customers,
and awards credit reaching certain points can be
converted into cash while shopping. As deferred income,
considerations allocated to the award credits will be
recognized as revenue when the award credits are

converted or cleared in the next year.
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N At BEHREEERE)

27. Government grants 27 ~ BUFHBY
Details of government grants confirmed at current year BT B ERIER
Amount included in
current profit and
Classification Amount Presentation project loss
EE X SR\ E SAEHBEENESE
E:ase the employment pressure 5,416,352 Other income 5,416,352
IRFR SRR N 7E AL &
Government grants related to assets 10,474,693 Other income 10,474,693
are amortized this year
£ 18 B AR R ) BUTT 68 B AN R 88 Hth s
Safety production environment 15,200,000 Non-operating income 15,200,000
upgrade subsidy
LR EERBARMRL EEEINIA
Compensation for house demoalition 8,331,300 Other income 8,331,300
BRI ERE Hib e
Compensation for house demolition 15,988,721 Non-operating income 15,988,721
FEERBUIFERE EEEIMIA
Other 3,590,450 Other income 3,590,450
H A 785 A &
Total 59,001,516 59,001,516
&5t
Deferred income 28 ~ IR =
Increase in  Decrease in
2018.1.1 the period the period 2018.12.31 Reasons
—E-N\F —E-N\F
ltem EH —A—H REEM rEFHYS  +=ZHA=+-—H FRER
Government grants I #iED 33,351,013 11,719,320 10,769,928 34,300,405
Total At 33,351,013 11,719,320 10,769,928 34,300,405
2018 if& 251
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

28. Deferred income (Continued)

Including, the project related to Government grants:

N BHMBERREBTEE)

28 ~ IEIEWN IS ()
Hep - S RBRTRBNIAR

Included
Increase inthe  non-operating  Included other Related to assets/
2018.1.1 period income income  Other changes 2018.12.31  income
Item REHE  REGFAES HEZFA
BfAR EMsE mHEE  MRARE  EhhEeE EED ERRE  HEE/WmHE
Beijjing Municipal Commission of 4,631,699 - - - 1,050,066 3,581,633 Related to assets
Commerce, Beiing Municipal
Finance Bureau Agricultural Super
Matchmaking Pilot Project
IRTERZES  ARTHHRENR HAERE
BYERITRE
Chaoyang District Finance Bureau life - 4,211,820 - 631,773 421,182 3,158,865  Related to assets
service industry development guidance
funds
IERMBREERERERIEES HEERH
Central Finance promotes the 3,896,205 - - - 840,706 3,004,499 Related to assets
development of special funds for the
service industry
hANRRERBEEREEES HEERD
Logistics standardization pilot project in 3,206,161 - - - 398,797 2,807,364 Related to assets
2017
MTERE B RBIREE HEERD
Chaoyong District Development and - 3,681,500 - 613,583 368,150 2,699,767  Related to assets
Reform Commission Energy-saving
and emission reduction technology
transformation project
HERERANEZE RN ERES HEERE
Logistics standardization pilot project 3,581,832 - - - 913,961 2,667,871 Related to assets
in 2015
015 F R BB MREEL HAERH
Other 18,036,116 3,826,000 - 510,385 5,021,325 16,330,406  Related to assets
E R HEERD
Total 33,351,013 11,719,320 - 1,755,741 9,014,187 34,300,405
At
Note:  Other changes are the full classification of deferred income o HthEE AR —FARIIBORTEK S

due within one year to other current liabilities.
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

28. Deferred income (Continued)

Government grants includes:

1

Deferred income was the government grants totaling
RMB4,000,000 received in 2005 from Beijing
Municipal Development and Reform Commission and
Beijing Chaoyang District Finance Bureau to support
the construction of fresh distribution center, fresh
procurement center and distribution center logistics
system. The deferred income was recognized upon
receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile the
deferred assets were divided by ratio of the initial
entry value of assets, and deferred income would be
amortized in the estimated useful life (15 years) of
the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2013, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB3,753,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce as a special funding for
renovation of energy-saving lamps. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by ratio of the initial entry value of assets, and deferred
income would be evenly amortized in the estimated
useful life (5 years) of the related assets, recorded in
the profit and loss in current period and subsequent

related periods.

N At BEHREEERE)

28 ~ EIEWE (F)
BB 845 -

1

N2 A 2005 4F [E U B 4k T g
BN EZEgRIERATHGE
B B R 25 A R #64,000,000
TARIRBCEBEEHRRSR
O EEEBR O RERF DN
MREFREESEANZEE
& o AL B E U B 5% B B SR
BRECK - RREEARBRE
ENEGERASHI5FETE
HoBESBETAERHRUES
PRI -

ARAER2013F E W E b =
MEEZEERAATARKE
3,753,0007T AP X F (b IRIR &P
BEEENEEEMNEEES - K
5 B 72 U B 5% B IR B8 R RS B SRR A
Wik RBEEEBEENTE
ERASGEEITHRY  BHESE
SPAE R R AR A EAEEE -

2018 & #f
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VI.

i 25

©)

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

28. Deferred income (Continued)

In 2014, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB14,186,700 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance Bureau
as a special funding for agriculture-supermarket
jointing program. The deferred income was recognized
upon receipt of the financial allocations. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by ratio of the initial entry value of assets, and deferred
income would be amortized in the estimated useful
life (11 and 5 years) of the related assets, recorded in
the profit and loss in current period and subsequent

related periods.

In 2014, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB8,820,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance Bureau
and as a special funding for service development
program. The deferred income was recognized upon
receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile the
deferred assets were divided by ratio of the initial
entry value of assets, and deferred income would be
amortized in the estimated useful life (11 and 5 years)
of the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

4 ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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S

7N

- B BBREBERE)

28 ~ EEW R ()

©)

RARR2014F EWRE L R E
BEEE AERMHBRBERHE
ST AR14,186,7007C AR R IR Y
BERNRSEANEEES - K
% [ 72 U5 B 52 B T B R P PR R R AT
Wi - RBEBEBBEEENE
FEASMIIFEREFRITHY - &
WeEFAEBRIAREEREE

S o

E\

RARR2014F EWBIL R
BZEg R BEERL
AR #8,820,0007T AR R i#E AR
BEZREANZEEES - A%
9 1E Ui B 5% B IR B K R R SRR ST
Wik - RBEIBERBEENE
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HEEAF A BRI A ERRIE
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

28. Deferred income (Continued)

)

In 2014, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB3,000,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce as a special funding for
renovation of energy-saving lamps. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by ratio of the initial entry value of assets, and deferred
income would be amortized in the estimated useful life (5
years) of the related assets, recorded in the profit and

loss in current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2014, Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company,
received government grants totaling RMB5,000,000
from Beijing Municipal Commission of Commerce as a
special funding for group building sorting equipment.
The deferred income was recognized upon receipt of
the financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (10 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.

EM/

N At BEHREEERE)

28 ~ EIEWE (F)

)

RNAFR2014F EWRE 4 R
TEBEESRAATARSE
3,000,0007T FA 74 & #%5 1 Z IR IR
BEEENEEEMNEEAES - K
5 7 Uk B 5% B B R R SR

Wi - RBEIBEEBEENTE
EFRSmoFRITHY - BHem
FPABHIRAR AR ER

KRR ZFARHAIEER2014
FEKIGEATEBZEGRK
HEF AR % 5,000,0007T AR X
ROEEBRYRSBRBENZE
B o ANEE IR KB B X
I REE W 25 - IR RS IE A RS

ﬁ%m%§n+1§}zﬁ‘f 1 E TT&E
WoOBHESBEAAENRNES
BRI 1A -
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

N AHPBHRRAEERE)

28 ~ EEW R ()

28. Deferred income (Continued)

i 25

7

In 2015, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB8,310,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce as a special funding
for logistics standardization project. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by ratio of the initial entry value of assets, and deferred
income would be amortized in the estimated useful
life (10 and 5 years) of the related assets, recorded in
the profit and loss in current period and subsequent

related periods.

In 2015, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB5,865,700 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance Bureau
and as a special funding for upgrading business
facilities program. The deferred income was recognized
upon receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile
the deferred assets were divided by ratio of the initial
entry value of assets, and deferred income would
be amortized in the estimated useful life (5 years) of
the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

6 ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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KA A HR2015F E W E 4 =
TEBZEGRAHFARKE
8,310,000 7T F8 i X # ¥ ik 12 %
EHBEENEEES - A5H
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VL.

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

28. Deferred income (Continued)

©)

In 2015, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB2,080,000 from Beijing Finance Bureau
as a special funding for renovation of energy-saving
lamps. The deferred income was recognized upon
receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile the
deferred assets were divided by ratio of the initial
entry value of assets, and deferred income would be
amortized in the estimated useful life (10 years) of
the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2015, Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company,
received government grants totaling RMB8,730,000
from Beijing Municipal Commission of Commerce as
a special funding for logistics standardization project.
The deferred income was recognized upon receipt of
the financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (10 and 5 years) of the related
assets, recorded in the profit and loss in current period

and subsequent related periods.

EM/

N At BEHREEERE)

28 ~ EIEWE (F)

©)

AR AR 20155 [E W B b = h &
5@ B R A A B R B S B R
AR %2,080,0007T AR B ERR
EREE ADGETHAEMEEES ©
ZNER B TR U B 32 B B R R e R R

W - RBFIBHEBEENTE
FHERSBI0FEITEE - BiH
SR AZHRAE R BHHIE

RRARZFARHAIEER2015
FEMBERTEBEE 8RR
T AR 8,730,000t AR X151
TEECAREANZEEELS -
NG B TE U B 5% B B R T AR

s RBEERABEEENTE
SHEAS®I10F RoFHITES -
ISR AR HRAES BN
8

BX

S o
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < &K HEREETE(Z)
(Continued)

28 ~ EEW R ()

28. Deferred income (Continued)

i 25

(1)

(12)

In 2016, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB3,000,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance
Bureau and as a special funding for Chaoyang district
Cailanzi project. The deferred income was recognized
upon receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile
the deferred assets were divided by the initial entry
value of assets, and deferred income would be evenly
amortized in the estimated useful life (10 and 5 years)
of the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2017, Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company,
received government grants totaling RMB12,647,900
from Beijing Municipal Commission of Commerce as
a special funding for logistics standardization project.
The deferred income was recognized upon receipt
of the financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred
assets were divided by the initial entry value of assets,
and deferred income would be evenly amortized in
the estimated useful life (8 and 5 years) of the related
assets, recorded in the profit and loss in current period

and subsequent related periods.

8 ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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KA A HR2016 F E W E 4 =
TEBZEGRAHFARKE
3,000,000t AR X5 R K&
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

28. Deferred income (Continued)

(13)

(14)

In 2017, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB3,140,000 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Jingkelong energy-saving emission
reduction technology innovation project. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by the initial entry value of assets, and deferred income
would be evenly amortized in the estimated useful life (8
years) of the related assets, recorded in the profit and

loss in current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2017, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB4,011,200 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance Bureau
and as a special funding for Commercial circulation
development of agricultural ultra-docking project. The
deferred income was recognized upon receipt of the
financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (9 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.

N At BEHREEERE)

28 ~ EIEWE (F)

(1

(14)

3) ARABR2017FE U B 4L = h 2%

BNMEZEGBRIHTARY
3,140,000 T AR X 15 R EE

HEERMBEEAEMNEEES -
ZNER B 15 W 1) % B T R B e AR R

T - RBEEEBEENTE
EHERSRmeFETHY - B
T AE R AR A IR B -

AR A R2017 F F Y B4 R
MEBEZEGRARFARKE
4,011,200t AR ERBER R
HMEZEENZEELS - A&H
TE U B % B IBH R T SRR A R
CRBEAEEEENTEER
FWmOFRTHY  BSEIA

EHRARERBEEE

Bk

Eil

(i
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

28. Deferred income (Continued)

(15) In 2017, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB1,199,000 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Jingkelong Commercial convenience
service investment project. The deferred income was
recognized upon receipt of the financial allocations,
meanwhile the deferred assets were divided by the
initial entry value of assets, and deferred income would
be evenly amortized in the estimated useful life (7
years) of the related assets, recorded in the profit and

loss in current period and subsequent related periods.

(16) In 2018, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB1,155,200 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Jingkelong Store renovation project. The
deferred income was recognized upon receipt of the
financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (8 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.
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N AHPBHRRAEERE)

28 ~ EEW R ()

(15)

(16)

AR A 2017 F Z U B 4b R
BMSEZESBRAATARE
1,199,000 T AR B % B R R R
BREFDHEENZEEES - K
5 B 7 W B 52 B IR S R R R R R A
W BREMBEERAER
SmTEETHE  BESHEA
ERRAEABHEEE

AR AR 20184F [Z U B 4b R g
BRREZEERFLFARYE
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BEMBEES  AEEEKRIZ
RN ERIEC K - 1RE
EEEEER ERSmeFET
B BHSETAEHENE
BRAHBRIERS -

iy



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 RaR I R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /&
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

28. Deferred income (Continued)

a7

In 2018, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB3,681,500 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Energy-saving technical transformation
project. The deferred income was recognized upon
receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile the
deferred assets were divided by the initial entry value
of assets, and deferred income would be evenly
amortized in the estimated useful life (10 years) of
the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2018, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB4,211,820 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance
Bureau and as a special funding for Life service
industry development guidance project. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by the initial entry value of assets, and deferred income
would be evenly amortized in the estimated useful life (10
years) of the related assets, recorded in the profit and

loss in current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2018, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB1,471,800 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Energy saving carbon reduction project. The
deferred income was recognized upon receipt of the
financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (10 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.

N At BEHREEERE)

28 ~ EIEWE (F)

(1

7) AR AEHR2018F [E W B 4t T B

BRMNEZESEAHFARSE
3,681,500 T MR ATRE X TR B Y
HEES  NEEERDZE K

B RERELERE - RREE
MEEREATHI10FETH
o BHSBRAAEHARNURE

R RS -

ANARR2018F F W F 4t =
TREBZEEGRAATARSE
4,211,820 7T FA 7 A & 14 IR 7% 5% 2%
B EHEANBEEES A5 H
T2 U2 B 5% B 9B S B R AR A R
CRBEEBEERTERSE
wI0FEITHE S - BMHS BT A
EERNEEBHEER -

m

3

RR A 20184 [F U B 4k R 3%
ENREZEGRTATARSE
1,471,8007T A3 X & B s X 18 B 7Y
HEED  AEBEAEWDZI K
BRRERELE RS - RREE
BEETEEAEmI0FHETHE
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RAEAR 1B -

2018 ia&&
FRBEEERNARA 24

\4



i 26

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

pvE e

il

AN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

VI.

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

29. Other non-current liabilities

30.

N BHMBERREBTEE)

20~ HikEREBEE

2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—E-N\E B
ltem HH +=ZA=+—-H| +=—A=+—8
Long-term rent payable REIENES 29,580,164 25,241,705
Special payable HIFFETR 800,000 -
Total A&t 30,380,164 25,241,705
Share capital 30 ~ R
Changes in the period
REEE
Capitalization
Opening ~ New issue of surplus Closing
balance of shares ~ Bonus issue reserves Others Subtotal balance
Item Ef g BOER ik DECER 0] it XY
For the year ended at 31 December 2018 20185
1. State-owned legal person shares 1 BREAER
Chaoyang Auxilary EEN 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,409,808
Subtotal of state-owned legal person shares ~ BVBE AR/t 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,409,808
2, Other domestic-owned shares 2 AmERR
Shares held by domestc non-state owned RS AR
legal person 5,210,428 - - - - - 5,210,428
Domesti individual shareholders BhERARE 57,439,764 - - - - - 57439764
3. Foreign listed shares denominated inAVB 3325 EFI ARESNER 182,160,000 - - - - - 182,160,000
Total shares Rirag 412,220,000 - - - - - 412,220,000
For the year ended at 31 December 2017 20175 %
1. State-owned legal person shares 1 EREARR
Chaoyang Auxilary B 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,409,808
Subtotal of state-owned legal person shares — EE AR 167,409,808 - - - - - 167400808
2, Other domestic-owned shares 2 ZtmERR
Shares held by domestic non-state owned AR EE AR
legal person 5,210,428 - - - - - 5,210,428
Domestic individual shareholders BMERAER 57,439,764 - - - - - 57439764
3. Forelgn lsted shares denominated nAMB. 33551 it ARSV A TR 182,160,000 - - - - - 182,160,000
Total shares ez 412,220,000 - - - - - 412,000,000
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N At BEHREEERE)

(Continued)
31. Capital reserves 31 - EERRQE
For the year ended at 31 December 2018 20185 E
Increase in Decrease in
2018.1.1 the period the period 2018.12.31
ltem EH —E-N\F “E-N\F
—A-B AREEM XEHP +ZA=t-H
Capital premium RARE 609,790,884 - - 609,790,884
Equity transaction with minority shareholders E.F 7 &)/ 81k %
of subsidiaries (Note1) B25 (1) (10,477,531) 34,245 - (10,443,286)
Other capital reserves HiEARTE 5,695,493 - - 5,695,493
Total HI 605,008,846 34,245 - 605,043,091
20175 E
For the year ended at 31 December 2017
Increase in Decrease in
2017.1.1 the period the period 2017.12.31
—E+F —TtF
ltem HE —A—A AEEM AERL +ZA=T—H
Capital premium BRAHE 609,790,884 - - 609,790,884
Equity transaction with minority shareholders 2573 &) /) &R R A%
of subsidiaries (Note 2) ER5(#2) (985,373) - 9,492,158 (10,477,531)
Other capital reserves (Note 3) EfEARRIE(33) 695,493 5,000,000 - 5,695,493
Total At 609,501,004 5,000,000 9,492,158 605,008,846
Note 1: in the current year, the increase of equity transaction with 1 AFTRFATRDERERAER S 132N
minority shareholders of subsidiaries was RMB34,245. F34,2457C + BARE 2 FRAIFAM
The reason is that Chaopi Trading as a subsidiary of the BMEUBETFRARBLEIEZ DHARE
Company acquired its subsidiary, Tangshan baishun, 11.25% M1 - WEXNNRIEZEE
minority shareholders of 11.25% equity interest, which IWEIEFEENREAE -
invest cost is lower than the related net asset of Tangshan
baishun.
Note 2: In 2017, the decrease of equity transaction with minority F2:2017F[EF AL EREBRERS ]
shareholders of subsidiaries was RMB9,492,158. The B REQ,492,1587T  AARAZTFR
reason is that Chaopi Trading as a subsidiary of the AIE I E B W T ARG ER 2
Company acquired its subsidiary, Chaopi Huilong, minority AR 22.25% K - IR ERAKRE
shareholders of 22.25% equity interest, which invest cost ZEAMERFEEMREAMK -
is higher than the related net asset of Chaopi Huilong.
Note 3: In 2017, the increase of other capital reserves was 32017 F[ Efh B A QIR |3 0%

RMB5,000,000, which was State-owned capital
management budget funds. According to Chaoguoziwen
[2017] No. 59, it is required to include in the capital

reserve.

5,000,0007C + BKEIBERESHEH
BEAKEEEES  REFEEX
[2017]1599E XX HE  sFABARTE ©
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < : §0fBiBHRRxBEA T (&)

(Continued)
32. Other comprehensive income 32 ~ Hittimr e W=
For the year ended at 31 December 2018 2018F &
Changes in the period
Less: Amount
that is
previously
included
in other Attributable
comprehensive to the
income s shareholders  Attributable
transferred to of parent o minority
Amount before ~ profitorloss  Less: Income  company after  shareholder
2018.1.1 tax  forthe period  tax expense tax aftertax 20181231
B EEA
cE-N\E AEAER  AEGRYE HABER  RABER  -z-nf
ltem B8 -p-8 AEYE  EEEARR ) FERER  SLNNER DERR tZR=t-B
Other comprehensive income that wil be reclassied to M\ B EE AR EMEANE
proft or loss - - - - - - -
Differences of foreign currency financil statements  SEEIREZFE2E
convert 9430 140,061 - - 72,69 67,366 82,125
Total it 9430 140,061 - - 72,69 67,366 82,125
For the year ended at 31 December 2017 2017 E
Changes in the period
KEREE
Less: Amount
that Is previousy
included in other
comprenensive Attroutable to
income i the shareholders ~ Attributable
{ransferred o of parent fo minority
Amount before  profitorloss for ~ Less: Income ~ company after ~ shareholder
017.1.1 fex theperod tax expense fax dtertax 20171231
B AR
“E-4E IERER Al RRERR  BABER -1k
fiem %R i HEtE i OB fERER  BLARAE DERR t-A=1-A

Other comprehensive inoome that wil be recassifed to }\ 4 BEA B BN iz
proft or loss - - - - - - -
Including: Gains or losses from changes on fair valu of £ : TR ESREAEN L EES

avalable-for-sale financial assets §Ra) 2675174 6,580,000 - 1,645,000 3,940,597 994,403 6,616,371
The tranglaon difference of foreign curency financiel MBI BEZ B2 E
statement (3,016) 23,980 - - 12,446 11,084 9430
Total Adt 2,672,798 6,603,980 - 1,645,000 3,963,043 1,000,937 6,625,801
Note:  For details on the implementation of the changes in the o MITHT e T AERIE B AIERIF AR
guidelines for new financial instruments, please refer to B - 23e
Note IV.23.
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(Continued)

33. Surplus reserves

Otherwise Stated (BR#FIHBHS) » £EBENBARKET)

Bt BEHRIEE ERE)

33« BHAE

Opening Increase in Decrease in Closing
balance the period the period balance
Item BH 0¥ KEL XERD ERE
For the year ended at 31 December 2018 2018F [
Statutory surplus reserve ETERBAR 147,748,597 5,377,297 - 153,125,894
For the year ended at 31 December 2017 2017FE
Statutory surplus reserve gk YN 142,729,211 5,019,386 - 147,748,597

In accordance with Company Law and Company’s Articles
of Association, the Company should appropriate 10% of
net profit for the year to the statutory surplus reserve, and
the Company can cease appropriation when the statutory
surplus reserve accumulated to more than 50% of the paid

in capital.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for the

loss, expanding operation or increase the paid in capital.

BBEARLE ARRERMRE - &K
RENZFFER10%REUEE B ATE
®  EERBBMABRNBERARRAGTM
BER50%A L) - FITELRE o

EEBHNEAARBEHARNESE
BARBEELLHEIZNRER o
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < : §0fBiBHRRxBEA T (&)

(Continued)
34. Undistributed profits 34 ~ RAEFE
Proportion of
Amount appropriation
Item = B RESSmLs
For the year ended at 31 December 2018 20184 :
Undistributed profits at the beginning of year  F ¥R S EEFE(5E1)
(Note 1) 504,701,969
Add: Net profit attributable to the shareholders jil : ANF 7@ R A
of the parent company for the year Fr B & 13 A E 63,312,317
Less: Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve 3 : IZEUETE BB ATE 5,377,297 10%
Ordinary shares’ dividends payable FEAS 3B AR AR 24,733,200
Other (Note 2) Hitn(7£2) (3,357)
Undistributed profits at the end of the year FRADEFHE 537,907,146
For the year ended at 31 December 2016 20175 E :
Undistributed profits at the beginning of year ¥k 5 Bt A1) 476,230,980
Add: Net profit attributable to the shareholders il : A& B AR A RIFT
of the parent company for the year BENFFH 47,485,004
Less: Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve 3 : IREUEE BB ATE 5,019,386 10%
Ordinary shares’ dividends payable JE A~ 3 3 AR AR R 20,611,000
Undistributed profits at the end of the year FRADEFHE 498,085,598
(1) Cash dividend approved and subject to be (1) BEAESEH EFELEHENES
approved in the annual general meeting BRF
According to the notice of the annual general meeting B2018F5H258 « IRIEALQFA
on 25 May 2018, a final dividend of RMB0.06 per RERERE - NAEDHE2017F
share in respect of year ended 31 December 2017 was ERFAESRAREKC.06T - A5
declared and paid to the shareholders of the Company. f& A2 A R #24,733,2007T °
The aggregated amount of the final dividend declared
and paid was RMB24,733,200.
According to the notice of the annual general meeting M201765R26H - REBEALQFA
on 26 May 2017, a final dividend of RMB0.05 per REERE - ARADBE201645
share in respect of year ended 31 December 2016 was ERMAEEFRARKC.05T + A5
declared and paid to the shareholders of the Company. & H) & A R#20,611,0007T °

The aggregated amount of the final dividend declared

and paid was RMB20,611,000.
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

34. Undistributed profits (Continued)

(1)

)

Cash dividend approved and subject to be

approved in the annual general meeting (Continued)

On 22 March 2019, the directors of the Company
proposed the payment of a dividend of RMBO0.08
per share to shareholders in respect of year ended
31 December 2018. The proposal of dividend
distribution mentioned above is subject to be approved
by the shareholders at Annual General Meeting of
the Company. This recommendation has not been
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
as a liability. The estimated amount of dividends in

aggregate is RMB32,977,600.

Surplus reserves of subsidiaries

On 31 December 2018, the undistributed profits of the
Group included surplus reserves of subsidies totaling
in the period RMB19,242,475 (31 December 2017:
RMB18,941,023).

Note 1: The difference between undistributed profits at
the beginning of year 2018 and the end of year
2017 was RMB6,616,371, for details that relevant
explanations on the changes in the implementation
of the guidelines for new financial instruments in the
change of accounting policies please refer to Note
IV. 23 (1).

Note 2: The Company received RMB3,357, which was the
dividends that paid by the Company in 2008, 2009
and 2010 but returned thereafter.

N At BEHREEERE)

34 - k9

(1)

2

B AR (&)

BRRERAEEHM EFZEHENREE
BF(E)

201963220 » ARAINES
CRFEDE2018FERF - T
ARH0.087T « ZMKH Bl &
FERRASHAE o ZRFI K
ERBEFAREGHIBHRE
A AHRFMBEERARE
32,977,6007T °

FRACIERHEGR A E
2018F12A31H * AEBEAKHER
FEBRERBETFARAFIRR
WREBAE R ARE19,242,475
7T(2017F 12 A31H: AR%
18,941,0237L) °

71 2018F EF YA D BLAFH 2017
FFEEFRADEMNBZZ8E
6,616,371 THIREA + 5 R &E
MY~ 23(1)EETECR E ERMATH
SR EEAEBMNEMHA -

FE2 AN U E # R R B 2008 F -
2009%F - 20105 EHWEES
BEHREES,357 T °
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VI.

AN

il

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <
(Continued)

35. Operating income and operating cost

(1) Operating income and Operating costs

2

Bt BBRREREEE)

35 ~ EREWAME ERAE

(1) EEUARAEX

2018 2017
20185 E 20175
Income Costs Income Costs
ltem o KA BA HA AR
Principal operating TEER 10,445,548,498  8,930,704,196 | 10,786,227,182  9,251,355,087
Other operating Hih %% 1,204,735,274 11,872,777 | 1,169,510,105 7,822,522
Total Xl 11,650,283,772  8,942,576,973 | 11,955,737,287  9,259,177,609
Principal operating income and principal operating (2) EFEXK(HTF)
costs (classified by industry segments)
2018 2017
20185 2017 %
Principal
operating Principal Principal Principal
income operating costs |operating income  operating costs
ltemn EH FEXBURA FEEBEA | FLEBHA FEEBKAR
Retail S 4,251,207,905  3,526,168,118 | 4,513,2565,270  3,748,109,906
Wholesale bRy 6,157,646,906  5,377,846,186 | 6,227,140,323  5,466,211,783
Others Hit 36,693,687 26,689,892 45,831,589 37,033,398
Total At 10,445,548,498  8,930,704,196 | 10,786,227,182  9,251,355,087

The principal operating income mainly consists of

selling food, non-staple food, daily consumer goods,

beverages and wines etc.
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(Continued)

35. Operating income and operating cost (Continued)

(3) Operating income of the Group’s top five customers

For the year ended at 31 December 2018

35« EEWAMERERAE ()

3

RAFEEFEFHEXRAER

2018F &

Proportion of the

total operating

income of

Operating income the Group (%)

ERAEDEE

ltem EH EERA W X 9 EE 51 (%)

Jingdong ¥ 1,507,898,378 13

Wu-mart VIES 1,037,315,790 9

Shanghai Tianyi E-commerce Co., Ltd. HEXRBETHBERAA 328,072,505 3

Vipshop Eme 297,572,316 3

Yonghui Commercial Co., Ltd. KEBREARAF 209,013,033 2

Total CH 3,379,872,022 30
For the year ended at 31 December 2017 20175 E

Proportion of the
total operating

income of
Operating income the Group (%)
ERAEEE:
ltem EH EERA W AR EE91(%)
Jingdong R 1,336,538,034 11
Wu-mart S 1,060,131,927 9
Vipshop i3 513,696,007 4
Shanghai Tianyi E-commerce Co., Ltd.. HERBEFEBERAR 262,678,965 2
Yonghui Commercial Co., Ltd. KEEEERAF 202,071,759 2
Total CE 3,375,116,692 28
2018 if& 269
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(Continued)

36 ~ Bid RN

36. Taxes and surcharges

2018 2017
ltem HH 20185 20174 E
Consumption tax HEBR 2,398,496 1,995,132
City construction and maintenance tax W MR RS 22,573,060 25,956,672
Building tax BEM 15,738,729 14,708,188
Land tax TR 818,177 1,006,017
Vehicle and vessel use tax BMERR 375,390 209,260
Stamp tax ENFERA 7,215,847 7,098,877
Environmental protection tax RIBRAER 3,082 -
Others Hit 52,849 7,753
Total &t 49,175,630 50,981,899

. Selling expenses 37 - HEEH

2018 2017
ltem ERS 2018 E 20174 E
Wages and salaries B T 3 B 499,011,419 493,581,073
Depreciation and amortization expenses TEREHEER 194,551,502 210,246,291
Lease expenses HEEH 237,942,856 240,394,814
Others Hih 1,143,573,249 1,104,941,014
Total A&t 2,075,079,026 2,049,163,192

. Administrative expenses 38 - EHEBEH

2018 2017
ltem HH 20185 20174 E
Wages and salaries % T 7 B 250,463,024 234,226,604
Depreciation and amortization expenses & &5 2 8,960,376 8,789,754
Others Hih 38,955,249 55,922,641
Total &t 298,378,649 298,938,999

0 ANNUAL REPORT 2018
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VL.

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <  §0fBiBRBEBETE (&)

b e e

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

A

il

(Continued)
39. Financial expenses 39 ~ BIEEH
2018 2017
ltem HE 20185 E 20175
Interest expenses FEXH 162,009,879 163,151,952
Including: Interest expenses of bank loans to be Hi ERSFRERORITERD
reimbursed in 5 years MESH 133,411,962 112,002,035
Interest expenses of bonds EHFEXH 28,597,917 51,149,917
Less: Capitalized interest expenses B MEERLEE 53,172 -
Interest income FEUA (15,340,219) (18,366,855)
Charges FEE 26,121,607 18,914,257
Exchange losses (gains) EHER (40,179) (242,201)
Total &5t 172,697,916 163,457,153
. 40 - EEREERX
40. Impairment losses on assets
2018 2017
ltem FH 20185 20175
Provision/(Reversal) of bad debt BEBATR/(EE) - 1,783,983
Written-down of inventories FEREEX - -
Total &5t - 1,783,983
41. Credit impairment loss 41 - FERAERX
2018 2017
ltemn EH 2018 & 20175
Bad debt of notes receivable and accounts receivable JEILZ1E [ e 2B R IR 18 5% 6,679,450 -
Bad debt of other receivable H R ZEREA 156,894 -
2018 if& 271
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(Continued)

1:||||/

42. Other income

(1) Details

of other income

N BHMBERREBTEE)

42 -~ Hiblhi
(1) Efae640T

The amount

included in the

current year non-

Changes in the Changes in the recurring gains

period prior period and losses

FABFHEEY

Item JEH 20185 20175 btk

Government grants HogERCE)! 27,812,795 25,806,245 27,812,795

Total At 27,812,795 25,806,245 27,812,795

(2) Details of government grants (2) BB

2018 2017

Item AR 20185 E 201758

Government reserve expenses BRREE AR - 522,000

Ease the employment pressure ERRLEE N 5,416,352 5,072,039

Asset-related government grants amortization 428 AR B A Bh AR S 8

for the current year 10,474,693 16,031,872

Compensation for house demolition (Note) FEBRFBAEE (G 8,331,300 -

Other Hit 8k 3,590,450 4,180,334

Total &t 27,812,795 25,806,245
Note:  According to the relevant agreement, that i REARREERDHBERE

) ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Compensation Agreement for Non-residential Houses
of the Panjiayuan West Station Project of Beijing
Metro Line 17, between the Company and the
Beijing Chaoyang District Housing Collection Affairs
Center and Beijing Hongchao Weiye State-owned
Assets Management Co., Ltd., Beijing Chaoyang
District Housing Collection Center (on behalf of the
government) paid compensation of RMB8,331,300
for the decoration of the house and the attachment

of equipment and facilities.

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

BUREBH L - L FAFEER
BEEKEEREARA=ZFE
ARt mH 17 R ERE T
WIRERFFEEEGREE
B I PHEBOTE  AFEILR
mESEEEAREFR L (RE
) AR BRBIREER
TR B 3 S % 5 485 2 e BT /B8 4 b
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(Continued)
43. Investment income 43 ~ BE W
2018 2017
ltem R 20185 201788
Investment income from financial products EEEHEMERRERA 1,272,141 2,415,469
Investment income from financial assets measured at  [RE AL BEE B EESFAE
fair values through profit or losses HEANSREENEIRE K 11,869,806 110,000
Total A&t 13,141,947 2,525,469
44. Gains from changes in fair values 44 - PREBEESHKE
Sources of gains from changes in fair values BEERABEZER KK
2018 2017
Sources of gains from changes in fair values EEDABEEHRENTR 20185 20175E
Trading financial assets RHMeHEE (8,134,354) -
Including: classified financial assets at fair values Htb  pEALABEFEAAEY
through profits or losses (exclude gains from TARBEENEREE(ITAT
changes in fair value of derivative instruments) HEENDR BEZEKEERIN) (8,134,354) -
classified financial assets at fair values through profits H4EAA L EEGEEEEEHFAE
or losses (gains from changes in fair value of HEaneREE(TASRIA
derivative instruments) EERNRABEZSHNE)
Total CHl (8,134,354 -
45. Gain on disposal of assets 45 - EERBEWH
The amount
included in the
current year non-
recurring gains
2018 2017 and losses
SABEFLRMN
[tem EH 20185 E 20175 [E BaneE
Gain on disposal of non-current assets ErRBEERENS (2,305,871) 161,944 (2,305,871)
Total At (2,305,871) 161,944 (2,305,871)
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(Continued)
46. Non-operating income 46 ~ EEIMIA
(1) Details of non-operating income (1) EXEIPYPABFHMT

The amounts
included in non-
recurring gains and
2018 2017 losses for the year
FAEFHEEY
Item ER 20185 E 0175 E BRfeE

Total gains on spoilage and obsolescence of  IEHEI A ERIEREF G4
non-current assets 1,706 12,006 1,706

Including: Gains on spoilage and obsolescence & i : [EE & & S BREFG
of non-current assets of fixed assets 1,706 12,006 1,706

Government grants not related to daily H¥AREHEBNBITREE
activities of the company (Note 1) (1) 31,188,721 - 31,188,721
Compensation for house demolition (Note 2) EEIFBEAEE(32) 24,933,746 - 24,933,746
Others Hif 3,848,947 7,801,857 3,848,947
Total At 59,973,120 7,813,863 59,973,120
(2) Details of government grants (2) BFHEIHA

2018 2017
ltemn L 20185 2017F %
Compensation for house demolition (Note 1) EEIFEELBE(1) 15,988,721 -
Safety production environment upgrade subsidy %2 4 EEIB BT REHE 15,200,000 -
Total GH 31,188,721 -
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VL.
(Continued)
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46. Non-operating income (Continued)

(2) Details of government grants (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

(1) According to the relevant agreement, that
Compensation Agreement for Non-residential Houses
of the Panjiayuan West Station Project of Beijing
Metro Line 17, between the Company and the
Beijing Chaoyang District Housing Collection Affairs
Center and Beijing Hongchao Weiye State-owned
Assets Management Co., Ltd., Beijing Chaoyang
District Housing Collection Center (on behalf of the
government) paid compensation of RMB15,988,721
for compensation for lost production and business
suspension, relocation and compensation; (2)
According to Chao guoziwen No. [2018] 204 that
Notice on Arranging the Funds for Resolving and
Remediating the Safe Production Environment
Upgrade Subsidy Project, the Company received
RMB6,000,000 which used to relieve and rectify the
safety production environment upgrade. (3) According
to the provisions of Chao guoziwen No. [2018] 97
“Reply on the allocation of 2018 state-owned capital
operating budget funds”, the special compensation
for the SASAC received by the Company was
RMB9,200,000.

According to the relevant agreement, that
Cancellation of contract and dismantling of illegal
construction agreement, between Beijing Langshan
Nursery (Beijing Environmental Elegancy and
Virescence Engineering Company) and the Company,
Beijing Langshan Nursery paid Beijing Jingkelong
Shouchao Commercial limited of RMB24,933,746
for releasing the contract liquidated damages and

supporting the dismantling work subsidy.

N At BEHREEERE)

46 ~ EEIMEA(E)

(2) BAFHE M ()
H1: BEARAELRTHAGRREE

2

B EBHFRL - L RLHEEE
BEERKEEREADA=ZFE
ATt T 17 R ERE T
VETIRIE A I ERER U HE
i I PAEBOTE AFEILR
mEs R BRI EER O (RE
BUT) 2 (6 R A BB E E 2
EFEFBAFHE  MEHERE
Eh (B %5 H£5115,988,7217T ¢ (2)
1R % 8 B & 32 [2018]204 8% [ B R
RHHRRBE AR EERIEAR
WHEEESNBYNINRAE -
AARIBEIMGRE AT EEE
RIGFH R #HREE ©6,000,0007T
()R IZFA R E X [2018]97 5[ BR
BEN2018FHAERKEETAESE
SHRE INRTE - ADEWE
7 Bl & Z % 15 4§ 18 509,200,000

JT °

RFIAERTIRILE B (R ER
BEEFIRAR)JARA
ZFRALRREREBEXE
RABFHERAR - HFikkE
BpEE IhHEBEOE  AFE
IERmRLEBXNRIERRE
EEBRERRARAFRRARE
HEMEA SRR TIEMB &
24,933,7467T °
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

47. Non-operating expenses

S

7N

Bt BBRREREEE)

47 - BEHNTH

The amounts
included in non-
recurring gains and
2018 2017 losses for the year
SPABFIRERN
ltem EH 2018 E 20175 E BafeE
Total losses on spoilage and obsolescence of non-  JEREAERIBREELA
current assets 6,921,956 5,147,245 6,921,956
Including: Losses on spoilage and obsolescence of K : AF AEKIBHEEL
fixed assets 6,921,956 5,147,245 6,921,956
Fine gie 1,392,694 395,184 1,392,694
Others Ht 10,122,643 14,810,414 10,122,643
Total Bt 18,437,293 20,352,843 18,437,293
48. Income tax expense 48 ~ fTiSHiE R
(1) Details of income tax expense (1) FEHER%
2018 2017
Item EE 20185 K 20175
Current income tax expense calculated in EREREBR T ENE BAMEH
accordance with tax laws and relevant
requirements 70,824,364 53,288,085
Deferred income tax expense EEFEHER 388,253 58,578
Total &t 71,212,617 53,346,663
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(Continued)

48.

Income tax expense (Continued)

accounting profit

48 - FRIEHER (&)

(2) Reconciliation between income tax expense and

1:||||/

(2) BFFEEEHEAAEARE

2018 2017
ltem EH 20185 & 2017 &
Accounting profit =Ryl 177,589,578 148,189,130
Income tax expense calculated at tax rate of  $£25% I Kt AR T2

25% 44,397,395 37,047,283
Effect of subsidiary companies to adapt NEBERTRR KRN E

different tax rates 194,960 180,543
Effect of non-deductible expenses TAHEMB AN 4,944,512 3,011,983
Effect of non-taxable income EERR Hﬁz)\s’]-/’ (321,674) (876,625)
Effect of using deductible losses of previously — F|FIATEA R FERBIE SR B E

unrecognized deferred tax assets AENEENT2 (990,781) (436,259)
Effect of deductible temporary difference or ﬂiﬁéw)ﬁkﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ éﬁ;ﬂ’ﬂﬁﬂﬂiﬁ

deductible losses of unrecognized deferred Bt ZEHENEENTE

tax assets 22,562,772 15,016,348
Effect of deductible losses recover of AT EIRER Uﬁ SHEEENE

previously recognized deferred tax assets TEEE E’\] TE - -
Effect of adjusting the previous years’ income AR HRFEFTEH A £

tax 425,433 (596,610)
Total CE 71,212,617 53,346,663
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N AHPBHRRAEERE)

(Continued)

49. Net profit

The Group’s net profit is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

49 ~ FFHE

REBEHFNBIENEGIA) AT &

I8
(Notes) 2018 2017
Item JEF Bzt 20185 & 20175 E
Cost of goods sold 78 R SHE PR (V) 35 8,930,704,196 9,251,355,087
Depreciation of investment properties & HEHENE V)9 8,708,242 7,882,294
Depreciation of fixed assets ElEEEmE vI) 10 106,181,445 119,611,892
Amortization of intangible assets EVEESHE (Vi) 12 16,607,234 12,613,370
Amortization of leasehold improvements #8478 A\ B E EEN R X H# (i) 14 83,864,157 86,800,815
Total of depreciation and amortization & B EH AT 215,361,078 226,908,371
Net losses on disposal of non-current ~ JEiRBl B ERE 8L (VI) 45,46,47
assets 9,226,121 4,973,295
Net rental income of investment BEMEHERSFRA
properties (16,021,273) (15,547,187)
Staff costs BTEHMER (V1) 22 748,945,515 730,286,237
Including: Directors and supervisors' ~ H : % « BEZf4
emoluments 4,135,054 4,220,724
Other staff costs: Hih B T -
Wages or salaries and I%  HeRHeRERA
social security costs 675,057,076 657,343,084
Basic retirement insurance EARZRRE 69,753,385 68,722,429
Audit expenses EHEH 3,209,794 3,318,280

50. Calculation process of basic earnings per share and

50 - EXZRUENHESRKENTE

diluted earnings per share BiE
While calculating basic earnings per share, net profit AEEAGREER - BEBREBERR
attributable to ordinary shareholders for the current year is REOEHFFEA
as follows:
2018 2017

ltemn JEH 20185 E 201758
Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders for the /B A & i R AR 52 H 5 HA % 712

current year 63,312,317 47,485,004
Including: Net profit from continuing operations 2 BERNFELCE0FAE 63,312,317 47,485,004
While calculating basic earnings per share, the denominator AEERGRIEER - 9 AEITEIN

is the weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding and its calculation process is as follows:

ltem EH

BTSN BB E

Number of ordinary shares outstanding

BB a8 - FHEBED T

2018 2017
2018 E 201745 E
412,220,000 412,220,000
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NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS < &8t BEHREETER(Z)
(Continued)

50. Calculation process of basic earnings per share and

51.

50 - EXZRUBNHEERKENTE

diluted earnings per share (Continued) BEE)
Earnings per share =2
2018 2017
Item R 2018F 20178
Calculated based on net profit and 1ZBRE N AR IR AFEF
net profit from continuing operations HERFEBR T RFIRER
attributable to shareholders of the parent  IFE& L FF T E
company:
Basic earnings per share ARG RKES 0.15 0.12
Diluted earnings per share mEgREE N/AT3E A N/AZ i
At date of report, the Company had no dilutive potential HERERD  ATEAAREHEEE
ordinary shares. LA o
Items in the cash flow statements 51 - B4 REXRER
(1) Other cash received relating to operating activities (1) KEBRMEEETHERNES
2018 2017
Item JEE 20185 20175 E
Income of rent iR ON 214,715,053 191,144,255
Income of scrap sales BEmUA 2,244,765 2,751,285
Income of franchise INEERA 1,977,442 2,203,818
Income of government grant EUSEEEILON 52,957,657 30,772,473
Recovered deposit Ekis 7,195,539 7,995,591
Compensation for house demolition EEREB®HE 24,933,746 -
Others Hip 8,105,575 21,490,150
Total Eh 312,129,777 256,357,572
(2) Other cash paid relating to operating activities (2) FEHAEMELEZBHEHNES
2018 2017
Item HH 20185 20178 E
Selling expenses (except rent) WEBR(TE2H:) 776,856,481 781,040,792
Administrative expenses EEER 55,474,761 53,158,889
Manufacturing costs HEBR - 239,777
Rent SaNpiEa 212,746,211 205,873,368
Deposit and margin IRHeRES 10,249,104 12,608,065
Bank charges RITFEE 15,492,907 18,914,257
Others Hih 6,185,322 4,207,535
Total At 1,077,004,786 1,076,042,683
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

51. Items in the cash flow statements (Continued)

(3) Other cash received relating to financing activities

N BHMBERREBTEE)

51 - BEREXRERH(E)

(3 UIRMEZEZHEHNEE

2018 2017
Item ER 20185 0175
Recelved working capital from the state-owned WEIt RTHABRELEARLER
capital operation management center of RLBEREES
Chaoyang District, Beijing 3,200,000,000 -
Total =X 3,200,000,000 -

(4) Other cash paid relating to financing activities

(4) XAEMEBLEZBHEHNEE

2018 2017
Item A 20185 & 20175 E
Paid working capital to the state-owned capital &1t RHEEREEERELER
operation management center of Chaoyang RLEEEEES
District, Beijing 3,200,000,000 -
Total Bt 3,200,000,000 -
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(Continued)

52. Supplementary information to the cash flow

statement

(1) Supplementary information to the cash flow

52 - BERERBEER

(1) RERBEXRFHXEH

1:||||/

statement
2018 2017
Supplementary information HRER 2018EE 20175E
1. Reconciliation of net profits and cash flow from 1 RENEAS AR EYRLNE -
operating activities:
Net profits JExbE 106,376,961 94,342,467
Add: Provision for impairment losses on assets 0 SRMEERELER - 1,783,984
Credit impairment loss ERREEL 6,836,344 -
Depreciation of fixed assets EEBEME 106,181,445 119,611,892
Depreciation of investment properties REGRHERE 8,708,242 7,882,294
Amortization of intangible assets BYEEEH 16,607,234 12,618,370
Amortization of long-term prepaid expenses REOFRERAEH 83,864,157 86,300,815
Net Losses on disposal of fixed assets, intangible REETEE - BVEENEME
assets and other long-term assets WAEMFAEL 9,226,121 4,978,295
Losses from changes in fair values AhBEEZDEX
(Y bAT- 15 2531)) 8,134,354 -
Financial expenses (including exchange losses HHERBERLER)
(gains) 172,697,916 163,457,153
Losses arising from investments RERK (13,141,947) (2,525,469)
Amortization of government grants related to ERERBNBT RS
assets in current year (10,467,992) (6,455,437)
Increase in deferred tax liabilities EEFEHaEMEN (2,198,630) 1,540,327
Decrease In deferred tax assets EREFMEHEENRY 2,586,883 (681)
Decrease (Increase) in inventories FEHRDREM 120,796,384 (65,525,323)
Decrease in operating receivables T IR A MR (215,892,171) 844,958,175
Increase in operating payables m S FERIE B HE N 360,955,025 (625,004,717)
Net cash flows from operating activities i““‘g/ééjjﬁia’ﬁﬁﬁ/,’ﬁ £348 761,270,326 638,952,245
2. Net changes in cash and cash equivalents: 2 BeRHSSENFLIEN
Closing balance of cash ReMFERBE 1,014,227,924 929,508,884
Less: Opening balance of cash B BERNENBE 929,508,884 613,131,273
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents — E4RESSEMHENRL)E 84,719,040 316,377,611
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VI.
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NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

52. Supplementary information to the cash flow

statement (Continued)

3

(2) Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries (2) FKEFEZNHIEREFRENREZFEH
2018 2017
Item 5H 20185 20175
Cash and cash equivalents paid for enterprise ~ RNEEANDPEAHFREAELMHEFE
merger in current year FREEEY - 64,020,502
Including: Beijing Lianchao Company Limited.  H# : Jt REBELER AR - 64,020,502
Less: Cash and cash equivalents held by B BERFRABAENREREESE
subsidiaries on the purchase day E" - 1,726,616
Including: Beijing Lianchao Company Limited.  HErf : R R L AR A A - 1,726,616
Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries BEFRASMANRSFE - 62,293,886
Cash and cash equivalents 3) BLRELZEYHER
2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—2-N\F —E—tF
ltem BH +=R=+-H +ZA=+—8
Cash Be
Including: Cash on hand Heh: EFHRS 13,627,854 17,831,167
Bank deposits on demand AR AR R ITER 1,000,600,070 911,677,717
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents B4 kR4S ENHRE 1,014,227,924 929,508,884

N BHMBERREBTEE)

52 - REREBRBAER(HF)
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53. Net current assets

RS e b

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /Z
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il

N At BEHREEERE)

53 - FRBEE

2018.12.31 2017.12.31

—E-N\E Tt F
ltem EEB +=ZA=+-H +-A=t-H
Current assets TEEE 5,410,195,756 5,266,654,564
Less: Current liabilities W ORBAas 5,444,705,932 5,486,420,553
Net current assets FREEE (34,510,176) (219,765,989)

54. Total assets less current liabilities 54 - BEERABERE

2018.12.31 2017.12.31

—E-N\§ —ZT—+F
ltem EAR +-A=+-H +-h=1+—-H
Total assets BEMEE 7,687,799,828 7,700,251,772
Less: Current liabilities W nBAR 5,444,705,932 5,486,420,553
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDERE 2,243,093,896 2,213,831,219

55 - fIEEREAEZIREINEE

55. Assets that ownership or usufruct is restricted

Carrying amount at

Item 31 December 2018 Restriction reasons

HE FAREREEE FREEH

Cash and bank balances 132,682,283 Bank acceptance margin deposits
that are restricted

BEHED TERIRTTAH ERHRE S 17 M
X BIR

Accounts receivable 407,663,837 Bank loans are obtained through
factoring arrangement that are
restricted

JEHBR TR F LA E B iR IR IR B SR T A
i 52 2 PR il

Total 540,346,120

A
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VI. NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

56. Foreign currency monetary items

ltem
Cash and cash balances
Including: USD

EUR

HKD

GBP

NZD

BB

ERES

XL
BT
B
51
Hm

N BHMBERREBTEE)

56 - SMNEEMMIER

2018.12.31
“B2-N¥t=ZA=t-H
Closing

balance Closing
in foreign Exchange balance in
currency rate RMB
il
HEERE FEERX  ARWHE
8,535,784
539,291 6.8632 3,701,259
492,793 7.8473 3,867,096
12,619 0.8762 11,057
193 8.6762 1,671
207,751 4.5954 954,701

2017.12.31
—Z—+tF+ZA=1—H
Closing

balance Closing
in foreign balance in
currency  Exchange rate RMB
wE
SRR FEER  AREHE
9,797,927
295,047 6.5342 1,927,894
981,815 7.8023 7,660,415
38,141 0.8359 31,882
193 8.7792 1,693
38,000 4.6327 176,043

VIl. CHANGES IN THE CONSOLIDATION SCOPE

There is no change in scope during this year.
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES N EHMEEAHNERS
Equity in subsidiaries EFRARIPHER
(1) Components of the Company (1) TEEFHEL

Place of Nature of Registered
Subsidiary Type incorporation business Capital
FRRER FATER it FHME A&
Beiiing Jingkelong (Langfang) Co., Ltd. (Jingkelong Langfang) Limited company Langfang, PRC Retall 80,000,000
ERREE(BS)ERAR (AT BRI REERS]) BREFRA B% ZE%
Beiiing Jingkelong Supermarket Chain Co., Ltd. (Jingkelong Tongzhou) Limited company Beijing, PRC Retall 29,000,000
tRRRERTEEARARATERREEREN]) BREERA IR ZE%
Beiiing Xinyang Tongli Commercial Facilties Co,.Ltd. (Xinyang Tongli) Limited company Beijing, PRC Manufacture 10,000,000
ERRGERNERREERAA A TERMGEN]) AREFRA IR g%
Beijiing Jingkelong Shouchao Commercial Co., Ltd. (Shoulian Supermarket) Limited company Beijing, PRC Retail 398,453,439
ERRREERERARAR A TR ERET]) AREERA IR TE%
Beiing Jingkelong Haotian Hotel Management Co., Ltd. (Haotian Hotel) Limited company Beijing, PRC Hospitality 5,000,000
HRREEEREEERERAR A TERIZXEE]) BRAT IR BIERBEE
Beiing Jingkelong Vocational Training School (Training School) Institutional organization ~ Beiing, PRC Training 500,000
IRTABRREERE REIER AT HROENER) EXEA IR I
Beiing Lianchao Company Limited (the “Lianchao Limited”) Limited company Beiiing, PRC Retail 10,000,000
FREREEERAFATHRBRLR)) BRAR IR I5%
Beiing Jingkelong Fresh convenience store Company Limited (Jingkelong Fresh) - Limited company Beiiing, PRC Retail 10,000,000
GRRRRLEEHNEEREMAR A THBE LEENE]) BREFRA IR TE¥
Beiing Chaopi Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Trading) Limited company Beiiing, PRC Wholesale 500,000,000
RS ABRNARAR AT ER AR RABRLA bl i3
Beiing Chaopi Shuanglong Alcohol Sales Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Shuanglong)* Limited company Beiiing, PRC Wholesale 110,160,000
GRmERERER EEERERRR (A THE A EE ) AREERA bl HEz
Beiing Chaopi Huaging Beverage Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Huaging)* Limited company Beiiing, PRC Wholesale 80,000,000
R ERE S ARAR AT HRE A EE) AREFERA IR faz
Beiing Chaopi Flavourings, Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Flavouring)* Limited company Beiiing, PRC Wholesale 50,000,000
ERMBHAR RERET DA A TR S ERA ] AREFRA IR i3
Beiing Chaopi Jinglong il Sales Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Ofl Sales* Limited company Beiiing, PRC Wholesale 36,000,000
RS RE R EEERAR A T ER A RERE ) BREFRA bl i3
Shifazhuang Chaopi Xinlong Trading Co,.Ltd." Limited company Shijazhuang, PRC~ Wholesale 5,000,000
RFHAYBEEEER D! BREEAF P i3
Qingdao Chaopi Jinlong Trading Co, Ltd.* Limited company Qingdao, PRC Wholesale 5,000,000
FRRNBEEEERAR BREEAF 55 i3
Beijing Chaopi Znongde Trading Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Zhongde)* Limited company Beiiing, PRC Wholesale 50,000,000
EREHAEEEARAR AT HER SAE)) BREFERA bl ks
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued) N> EHMEEPNERE)
Equity in subsidiaries (Continued) EFRARIPHER(E)
(1) Components of the Company (Continued) (1) TEEFHEA(E)
Place of Nature of Registered
Subsidiary Type incorporation business Capital
TREER FATER b E4 431 &R
Beiiing Chaopi Huilong Trading Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Huilong)* Limited company Beiing, PRC Wholesale 24,000,000
GRS EEHEARAR (TR ARER ) EREEAF IR iR
Talyuan Chaopi Trading Co, Ltd. (Chaopi Taiyuan)* Limited company Talyuan, PRC Wholesale 15,000,000
KESHEZERARATERIARAR]) EREEAF AR i
Tangshan Chaopi Trading Co, Ltd." Limited company Tangshan, PRC Wholesale 5,000,000
ELSEHAERER AR BREMALA il BEz
Tianjin Chaopi Trading Co, Ltd.* Limited company Tianjin, PRC Wholesale 15,000,000
REHHEERLA EREEAF Py HE%
Chaopi Yuli Trading Co,.Ltd.” Limited company Beiing, PRC Wholesale 24,000,000
I RBSRAEERRA R AT SR ) BRERRA IR i
Chaopi Fangsheng Trading Co, Ltd (Chaopi Fangsheng).™ Limited company Beijing, PRC Wholesale 20,000,000
IRERAEEEERA BREMALA IR BEx
Jinan Chaopi Linda Trading Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Jinan)* Limited company Jinan, PRC Wholesale 26,000,000
ERamEEEARAR A T ERI S ER]) BREMRA B i
Beiing Chaopi Shenglong Trading Co, Ltd. (Chaopi Shenglong)* Limited company Beijing, PRC Wholesale 20,000,000
IR EEEEARAR A T ERI A RE]) BRERRA IR ik
Beiing Chaopi Tianhua Trading Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Tianhua)* Limited company Beiing, PRC Wholesale 20,000,000
IRERREREARAR A T ERI AR RE]) BREMRA IR i
Datong Chaopi Beichen Trading Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Datong)* Limited company Datong, PRC Wholesale 26,000,000
ARSI REERRAR A T ERISAHAR ) BREMRA G i
Datong Chaopi Ant Trading Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Ant)™ Limited company Datong, PRC Retall 5,000,000
RAR EEHEERAR AT SR 55 ) BRERRA G £ 3
Tangshan Chaopi Baishun Trading Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Baishun)* Limited company Tangshan, PRC Wholesale 30,000,000
LS AEREARAR A TER SHHEE]) BRERRA Ell i3
Beiing Chaopi Maolisheng Trading Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Maolisheng)* Limited company Beiing, PRC Wholesale 75,000,000
IREBEAABEERAE A TR AR BRERRA IR i+
Hong Kong Chaopi Asia Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Hong Kong)™ Limited company Hong Kong, PRC Wholesale HKD10,000
BARMTNERATUA TSR AR EE ) BRERRA Bk i 77%10,000
Beiiing Qumeiba Information Technology Company Limit ted (Qumeiba)* Limited company Beiing, PRC Wholesale 1,000,000
IREFREEMBRRAR (AT AR A EEE ) BRERRA IR i
Beiing Chaopi Shengshi Trading Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Shengshil* Limited company Beiing, PRC Wholesale 25,000,000
SRR EEARAR AT HRI ARt ) ARELAT IR BEx
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued) N EHMEEPNERE)
Equity in subsidiaries (Continued) EFRARIPHER(E)
(1) Components of the Company (Continued) (1) EEBEHEL(E)

Place of Nature of Registered

Subsidiary Type incorporation business Capital

FRAER FATER By £HME A&

Beiing Chaopi Zhaoyang E-commerce Co, Ltd. (Chaopi Zhaoyang)* Limited company Beiiing, PRC Wholesale 20,000,000
RSB EEETERERAR (L THEARE]) BREFAA IR i

Beiing Chaopi X|ny|shangzhen Food Co., Ltd. (Xinyishanghen)* Limited company Beiiing, PRC Wholesale 40,000,000
ERBRIF Y RRERRA AT ERZEE 1) BREERA IR i3

Beiing Shangzhen Food Co., Ltd. (Shangzhen Food)** Limited company Beiiing, PRC Wholesale 5,000,000
EREZRRED T(MTF% [WYRm1)" BREEAF IR biiE

Chaopi Maolisheng Hong Kong Co., Ltd. (Maolisheng Hong Kong) ** Limited company Hong Kong, PRC Wholesale HKD10,000

AHRAAEERRAR A TR EERAA ) ARAT Bl i3 710,000

Beiiing Chaop| Tianshi Information Technology Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Tianshi)* Limited company Beiiing, PRC Wholesale 20,000,000
IERE RIS MEBR AR (A TR HAR]) - ARAT bl Mg

Chaopi International Trade (Shanghai) Co., Ltd (Chaopi International Trade) *  Limited company Shanghai, PRC Wholesale 9,800,000
HHERES( L8 ERAAUTERAHERES ) ARAT 9 i3

Beiing Chaopi Jiushengmingpin Trading Co., Ltd (Chaopi Jiusheng) * Limited company Beiiing, PRC Wholesale 30,000,000
ERBHA LR AEERAR A TR AN ARAT IR i3

Beiing Chaopi Huansheng international Trading Company Limited (Chaopi Limited company Beiiing, PRC Wholesale 15,000,000

Huansheng) *

EREHRRENE AERAR (A TR ARE]) BRAT IR i3
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued) 1=

(1) Components of the Company (Continuea)

Subsidiary
ThA%E

Beiing Jingkelong (Langfang) Co., Lid. (Jingkelong Langfang)
FRREE (B ERAT N THE REEE])

Beiing Jingkelong Supermarket Chain Co., Ltd. (Jingkelong

Tongzhou)
FRREEETERERAAUN VAR REEAN )

Beijng Xinyang Tongli Commercial Facilties Co, Ltd. (Xinyang
Tongl)
KRAGRBERERRAT U TERITES))

Bejing Jingkelong Shouchao Commercial Co,, Lid. (Shoulian
Supermarke)

FRREEEREERRAM N TER] 55T

Beiing Jingkelong Haotian Hotel Management Co., Ltd. (Haotian
Hotel
FRREEEREEERARAA(I THEIZRER )

Beijing Jingkelong Viocational Training School (Training Schoo)
KR AREREERE R IBRU T RRIAIER])

Beuing Lianchao Company Limited (Lianchao Limtted]

KRB EEZERA I THRBELT])
Beijing Jingkelong Fresh convenience store Company Limited
(Jingkelong Fresf)
FRREREEHEERECAA M TERIEEEHE])

Bejing Chaopi Tracing Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Trading)
FRBNEERAERAA N TERI AR )

Bejing Chaopi Shuanglong Alconol Sales Co, Ltd. (Chaopi
Shuanglong*
KR ERERRERRA RN TERIBYSE )

Beiing Chaopi Huaging Beverage Co,Ltd. (Chaopi Huaging)*
FRENERERERAT T ER SR

Beiing Chaopi Flavourings, Co, Ltd. (Chaopi Flavouring)
SRS R RA D AR SR

Bejing Chaopi Jinglong Oil Sales Co, Ltd. (Chaopi Of Sles)*
TR RE N ERRAT I TER )

Scope of business
g

Retal of general merchandise
RERE BRER RO HERE

Retall of general merchandise

Production of plastic packing materials and installaion and
maintenance of commercial equipment

NTHE: 55 BRERBH ZHERRRTIRRELE

Retall of general merchandise

ApH

£0% BRED R GBRE
Hotel management, food and beverage, and leasing
BEER EHEE HEEERR

Training of shop assistant

gxaml

Sales of dally necessties, Wujim‘iaodian‘ such as needle textles
HERRD RENE HOBRS

Wholesale of food
HERR

Wholesale of general merchandise
WEAE  ARER RO HARE

Wholesale of beverages
HEERAA

Wholesale of drinks and food

#ERA  SHE(AREEEATHEERA)

Wholesale of edible ofl and food
HRERER  HRA  RAN ARG HES(RDEEE
BERIN

Wholesale of edible ofl

EAETaEAR EAIRRERRE

(1)

N~ HEAERTAERE)

FRAPHERE)
BHEFERIEH(E)
Proportion  Proportion of - Whether

of ownership  voting power  Consolidated

interests (%) (%) ornot Notes

RAE RA
BRihn  HEw) iR B
100 100 Yes
&
100 100 Yes
&
55,66 5566 Yes
®
100 100 Yes Note 6
& Bl
100 100 Yes
b
100 100 Yes
b
100 100 Yes
&
100 100 No Note 7
2 &
7985 71985 Yes
R
i 5900 Yes
%
466 5343 Yes
%
203 5263 Yes
%
83 523 Yes
&
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N EEMERPHESE)

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued) EFARPHNERE)
(1) Components of the Company (Continued) (1) EEBEHEL(E)
Proportion ~ Proportion of - Whether
of ownership  voting power  Consolidated
Subsidiary Scope of business interests (%) (%) ornot Notes
RAE RA
FhA%E ffegR BRB) A ABER RE
Shijazhang Chaopi Xinlong Trading Co,.Ltd." Wholesale of alcoholic beverages 7985 100 Yes
REESHAEBRERLT HEARRE AR RERBE(RREHESTHEARN) =
Qingdao Chaopi Jinlong Tracing Co, Ltd." Wholesale of alcoholic 7980 100 Yes
SR AEREERAT HAERRE AR REREERRGEEFTHERRN 2
Befing Chaopi Znongde Trading Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Znongde)* Wholesale of consumer sanftary products 7985 100 Yes
FREHEEEERR AT ER S5 HERRR - B% - GAn TEREREBENEERE 2
Befing Chaopi Hulong Trading Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Hulong)* Wholesal of ecoholc beverages 7985 100 Yes Note 4
KBS EEERARAR N TER SHER ) HEEENR 2 i
Taiyuan Chaopi Tracing Co, Ltd. (Chaopi Taiyuen) Wholesale of general merchandise 79.86 100 Ves
KRS ERARAR N TER BHAR ) HERORAE  BEEE IERE  NBHA RAMERLE &
ENERRH
Tangshen Chaopi Trading Co, Ltd.* Wholesale of general merchandise 7980 100 Yes Note 1
Bl ERRRAT HRARRE AR DERBE(RRGTEINARRN) R i
Tianjin Chaopi Trading Co, Ltd.* Wholesale of general merchandise 798 100 Yes
RERYERRRLT #RARRY Am RERBE(RRGTEIHEARN) ?
Chaopi Yul Trading Co, Ld. (Cheopi Yuil™ Wholesale of general merchandise 3031 70 Yes
FrREHHEESRAR A T ERIH i) HEORRY  ARMHE ?
Chaopi Fangsheng Trading Co, Ltd (Chaopi Fangsheng).” Wholesale of general merchandise 590 70 Yes
B AEERARAR" HERRAZ FHEn REREAERH 3
Jinan Chaopi Linda Trading Co,‘Ltd; (Cheopi Jinan]* Wholesale of general merchandise 5190 5 Yes
BRI EEERAT (I T ER B AL HRORRE AHER ?
Befing Chaopi Shenglong Trading Cp,.ud. (Chaopi Shenglong* Wholesale of package senice, packed food and storage senvice 4 5 Yes
] PR RPN TR ) HERRRAD BRRY 2ERR ?
Beiing Chaopi Tianhua Trading Co, Lt (Chaopi Tianhual" Wholesale of package service, packed food and storage service 4266 5343 Yes
KRR REREARAT (A TR EHAE ) HEERRAR BRRY 2ERR ?
Datong Chaopi Beichen Trading Co,.Lid. (Chaopi Datong) Wholesals of package senice, packed food end storage sence 590 10 Yes
AR REEARAT (A TR EHAR HERRRAR  BRRY 2ERR ?
Datong Chaopi Ant Trading Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi An]™ Wholesa\eo package sevice, packed food and storage senvice 5.9 100 Yes
AR EEREERAR (AT HR S ER ) A% 26 BRER ERRHS ?
Tangshan Chaopi Baishun Trading Co, Ltd. (Chaopi Baishun)" Wholesale of package sevice, packed food and storage senvice 65.12 8155 Yes Note 8
BN EREEARAT (A TR BHEE) #E0Rn BERRR TREE AMEZRRERAE E i
ERRE

2018 @&
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued) N> EHMERPHERSE)

EFARPHER(E)

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)
(1) Components of the Company (Continued) (1) TEEFHEA(E)

Proportion  Proportion of - Whether
of ownership  voting power  Consolidated

Subsidiary Scope of business interests (%) (%) ornot Notes
RAE RA

FAAEE g BRIB)  fA) afER  AE

Befing Chaopi Maolisheng Trading Co, Lid. (Chaopi Meolisheng)  Wholesale of general merchandise 5.9 05 Yes

KRR EERRAR N TERIBHRAA ) HERRG SHOAR BR 1eRE (IZR(FakR(E 2

DD/‘I

Hong Kong Ghaopi Asia Co, Ltd. (Cheopi Hong Kong™ Merchandise trading 203 100 Yes

AR EERAR BRI ER Bngs ?

Bejing Qumeiba Information Technology Company Limit ted Wholesale of cosmetics 51.90 65 Yes

(Qumeiba

FREFRERNRERA T ER AR {ehmitEs i'r

Bejing Chaopi Shengshi Trading Co, L. (Chaopi Shengsti Wholesale of cosmefics 5.9 65 Yes

FrEEtEEARAA T ER Byt ) {ehmitEs &

Bejing Chaopi Znaoyang E-commerce Co,Ltd. (Chaopi Wholesale of general merchandise 798 100 Yes

Zhaoyang|*

KRR FERERAA( TR BaR]) HERRR SHOAR BR 1eRE (IZR(FakkiE #

m)%

Beuing Chaopi X\ny\shangzhen Food Co., Ltd. (Xinyishanghen]* Wholesale o food, packed food and dairy product 4791 60 Yes

YRS 4YRGER AT TERELAY) HERR #3RARAR 1203 2

Bejing Shangzhen Food Co., Ltd. (Shangzhen Food)™ Wholesale of nuts products (beking class), candied fruit, and frut a9 100 Yes

i products (cried fruit products)

KRR A RERAA I TER Y AR FEYERRRIRIRLVE) B RERKRTER)E %

(Chaopi Maalisheng Hong Kong Co., Ltd. (Maolisheng Hong Wholesale of nuts products (beking class), candied frit, and frut 5.9 100 Yes

Kong"* products (dried fruit products)

BHRAAEERRLA (N TERIEERAA ) EHNBS (hm Re - BEEH R 2R F7ER 2

Beiing Chaopi Tianshi Information Technology Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Wholesale of cosmetics, food and general merchandise 79.85 100 Ves

Tianhif

R AR SRR ARAR U T AR AR ) HElhn BAR Ro3 ?

Chaopi International Trade (ShanghaiCo., Ltd (Chaopi (Goods and technology import and export business and food 7989 100 Ves Note 2

Infernational Trade) * circulation

HERES( e AR TR MERER) USENRRIMELDER  RARAS & i

Bejing Chaopi Jushengmingpin Trading Co., Lid (Chaopi Wholesale of general merchandise 798 100 Yes Note 3

Jusheng)

IRy ARARERAR T BRI GHIE) HERRR SOAR RE AR BERAE & i3

Beiing Chaopi Huansheng intemational Tracing Company Wholesale, retai food, health food; import and export goods; import 4072 5 Yes Note 5

Limited (Chaopi Huansheng) and export agents

FREHRRERR A ERAR T ER SRR ) % ZE40 RERR: EMELN REELNZ & i
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

(1) Components of the Company (Continued)

Note: *

o

Chaopi Trading holds more than 50% of the equity
interest of those companies which are deemed to be the
subsidiaries. As the Company holds 79.85% of Chaopi
Trading, the holding percentage is different with the voting

rights percentage.

Chaopi Trading’s subsidiary holds more than 50% of the
equity interest of those companies which are deemed to be
the subsidiaries. As the Company holds 79.85% of Chaopi
Trading, the holding percentage is different with the voting

rights percentage.

The details of the movement in registered capital of subsidiaries and

the proportion changes of ownership interests and of voting power

held by the Company in subsidiaries during the accounting period

are as follows:

Note 1:

Note 2:

On 2 May 2018, Chaopi Trading’s subsidiary Tangshan
Chaopi Trading Co,.Ltd. has been cancelled.

On 27 February 2018, a subsidiary of the Company Chaopi
Trading contributed additional RMB4,800,000 into Chaopi
International Trading. The registered capital of Chaopi
Taiyuan increased to RMB9,800,000 from RMB5,000,000.
Upon completion of the capital increase, the Chaopi
Trading directly held 100% equity interest in Chaopi
International Trading, and indirectly held by the Company
through Chaopi Trading as to 79.85%.

N-#ZH

TF

EI

L fth 3 88 R RERR ()

DR P AR (E)

(1) EEBEHEL(E)

i

ke

*

ZE QA MR E A B IB50%H 1

o UHRRERAMBEZFAF -

HRARBEEFARIEH79.85%
Vg

%5

=

MR A RIBB AL R B R
B R RRLEL (] B R R AE L D

o] @

o

ZENTHRPANEE 2 FRRESBR
50% Mtk - WHBERAMEEZ
FRBZFATF - ARARREEFH
PR HT9.85% M Em - MARER
BRHHEBEFEZLERANRHALL
DIEFRELL IR -

RABERRE - FRARANZEMERARAR
AYFRAFRRFRELL OIS BERH

BA :

511 R2018F5A2H8 » AR A ZF AR

2

HEETRNFARELUAEERR
NACHHTE -

2018562 A27H + AARZFRAREH
BRI G FB N E AR
4,800,0007T ~ S EIRE 5 MM E
X $1 5,000,000 7T # % 9,800,000 7T -
EHEMEEREHN - K% B
MEHBMHEEREEHL100%6E - &
A R iR A L P M S AL B R
& 579.85% M °

2018 i%ﬁﬁ 201
IERREERNERERO AR
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

i 292

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

(1) Components of the Company (Continuea)

Note 3:

On 12 August 2016, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi
Trading, established Chaopi Jiusheng as a wholly-owned
subsidiary, with registered capital of RMB30,000,000. The
Company indirectly hold 79.85% equity of Chaopi Jiusheng
through Chaopi Trading. Chaopi Jiusheng has obtained
business license with NO. 911101056MAOO7KEC70. As
at 15 February 2017, Chaopi Trading invested registered
capital of RMB12,000,000 to Chaopi Jiusheng and its
residue capital has not been paid by Chaopi Trading.

Note 4: On 16 February 2017, according to ‘About Beijing Chaopi

Note 5:

Huilong Trading Company Limited natural person’s transfer
of equity’ (JKLBZ[2016]N0.49), Chaopi Trading purchased
22.25% equity of Chaopi Huilong hold by three natural
people, who are Zhang Shangzhu, Zhang Xixi and Liudong.
After equity acquisition Chaopi Trading directly hold 100%
equity of Chaopi Huilong, that is, the Company indirectly
hold 79.85% equity of Chaopi Huilong through Chaopi
Trading.

On 14 July 2017, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi
Trading, established Chaopi Huansheng as a subsidiary
held by 51%, with registered capital of RMB15,000,000.
The Company indirectly hold 40.72% equity of
Chaopi Huansheng through Chaopi Trading. Chaopi
Huansheng has obtained business license with NO.
91110105MAO0G8A42P. As at 31August 2017, Chaopi
Trading invested registered capital of RMB7,650,000 to
Chaopi Huansheng and its residue capital has been paid

by other shareholders.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

N~ HEAERTAERE)

EFREHRIERE)
(1) TEEFHEA(E)
3 R2016E8 A 128 » AAF ZFAA

B2

55 ¢

PAHEBRERLEZEFARGAILR
B Hi & A& AR 30,000,000
T ARELEBEMEEREHE T
REET9.85% M m B MR EMIF
91110105MAO07KECT70%E L7 4 %4
BR o Z22017F2 A15 Bt E SRt
B FE12,000,0007T © FlerHE R
AR E AR BAT o

M20178E2 8160 - SR B E(H
R R EREEAR AR B R
ANEERE—F) (RFEMRF[2016]49
)M IR - RAAKZE
=R BA NIRRT EE22.25%
Mt o RS - SR B EER
B H100.00% 5 - BIZARRREBEA
A E B SR IERE79.85% K

75 o

B

20177 A148 - NARIZ FARH
HEERERLTFRAARLRE - #F
RREGIR51% - HEfERABARKE
15,000,0007C ° R A B@EBHAMEE
REEA A IBR40.72%MEE - §
#LIR B £ BL1591110105MAO0G8A42P
HKIMLEHNR - R2017F 8 A
31 HHtMEmMBPRBEETE
7,650,0007T - FEAH EF AHEMAR
REBRE -
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

(1) Components of the Company (Continued)

Note 6:

Note 7:

Note 8:

On 8 August 2017, the Company and Beijing Lianchao
Co., Ltd have signed “Property Transaction Contract”,
and on 30 September 2017, the Company acquired 85%
equity interest in Lianchao Limited, which was established
at 22 July 2015 by the Company and Shoulian Group, the
Company held 15% equity interest. After the acquisition,
the Company held Lianchao Limited as a wholly-owned
subsidiary, with registered capital of RMB10,000,000.
Lianchao Limited was directly held by the Company as to
100.00%.

On 27July 2017, the Company established Jingkelong
Fresh as a wholly-owned subsidiary, with registered
capital of RMB10,000,000. Jingkelong Fresh has obtained
business license with NO. 911101056MAOOGK4B4J. As at
the reporting date, Jingkelong Fresh has not been paid.
Jingkelong Fresh was directly held by the Company as to
100.00%.

On 30 November 2018, according to ‘Reply to the approval
of the company by the Chaoyang Company to approve
the partial shareholding of the natural person shareholder
of Baishun Trading Co., Ltd.” (JKLBZ[2018]N0.50), Chaopi
Trading purchased 11.55% equity of Tangshan Baishun
hold by the natural people, who is Kong yushun. After
equity acquisition Chaopi Trading directly hold 81.55%
equity of Tangshan Baishun, that is, the Company indirectly
hold 65.12% equity of Tangshan Baishun through Chaopi
Trading.

N EEMERPHESE)

EFARPHER(E)

(1) EEBEHEL(E)

716 ¢

37

78

RAREILREMEERERRARR
2017F8ABHEKEERHER)
WH2017F9A308 » WiEH B A Al
85% MR #E (Bt B A B £20154F 7 H 22
HEEBHEBEAQRRERY - &
NEFAHBARS%KRE) - AR
MR s SER % - BB A AR B AL
AIZETAR HaAMEAXAAARE
10,000,0007T ° A 7 & 5 % A B 2
AF]100.00% Mz ©

M2017567 A27H + AARIKLEET
NRAVEHERNE  EdMERBAR
#10,000,0007T ° 4 i & 7 jE 2 B 15
91110105MAQ0GKABAJ5E T 7 4 2 3,
B BEARER  £HEMNENT
f % 710,000,000 7T i# K AT © AR
A E A £ BHERE100.00% 8 5

72018411 A30H - FA#LE Bk R(FE
R A R EEILBEEIEEE AR
NEIEAAREIT D BRERE) (R
B F[2018]505% ) 3L - WEEFL &
JIE 8 A A BRER T4 F LU B IE11.55% %
oo RIEWEE Bl EmEERERS
HB1.55% MR - BIARDF@mEAit
B R AE L BE6S. 12%M xR o

2018 & #f
I RRREEEEERNERAF] 293

\4



L

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS el b

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 2018 /&

il

All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)
Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

(2) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries:

Proportion of
minority interests
(%)

PERR

Name of subsidiaries FRA%EE FREA %)
Chaopi Trading and its subsidiaries ~ E3#t A EREF AR 20.15 (Note)
20.15(3)

N~ HEAERTAERE)

Profits and losses attributing

to minority interests
BRRY
RRbkE (%)

2018 2017

MBEE | 20175E

42,478,581 | 47,102,222

EFARHNER(E)
(2) EENHPEFRAFBREENHE
Fo3INS
Dividends to minority
interests Minority interests
HAHRRAERA SHRRER
2018 2017 2018.12.31 2017.12.31
2N\ “EtF
N18FE | 20175 | TZA=t-B | tZA=1-A
52,765,471 | 53892964 | 460,389,879 | 474,138,830

Note: The proportion of ownership interests and voting of the

i FARDEIRREFERL P SRR EL

minority shareholders of subsidiaries are of equal. BIkER -
Significant assets and liabilities: FEEEAR
2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—E-N\F —ET—+tF
ltem THH +=ZA=+—-H | +tZA=+—H
Current assets REEE 4,683,768,070 4,439,907,689
Non-current assets EMBEE 228,527,896 250,112,693
Current liabilities mENAE 3,856,118,897 3,409,012,805
Non-current liabilities ERHAaE 35,193,402 225,343,080
Financial performance and net cash flow: KERRRIREGFRE
2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—E-N\F —E—+tF
ltem THH +=ZA=+—-8 | +t=ZA=+—H
Operating income BEIA 7,497,621,076 7,574,793,123
Operating cost and other expenses EEKAREH 7,411,212,063 7,490,112,046
Net profit and total comprehensive income FAE KRR W AR 45,466,718 55,045,146
Cash flows from operating activities KEEBReFRE 534,196,617 302,862,356
Cash flows from investing activities KEEZHHRSFRE 27,669,228 26,546,208
Cash flows from financial activities EE5EHREFRE (357,547,767) (257,383,917)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s financial instruments mainly comprise cash and
bank balances, accounts receivable, other receivables, short-
term investments, available-for-sale financial assets, other non-
current assets, other non-current assets due within one year,
accounts payable, other payables, bonds payable, notes payable,
short-term borrowings, long-term borrowings due within one year
and long-term borrowings. Details of the financial instruments
are set out in Note (VI). The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the risk management policies on how to mitigate
these risks are detailed as below. These risk exposures are
managed and monitored by the management to ensure that such

risks are within a limited range.

1. Risk management objectives and policies

The Group engages in risk management with the aim of
achieving an appropriate balance between risks and returns,
where the negative effects of risks against the operating
results of the Group are minimized, in order to maximize the
interests of shareholders and other stakeholders. Based on
such objective of risk management, the fundamental strategy
of risk management of the Group is to ascertain and analyze
various risks exposures, establish appropriate risk tolerance
thresholds, carry out risk management procedures and
monitor these risks in a timely and reliable manner, thus to

confine risk exposures within a prescribed scope.

h-RBEEmTERBENRE

FEBENTIESMTIABEERNES - B

wo BN BHRE  AHHES
BMEE BEMERDEE - —FRIHNE
IR EE - BAKRR - EMEMAR - &
ES - BNRE - EHEXR - —FAIH
WERBERLERESRE - SEERITAN
AABRFRMENEEERR - BELER
TARMNAR  URAREERREELR
B P ERER B L E IR R A T Al - AR E
IR BT I L R R O 1T B TR AN B AR
R Lt B Bz IR E VSR 2 A

(—) BpEE B EMEE
REERERBEEN B IZRERKR
Wz HESEENTE - SRREAR

ERExEN B AP EREDSKEK

CERERAFE KA o ERZER
BEAR  AEEEREENERKE
2 FETE A0 20 A P TED e 0 5 AR L

EE R R R ASEGNETRREE
IR SEE R ERRETEE - #
SIEHIERENEEZA °
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

i 29

(Continued)

1. Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.1 Market risk

1.1.1Exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss resulting
from changes in foreign currency exchange rates.
All of the Group’s transaction are denominated
in its functional currency RMB, except for Beijing
Chaopi Trading’s subsidiary Chaopi Maolisheng
Hong Kong Company Limited which incorporated
in Hong Kong, PRC and used EUR as the
Functional currency.As at 31 December 2018,
the total assets and total liability of Chaopi
Maolisheng Hong Kong amount to approximately
EUR 4,745,649 and EUR5,162,747 denominated
in foreign currency. The management does not
expect that a change in foreign exchange rate will
have a significant impact on the Group’s gross

profit and shareholders’ equity.

1.1.2Interest rate risk — risk of changes in cash flows

The risk of changes in fair value from financial
instruments as a result of interest rate change
mainly relates to fixed interest securities (see Note
(VI) 26 Other current liability). The Group’s policy
has not taken any action to eliminate fair value

risk from fixed interest securities.
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
1.1 Market risk (Continued)

1.1.2Interest rate risk — risk of changes in cash flows

(Continued)

The risk of changes in cash flows from financial
instruments as a result of interest rate change
mainly relates to floating-rate bank loans (see
Note (VI), 18 Short-term borrowings). It is the
Group’s policy to maintain floating interest rate of
these loans in order to eliminate fair value risk due

to interest rate change.

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis is based on
the assumption that a change in market interest
rates would have an impact on interest income or

expense of floating-rate financial instruments.

The management believes that the Group’s
exposure to interest rate risk in bank deposits
is not significant, therefore did not disclose
the sensitivity analysis of bank deposit interest
rate. On the basis of the above assumption and
supposing that other parameters remain constant
(Without regard to the influence of capitalized
interest), an 1% increase/(decrease) of interest
rate would lead to a (decrease)/increase of
RMB27,576,494and RMB27,162,104 (before

taxation) in current profit or loss and shareholders’

equity in 2018 and 2017 respectively.
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1 mEEEE)
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TARSREEHNERET
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Hih FERZFHBERT(TE
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

<« 29

1.

Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.2 Credit risk

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017,
the largest credit risk exposure related to a potential
financial loss mainly derived from the failure in
performance of contractual obligations by counterparty,
which would result in a loss in financial assets, and
the guarantees provided by the Group, including: the
carrying amount of financial assets recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet. The carrying amounts
of the financial assets, which are recorded at fair
value, represent the current risk exposure but not the
maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future

as a result of the change in fair values.

To reduce credit risk, the Group trades only with
recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the
Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, balances of accounts
receivable are monitored on an ongoing basis to
ensure that the Group’s exposure to bad debt is not

significant.
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at each balance sheet
date to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. Therefore, the
management believes that the Group’s exposure
to credit risk has been effectively monitored and
managed. The Group has adopted necessary policies
to ensure that all customers have a good credit
record. At 31 December 2018, except for the amounts
included in account receivables top five (Note (VI) 2)
and individual significant long-term receivables, the
Group has no other significant concentration of credit

risk.

The Group’s working capital is deposited at banks
with higher credit ratings, and hence the credit risk in

working capital is insignificant.
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT hoEeRmIAMEBENRREE)

(Continued)
1. Risk management objectives and policies (Continued) (—) RREEEENBEE)
1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 2 EAEEBGE)
Maturity analysis of the financial assets overdue but AEABROEBHERMEN S
unimpaired: BEEMBRSTIT
31 December 2018 2018%F12H31H
Overdue but unimpaired
S ARE
Within Over
1 month 1-3 months 3 months Total
BEIEAR BE1-3EA BEHEAML =
Accounts receivable JEUTBR X 130,787,765 47,767,871 107,280,499 285,836,135
31 December 2017 20175128318
Overdue but unimpaired
BEBRRE
Within Over
1 month 1-3 months 3 months Total
BE1IEARN @E1-8@A mHEBEANE &t
Accounts receivable FEUTBR X 126,891,299 44,970,743 115,146,921 287,008,963
On 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, #R2018F 12 A31H K&2017F 124
the accounts receivable that were past due but 310 - D@ HERRIER EWER
not impaired related to a number of independent FEAEMMAEBBRITRHE
customers that have a good track record with the BHNBEUEFPAR AR - B2@
Group. Other receivables that were past due but not HME RORE A E M FE R B AR
impaired related to other amounts payable to the ESBFNEMEKRZIBEER -
Group as a prevailing party in litigations. Based on past BEBELNFLES R EREEX
experience, the Group believes that no impairment BHEEAECBIWR AR 25
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as B AEERBEFTHEITRR
there has not been a significant change in credit quality B -

and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT h-BESRTIAMBNRRE(E)

(Continued)
1. Risk management objectives and policies (Continued) (—) RAREEEEMEKE)
1.3 Liquidity risk 3 mEERE
In managing liquidity risk, the Group maintains and EERmEBERE - KEEREE
monitors cash and cash equivalents that are adequate BERATOINEEMREEEY

in the opinion of the management, to meet the needs
of the Group’s operations and mitigate the impact from
cash flow fluctuations. The management monitors the
utilization of bank loans and ensures compliance with
loan covenants. Meanwhile, the Group adopts banking

instruments to meet short-term funding needs.

The Group manages its risk to deficiency of funds
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool
considers both the maturity of its financial instruments
and the projected cash flows from the Group’s

operations.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s net current
liabilities amounted to RMB940,103,726 (31 December
2017: RMB1,0683,155,437). The Company uses bank
loans and bonds as its major sources of funding. As
at 31 December 2018, the Company had unutilized
bank loan facilities of RMB1.15 billion. Based on the
Company’s unutilized bank loan facilities, profitability
and cash flow forecast within the next 12 months,
the management believes that the Company will have
adequate funds in the future for timely repayment of
the existing debts and maintaining its normal business

activities.
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

1. Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

N EHERT AMBNERE(E)

The following is the maturity analysis for financial

liabilities held by the Group which is based on

undiscounted remaining contractual obligations:

31 December 2018

(—) EERBRNBERE)

3 mEmEEE(E)

AEEFAERAERRRTRANG
EREBHIIHBROFTOT

2018F12H31H

Within 1-3 3 months Over

1 month months to 1 year 1-2 years 2 years Total

18R %A 123F  3fEAEIE 122F 2FNE &it

Bank loans (including interest) BEZ(EFE) 260,375,648 489,774,829  2,270,044,693 - - 3,020,195,170

Notes payable ES: 430,724,013 86,526,018 114,014,400 - - 631,264,431

Accounts payable EfTERR 951,990,595 49,442,752 - - - 1,001,433,347

Bonds payable (including interest) & EH(EH8) - - 303,823,750 - - 303,823,750
Other payables (excluding rent

received in advance) EftERF(TaRgES) | 105455310 - 110,918,523 - - 216,373,833

Total At 1,748,545,566 625,743,599  2,798,801,366 - - 573,090,531

31 December 2017 2017%12A31H
Within 3 months Over

1 month 1-3 months to 1 year 1-2 years 2 years Total

1EALR 1£3f8A SEAZEIE 1522 2FLE At

Bank loans (including interest) ROIER(EFEL) 411,931,566 445,116,049 1,922,197 541 - - 2,779,245,156

Notes payable GES 17,590,669 86,859,054 160,389,961 - - 264,839,684

Accounts payable Egﬁ,ﬁfs}ﬂ 1,025,533,160 45,082,923 - - - 1,070,616,083

Bonds payable (including interest)  EftEH(EF|E) - - 775223014 - - 775223014
Other payables (excluding rent

received in advance) HEEMZ(TeRNES) 59,534,625 - 100,772,951 - - 160,307,576

Total At 1,614,590,020 577,058,026  2,958,583,467 - - 5,050,231,513
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XI.

DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE

The available-for-sale financial assets(Note (VI) 8 (Note)), fair value
of which determined in accordance with quoted market price of
investee’s stock, are classified as Level 1, known as quoted price

(unadjusted) of similar assets and liabilities in active market.

The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized costs in the

financial statements approximate their fair values.

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS

1. Parent of the Company

1:||||/

T AAEENKE

URARBEFERREHFALHMBRENE
BMEE(MERN 8T AEREENESE
mAETS LWREESAABEBRAALE
B ENFIER  ARBEEEXABELR
M5 ECREHER)WRE -

AEEERERA  MBERRPIZEHRRA
AENEREERERABNKREEERD
ZEBEENABENARER -

- BRI RERXS

Registered

capital

(10 thousand

Name of the Place of Legal Nature of yuan)
parent company  Type incorporation  representative  business EER
BRIER rERE i EARR RHME (En)
Chaoyang Auxiiary State-owned  Beiing Mr.Wang Weilin -~ Sales of food and 21,306.10

ol products

JBER RRAER ARE IR HERRERER

1 ARENFRFAFER

Proportion of
the entity's  Proportion of
ownership  the entity’s
interests  voting power  The ultimate
held bythe  held by the  controlling
parent (%) parent (%)  party of the

BLRY LAY Company Uniform social
REEMER  RRERR R0E credit code
LA  RELA%)  RAEHE G-HEERARE
40.61 4061 Chaoyang  9111000010163706X9
Auxiliary
BRI

2. Subsidiaries of the Company

Please refer to Note (VIIl) Equity in subsidiaries.

3. Related party transaction

3.1 Related party’s lease transaction

2 AEENFLFER
FHAMEN C EFRAIREER o

3 BBXZER
(1) BEBEEREX

Pricing basis of related
Lessor Leasee Type of lease party transaction Notes 2018 Amount 2017 Amount
hiE &R QR IR HEBKE fif N18FELE NITERLE
Chaoyang Auxiliary The Company Rental expenses Price negotiated Note 1 1,366,135 1,346,240
EE AR Bzt RERRENER 1
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RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3. Related party transaction (Continued)

3.1 Related party’s lease transaction (Continued)

Note 1:

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

On 30 April 2004, the Company and its subsidiary
Chaopi Trading leased several properties in Beijing
from Chaoyang Auxiliary, pursuant with annual rent
incremental on every five years for a term from 1
January 2004 to 31 December 2023. From 2006
to 2009, the Group entered into lease contracts or
supplemental agreements on several properties. As at
30 June 2011, the annual rents under the contracts
with Chaoyang Auxiliary were RMB7,344,499 and
RMB920,853 respectively for the Company and its
subsidiary Chaopi Trading. On 30 June 2011, except
for the properties used by 10 stores of the Company
(including 5 properties still owned by Chaoyang
Auxiliary and 5 properties for which lease agreements
were terminated), the State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of Beijing Chaoyang
District (“SASAC Chaoyang”) approved the transfer of
the land and properties used by the Company from
Chaoyang Auxiliary to Beijing Hongchao Weiye SOE
Management Company Limited (“Hongchao Weiye”).
The Company continued to lease the properties
owned by Chaoyang Auxiliary for its 5 stores at
annual rent of RMB162,758 with incremental once
every five years. On 18 June 2012, the Company
entered into a property lease supplemental
agreement with Chaoyang Auxiliary, pursuant to
which the annual rent for the aforesaid five properties
were adjusted to RMB1,111,933 effecting from 1 July
2012 with incremental by 3% every five years; and
1 additional property was leased at annual rent of
RMB214,412 with incremental by 3% every five years
for a term from 1 July 2012 to 31 December 2023.
The rental expenses payable to Chaoyang Auxiliary
for the year ended at 31 December 2018 and for
the year ended at 31 December 2017 were both
recognized at RMB1,366,135 and RMB1,346,240.
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RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Related party transaction (Continued)

3.1 Related party’s lease transaction (Continued)

On 1 July 2011, the Company and its subsidiary
Chaopi Trading entered into lease contracts
respectively with Hongchao Weiye to renew the leasing
of properties under the original contractual terms
at annual rent of RMB7,344,499 and RMB920,853
respectively effecting from 1 July 2011.

On 1 July 2012, the Company and its subsidiary
Chaopi Trading entered into supplemental agreements
to the aforesaid lease contracts respectively with
Hongchao Weiye, pursuant to which the annual rents
for such properties were adjusted to RMB26,997,108
and RMB2,808,259 respectively effecting from the

same day with incremental by 3% every five years.
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XI.

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3.

Related party transaction (Continued)

3.1 Related party’s lease transaction (Continued)

On 18 December 2013, the Company entered into
supplemental agreements to the aforesaid lease
contracts with Hongchao Weiye. Considering the
Company paid relevant construction fees on the rebuild
project of certain of the properties in previous years
and the renovation project conducted by the Company
on behalf of Hongchao Weiye, Hongchao Weiye will
compensate the Company for the cost of construction
costs and related taxes paid (“agent construction fees”)
on property renovation project and re-build project of
RMB86,742,211, including RMB41,265,838 recorded
in other receivables and RMB45,476,373 recorded in
long-term receivables. Meanwhile, agent construction
fees receivables of RMB22,197,108 recorded in other
receivables will immediately offset the rent payable to
Hongchao Weiye at the end of 2013 as agreed by both
parties. From the 1 January 2014 to 31 December
2023, the fees on the rebuild project of certain
properties in previous years and the renovation project
conducted by the Company on behalf of Hongchao
Weiye will offset the rent to the Hongchao Weiye at

end of every year.
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XI.

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3.

Related party transaction (Continued)

3.1

3.2

Related party’s lease transaction (Continued)

On 25 November 2014, the Company entered into
supplemental agreements again to terminate the
two supplemental agreements assigned on 1 July
2012 and 18 December 2013 respectively. From 1
July 2014 to 31 December 2023, the annual rents
of such properties were adjusted to revert to the
amount in the agreements on 1 July 2011, which
were RMB7,344,499 and RMB920,853 respectively
with incremental by 3% every five years. Meanwhile,
for the rest of agent construction fee amounted to
RMB58,164,490 on 30 June 2014, Hongchao Weiye
won’t take the responsibility of paying the funds
back when the original agreement and supplemental
agreements are executed efficiently. The aforesaid rest
of agent construction fee is undertaken and amortized

by the Company.
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t- BBEREBRS(E)
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BB S ER(E)
(1) BHHEEEX(E)

MR2014F11 F25H » AREEH 5L
HEER LABHESRBAEH

FotE - K1 Ea201267 A1H
&2013F 12 A18H D BIE T MM
MEFTHE - B2014F7A1BZE
2023%F12A31H « LSy
FREWREK2011F7A1BER]
MHEEER&E S RAAR
7,344,499 & A R 920,853

C BRFIEEI% o R - Y
FulRETRFN2014566 A30H

#4508 A R#58,164,4907T * 5,84
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£ - PAMRETRERBBEIER
ENEHEERGES RN ETE
i e

Compensation for key management personnel FREE A S
2018 2017

ltem EREM 20185 & 20176 E
Compensation for key management: AR E IR A BIREN

Short-term employee benefits HHEEBET 6,309,394 5,278,583

Post-employment benefits RIRIEAER 586,955 466,890
Total &5t 6,896,349 5,745,473
Key management members are personnel having BREEASHEARMNTEEE
authority and responsibility for planning, directing 1TEHEl - BEMEGAZEZTEHN
and controlling the activities of the Group, including AB  BREEZE EFRAMT

directors, supervisors and other personnel to exercise
similar functions. Emolument paid to key management
includes wages or salaries, bonus, allowance,

subsidies.
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XIl. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND T- BEHLIREBIS(E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3. Related party transaction (Continued) 3 BHIXZERE)
3.2 Compensation for key management personnel (2) BREZEANSIHH (&)
(Continued)
According to the requirements of Company Ordinance BEBBHIAMES LTRARE
of Hong Kong and the Listing Rules of The Stock BRBHRE - FREZREEM
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, emoluments of ST

directors and supervisors for the year are as follows:

(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) FELIEHTTEFEFH
The fees paid to independent non-executive FENZNBIIIFNTES
directors during the year were as follows: ik U
RMB’000
ARETTT
2018 2017
Independent non-executive directors ¥ IEITEE 20184 & 20174 E
Onward Choi £8E 155 155
Chen Liping PR 42 42
Wang Liping FAF 42 42
Total A&t 239 239
There were no other emoluments payable to the MR2018F [E M2017F EHEH
independent non-executive directors during 2018 HEN e TR LIERITE
and 2017. =0
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(Continued)

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Related party transaction (Continued)

3.2 Compensation for key management personnel

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors,

b e e

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(2) BREZASHH (&)

b) BITEFE HFHTEF E

supervisors and the chief executive FRABITE
RMB’000
ARBTT
Salaries, Post-
allowances Performance employment
and benefits related benefits
Fees in kind bonuses *  contributions Total
e
#e - 2E
2018 20185 E e RENEF EuES EREFHER “me
Executive directors: WTES:
Li Jianwen FEX - 458 146 55 659
Shang Yongtian R - 458 145 55 658
Li Chunyan THEH - 378 182 55 615
Liu Yuejin 2R - 244 212 51 507
Subtotal 5 - 1,538 685 216 2,439
Non-executive directors: 3EHI{TEE :
Li Shunxiang EYEy=d - - - _ _
Wang Weilin TE# - - - - -
Subtotal Nt - - - - -
Supervisors: Bx
Liu Wenyu 2 % - 378 181 55 614
Niu Hongyan AT - 256 86 38 380
Li Chunyi Z5h - 233 121 38 392
Chen Zhong BiE 35 - - - 35
Fu Yanjun (N3 35 - - - 35
Subtotal Nk 70 867 388 131 1,456
Total At 70 2,405 1,073 347 3,895
bl

2018 & #f
BEEEEERNERAF] 309 &
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XIl. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND T- BEHLIREBIS(E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3. Related party transaction (Continued) 3 BHIXZERE)
3.2 Compensation for key management personnel (2) FHREEASHH(E)
(Continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors, (b) BITEF  HHPTEF  E
supervisors and the chief executive (Continued) F R AR (42 )
RMB’000
ARBFT
Salaries, Post-
allowances  Performance  employment
and benefits related benefits
Fees in kind bonuses *  contributions Total
e
2 2
2017 20175 & we  REDEN BEe  RIRENER BHs
Executive directors: Hi7ESE:
Li Jianwen FEY - 453 100 51 604
Shang Yongtian Pk - 453 100 51 604
Li Chunyan ZEH - 309 176 51 536
Liu Yugjin 2| i - 257 516 46 819
Subtotal Nt - 1,472 892 199 2,563
Non-executive directors: JEHITEE ¢
Li Shunxiang [y - - - - -
Wang Weilin FEH - - - - -
Subtotal Nk - - - - -
Supervisors: EE:
Liu Wenyu ke - 309 176 51 536
Wang Hong FiT - 229 192 46 467
Yao Jie iz - 125 108 28 261
Niu Hongyan EeAR - 60 - 10 70
Li Chunyi TER - 14 - 1 15
Chen Zhong g 35 - - - 35
Cheng Xianghong A 18 - - - 18
Fu Yanjun IOF:3 18 - - - 18
Subtotal et 71 737 476 136 1420
Total = 71 2,209 1,368 335 3,983
* Performance related bonuses of these executives * ZEEENAREEABNENRESR
and supervisors are related to the profit of the BIEAT E—FFEEER -

Group of last year.
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XI.

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3.

Related party transaction (Continued)

b e e

A
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

t- BBEREBRS(E)

3.2 Compensation for key management personnel

(Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors,

(c)

supervisors and the chief executive (Continued)

In 2018 and 2017, there was no arrangement

under which a director or a supervisor waived

or agreed to waive any remuneration, and no

remuneration was paid by the Group to a director

or a supervisor as bonuses or unemployment

compensations for their entry to the Group.

Five highest paid employees

Details of the remuneration of the five highest paid

BB S ER(E)

(2) BREZASHH (&)

b) BITEFE HFHTEF E

FERABHETE ()

R2018FEF M2017TFE - &
EREEMERENXRE N
BEIMME  mMEBETES

e TES  BEF - NUIE
RINBRERINBEE R

BRI R A TIERRE o

) IlREFeER B2
AEEARN AuGEHER

employees during the year are as follows: FMEFES T
RMB’000
AREFT
2018 2017
ltemn L] 20185 20175
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e #e - EBRENEA 6,481 6,187
Performance related bonuses EaRe 4,910 5,306
Post-employment benefits contributions RIRBAIER 115 106
Total CE 11,506 11,599
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Xl. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3. Related party transaction (Continued)

t- BBERBBIS(E)

3 BEBMXIXZERE)

3.2 Compensation for key management personnel (2) BREZEANSIHH (&)
(Continued)
(c) Five highest paid employees (Continued) () AluZEEFHEESSHNZ
(%)
The number of employees whose remuneration FMAR TS =EMEEB
fell within the following bands is as follows: =
2018 2017
20185 E 201758
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 %1,500,00078 7T 1 1
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001%2,000,0007 7T 1 -
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 22,500,000/ 7T - 1
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 £3,000,0007% 75 - 3
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000 3,000,001 23,500,000/ 75 1 -
HKD3,500,001 to HKD4,000,000 3,500,00124,000,0007% 75 2 -
Total =h 5 5
4. Receivables and payables of related parties 4 - BAEELEWESRIE
The Group had no receivables or payables balance with 72018412 A31H &20174 12 A 31
related parties on 31 December 2018 and 31 December B REEEEEH S R KR ERR
2017. THEREE -
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XI. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND T- BEAIRBEBIZ (&)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5. Related party commitments 5 BMELEE

The Company had signed a lease contract with Chaoyang AAREBBRREINTEERES

Auxiliary for operation and storage. Rl - ARPIEEEE o

The anticipated future rent by the Group: AEEBEANARFESZNOEE A
—E-N\F —E—tF

ltem 1HH +=A=+—H +=—A=+—8H

Within 1 year IE:N 1,366,135 1,366,135

1-2 years 1-24F 1,366,135 1,366,135

2-3 years 2-34F 1,366,135 1,366,135

Over 3 years 3FEMNE 2,793,746 4,179,777

Total CEH 6,892,151 8,278,182

XIll. COMMITMENTS
T EAERIEEE
1. Significant commitments
1 BERAHSBE

(1) Capital commitments

(1) HEX#AEFE
—B-N\F —T—tF
ltem HAE +=ZA=+—H +=—A=+—8H
Acquisition of fixed assets BEETEE
Authorized but not contracted EREEREL 336,830,011 310,499,380
Contracted but not provided BELYEREE 202,213,145 200,071,641
Total A5 539,043,156 510,571,021

2018 & #f 313
I RRREEEEERNERAF] &



(8 i Lt S

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R P o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

1:||||/

XIl. COMMITMENTS (Continued) T EARERREBE(E)

1. Significant commitments (Continued) 1 BEREBESEE)
(2) Operating lease commitments (2) KEHERFE

2018412 A31H k20174124
C RN BEEINEET AT

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the

Group had the following commitments in respect of 31H

non-cancellable operating leases:

HOKEHEANBRIT

As the lessee VEREMA
2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—E-N\F B
ltem HH +=HA=+—-8| +t=ZA=+—H
Minimum lease payments under TAEEE A L E &K
non-cancellable operating leases: FHE R FREE -
1st year subsequent to the balance BEABERAKEF
sheet date 229,140,495 227,412,307
2nd year subsequent to the balance BEABRAKELF
sheet date 211,389,002 224,393,810
3rd year subsequent to the balance BEABRAKESF
sheet date 197,435,695 206,656,679
Subsequent periods LB FE 940,358,986 1,115,758,402
Total A&t 1,578,324,178 1,774,221,198
As the lessor EREHEA
2018.12.31 2017.12.31
—E-N\F —E—tF
ltem ER= tT=ZA=+—-H | +tZH=+—H
Minimum lease receivables under T—H’ﬁﬁﬁi‘“ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁ
non-cancellable operating leases: Gl E
1st year subsequent to the balance EEAERA 1%%1 F
sheet date 83,298,668 114,579,378
2nd year subsequent to the balance BEAEXRBBFE2F
sheet date 65,603,879 90,306,002
3rd year subsequent to the balance BEABERAKEIF
sheet date 49,788,097 69,505,614
Subsequent periods EFE 91,552,329 146,727,781
Total &&t 290,242,973 421,118,775
2. Contingencies 2~ RBEEE

]
|
H
ECl
el

HZ=2018F12A31H » K
WENERNNBFEE -

As at 31 December 2018, no material contingencies should

be disclosed by the Company.
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XIIl. SIGNIFICANTE SUBSEQUENT EVENTSAFTER Ttz EEEBRARER
BALANCE SHEET DATE

1. Issuing bonds 1 BITES

On 21 March 2019, the Company issued of the year 2019 R201943 821 H » IRBEA R A #E 3%
the first phase of short-term bonds with a coupon rate of HEIERIBITARGD BR AR ZEFTACIE
3.9%, a term of maturity of 365 days, payment date to be TRECEBRBMETAEAHEBRE) K
24 March 2020 and interest date to be 25 March 2019 NAEITT2019F EF —HEHRMES
in aggregate amounting to RMB300 million through Bank 38T - FHITHAIZE3.9% - HAR365K -
of Beijing Co., Ltd., according to the signed “Interbank #EH2019F3H258 AT H2020%F
bonds market debt financing instruments of non-financial 3A248  BEARER © RAIFEKRK
enterprises underwriting agreement”. As at date of report, BRRBEITEARESEENES -

the Company has not received all raised capital used to

issue this short-term bond.

2. Other significant non-adjusting event after balance 2. HthEENEEEBERARIERRES
sheet date bi=|
Except for the issues mentioned above and that disclosed in bR Pl EE RSN S4B EER
Note (VI) 34, no other significant non-adjusting event should Sh - BERMGHRERIER - REEE
be disclosed by the Group by the end of the approval date HiBEHBEMNEEABERAKEIA -

of the financial statements.
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XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS

i 3

Assets at fair value

On 31 December 2018, The Group, using the assets at fair
value, subscribed the fund products of Junxiang Wuliangye

No.1 for subsidiary Chaopi Trading:

ltem EH

Junxiang Wuliangye No.1 EZTRERIHR

tH HtbEEEE

- UAREBEFENEE
M2018F12A31H « REBUARE
B EMEEARNQAZ FARGIE
BRBNEZRIRRIRESER

2018.12.31 | &
Note

14,583,646 | Purchased at 2018
Agpril
R2018F4 AN o

Segment reporting

For the purpose of management, the Group classified the
operations into three segments according to the product

and service:

(@ The retailing segment mainly engages in the distribution
of food, untagged food, daily necessities, drinks and

cigarettes, hardware and household appliances;

(b) The wholesaling segment mainly engages in the
wholesale supply of daily consumer products, including
food, untagged food, beverages, drinks, cigarettes and

daily necessities;

() The “others” segment comprises, principally, selling
plastic packing products, hotel services and school

training services.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately aiming at making decisions about

resources allocation and performance assessment.

6 ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

2.

TR HEEREE(E)

Segment reporting (Continued) 2 pEHEE)
The segment report information is disclosed according to AHHREEERBES ST RMERERSE
the accounting policies and measurement standard adopted HERANSTBRMGT2EEFE @ &
by each segment when reporting to the board of directors L 2 AR EREAMBREREN T
and these principles of measurement should be consistently PR BT S AR -
with the accounting policy and measurement standard of
this financial statement.
All the assets and liabilities have been allocated to FBEENMEBEYBEREES S EEHRE
respective segment, no unallocated asset and liability which Fo NG ERAEER—EEMNEEM
are centrally managed by the Group. afE -
The transfer pricing of inter-segment is based on the market KESHENEREE  2EMISRE
price as well as the actual transaction price. BB HEHHERERETT ©
For the year ended at 31 December 2018 20185 &
Inter-
segment
offset
Retailing  Wholesaling Others A Total
ltem EH 2E BmiE Hib R HEEH Bt
Operating income ESUN
External revenue R HIMA 4,643,970,617  6,962,959,353 43,353,802 - 11,650,283,772
Inter-segment revenue e IEGLON 31,243,357 497,502,132 21,342,054 (550,087,543) -
Total At 4,675,213,974  7,460,461,485 64,695,856 (550,087,543)  11,650,283,772
Total profit loss) T 74926618 97,745,863 4,917,097 - 177,589,578
Income tax expense FEHER 21,704,303 47,719,152 1,789,162 - 71,212,617
Net profit FFIE 53,222,315 50,026,711 3,127,935 - 106,376,961
Total assets BEEE 3,553,667,353  4,898,429,845 330,806,559  (1,095,103,929) 7,687,799,828
Total liabilties Elpit 2,705,349,570  3,864,206,943 36,347,539 (1,095,103,929)  5,510,800,123
Supplementary information: %E}Ef* B
Depreciation and amortization TEMNBEER
expenses 177,272,580 28,725,668 9,362,830 - 215,361,078
Impairment losses on assets EERERR 54,879 6,781,465 - - 6,836,344
Capital expenditures BAEZ 78,048,853 14,766,371 30,659 - 92,845,883
2018 @%ﬁ 317
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XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued) TN HtEEEHE(E)
2. Segment reporting (Continued) 2~ pEBWEE)
For the year ended at 31 December 2017 2017 E
Inter-
segment
offset
Retailing Wholesaling Others HEE Total
Item A 25 i3 %% HEER At
Operating income =ELUN
External revenue R ZMA 4,899,147,579  7,007,674,044 48,915,664 - 11,955,737,287
Inter-segment revenue AHRZ RN 40,701,384 467,010,744 24424037 (532,136,165)
Total At 4,939,848,963  7,474,684,788 73,339,701 (532,136,165)  11,955,737,287
Total profit Gl 55,201,621 91,148,465 1,839,044 - 148,189,130
Income tax expense FIEHER 9,485,763 43,303,699 557,201 - 53,346,663
Net profit (loss) FHE 45,715,858 47,844,766 1,281,843 - 94,842,467
Total assets BESE 3,067,945,597  4,649,454,159 331,511,514 (948,659,498) 7,700,251,772
Total liabilities Elrcts 2,866,874,865  3,590,729,726 39,680,430 (948,659,498) 5,548,625,523
Supplementary information: BRfES:
Depreciation and amortization expenses#7& M & A 195,808,460 27,159,055 3,940,855 - 226,908,370
Impairment losses on assets BEHERL 65,421 1,718,562 - - 1,783,983
Capital expenditures AR 66,521,418 36,829,328 244,131,038 - 347,481,784
The Group’s businesses principally comprise retail and AEBFEEPEAREMBEIL R L
wholesale in Beijing, the People’s Republic of China. The EERnTEEMPRE  TEA R
majority identifiable assets are all located in Beijing. EHMRIERT ©
Main customers of the Group are as follows: AEBENEERZPERNT
2018 2017
ltem BB 20184 20174
Proportion Proportion
of the total of the total
operating operating
Operating income of the Operating  income of the
income Group (%) Income Group (%)
hEEEE HEEE:
BERA  WALBHI(%) EEIA AL 151(%)
Customer 1 Z51 1,507,898,378 13 | 1,336,538,034 11
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Transaction and balance between the Group and 3 AEEHEEHEEZRZ NG
Shoulian Group
(1) Major transaction between the Group and Shoulian (1) FEFHEHEBHEESZUT
Group
Notes 2018 2017
ltem BH T 20184 20174
Interest income KB YA Note 1
1 - 2,763,236
Interest income from borrowings &4 #{&F 24 Note 2
2 5,824,672 8,160,315
Lease expenses HEEMA Note 3
. 13 3,000,000 4,134,088
Borrowings BAEIIER Note 4
T4 - (73,500,000)
Margin HERES Note 5
5 - (50,000,000)
Note 1: Interest income is derived from accounts receivable.

Note 2:

The interest expenses charged on the balance of
accounts receivable and lending due from Shoulian
were determined with reference to loan interest rate

stipulated by bank for the same period.

Interest income from borrowing is derived from
interest expenses charged on the borrowing of
Shoulian with reference to loan interest rate stipulated

by bank for the same period.

AT MBS YRR B A -
AEE2ERITRABERF E
5 B 5 B ) P LR R R BR R R

5 .
B

2 BEWENBRBRAREEEHZE
RITRMEFNEH A AR

REHNESIFE SRR S -
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XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)
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3. Transaction and balance between the Group and

Shoulian Group (Continued)

(1) Major transaction between the Group and Shoulian

Group (Continued)

Note 3:

On 1 January 2009, the Company leased a property
and land located at Kaifang Road, Huairou District,
Beijing (“Huairou Hypermarket”) from Shoulian with
annual rent of RMB3,000,000 for a term from 1
January 2009 to 31 December 2028.

On 1 January 2009, Shoulian Supermarket leased
a property and land located at Xihongmen Road,
Daxing District, Beijing from Shoulian Group with
annual rent of RMB1,134,088 for a term from
1 January 2009 to 31 December 2028. On 24
December 2010, Shoulian Supermarket was acquired
by the Company and the lease contract remained
valid. On 30 September 2017, the Company acquired
the Lianchao Company, the subsidiary of Shoulian
Group, which owned a property and land located at

Xihongmen Road, Daxing District, Beijing.

For the year ended at 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2017, the recognized lease expenses was
RMB3,000,000 and RMB4,134,088 respectively.

Note 4: As at 31 December 2018, the borrowing provided

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

by Shoulian Supermarket and Lianchao Limited,
which lends to Shoulian Group amounted to
RMB135,600,000, repayable on 31 December 2020
as agreed upon. The interest expenses charged on
the borrowing due from Shoulian referred to bank

loan interest rate during the same period.

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

tH HthEEEH(E

3 FAEMEEHEB RS RBE(E)

(1) FEFHEBEFNEFEZZHOT
(#&)
FE3 1 A2009%E1 18 - AR A B

SEEAE A AL R IERE K
BOREER T (AT EREIEL
REIS ) - HEHBE2009%1 A
1HZE20285%12HA31H  &RF
& A AREES,000,0007T °

M2009F1A1H @ BEBHAE
o 62 B0 AL i A L[S P ALY
BHEERLTH - AEHIH2009
F1A1HZE2028F12A318 -
aRFHES/AR1,134,088
JC ° 20106128248 « HE
BHEAQAWE  ZHEEER
BB - 2017FIAS0A KRR
FIWEE T EE R E 2 TN AR
DA BMBAREAILRTA
FEFEAMENEERIMAE
B

R2018EE M2017EE » A&
ERZNECEAD NI AARE
3,000,0007T }24,134,0887T ©

CR2018F 12 A31H » BB

T R B B A m) 1) B B R AR 4
MESHFERBRBEBRARE
135,600,0007C * & 75 4 & K
HA20205612 A31H - A&E
2 ZR17 R B E FOR = ¥ 1) &
EERHESHERRRFLSE
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XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

3. Transaction and balance between the Group and

Shoulian Group (Continued)

(1) Major transaction between the Group and Shoulian

Group (Continued)

Note 5: As at 4 February 2017 the Company paid margin of
RMB50,000,000 to Shoulian Group for purchasing
its 85% equity interest of Beijing Lianchao Co., Ltd.

according to the framework agreement and the

amount was paid to the Company

for the acquisition

of Lianchao Company’s equity interest in the equity

investment at 30 September 2017.

TR HEEREE(E)

FEEREHEB IS RBEE)

rEHHAEHEBYETEZZUMT

5 R2017F 248 - AR AR

EXRpZEREBRER N RK
BEMBFAMNILIRABBEEES
PR F)185% R 1 H) 5] KR & @
50,000,000 7T * #% K EH 2017
F9 A 30 B AN 7] U B B R
REIREFTE X IREIRE (B

Eoy
A °

(2) Accounts receivable and accounts payable between 55 B 52 B I 5 (B 9 P W R P A °X
the Group and Shoulian Group B

2018.12.31 2017.12.31
=EF-N\F —TtF
Item BEH +=ZA=+—H | +tZHA=+—H
Long-term receivables (Note(Vl) 17)  REAEUGR(FIFER - 17) 135,600,000 135,600,000
Prepaid rents* FE TS 15,000,000 18,000,000

* The amounts are associated with one-off prepayments N ESERANEEBEETEAS

for 15 years by the Group to Shoulian Group under the S EA Y SR EE — o TE

lease contract of Huairou Hypermarket. That prepaid
rents are disclosed in long-term prepaid expenses
and other current assets as at the relevant balance
sheet dates. Details are referred to Note 3 of the major

transactions between the Group and Shoulian Group.

M1sFENEERSAR - EHE
NESEEEARESEEAR
RARMGEERALAEMREE
Ef o F2A L AR EEER
SEMTERHZES -
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL T RRAIPBHRRERREGERE
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

1. Notes receivable and accounts receivable 1 EBREBERERERR
(1) 31 December 2018 (1) 2018%12H31H
Presentation of accounts receivable by category JEURBR SR $E 1 7R
Category <] 2018.12.31
Net book
Carrying amount Bad debt provision value
BESE BREE REEE
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%)
k2] £ (%) &8 HHRRA%)
Receivables that are individually significant Elﬁiﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁ il
and for which bad debt provision is b
assessed individually - - - - -
Receivables for which bad debt provision ~ $Z4AA ST E R
is assessed by groups according to B7
credit risk characteristics 74,528,897 100 - - 74,528,897
Total At 74,528,897 100 - - 74,528,897
Presentation of accounts receivable according to aging FEU AR SR E R I ARERR B B R TE /)
analysis on the basis of the date when revenue is FREcEAT
recognized:
2018.12.31
Carrying Proportion Bad debt Net book
amount (%) provision value
Aging R X} b1l (%) HRES IREEE
Within 1 year 1F AR 74,528,897 100 - 74,528,897
1-2 years 1226 - - - -
2-3 years 2E3F - - - -
3-4 years 3E4F - - - -
4-5 years 4EBF - - - -
Over 5 years 5F A+ - - - -
Total &t 74,528,897 100 - 74,528,897
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(1) 31 December 2018 (Continued)

Accounts receivable of related parties:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL 1R AR EBRREEEEFE(E)
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes receivable and accounts receivable (Continued) 1 BEREBEREWRERRE)

(1) 2018%12531H (&)
JE M5 BRES 7 MO BB T

Relationship Proportion
between of the total
other related accounts
parties and the receivable of the
Company Amount Company (%)
1k BE WL AR X
Company name BNuAE BN RIBAR S BEOEE(%)
Jingkelong Langfang RRERR Subsidiary 39,009,420 52
FRA]
Shouchao Group Bi%kE Subsidiary 8,289,326 11
FRA]
Jingkelong Tongzhou R EM Subsidiary 4,216,333 6
FAH]
Total B 51,515,079 69
Aging analysis method is used to a portfolio of bad MaR - EERRD AR RER
debt provision AR R
2018.12.31
Accounts Bad debt Provision
receivables provision ratio (%)
Aging B FEWERRX HIRER  FHREESGI(%)
Within 1 year 1F AR 74,528,897 - 0
1-2 years 122%F - - 3
2-3 years 2E3F - - 10
3-4 years 3&E4F - - 25
4-5 years 4Z5F - - 50
Over 5 years 5% A - - 100
Total At 74,528,897 -
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
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1. Notes receivable and accounts receivable (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2017

Tt RAEHMBRRETERBER(E)

1 BERRBEREWERRE)

(2) 2017%12531H

Presentation of accounts receivable by category: JEUW AR R D SRR 5
2017.12.31
Carrying amount Bad debt provision Net book value
REHE EREE KEEE
Amount  Proportion (%) Amount Rate (%)
Category Bl Ed L1l %) Ed L1l %)
Receivables that are individually ERHREREBNEY
significant and for which bad debt Bt
provision is assessed individually - - - - -
Receivables for which bad debt AR RERERNE
provision is assessed by W
groups according to credit risk
characteristics 91,547,790 100 - - 91,547,790
Total =l 91,547,790 100 - - 91,547,790

Presentation of accounts receivable according to aging

FEUS AR SR E T YA TERR B HARERE B9

analysis on the basis of the date when revenue is BRECINT
recognized:
2017.12.31

Carrying Proportion Bad debt Net book

amount (%) provision value
Aging BRER &5 L6 151(%) REREE BREEE
Within 1 year 1F LA 91,547,790 100 - 91,547,790
1-2 years 1226 - - - -
2-3 years 25 3F - - - -
3-4 years 3&E4F - - - -
4-5 years AZE5EF - - - -
Over 5 years 59 LAE - - _ _
Total Gt 91,547,790 100 - 91,547,790
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

A

b e e

il

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

5 AT

1. Notes receivable and accounts receivable (Continued) 1>

)

3

31 December 2017 (Continued)

Accounts receivable of related parties:

MHBREBEHEBERE)

FE W R e R WORR ()

(2) 2017%412H31H (%)

Relationship
between other
related parties and

FE WX BE RS JT RO SRIR A T

Proportion of the
total accounts
receivable of the

the Company Amount Company (%)
- G FEUER TR
Company name BRETE BAR RN FEIRER k= LBEERI L 151(%)
Jingkelong Langfang R Subsidiary
FAA] 54,681,118 60
Shouchao Group HHBEEH Subsidiary
FAH] 7,516,348 8
Jingkelong Tongzhou RE M Subsidiary
FRA] 5,549,203 6
Total a5t 67,746,669 74
Top five entities with the largest balances of (38) BRI EBENERGEN L EHE
accounts receivable FEW R 18R
31 December 2018 201812H31H
Proportion of
the amount Closing
to the total balance of
Relationship with accounts bad debt
the Group Amount  Aging receivable (%) provision
hEREES BRER
Name of entity EANES: HANTBE 28 ER BEMHI(%) EREH
Jingkelong Langfang REERS Subsidiary 39,009,420  Within 1 year 52 -
FR7] 1EHR
Shouchao Group BiEEE Subsidiary 8,289,326  Within 1 year 11 -
WA 1EHR
Beijng Chaoyang District ~ BIRETAT Independent third party | 4,812,591  Within 1 year 6 -
Detention Center BUE=H 1EUR
Jingkelong Tongzhou REEEN Subsidiary 4,216,333 Within 1 year 6 -
FR7] 1EHR
Beijing Haidian District BREETH Independent third party | 1,979,206 Within 1 year 3 -
Detention Center BUE=H 1EUR
Total At 58,306,876 78 -
2018 if& 325
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accounts receivable (Continued)

31 December 2017

STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes receivable and accounts receivable (Continued)

(3) Top five entities with the largest balances of

Tt RAEHMBRRETERBER(E)

1 BERRBEREWERRE)

(3) BXAGEEFFARGHEINLER

FEWR AR 18R (45)
20171273311

Proportion of

the amount
to the total Closing
Relationship with accounts  balance of bad
the Group Amount  Aging receivable (%)  debt provision
{EERER R
Name of entity B A EARABE 8 £R BRLLH(%) FREH
Jingkelong Langfang REERS Subsidiary 54,681,118 Within 1 year 60 -
S 1EA
Shouchao Group BHEE Subsidiary 7,516,348 Within 1 year 8 -
FRA] EA
Jingkelong Tongzhou REEBAM Subsidiary 5,549,203 Within 1 year 6 -
FAA] 1ELR
Beijing Chaoyang District tETEER Independent third party 4,892,481 Within 1 year 5 -
Detention Center AT BUE=)H EP
Beijing Tongda Asset FREEEEEE  Independent third party 1,718,002 Within 1 year 2 -
Management Group NS BuE=] 15 A
Corporation
Total ait 74,357,152 81 -
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Other receivables

(1) 31 December 2018

XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR I

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

A

il

tE AEHMBERRTERBER(E)

Presentation of other receivables by category:

2 - HttEWR

(1) 2018%12H31H

HAb RS IR TR

2018.12.31
Net book
Carrying amount Bad debt provision value
RESE BHREE REEE
Amount Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%)
Category K5l Ex ] £ A(%) S8 ARLA%)
Other receivables that are individually BIRHEERE R ER
significant and for which bad debt Bx
provision is assessed individually 5,087,250 1 4,224,750 83 862,500
Other recelvables for which bad debt BRAAHRERERNE
provision is assessed by groups W
according to credit risk characteristics 555,473,326 99 - - 555,473,326
Total At 560,560,576 100 4,224,750 - 556,335,826
Presentation of other receivables according to aging HEm R T
analysis:
2018.12.31
Carrying Proportion Bad debt Net book
amount (%) provision value
Aging R &5 L5 (%) RIRERE REEE
Within 1 year 1 AR 555,473,326 99 - 555,473,326
1-2 years 1224 - - - -
2-3 years 2E3F - - - -
3-4 years 3E4F - - - -
4-5 years 4555 - - - -
Over 5 years 5F A F 5,087,250 1 4,224,750 862,500
Total &5 560,560,576 100 4,224,750 556,335,826

2018 & #f 327
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2. Other receivables (Continued)

(1) 31 December 2018 (Continued)

Other receivables that are individually significant and for

which the bad debt provision is assessed individually:

Content of other
receivables

Hitt B R E

Beijing Guanyuan
Wholesale Market
Company Limited

It REE ML ETS
BRAA

tE DA BRREIERBER(E

2 HAEWERE)

(1) 2018%12F31H(4#&)

FREASEEAS EFHRITR
HE ) Ho A FE R

Carrying Bad debt
amount provision

AREBREE REREHE

5,087,250 4,224,750

Rate(%) Reason

FHRLESI(%) HEMH

Full bad debt provision for the
part unrecovered, according
83 to the agreement
REELSHE  HREKEHDF

Aging analysis method is used to a portfolio of bad

MEP - BIRER DA RERR

debt provision AE{R Y ELAth JE ISR
2018.12.31
Other Bad debt Provision
receivables provision ratio (%)
Aging AR HLth FE LK HREE  FHREAI(%)
Within 1 year 1 AR 555,473,326 - 0
1-2 years 1226 - - 3
2-3 years 2&E3F - - 10
3-4 years 3E4F - - 25
4-5 years 4555 - - 50
Over 5 years 5F A+ - - 100
Total &5 555,473,326 -
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STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

tE AEHMBERRTERBER(E)

2. Other receivables (Continued) 2 HiEWRE)
(1) 31 December 2018 (Continued) (1) 2018%12H31H (&)

Other receivables of related parties H e YR F R IR T
Relationship between Proportion of the total
other related parties other receivables of
and the Company Amount the Company (%)

15 B b FEU AR X

Company name BNEE BN FIBAR X HAEB I LE (%)

Chaopi Trading At E Subsidiary 500,000,000 90
FRA]

Jingkelong Tongzhou  mEE®EIM  Subsidiary 23,468,191 4
Fra]

Training School Bl 2R Subsidiary 247,300 -
Fra]

Total A5 523,781,533 94

(&

31 December 2017

Presentation of other receivables by category:

(2) 2017%12H31H

H e R oy JE I R

2017.12.31
Net book
Carrying amount Bad debt provision value
FHHBE ERER KHER
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%)
Category 85 Ead £ 17(%) S8 SHEHDI%)
Other receivables that are individually BB HERRERNER
significant and for which bad debt BR
provision is assessed individually 5,312,250 1 4,224,750 80 1,087,500
Other receivables for which bad debt REAHUERERR
provision is assessed by groups FEURER
according to credit risk characteristics 557,936,656 99 - - 557,936,656
Total = 563,248,906 100 4,224,750 - 559,024,156
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL

AN

il

STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2.

Other receivables (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2017 (Continued)

Presentation of other receivables according to aging

Tt RAEHMBRRETERBER(E)

2 HittEWR (&)
(2) 2017%412531H(4%&)

Hith B YRR I T

analysis: 2017.12.31

Carrying Proportion Bad debt Net book

amount (%) provision value
Aging BRER &5 LB 151(%) IR IREEE
Within 1 year 1F AR 557,936,656 99 - 557,936,656
1-2 years 1224 - - - -
2-3 years 2Z3F - - - -
3-4 years 3E4F - - - -
4-5 years 4555 - - - -
Over 5 years 5 5,312,250 1 4,224,750 1,087,500
Total AT 563,248,906 100 4,224,750 559,024,156

Other receivables that are individually significant and for

FREFSEEALBBHLRE

which the bad debt provision is assessed individually: HE 4 A HL A P KR
Content of other Carrying Bad debt
receivables amount provision Rate (%) Reason
Hih IR AR R EREE EReR STIRLEGI(%) IR
Beijing Guanyuan Full bad debt provision for the
Wholesale Market part unrecovered, according to
Company Limited 5,312,250 4,224,750 80 the agreement
I REEEmitET RIRE T ek - HARWKEHH 5
BERAT TRIEARIER
Other receivables of related parties: Hith pe U B8 5 R IEI T
Relationship between Proportion of the total
other related parties other receivables of
and the Company Amount the Company (%)
b E o FE W R R
#8ZE Y EEBl(%)
Company name BUARE AN TR &5
Chaopi Trading BitEE Subsidiary 500,000,000 89
AR
Jingkelong Tongzhou  mE[E@M  Subsidiary 24,678,595 4
FRE]
Training School BEIIER Subsidiary 150,000 -
FRA
Total &t 524,828,595 93
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2. Other receivables (Continued)

(3) Presentation of other receivables by nature

(4)

1:||||/

tE AEHMBERRTERBER(E)

2

Hib WK ()

(3) HEMAEMESTAMEKN

Nature of other receivables Hh e W B 2018.12.31 2017.12.31
Receivables of promotional activities &L 42 29,218,936 32,011,998
Receivables of related parties JE UL BE B 5 KT8 523,781,533 524,828,595
Others Efth 3,335,357 2,183,563
Total &5 556,335,826 559,024,156

Top five entities with the largest balances of other

receivables

31 December 2018

(4) BRABEEHFRGHEINEELN
AR 15

2018%12H31H

Proportion of
the amount to  Closing balance
Nature of other the total other of bad debt
receivables (Closing balance ~ Aging receivables (%) provision
EMBRYS BHREE
Company name g2 FEME EXEE KR BENLH(%) ERBE
Chaopi Trading AHEE Receivables of subsidiary 500,000,000  Within 1 year 90 -
borrowing 150/
TFRAER
Jingkelong Tongzhou REERN Current account 23,468,191 Within 1 year 4 -
AR 150R
Beiing Guanyuan Wholesale 1 REE Iﬁunﬁt?‘ Receivables of prepaid rent 5,087,250  Over 5 years 1 4,204,750
Market Company Limited EERAH LA 58N
Jingdong arrived home. RRIR Current account 1,314,414 Within 1 year - -
AR 150R
Ele N Current account 658,426 Within 1 year - -
(S 150R
Total At 530,528,281 95 4,224,750
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STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2. Other receivables (Continued)

2

(4) Top five entities with the largest balances of other

receivables (Continued)

31 December 2017 (Continued)

Tt RAEHMBRRETERBER(E)

Htt WK (&)

Rt R ER ()
2017512A31H

Proportion of
the amount to

(4) BXFGERHFRGHEINLEL

Closing balance

Nature of other the total other of bad debt
receivables Closing balance  Aging receivables (%) provision
IEEHER SHRER
Company name BEHE FEME FReE  BR BENLLHI%) FREE
Chaopi Trading Eg gy Receivables of subsidlary 500,000,000  Within 1 year 89 -
borrowing TENR
FRAER
Jingkelong Tongzhou REREN Current account 24,678,595  Within 1 year 4 -
AR 1ELAA
Beijng Guanyuan Wholesale St REEERHETS  Receivables of prepaid rent 5,312,250 Over 5 years 1 4,204,750
Market Company Limited BRAT gk 5EI F
Beijing KFC Ltd. kFEEEERRE  Current account 182,089 Within 1 year - -
IS 1ELAA
Training School ISR Recelvables of subsidiary 150,000 Within 1 year - -
borrowing TEUR
FRAER
Total At 530,323,134 9% 4,224,750
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

3.

Long-term equity investment

31 December 2018

b e e

A

il

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 20184 /Z
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

tE AEHMBERRTERBER(E)

3

REKRERE

2018%12H31H

Initial
Accounting investment Change in
methods cost 2018.1.1 the year 2018.12.31
—B-N\% “E-N\%
Investee HREEN BEF DR ERE -B-8 BHEH +-A=t-8H
Long-term equity investment %/ 7] &
in subsidiaries KE
Jingkelong Langfang RRERY cost method 8,000,000 83,980,000 - 83,980,000
A
Chaopi Trading HHtmE cost method 55,733,000 436,505,594 - 436,505,594
A
Xinyang Tongli RE@EN cost method 832,500 5,565,775 - 5,565,775
BAE
Shoulian Supermarket Eligip] cost method 121,160,000 422,484,500 - 422,484,500
A
Jingkelong Tongzhou REBEM cost method 29,000,000 29,000,000 - 29,000,000
A
Training School b=H =2 cost method 500,000 500,000 - 500,000
A%
Lianchao Limited VNG| cost method 268,955,702 268,955,702 - 268,955,702
BAE
Total Bt 1,246,991,571 - 1,246,991,571
Description of
the difference Provision for
Proportion ~ Proportion of ~ between the  Provision for impairment Cash
of ownership  voting power former and impairment  of assets in dividend
interests (%) (%) the latter of assets the year in the year
ERREEM
BRHI5E
ERREEN ARREEM  RRERA REHR
Investee BREEMN BRIEAI) FRELA(%) F-HHHH REER BEEE AFERSAA
Long-term equity investment in ¥ 7 R 2R IE
subsidiaries &E
Jingkelong Langfang REERS 100 100 - - - -
Chaopi Trading HREE 79.85 79.85 - - - 23,955,540
Xinyang Tongi REBEn 55.66 55.66 - - - 278,289
Shoulian Supermarket Ll 100 100 - - - -
Jingkelong Tongzhou REEEM 100 100 - - - -
Training School E 2R 100 100 - - - -
Lianchao Limited NG 100 100 - - - -
Total At - - 24,233,829
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il

XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL T ARMBHRRETEEETR(E)
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

3. Long-term equity investment (Continued) 3 REREREE)
31 December 2017 2017%12H31H
Initial
Accounting investment Change in
methods cost the year
Investee WREEN BEhA MIRRERA 2017.1.1 R 2017.12.31
Long-term equity investment %172 AR 23Rk 1
in subsidiaries RE
Jingkelong Langfang REREL %g%t method 8,000,000 83,980,000 - 83,980,000
*
Chaopi Trading HHBE Eéjié method 55,733,000 436,505,594 - 436,505,594
%
Xinyang Tongli Rs@En cost method 832,500 5,565,775 - 5,565,775
A
Shoulian Supermarket Lkl cost method 121,160,000 422,484,500 - 422,484,500
FAE
Jingkelong Tongzhou REE®N cost method 29,000,000 29,000,000 - 29,000,000
A
Training School BEHIER cost method 500,000 500,000 - 500,000
AE
Lianchao Limited YN cost method 268,955,702 - 268,955,702 268,955,702
FRAE
Total Bl 978,035,869 268,955,702 1,246,999,571
Description of
the difference Provision for
Proportion  Proportion of  between the  Provision for impairment Cash
of ownership  voting power ~ formerand  impairment of assets dividend
interests (%) (%) the latter of assets in the year in the year
} ERBAER
EWIREBN  FRLpIE \
EREEEN  RRELG  RRELH ‘ AFEHE
Investee WA EhL FEAREL (%) (%) F—HEHA REERE WEEE KFERGUA
Long-term equity investment  ¥{-FA 7] X8
in subsidiaries B
Jingkelong Langfang RRERES 100 100 - - - -
Chaopi Trading BiEg 79.85 79.85 - - - 19,962,950
Xinyang Tongli &N 55.66 55.66 - - - 278,289
Shoulian Supermarket Elyiéh 100 100 - - - -
Jingkelong Tongzhou REERM 100 100 - - - -
Training School nE 100 100 - - - -
Lianchao Limited YN 100 100 - - - -
Total &3 - - - 20,241,239
On 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, no R2018% 12 431 H K 2017412 A 31
restriction appeared on the capability of transferring fund BARRFANRARBERE ZHIRE
from investee to the Company. BNAAAREBESWENRZEIR
# -
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL 1R AR EBRREEEEFE(E)
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

4. Operating income and operating cost 4~ BEWA - EERK
2018 2017
ltem = 2018 E 20174 E
Income Cost Income Cost
WA AR ION PR AR
Principal operating FEER 3,950,398,780 3,364,226,857 | 4,102,355,605 3,486,101,917
Other operating H MR 352,805,747 10,210,803 345,787,316 11,240,117
Total &t 4,303,204,527 3,374,437,660 | 4,448,142,921 3,497,342,034
The Company’s business principally comprises retailing, so ARBEEEBFERTEED - MUK
the top five customers are not disclosed. WRIARER ©
The principal operating mainly engages in the distribution of TEEBUATERBEERD BB
food, untagged food, daily necessities, beverage and wine. m - ARAEER  SRFAUBESESHK
Ao
5. Investment income 5 REWH
2018 2017
ltem HH 2018F & 20174 [E
Long-term equity investment income A EZE /)R ERRR i
accounted by using the cost method K& WS 24,233,829 20,241,239
Investment gain from buying financial products 3287 & @i% & W A 865,476 2,227,512
Total = 25,099,305 22,468,751
As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, no ©20184F12 A31 B &20174 12 A 31
significant restriction appeared on the Company’s remittance H - ARalfiREWEHE R NMFESE A
of investment income. R o
XVI.APPROVAL FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENT TR BMBEmKR 2 E
The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the RRFWE R AR M BEHRENR201953 A
financial statements of the Company were approved by the board OHELARNTEEZSHE -

of directors on 22 March 2019.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AP E

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and equity of the
Group for last five financial years, as extracted from the Company’s

annual reports is set out below:

NTAREAREERNEERBEMBFE 2EE
BE  BEMEAZRHE :

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—B-NE —FiF —T-XF —F-RF —TQOF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBFT ARETR AREFT AREFTT
Results ¥
Revenue FEEBRA 10,445,548 10,786,227 10,847,005 10,572,672 10,007,135
Profit before tax FEEE 177,590 148,189 134,450 113,379 132,503
Income tax expense FrisHi & A (71,213) (53,347) (59,129) (41,033) (43,641)
Net profit SR 106,377 94,842 75,321 72,346 88,862
Attributable to shareholders BENSRRMESE
of the parents )5 F)E 63,312 47,485 26,686 24,865 41,330
Minority interests B2 G ETE 43,065 47,357 48,635 47 481 47,532
106,377 94,842 75,321 72,346 88,862
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—B-NE —FiF —T-RXF —“FT-RF —TQOF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBFT  ARETR AREFT AREFTT
Assets, Liabilities and Equity &E > 8ERKAE
Non-current assets EREEE 2,277,604 2,433,597 2,371,224 2,485,217 2,475,179
Current assets REEE 5,410,196 5,266,655 6,011,224 5,885,554 4,766,324
Current liabilities mEBEE (5,444,706)  (5,486,421)  (5,463,543)  (5,458,025) (4,261,812)
Net current assets/(liabilities) REEE,/(AE)
pack ] (34,510) (219,766) 547 681 427 529 504,512
Total assets less current liabilities #2&EER RS EE 2,243,094 2,213,831 2,918,905 2,912,746 2,979,691
Non-current liabilities FnBeE (66,094) (62,205) (800,627) (803,232) (884,626)
Net assets FEE 2,177,000 2,151,626 2,118,278 2,109,514 2,095,065
Equity attributable to shareholders 5782 A)
of the parents PREtE 1,708,378 1,669,689 1,643,354 1,636,512 1,653,680
Minority interests DER RS 468,622 481,937 474,924 473,002 441,385
Total equity FEU N 2,177,000 2,151,626 2,118,278 2,109,514 2,095,065

Note: The data of 2014 to 2018 is prepared in accordance with Accounting i

Standard for Business Enterprise.
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